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“The Admipisteative istory of Pinnacles tatiomal
Sbnument“ is offered not as the fipal authoritatiwve word,
it as en corganized account of date that my act as a
stimilus for further reseiarch. It is hoped that this
history will not auly serve &5 an implement for the admin-
istration and interpretation of the Monuwent but will also
recard some items of interest for the San Benito County
Historical Society.

¥We have relied heavily upon the administraticon files of
the Pinnacies, local and university litraries, the morgus of

the Hollister Evening Pree lance and interviews with area

residents for informmtion.

We wish to thank the many pecple who have contributed
their time, effort and informetion, and heve contributed of
thoselves, to a cause in which they werse interested. For
them this history is written.

For "The Administrative History of the Piopacles
Maticnal Momument" is the bistory of anyons who was ever
influsnced by, or bad influence wpon, the administration of

the Pipnacles.

Reta R. Oherg

Pricines, California

Cotober 1875



INTRODUCTICN

In oentral Californis, formng a tarrier between the
San Benito and Montersy Counties, lie the Gabilan moun-—
tatns, The renge ms a length of sewnty-fiwe miles, 2
preadth of twenty mles and the elevatiom waries from
approximtely 1,000 to 3,000 feet above eea level.

After the range's abrupt beginning at the nearth end
near Sap Juan Bautists with the rise of Fremopt's (Gahilan)
Peak, elewation 3,169 feest abowe sea level, the first
cighteen mlles are & sSystem of low mountains which lend
thamselves to ocourmation. This entire area 1s coversd with
graes and an awndance of timker. The rest of the range is
characterized by deep and precipitous canyons and is covered
with low ctamiese. The high, rough mountains extend as far
scuth as tte ald Spapish Land Grant of San Lorenzo.l

ThH.rty-fiwe miles southeast of Fremont's Peak 1s North
Ctalone (Mt. Chaone) Peak, elevation 3,300 feet above sea
level. Morth Chalone Peek is now within the haomdaries of

itbe Pinnacles Nations]l Momirent, the subject of our study.

1 History of San Benito County (San Franciscor Elliott
and Moore Mublishing, 1881) p. 123.
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Tt Pinnacles tekes its weme from the large remant of
a tertisry woleano that existed twentﬁr—three and one-half
million years ago. At that time the Gabilans were part af
the scuthern cogstal range. . Faulting and differential
weatlering Wmw formed a2 region of Iawm  monoliths,
pinnacles, stesp walled canyoms, jagged peaks and two areas
that cantain talus caves.<

¥e find no mention of the Pinnacles in the earliest
recarded accounts of the area. Neither do we find how tbe
Gakilans wers npamed, nor if they were named bBY <oDe
particular persan.  We only Enew that the mouptaine were
given the Spanish name for the hawk.

The first recordsd use of the Pipnacles ares is from
the late Spanish and early plomeer era. It wes Tirst used
g5 o refuge for mndits, shortly aftersards by prospectars,
and then by the pioneers who recoghized its possibilities
for recreaticnal use.

It was these early setilers whe also recognizexd the
threat of comercial exploitation of the area. It was these
settlers glso who became respongsible for the drive that
resulted in the preserwation of the regian that is now known

a3 Finpacles Mational Momumsnt.

< W.H. lsen, L.A. Payen and Jobn L. Beck, "An
Archeclogical Burvey of Pinnacles Hational Monument San

Benito County, (alifarmie” (unpublisbed report, Pinnacles

National Momument file Bo. 970.4 for Hational Park Service,
U.S. Department of the Interiar, Jaouary 1, 1967) pp. 2.3.
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Becanse of the important part the settlems in the
surrounding ares: played in obtalning MNaticpnal Monument
status for the  Pinnecles, this history will include a
chronology of the early families of Besr Valley and Willow
Crecic., The early settlers of Beer Velley were the first
pecple to really meie use of the park and 2lso the first to
see to the admnistration of the area before tl;_-e Metional
Park Service was formed.
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CHAPTER 1

INDIAN INFLUERCE

¥oen recorded history is lacking, % mast utilize what
mthods we bave of the present o study the past. Such is
the case when we search for informtion regarding any
Indians why moy once bawe ipnhabited the Pinnaclies area.

‘ii’é: are fortunate that in 1866 an archeclogical survey
was conducted by the NMaticnal Park Service that adds much to
ar understanding of the Mormument area, whether any Indians
ever lived there, and sarething about the Indians them-
selves.l

In both the Bear Gulch area and the Cld Pinnacles area
of the park are found talus caves with rooms up to one
hndred feet wide. Streams in the Morument ares TUR
intermittently, usually during the water rum-ofi, so the
only reliable sources of water throughout the year are the
few spripgs in the region.

In ths scuthern part of the park vast thickets of pure
stends of chamise completely cover many of the sigpes.
Manzanita, Buck Brush, Toyon, Live (ak, Blue Cok and Digeer

Pine are alsn frund in some of the Warmer Spots.

! W.H. Olgen, L.&4. Payen and John L. Beck, “An
Archeological Survey of DPinnacles HNational Momument San

Benito County, Califomia" (unpublished report, Pinnacles

FBatianal Mopument file MNo. 970.4, for the MNationel FPark
Service, U.S. Dept. of the Interior, January 1, 1987), pp.
25,



n the cooler, more protected slopes are found in
increasing numbers the Pine and Cek, along with Caffee
Berry, Hollyleaf Cherry, Hard Tack, apd Californmia Buckeye.

Willowe, Blue Elderberry, Valley Oak and many varicties
of fern, imcluding the Chain Ferm are fr.l:imd alcog the stream
bads, There also will be found tihe ever persistent Poison
Cak.

Simce the land is not suited to arzble or otber
comercial pursuits, vegetatica in the park sinece the tioe
of the Indians is largely due to natural chaoges. The most
noticeable change is in mcrea.aed hshiness. The wast
thickets of underbrush were less ccmmon before the arTivel
of the settlers and their subsequent use of fire control.

Fire ms been an important factor to the chaparral that
iz found there. Chaparral is made up minly of shrubxs that
after mny thousands of Yesus lave become adapted 1o the
frequent ravage of firve. Most of these fires in the higher
elevations were started by lighining. But actually tke
Indians became the first ecologists whep they would set
pumeroes fires in the coastal reoges and foothills so that
the tulbms rooted and seedbearing plents that they used far
food wauld grow more aundantly.

S=ttipg fire to chaparral weas also a means of forcing
rebhits and other smll game into the open for easier
capture. Other small game of the area include Black Tailed

Deer, Raccoons amd Coliformia Guail.
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In sborlgipal times the ared glso abounded with Tule E1X
and Propghorn Antelcpe. This game provided a mejor food
smroetcttelndia.:s,a.foodmrcesecmﬂml?mtte
acorm.

Information about the California Indians is meager as
the few accounts eveilable ate frau the hiased view of the
padres in the Spanish Mission system. The first reports
gtressed the apparent friepdliness the natives shwed to the
firgt Spanish explorers and the filthiness of the living
conditions of the Indlans.”

On the 9th of October, 1781, Father Fermin laguen began
the Soledad Missian and it became the thirteenth lipk of 2
well-established chain of Missions. There were 500 converts
hy 1BQ0; 727 bY 1805; and by 1820, 2,000 conversicns were
recorded . In 1835, all of Californisa WaS vizited by AD
epidemic that greatly redaced the Indian population.”

Bow many "wild" Indians there Wele WaS Dever recorded,
for bpeing vnbaptized they Were considered "bestias” {(beasts),
amd not worthy of the potice of reasonable beinms.

smerican traders and free boOLers had begun overnunning

California, spreadlilg seeds of discontent among the Mission

2 7.H. Guinn, A.M., Montersy and San Benite Counties

(Lo Angeles: i storical Record 0., T910) PR, 24220,

3 Olsen, Payen and Beck; p. 7-
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mecphites, leading to internal discrder and many acts of
revwolt and dE'.'SE!I'tiOl'l-é

A a result of these combinations of ewvents, when the
Missions were desecularized and tumed ioto raochos in 1835,.
there were 2 mere mapdful of Indlans left at Mission
Soledad.

The DPinnacles is within the territory claimed by the
Soledad division of the Femutian sSpeaking CosStancens,
bordered .cm the emst bty tihe Sap Jusn Bautista Costanoans.
The Soledad Mission is just west of the soutbern bowndary of
the Momment.”

Iue to the climptic conditiops of the caves and the
meager agricultural possibilities of the park area, it is
unlikely tht Indians ever used the region in any other than
an itinerant way. The area possibly zerved as a good
hupting promd and may have been used es a means of oScape
for those Indiaps fleeinp the Mission system.

The archeolocical survey reports the finding of some
Indizn artifects, such as grinding stones used to grind
acorns  ints meal, within the Momument boindaries. The
repart menticons thirteen sites that have signs pointing to

hspitation anpd two of the=e sites were recamended for

future excavation. A1) but one site, 1t was felt, stemmed

4 History of San Benito County, (San Francisco: Elliott
and ¥oore Publishing, 1681} Pr 1oo.

_ 2 Olsen, Paven and Beck, p.7.
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fram the period of the Missions on. The e remaining site
my possibly date back as far as 2,000 years. (Coly by
digging could these estimates by verified.®

In later recorded, historical times, after the ssttlers
began arriving fran the "states,” the Indians of (aliformia
were pearly extinct. The cmes who did remin seemed 1o be
no match for the white men's agpressiveness, or the “campany
store.”

Sore area residents remember n few Indian and Spanish
families who bad settled east of the Pinnacles in the
vicinity of the Rosas amd Olives Canyons. Many kd to
struggle to make a living, and when families fell upen bard
times, they eitber lost ar sold their lends. At any rate,
this iz the only mention of Indié.ns in the impedizte

vicinity of the Minnacles in mdern times.

6 Olsen, Payen and Beck, p. 12.



(HAPTER 2

SPANISH INFLUENCE

There are many influences, hoth direct snd indirect,

uprm the ssttlers who would later come to the Finpacles area

tmt ares attributable 40 the Spanish, juat ‘as there are
tircaghout all of California and the otber western states.
Teey not anly left an inberitence of Spanish names and
vocatmlary, ormnamentation and architectore, but the catfle
irdustry adapted such useful practices as working cattle
fran the back of a horse, of branding, trail driving,
roaundups and even the cattle and livestock themselves aften
hawe Spanish origin. The late comrs' laws would have modi-
Ffications of statutory and commn law tbat show a direct
resenblance to the "reglamentos” of Spain, especielly in
reference to property, mining and renge laws, The arid
western states would also adopt the concept of prior usage
rights to the water in streams and rivers instead of ibe epe
old English doctrine of riparian rights.-

fne of the st dreot influences on California history
attribited to the Spanish influence came in the form of

Spanish, or Mexican Land Grants. These grents, containing

some of the richest farm land in California, were given for

1 Bokert G. Ferrls, Explorers and Settlerg (‘H’ashjm.ﬂn,
D.,C.:  United States Dept. of the Interior, Matiomal Park
Service, 189683 pp. 47-—18.




wrimis ressons, aften for loval service lao the stmy. In
1824, Mexico began 4 campeign to colonlze (aliforpia and
passed legisliation whereby foreigners could recsive land
grants, provided they comolied with the rules sst down in
colcnization laws. In 1828, more legislation enabled these
foreigners with the means of becomlng Merican citizens.?
Immigrants hed been arrivipg in California since 1814, and
althmgh some took adventace of these new laws, stayed and
merriel California women, their mimbers did not increase
fast.? FEach Mexican Llend Grant was not to exceed elem-
sqere leagles 1o size. Mapy of the grants remined in
large parcels a.m'i in alifornie familles for many years.
When we soe how oo mech of the land was taken up in
these grants, the reason the Spanish had so much influence
upen the practices of the caftle industry, as well as upon
the customs and laws of the West, beoomes evident. These
ranches were already well established when the Amsricans
arrived to settle in California. -
The Pimmacles itself was not contained in aoy land grant
put in tre surrcunding ares there were several, especially
in the fertile Salinas Valley to the west of the Momment.

The town of Gonzales was included in the large Rincon de la

2 1M, Guimm, 4.M., Monterey amd San Penite Countiss
{los Angeles: Historical Hecord Company, 1910) p. BO.

3 Guinn, p. 148.



Puente del Monte (Cormer of the Mountain Pass), granted to
Theodoro Gopzales in 1836; Guedalupe, Chualar (Flace Where
Pipweed is Found) apd Zangones, cadhined, amounting to
24,469 acres, came under the authority of Juan Mavlarin in
the early 1B40's; 3an Vincente was pranted to Bstaban Munres
and in 1841 San Vicente came under the mnagement of
Feliciano Soberanes, who at that time was granted 8,800
acres of Our Iady of Solitude (Soledsd Missian); Scberapes’
daughter, Josefa, Teceived 8,704 acres, Los Coches {Stage
Coach Stop), south of Scoledad; Arroyo seco (Dry  Wash),
15;524 acrez went tw J. de la Torre in 1840; scatlwest of
te Finnecles, Feliciano Spberanes, &gain, receiwved 21,384
acres of the San lorenmo Grant; between the Arrovo Seco and
the San [lorenzo lies the Pogo de los (sitos (Well of the Cub
Bears).?

n the east side of the Gabilan Reppe, in Sen Benito
Cmunty, nortbwest of Pinnacles and west of Tres Pinos, is
Cienema del Gabilen (Margh of the Hawk), 21,874 acres that
were granted To Antonio Chaves in 1843, and 1ater ip 1856,
the Grant was confirmed by the tnited States to J.D. Carr;
at Paicines, Clenegr de los FRicines (named for the Prizi-n,
a division of the Costanman Indlans), a2 B,917 acre tract

that went to Geperal Anpelo Cagtro in 1B42; sast, and

4 pnne B. Fisher, Salinas, the Upside Down Hiver (New
York and Toronto: Farrar and Rinshart, Inc., 1945)
pp. 34-38.




northeast of Tres Pincs is Santa Ana ¥y Quien Sabe (Holy Anne
and "Who ¥nows?"), 48,822 aores granted to Manual larics in
1839; directly esest of Faicines, in a ramote and parttily
moAantainoas area, is the Real de las Apuilass (Royal Ranch of
the FEagles), 31,052 scres granted to F.A. MacDoupall in
1344; scath of Pipnacles to the San lorenzo again, 23,343
acres situated just north of the road fram King City to
Bitterwater, along the Tope (Gopher) Valley, is what has
acsuned the name of that wlley and become familiarly kpown
' ae Rancho Topo, Was grented to R. Sanchez in 1846.°

Not all tbe influences of the Spanish era are as
tangible as the granting of land. Some influences came O
us in the form of legends. One of the wost fampus 1s the
legend about the "Lost Spanish Silver Mips".

The lepend begins with the Priars at Mission San Carics
Borromeo, a2t Garmel, who seeing the poessibilities of
precicus metals in the nearby Gebilans, sent aat prospec-—
tors, end were rewardsd by the discovery of one or more
mines that produced large quantities of silver. The Mine
was worked in great secrecy by the Indians. Tales scon were
camen of the mmny silwer religlous cornaments, made Dy
Spanish artisanos, fbhat adomed the (armel and other

issions.

5 Wenry D. Parrows and luthsr A. Ingersol, Central
California (Chicago: The lewis Publishing Company, 18893)
p. 133,



The Evening Free Lence io 195‘?,5 carrial a feature story

telling of mEDY wl'n.ha.d saarched over the years for tThe Hine
and of the man who eventually found it.

¥ren John Charles Fremont came to (armel in 1852 with a
force af United States soldiers, ell mbing cperations
stopped. The Americans ccould not find apy one who woald
talk sbout the Mine, They did find that a curse bad been
placad upon apy foreigner who walked oo the hallowed gromd
near the Mine, and a curse of death wes placad upon any
Spaniard or Indian who shold lead a Griogo 1o the
diggings. So, ccnSB;L;Entl? tho Mine became lost, despite
the hmdreds of prospectors who seatched snd talked and kept
the legend zlive.

One tale bhas coe adventurer who stumbled onto the Mine
cne night in a dense fog in the 1850's, after sleeping
there near the Mine, be picked up a few samples apd made his
way through the fog to the nesrest settlement, a cow—camp 15
mles away. He eraused the whole crew with his story aod
samples, and inspired them to a five-day futile search of
the area.

Still persistent, the prospector found an Indlen woman
in Monterey who agreed to lead bhim to the Mipe.  After

maing their way high into the mountains, the power of the

5 Evening Free lance, {Hoilister} AuFust 9, 1957, pp. 1-3.

10



cirse won ot and she refused to go further. The old
prospector had lost ocut again in bis long gquest for the
dne.

Stortly after this, as legend ms it, Jonathan Watson
becan a life long search from San Juan to the-southern end
of the range. He died an old mwen, pever hving found e
trace of the Mine.

In 1874, B.F. Ross, the first Sbkeriff of San Benito
County, reported findiog an old smelter that dated mack o
Mission days. He had found the smelter while in pursuit of
horse thicves, but the elusive Mine was not found when he
returned to search tbe area.

Since that time dorens searched tiose hills for ihe
trepgsure. One report states that Henry Melendy, one of the
first settlers of Bear Valley, vainly sarched from time to
time throughout his life for the Mine.”

The Evening Pree lance goes on to tell bow in the first

week of August, 1857, Oliver Bowen, an engineer for the
State Division of Mines, accidentally stumbled onto the Mine
while mikipg a state survey of lime depesits. The emct
location of the mine was not disclosed, but the descripticn
mtched the cne that bad lived through the vears in the

lepend. it was high in the mountains {not far from the

7 Begsie Webb (notes from personal interview by K. Waner,
Pinnacles Metiocpal Momument file no. H-14) June 13, 1956.
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topmst part of the ridge), hidden by Coulter Pines, and
Snledsd Mission could be seon from near the Mine site.
On fgust 8, 1857, Jack Widmer, a reporter for the

Bwning Free lance and Rocky Lydon, San Benito County Farm

Advisor, were ewarn to secrecy and led to the Mine to sub—
gtantiate the find. The puide refused identification tut
professed no fear of the curse. The location was to be kept
secret for a few days until property rights were estab—
lished.

Within days came the news that the Mine was lomted
gbout 15 miles north of Plnnacles on Pescadero Creek. It
mist mve been a disappointed enéineer who discovered that
the diggings were on an old Spanish Grant, Clenega del
Gabilan, and that all mineral rights belonged to the owmer
of the property, Dr. Rollin Reeves of Salinas.®

John W. Deyarmmino of Tres Plags, upon readipg the story
in the newspapers, went searching in a trunk of papers that
had belonged to his late brother, Harry Deyarmin, aod the
next week came forward with an interesting story. Jomm
Devarmin had a map that had been made and dated in 1818, the
year e claimed his brother had found the Mine. Harry
Devarmin bad been sure that the mine ke d found bad been

the "Lemt Spanish Silver Mine."

8 Evening Free lance, Angust 12, 1957.
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(o the Wack of the mp Hd been written, "The Lode shall
he kncam as the Spanish Mining ILl::de, and the claim the
'8panish Claim® there on. (Sigoned) Harry Deyarmin.”

When somecne told Harry that the mine might be an a
Spanish Grant, he went to the expense of hving & survey
made by William A. Winn, 2 mining engineer, who later became
the San Benite Connty Surveyor.

"I went up to the claim with my hrother Harry
in 1916, Jobn Deyarmin said. We went up to the
McPhoil place {now owned by the Garner Brotbers) by
“team and sulky, stayed the pight and the next
mring we &¥itched to saddle horses to make the
trip.

“At timt time the smelter walls were still in
fair shape. The shaft was zs you describe it now,
arnd a ladder made of ping with crcss members lasherd
anto the side pieces wlth raw-hide was still in the
shaft.

"Harry had cleansd ocut the bottom of the plt
and was Just about to start working on tbe old
tunnels when he got the news that the claim was o
the Spanish Grant land and that be caudd neitber
file 2 c¢laim nor warXk the mine. So ke gave it up
and went to work oo a claim that was producing io
Trinity County in Nortbern Califormial™

Harry Deyarmin died in 1938 at the apge of 72.
Right up to the time of his death be thought that e
had found the lost Silver Mine of the Gabilans. His
old mp found among his claim and other fapers this
weck iz evidence that the old miner thought he was
on the right track. g

¥ho knows, perbeps be ¥as.

The ircny of Harry Deyarmin's story is tmt, if the
shaft had been sunk 400 feet to the east, it would have heen
off the Spanish Grant ard be might have been able bto stake a

claim.

? Advance {Hollister: Evening Pree lance) Augusi 16,
1la57.
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So there ended the search for the lost Spanish Silwer
Mine, except for those who contipus fo search the Gabilans
in the hps that there was more thao one Mine, or for those
wio did pot believe this story to be true.

tnother tale of the area coocermms the old Indian ar
Spanish trzil that led from Mopterey to the San Josquin
Valiey. Sxne say it wes used by the Indians traveling
between Missions. The emct lomtion of this trail is also
diffioult to verify due to the natural changes that evolve
with time. The trail is not mniked in early Hsetory books,
but that it exeted 1s taken for granted by the residents of
the area. Part of the trail, after leaving Coalings, possi-
bly wound through Herpandez Valley, then through Horse
Valley, sast of Pinoacles.

Horse Valley iz a hidden valley situated betwesn Hosas
Canyon and the Dry lake area on Route 23, that appears to
have derived its nape from the fact that it was used by the
Spaniards as a place to hide horses that had been stolen co
the reids of ramehes., It was originally mestesaded in 1870
by Jef Schmidt, ereat grandfather of the present cwners.
Mr. Schmidt built his bouss beside the trail that angled
thiroush the center of the valley.

Early one morming be was cuitside the housse codking bis
breakfast over an open fire, and as be looked up he was
gtartled by a Spaniard atop a horse with silver trappings,
The Spaniard assured hbim, before be rode on, that there

waild be no trouble, I be would just combtinue to cook bis

14



breakfast. The experience mst have mde quite an
impression oo Mr, Schmidt as the present Jef Schmidt, his
grandscn, remembers his grandfatber relating the story meny
times .10 |

On the wall of the San Benito Historical Museum hangs an
1891 map that shows this old trail clearly marked. The
trail left Horse Valley, wound tlrough Grassy Cenyon and
into the Dignacles ares, 10 lead to the Szlines Valley at
both the head and the foot of the Chalone Creek,

Another part of the trail followed alopg = draw in the
Tear of the present Schmidt Protbers' (Jef and Stamley)
Banch in Bear Valley, leading west and southwest of Boute
25, on what had aricinally been the Jom T. Prewett Ranch.
The trail wes along z creek bed that led through Merrin
Canyon. This, until recent vesrs, was an eltermate trail to
the Pionecles, entering tbhe present park area along the
nerth fork of the Cha.lﬂne.ll

The Evening Fres lance in 1912 carried & feature

artinle, ::m:t‘:'ngi.:ria.l13F rn in the Sap Joge Mercory, about San

Jose artist Charles H, Harmon, who had just returned fram a
two—week stay at the Pinnacies where he mod painted & series
of eight canveses. The article went on to say that the

artist hed painted sbout three canvases of Mt. Defiance,

io Statament by Jef Schmidt, rancher, in persomal
interview, Horse Velley, Mareh 31, 1877,

1l Gyening Pree lance, October 18, 1913, microfilm.
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and: "He has painted severml aspects of 'Gibralter Rock, '
which towers 200 feet perpendicularly into the air, and at
the tse of which the Mexican trail winds an indistinct and
devials way .+ . .“l‘?' How, in the relatively short span of
yegrs since thiz article appeared, 1t is not mly a question
of where the Mexican trail might bawe led, but alao a
question of whether we carld identify the cnece famous
"Gibralter Rock.™

In 1912 when a road from King City to the Ban Jeaquino
Valley wms twilt, vie Bitterwater and Coalinge, it followed
part of the ald Mexican tratil through Herpandez Valley.lS

'In the early days of the establishmnt of San Benito
County, when travel wes more difficult and time—consurming,
meny peopls Uving in the Hollister and San Jusn area had oo
idea of what the southern end of the County #as like. Ewen
correspondence fron outiying regions was sparse, 1t was the
local pewspepers that :stcceptai the responsibility of formiog
their readers of that Sen Benito County wes like, The'_r,r
wallld send reporters to varicus parts of the surrounding
country and inform local residents of their first-ltend
experiences and their inpressions of the rest of the county.

In 1874 the other residents of the comty read 5 feature
stary of the reporter's jourpney to San Benito and back. He

reported the rolte thralgh Sun Benlto as being well traveled

12 Evening Free lance, Septamber 25, 1912, micrafilm.

13 1nid.
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bY teams on their way to Log Angeles and Bakersfield epd
that they bad ", . , met several horsemen on their way to
San Mipuel Mission and Paso Robles Springs . . .." this
being the best reute to those places, catting off a good
twenty-five mles,l14

This reference raises the questiaon of whether the route
referred To Was one established by the settlers or whether
it incorporated all, or prt, of an existing trail firgt
used by the Indians or Spepish.

We could hardly leave the subject of the Spanish-Mexican
influence without 8aying samthing of the Pinpacles' mst
farous legend, that of the Pionacles as a famous bandit
hidecut. Although the tandits ca.nE near the time or sortly
after that California became Mt of the United States, it
was their Smnish backrrounds, and the lojustices they
believed they had suffered at the hapds of the Americang,
that led them to commit their crimes of vengeance.

The famous Josguin Murieta, who eounted amng  hig
numers at that time thke vicicus "Three-fingered Jaglo Y iy
€aid to bave hed a hidecut abent S1x miles northeast of
Soledad. ". . . the cutlaws belonged to 2 band of horse apd
cattle thieves that rendezvoused in the Gabilan Mountains
. . oI5 Mirieta did not remmin permEnently in  this
vicinity ut mved on to becare notoricus for his deeds cof

14 Evening Free lancs, Angust 8, 1874, microfilm.

15 Guipn, p. 28i.
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mirder gand robbery  throoghont the State before the
establishment of the cointies and the 1aw and order that
ensued.

Tiburelo Yasguez is the bandit most often referred to in
connection with the Pinnacles and be is considered, by soome,
even more daring than Murieta. Vesmues operated after the
countiss were in existence and had set up some semblance of
lsw and order complete with Judicial systaus.lﬁ

His erimingl career began in 1854, in Monterey, when be
murdersd a2 cmnstable who {Tied to intervene in an argpument
between Titurcio and a fellow Califarnian over the former's
attentions to o yYoIng WwWoman. It ended in 1875, with his
hanging for the killings et tbe robbery of the Tres Finos
(new Paicines) store. Vasguez' capture resulted fram his
betrayal by dbadon leiws, who altbough & comrade, was first
a jealous mushand. So it seaned wo&e.n played an important
part in the life cf Tiburcio.

Fear the begioning of his career e bad persuaded a
vouny senorz from San Juan to run off with him. They, along
with another couple, hid cut from ber husband in a4 cave in
the Pinnacles. area, known as “"Vasquez Cave." While living

in the ;ave, they raided the ranches in the Soledad area.

16 yiilard H. Hoyle, Sr., Ed., The Crimes and Career of
Tiktrelio Vasguse (Hollister: Ewening Free lance, 1927,
reprinting, Oollister: San Benito County distorieal
Society, 1378} p. i.
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Cave living became a little too uncanfortable when winter

came, 50 they moved the base of their cperaticms closer to

Monterey. 17

There are several overhang caves, besides the talus
caves, in the Pimnacles that could have beon usex] by Vasguew
and his party. There ie also another cave in the vicipity
that may have served that purpose. i

Along the part of the ald Spanish trail tht is oo the

present Schmidt Brothers’ Banch in Bear Valley, there 1s an

 overhang cgve that hes always been known as  "Vasquez

Cave."'® Tt is in the side of a hill, just a little above
head height, beside a draw, just before reaching Merrin
Canyon. Rersons inside the cave could be hidden frcm the
view of anyone pmesing by becase of brush and the large
flat Tocks in fromt of the cawve. Any persons inside would
te afforded a pood view of the ravine in both directicns., A
path co the east side that leads arcund behind the brush and
up the mrk mkes for easy access inte the cave, even for
livestock. ©On the ceiling of the cave mey still be seen
traces of the smke from the cagpfires of somecone wWho
lingered there in the distant past, mybe Indians, or

passibly Vasquez,

17 Dooinga L. Cervantes, Tikurcio Yasquez (Puyzllup,
Washington: Historical Memories Press, 1264) p. Y-

18 cohmidt, Mareh 31, 1977.
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'@

Vasquez' eschpades tock him away fram this section for
many Years, kot be returned around 1870 and spent cost of
the time after timt hiding cut in the Cantus Capyom, in the
Wew Idria apea. It wes duripg that tie that be becape a
falliar figure in and arcund Bear Valley. Certainly one
gocess to the MNew ldria, and Ch.ntu.a Canvon, oould very well
have been through Herpendez Valley, ang <Clear Creek
Canyon. dnotber reascn for bhis familiarity with this
section of the country wes that cne of his brothers resided
in Hernandez Valley, and of blis t®o marTied sisters, one
lived in San Juan and the other lived &t the New Idria
quick=ilwer mnes. 2

"In the spring of 1372, Vasquer made his beadquarters
for scoe time with Jose (astro, oo the Jan Benito, midway

between Hollister and the Picacho mines."29 A quick lodk at

~a map of the area wouid place the Castro residence in the

Ticinity of San Benito.

It was aramd thiz time that tbhe San Eenitoc stage was
held up by Vasgues a2nd hie gzang, about five miles befare it
reached San Benito, its destinstion. The driver of ths
stage was Gecrge Chick #lo retired from the stageline in
1877, when e sold it to Al lecnard of San Bepito, aod
Mr. Chick contimued to reside for mny years in that city.

Mr. Chick and his passengers became the victims that day of

12 Hoyle, p. O.

20 1bhid., p. 5.



8 glomick that Vasques would use often in the future, when
tee forced them to lie face down on the ground while being
Tobbed. A writer for the Advance wrote of that spot on the
San Benito River where the robbery md talken place:

« « » Which is now named in loczl hlstory as
“Hobber's Culeh.” Th: formidable and peculiar
formation of the spot where the stage was stopped is
very favorable for a robbery. Traveling alomg the
left bank of the San Benito cn a narrow ledpe of land
at an elewation of 20 feet we came to a wery sharp
bend round a precipitate rock of abart 400 feet high,
roungd which a team could be intercepted ‘ia'.fh:ut the
slightest indication of approaching danger.

~ Now this “iormidable and peculiar formetica, referred Lo in
other places as “Robber's Hoost,” stands on private praperty
as part of the Pine Rock Ranch; and now the old roed alomg
the San Benito River where that robbery tock place is closed
1o the public and is barely more than a jesp trail.

A story which mey be related to Vasguer, or mombers of
his gang, coms from one of the =arly pioneers of bBear
Valley, Ben Bacon, who told of remowbering a pitcherd battle
between tandits and law aofficers, and/or vigilantes, to
which be was & witness as a child. The witness stated that
the confroantation todk place in the Fionacles propsr, on the
gite of the old OC camp (Clnleone Creek Area).

Loeoprding to Ben Bacon's account, his parents later
found a2 wounded white man near the cves, who told the

plausible story of having shot himsslf while kunting. The

. Bacons tock the wounded men home and nursed him back to

21 Adwvence, May 17, 1873, picrofilm.
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health. It seems, though, thet their kindness wes for
nothing, Before the mn was well encugh to trawel, the

of ficers and/or vigilantes, came to the Bacon home and togk

the mn a.wa.:.r.zz

Aposther account of Vesgues in the area, comes from the
Hermandez Valley and from & descepdant of ome of the
pionesers there.

Ope interesting incident was when the pecple of
the walley receiwved word that Henry Miller, the
Cattle Baron, was bringing a herd of cattle fram
Cosliogn, up the Los Gatos (enyen, tircugh the
Hernender Valley and down to some of his boldings on
this side of the mountain,.

&t there were few, amd in many places, no fences
at all, the cattle were free to graze ibe country
of f as they went along and they were allowed to take
a very leisurely pace. Free feed; why lurry them?
This jncluded Iy fields, grain fislds, or anything
else that pot in their way, and then too, there was
always the chance that somebody's milk cow or any
otber stray, would get mized up with-the berd and eo
right along with them.

The Tenchers of the wailey wers ready and waiting
when the berd resched them. They were lined up on
both sides of the road and escarted tbem tiwough as
quickly as possible. My grandfather ALDLT. Button
armd his two sons, Iwval and Ira were in this line—
up. OCne of the drovers called to my grandfather and
asked ‘Why don't you build & fepee?' To which he
replied ‘He bave 2 pood live fence right bere.’
That drover was Tiburcio Vasgquer whom oy grandfather
knew and recognized - . .

. . it is interesting to note that his unele,
lorenza Vasgquez, had 2 smll stors and salocn at
Sweetwater Spripg which is on the Herpandezr{Coalinga
road and at which epot e few old fruit trees still
survive. By the way, after the affair at Faleines
{Tres Finos) the follcowing day a¥ uncle, Grant, and
his brother Carcll, who were smll boys at the time,
playing in the yard, saw Vasguez and his gang go

22 Falter M. Powell (park manger, quotation from a radic
talk given by Mr. Dowell in the 1830's, found in the
Finpacles National Momument file no. H-14Y.
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by. Sixteen men headed in toward New Idria Mines.

News of thiiaa.ffaj_r at Pricines bed not reached the

mllsy vet.

Just as Vasquez wes femiliar with the Pinnacles area, so
the rapchers of the ares were familiar with Vasquez. There
was an account published ip 1893 which stated: -

Vasuez the noted bapdit and his lieutepant Chaves,
fregquented this section during their reign of terror. It
is melated by these pionsers that they were evidently
kind-hearted, genial fellows, never giving them amy
trouble. Especially is this true of Chaves who was
frequently at the home of Mr. Melendy . . .29

The Mr. Melendy referr=d to was Heory Welendy, <=r., obe
of the First settlers in Bear Valley, the crandfather of
drs. Kingsley (Chmrlotte Melendy) Berberick and Mrs. Ralph
(Lile Melendy) Elliott. They remember their grandmother,
Henry's wife Deborab, telling of how the bandits would stop
by the rench asking for samething to eat, so the Melendys
would feed them. Their grandmother had emphasized the
general feeling of smafety which the ranchers had felt in the
presence of the cutlaws by telling how Chaves, to help oat
while the foad wes bzing prepared seomed to enjoy kesping
the children entertained: this often included bholdipg the

Melendy baby,Zo

23 ployd Pisher, (Notes on Hernandez Valley talk,
Cctober 6, 1976, Pinnacles National Monument file no. H-14}.

2% parrows and Ingersol, p. 149,
25 Staterent by Mrs,. Hinpsley (Charlotte Melendy)

Berperick and Mrs. Falph (Lila Melendy) Elliott, ranchers,
in perscnal interview, Willow Creek, April 20, 1977.
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Ancther Bear Valley ploaneer, J.T. Prewett, also lkmew
Vasguez but never had any trauble from him, according to his
granddaughter, Mrs. Loa (Bessie Hain) Webb. Mrs. Webb tells
18 that the 5t:::r_? abodt Vasquez thet she recalls best is the
one told to ber by the Carowell Lrothers, Jeese aml Warren,

wrmslﬂknewatttetinﬁstemsgrmi;upinﬁeﬂ:

Valley. The Cornwsll place was just over the hills east of

Pear Valley, near the San Benito River. Vasguez end his men
would stop by the Cornwell Eapch if they wer= ip the area
along toward evening. They woilld feed their borses, and
themsel ves, at the Cormwell's and would sleep in the barn.
In the momming, They woild Eﬂ-‘t‘ preakfast with the family.
A1l during their stay they woald never mention anything
about paying, bat aefter the aotlaws bad gone, the hosts
would find money under the plates of the tandits and the
amount mme than compensated the Cormwells for the
acecumodations the gty bad received.Z?

It was experiences such as these that mede it difficult
to find anyons to testify against Varpuez for his crimes.
Trua, =ome might bave refused out of fear, others because
they were friendly with the mmn, Wt the others actuelly did
not belleve be could be guilty of 21l the crimes attributed
to nim. Even after the Tres Pinos muders, there were those

whoy would never beliewve Vasjuezr Was present When his men

26 gtaterent by Mrs. Lou (Bessie Hain Olsen) Webb,
retired rancher, in personal interview, Bear ¥Yalle¥,
Yarch 9, 1977,



“shot up the town" that day. Someone even said he had seen
Vasquez an the road that day and rode along beside him for &
while, Vasjuez Imd weined the men not to g into Tres Pioncs
that evening becanse his men weres in tht tosm hoviog a
little fun.??

Part of the Vasgquez legend has it that the 37,000 loot
taken from the Tres Pincs robbery was stashed somewhere
glong the way btetween the sScene of the crime and the

Finnacles or at the Pinnacles ;n'cper.za This no doupt is

~ more fiction than fact, for closer inspection finds the

amount taken at Tres Pinos that day wes not 37,000, Dut
$500_29

ncther indication that would disclaim the existence af
miried treasure is the fact that Vasquer prafessed poverty
at the time of this trial in Eap Jose. The newspaper
carried a plea from the native (slifornian which read:

It is not pessible for m= in my present
oonditian to obtain money necessary for me to pay oy
lawyers for oy defeose amd  for the costs
indispensable in the trial of my case. [ entreat
excéadingly the friends of humanity, principally oy
cxintrymen, to belp me in the mking of my defense.
I appeal to all persons of philsntiropic disposi-
tion. Ty will etermally oblige me, and receive the
heartfelt thanks of ons in disgrace.

{Zipned) Timureic Vasquezm

27 Rerberick and Elliott, April 20, 1977.

A8 focs J. Miser, The Pinnacles Story (Cempbell: Gordon
Mulith, 12861 p. 14.

2 Howle, p.B
30 Byening Free lance, October 17, 1875, microfilm.
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One interesting side light to end the Vasquer era wes
the psition the newly formed county of San Benito found
itself in after the trial of Tiburcio Vasquez. Vasquez had
cammtted crimes in meny localities tiroughout the state
during his eareer, so San Benlto Comty f=1t as though the
State of Californie should stand the expense of the trial.
When the State refused, saying that Sen Bendlto Coumty was
lieble for the trial costs, San Benito felt that Moaterey
Coanty shoild have the honor of [mying the bill; at least
Han Bepnito felt that Monterey sbould share half  the
respomsibility.9% After all, the crimes at Tres Pioes had
occlirred when that territory wes still pert of Montersy
Comty, before the Cointy of San Benito bad heen formed.
The County of San Benito at the time of the Vasquez capture
grd trial was so young that they did not, as yet, bave the
facilities to bouse apd try so famus an outlaw as
Vasquez. Heoce the resson for the incarveration and trial
at San Jase. To the small, struggling new County of San
Benits, the burden of the trisl expenses must have seamd to

be astronomical when compounded by injustice.

I 14,



Chapter 3

PIMEER INFLUENCE

After Jedediah Sadth crossed the Sierra Revada in 1827
via the Mumboldt apd thrcugh the Scuth Fass, the trail
became regularly traveled by fur trappers, and later beesme
a great immigrant route. In the soutk, the Santa Fe, that
had been marked oot by tbhe Partee Farty, wes anotber passage
used by trappers, Wit no immigrant trains from the states
with women and children crossesd the mountains vie either
route until tbe coe that left Missouri in 1841 with 69 men,
women and children. This train divided when it reached Scda
Springs and some of the members went to Oregon. Those
heading for Califormia reached the San Joagquin Valley in
Hovember, 1841. Troereefter, immigrant trains czEe across
the mountains every year. Although some settlars arriwed by
passapge on ships, making the trip around the "Horm," the
wagen traine played a vital Tole in the settlement of
California after its acquisition by the United States in
145,

One of the most famous of these trains, the Domer
Party, made up of 87 persons by the time it reached Fort
Bridepr, Kansas, gtarted fram Springfield, Illinois on
July 25, 1846, The Doaner Party bacame entrapped by early

winter encws in the Sierras where mny menbers perisred.l

1 J.M. Guinn, A.M., Monterey and Sap Benito Counties
{los Angeles: Historical Becord Company., 18103 p. 148,
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arong the Dopner Party were Pairick Breen, his wife and
their seven children. The Breens survived the fateful
croesing to be among the first American settlers of Szn Juan
Bauytista, where Fetrick Breen acuived some of the Mission
property thet be farmed, and later be baught the Castro
huse on the plaza., One of his sons, Jomn, went to the gold
fields in 1848 and 1849, and upon his return, bkad a ranch in
the Sap Juzn ares alsc. later, Jom Preen purchased &
cattle ranch of 600 acres, southeast of the Pinpacles in the
Topo Valley, six miles fram the San Bsnito post office.z

Althmpgh the discovery of (2lifornia pgold in 1848 had
heen the incentive for the first great waw of fortune-
Ee-ek_:i,ng immigrants ¢and some prospectors persisted thraugh
the yenrs) the majority of those arTiving soom learned thaet
the real pold of Califormia lay in the combination of golden
supshine &nd povernment land that wes theirs for the taldng.
Further settlement of tThe West was encouraged through the .
Homestead Act of 1862.

San Pepito walley, like the other walleys east of the
Cabilens, at that time was part of Momterey County, and was
for the mst part used es open range land by the owners of
Spanish Grapts. The hills were dotted with their livestock,

especially sheep which were so popular in that area. When

2 History of San Benito County (San Francisco: Elliott
and Moore Publishing, 1881) p. 10B.
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the settlers began to arrlve they first settled aromd Sen
Juan Bautista, the b of all the rsiness to the southern
part of the County. San Juzp was & thriving settlement of
nearly 500 people in 1864.3

The town of Hollister begen to teke simpe in the mid-
1850"s, and as it expanded, people started moving farther
south in search of more awailable land. Soon the tovms of
Eeinines, Tres Pinos and Spn Benito sprang up.

Tres Pinos flourished at the junction of the road to
the southern pa.rt of the comty and the road leading =ast to
the Panoche welley and the New Idrie quicksilver mipe, 54
miles away. The mine hed been discowered in 1850. By 1880,
it erployed between two and three twndred men. Ten-and
twenty-mile team trains carvying freight to and from ths
mpe made Tres Finos a patural stopover and supply depot.
Stage coachss that ran to Tres Pines regularly Irom
Hollister, were socon including mre ramte sections of the
county on their schedule. This wes the situation in the Sen
Benito sres when the first settlers came to Bear Velley ip
search of land.

Following down tie San Benito River fram Hollister, the
traveler would pass through a series of oval and uneven
valleys until reaching the confluence of the San Benito

Hiver and Willew Creek. Across the cresk could b2 =een the

3 Guipn, p. 324.



foothills at the tase of Willow Cresk Peak, sinply referred
to by soce old timers as "Old Sandy Pesk". If the trawler
then followed up the camyon in the south—west corner and
scaled the footh.j_'Lls, be would be rewarded with & glimpse of
what was scmetimes called the “paradise of San Benito,”® for
it geems that ". . + in the early days the walley was
coverad with Juscicus grase and green the year aroind.
Fruit trees, vines and vegetebles seemed to flourish in this
frest-free climte « » » The elewmtion is abaut 1,400
feet."® Cne early settler, Deboreh Melendy, often related
that when she first came to the wlley the aree errund Dear
Yelley school was very L*"-"i"IEJIP*".-"-5

me of the first to settle in the wvalley was Heory
Melendy, who had teen borm in 1848 in Wisconsin to mrents
who were natives of Vermoat. Later, the family mved o
I1linois. Henry WS prowing up dur:.ng the period of the
Civil War, and be could ha:‘dl?_ wait until bhe was old enmesh
to joln the ranks of the Unicn army a&s others in his family
had dane. His prother had been a drummer boy; cne uncle,

dareon Rockwood, had beenm & captain with the Tnion forees;

4 pdvanee (Hollister: Ewering Pree lance) May 14, 1881,
mierafilm.

S Baith Schmidt (Bdith Schmidt's history of Bear
Valley, 1963, Pinnecles Mational Monument file no. H-14).

B statement by Mrs. Len (Bessie Hein Olsen) Webb,

retired rancher, in perscmal interview, Bear Valley,
March 30, 1877.
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end even an aunt, Lowise Hockwood Wardner, wio wes mrried
to a doctar, belped ber histend in the battlefields, caring
for the woanded. 30 ammy life must have sppesTed an
exciting tenptation for Henry.

Henry Melendy had ancther aunt, Mary Rockwood Powers,
whrsse muskband, A.W., Fowers, was also a doctor. Dr. FPowers
and daron Rockwood were meking trips to (aliformia taking
striopps of horses to be sold. Henry's mother sent Beory off
to California to keep bim fron wapting to run off to join
the army., Benry was only 16 when he mde the first trip
west with his uncles.

Henry was atill about 16, when on his secchd trip west,
Or, Fowers also brought along his wife, sery, with the
intention of remining in California. The mmriy camped for
a time in a Mormon settlesent in Utah, until wezther condi~
tipns were favorsble for them to contime. Dr. Powers
practiced redleine in the cammnity wnile there.

After reaching California, they stayed for some time in
Sapn Leandro. San Isandro had been familiar to them from
their cther trips to California. It was during this stay in
Sar leandro that Woary Powers died, leaving Dr. Powsrs a
wldower.

In his travels, "loec" Powsrs, as he was called, bad
previously been through the secluded wvallsy in the smth-
ecastern part of Montersy County, so be knéa' where he and his

nephew were heading when they set ocut to find a place to
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sattie. They became the first settlers of Esar Valley when
Fowers picked a spot nsar the center of the walley 1o stake
his claim. He Jocated pear where the Bear Valley school now
gtands, on what has become known in recent ¥ears as the Webb
Rench, and there was som a trail over the hills esst of the
Powers' place, leading to the town of San Beoito, five miles
away. It was there tbet Dr, Fowers lung out his shingle to
practice medigine. The ¥ear was 1365.

Henry's other uncle, MAaron FRockwood, settled in
Hollister.’

“D.:JG" Towers and Henry Melemdy did not ramin alane in
the valley for long. In MNovember 18566, Myron and Elizaheth
Bacon, both netives of Ohio, came along with their children
and located at the foot of the valley, just east of what is
now the entrance to Pinpacles National Momment. They had
known "Doc® Powers since 1859.%

Wrs., Bacon had come overland with her first hoshand,
Pnillip Shell, whom she bad mprried in 18486, and they bad
farmmed near Salam, Uregon. They bad three children,
Teborah; John, born in 1848 apd Susan, born in 1834, The

7 Statements by Mrs. Kingsley (Charlott Melendy)
Berberick and ¥rs. Ralph {Lila ¥elendy) Ellictt, ranchers,
in personal interview, Willow Creck, April 20, 1977.

8 Fvening Free lance (Hollister), February 25, 1886,
ricrofilm.
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cauple must have mwved to California aromd this time aod it
was also in 1854 that Elizabeth became a widew when Phillip
Shell died.

In 1856, Elizabeth 3hell becsme Elizabeth Bacon when
she married Myron A. Bacon, who had come to the (alifornia
gold fields in 2849 from Obic.

Myran and Elizabeth Bacop had four children; Oliver
("0llie"), born In 1856; Mary, borm in 1858; Horace borp in
1864 and Ben, who was distinguished as the first white baby
horn in the valley when be arrived in December, 18686, coe
month efter the family hod setiled there.?

The Broons first located east of the cresk that runs
thraugh the wvalley, Jjust beyond wbhere "Ollie" Bacon later
built his bouse, Mrs. Bacon raised ber seven children; and
when her son Joln died while he was still & very young mn,
he left a smmll som, Will; sbe adopted ber grendsen and
raised bim, too. Myron Bacon died in Szn Jose im 1880,

Susan Shell mrried Ed Birton and Mery Bacon merried
David Chuirchill, amd both moved to Kern County.l®  Mrs.
Bacon's other children all grew to have active roles in the

history of Bear Valley and of tihe Pionacles.

® Henry D. Barrows and lutber A. Ingersol, Central

Califarnis Chicago: Lewis Publishing Co., 1893) p. 218.

10 Barroms and Ingersol, p.- 219.
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Hor daughter, [Cebarah Sbell, in 1868 martied Hemry
Melendy, and the young couple homesteaded across from the
present entrance to Ia Gloria Boed, in the same spot where
thair grandson, Walter, eon af Henry Melendy, Jr., now
lives.

Besides raising a femily of seven children,ll Debbie
Melendy seered to bave a talent for medicine. Ste enjoyed
assisting ker young lwsband ‘s uncle, "Doc" Powers, when fe
tended the sick in the erea.}?

The trail ower the hills east of "Doc" Powers' place
soon hecame 2 well trs.*-;eled road to the fast-growing
comunity that served as the post office amd stege stop foxr
the entire vicinity. The road led up the zide of the mills
at an angle, then crossed the platean where we noW know the
Zan Andreas fault runs, then descended to follow the river
into San Bepito. It was at the base of the hills or the
river side, that two young men, Jim Cornwell end Mr. Pein,
had sottled in 1A60. They were merried to to slsters, the

Crosby sisters frem Follister.lS

11 Gegrge, born in 1869; Dapiel, born in 1971; Ella,
born in 1876; Thomas, born in 1B78; Lucretia, born in 1B885;
and Henry, Jr., born in 1888) Barrcws and Ingersol, p. 222,

12 Statement by Mrs. Kingsley (Carlotte Melendy)
Berberick and Mrs. Ralph (Lils Melendy) Elliott, ranchers,
in persopal interview, Willow Creelk, Apmil 20, 1977,

13 gonmidt, 1963.



By the eerly 1870'=s, trawelers alang this river road
would pass such resideoces es Stope, Justice, beCool,
Sevemman, Made Dowdy the cowty assessor, and Thayer, who
was 4l leonard's belp at the store. This district becams
knoen as the Park or Pine Rk District.??

In San Benito caild b= found 2 store owned by Owens and
leonard; a hotel built by Wyiie Willisms, of the Williams
Hotel in Gilray; o blacksmith, Mr, Holt, brother of Sam Holt
of Hoilister; & harness mker, bDenry Murti; & shoamker by
the nere of Carmichael: and ao M.D. Who dubbed a3 a2 misician
when he played the fiddle at dances. The name of ths doctor
was not given, So we bave no way of knowing if "Doc" Dowers
mgzht bave been the doctor in the referemee.

The town was renowned for its dances that would
smetimes follow a doy of plendeking. The dooces woald
aften laet until carly morning. Sometimes as mroy as 30 or
60 couples wnld attend the affsirs, camiog & distance of 20
or 30 miles.?

Thare are several accomnts of how Bear Valley got its
name. One story bas it that some cowboys who were passing
thraugh came upon a prizzly bear wallowing in the mud near

Henry Melendy's. They are reported to bawe lassoed him end

14 Evening Free Lance (Hollister) August 8, 1874,
rhcrofilm.

15 tpid., May 17, 1873,
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tung him to & nearby tree. This wes the sight that grestad
pecple as they came up over {he grade and entered the
valley. Thereafier it was called Bear Valley,l®

Another stary tells how o motber prizzly who bad been
raiding the pig pens on the Bacon rench was pursued by the
men in the fermtly until sbe climbed into an old ocgk iree.
These men wounded ber while she wee in the tree. She
escaped from the tree and fled to the Pinnacles where she
was fin=ally slain. The old ocsk tree, where the bear was
cornered, was acrnss the road from where the State equipment
gshed once stood, near "Ollie" Bacon's homse. The tree was
smalorsly guarded from destruction for many yeers by Georges
Bacon, Horace Bacon's mn.H

Another account, publishad in 1823, puts the story just
a little bt differently still. According to this story
abat Bear Yalley:

It was said to bave derived its pame fram the
following incident., Orne Mr. Tones used to range
stock in the then Cholame Yelley and adjacent
country. ¥er on one of these trips with his
vaquercs, the mrty encauntered & grizzly bear pear
the present property of Mrs. Elizabeth Bacon. They
lassoed this bear and made him ceaptive. He is sadd
to hawe een a fine specinen and created some

talk. The fg.lle:,r fron that time on was koown as
Bear Valley.

18 Webb, March 9, 1977.
17 Sohmidt, 1963,

18 myrrows and Ingersol, p. 149,
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Even if the facts surraunding the paming of Bear Valley
are a little hazy, we do, however, know when the last hear
in thbe erea was sighted. 1In 1975, Everett Baker, a rancher
near Willow Creek, was startled by something moving 1n the
tree above his bead and be lifted his gur and fired. He wes
even mre surprised when be discovered be had killed a black
bear as it tutbled cut of the tree and lay at his feet.l®

The nape did not act as A deterrent 1o the settlers,
for the walley really began to fill up in the late 1860's
and on into the 1B70's. It was arcund this tiwme that the
Sam Prewett family arrived to teke up residence ebmt a mile
porth of "“Doc' Powers, Sam Prewett had mrried Ellen
Allard, who bad tihree daughters by a previcus mrrisga -
fnpie, Frances and De Btta. Sam and £ilen hed two sobs,
Charles and Fred. Charles wes killed in an aceident with a
team and wapon when he was 18 years old. Fred took over the
ranch after bis mother retired. She and Sam fed ‘been
separated for several years &t that time.3Y

Mentiocn is alsc made of e Mrs. Nye, 2 grapdmother of
Mr. Prewett,?l but we do not know which Mr. Prewett was

raferred to. Sam Prewett's great-uncle, also named Sam

19 Statorent by Horace Bacon, rencher, Bear Valley,
March 16, 1277.

20 sonmidt, 1963.

21 1pid.

37



Prewett, was kncwn to heve setfled in the valley mroind the
sare time, along with bis daunghter, Swreh, and ber mshand,
Andrew Ir®in. Ssrah Irwin was an sunt of the youoger Sam
Frewett.

Toe Andrew Irwins resided just at tbhe top of the Bear
Valley grade, in the firmst canyom oo the right. Anotber
familv, the Alezanders, also located in thls wielnity in
1869, and Mrs. Alemmnder was a niece of John T. Prewett.
The Alsxsnders moved some years jater.©2 (ne of the Irwin
deughters, Ide, married A.A. Balker when sbe grew up, and
lived on the property adjoioine Irwin's, just in back of the
pre:-;ent- Benr Valley forestry station.Z® Im January, 1872,
Sarah Irwin's hratber, Jolm T. Prewett, came to  the
valley. DBe wag the som of "Urandpa" Sam Prewett, and the
uncle of the younper Sam Prewett.

Jotm Tyler Prewett wae born in Missouri in 1840. He
erd his sister, Sarah, were the only two left of = famly of
five children. In 1860 he mrried Elirsheth Rayury, whose
parents were fron Virginia. They had at least four children
when they arrived here from the East - Jolm, Margaret, Mancy
(Nellia) and Idillie. Elizabeth (Lizzy), By and Helene
(Lema) Were born afier they settled in the wlley. They md

mone owverland by wagon train and hed canped for a time in

22 Fyoning Free lance, February 26, 1888, microfilm.

23 Sohmidt, 1963,



Utah. Tbeypgdmsadml&ndfmﬂm.ﬂyeand
Irmesteaded, 1.:1:3:::,2‘1 on A Spot near the cak trees and old
windmill, east of the present Boate 25 on the Schmidt
Brothers Ranch.

J.T. Prawett was & Confederate veteran of the Civil
War. He wes womnded when he received & ullet in his hip,
He escaped the Union forces and was hddden and nursed back
t; health by the old family glave, Sara; it the ullet
ramined with him for life. At tb: end of the war, Sara and
her histond, ™Nigger Doe," stayed on at the Prewstts®
becauss they Iad nowhere else to go. When the Prewetts came
west, tbhe old black couple came with them, <2

It wee & gool receptiopn that the 1.7, Prawett housabold
received when they arrived in the walley filled with
norteErners" who jumped to the conclusion  that  the
Missourians bad brought along their sla.xj'es. It was so soo0
after the close of fbe Civil War and the memories of it were
gtill too keen. The prasence of the black coaple added to
the tension in the walley. Sara and "Nigger Doc" lived
where the Schmidt bomes are located now, and later, J.T.
moved Up to that ares too.

John T. Prewett was a dynamic man of large stature and

zegtful personality, and be scon hecame inwilved in the

24 Thig,

23 Webb, March B, 1977,
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local politics of dep Benito. It was not long before be was
acquainted with meoy of the regidents of the county.

In 1878, J,T. Prewetit inirocduced the first sew mill
into the county and it was used to supply lumber for mich of
the rough construction io the ares, such as frame work for
hoses and Tmrns, and for mking railroad ties, The saw
mill wae alsg a scurce of tragedy one day as "Nigger Doc
fell onto the blade and died of the injuries he received.®

It was not long after the arrival of the Prewetts that
the Batterfislds settled in the welley. George Butterfield's
perants were from MNew Epgland. His fatber hed been born in
Massachisetts, and latsr moved to Miine, where e merried.
They theu mved to Wisconsin, and in 1833 came to
Californie, first settling in Hevada, Yute and Sante Cruz
Camties. One of George's brothers lived in Orepgon, ohe
Jived in Menlo Fark and the sister lived in Newvada City.
George Butterfield came to Bear Valley in the early 1870's,
and his fatber, Thoms, and brother James were elsewhers in
San Beniio County raising shesp. Arcund 1880, Thomas and
James alsy mowed to Bear Valley, to farm.  Thomgs later
retired and moved to Hollister.2?

The James EBotterfislds, whn mad seven children, bad

lamd on the hills behind the Powers' place; tie¥ sold their

26 Iid,
27 porrows and Ingersol, pp. 4453444,
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ranch in 1892 to Frarmk Tomilson, &and moved to San Jose. It
was later purchosed by Horace Eﬂmn.ga

The George Butterfields md tuilt a two-story home that
was the eovy <«f the neighborhood. If was situated oo &
Imoll, Jjust to the west of the tmse of the 3an Benito
grads. The barns and windmill may still be seeco from Raute
25, aor across the wvalley fram Route 146, The Gecrge
Butterfields bad four soms, Oscar, Elmer, Alfred and Foen,
who all grew o settle in the ares too. =2

Tha Bear Valley school wes built in the same locatico
as the present ane, in 1874, to accaumdate the Erowing
population of youngsters, and to savwe the trip each day over
the hills to the Jefferson school, fci.:l.u;:led in 18683, ip San
Benito. Bear Valley school was on the Powers' property, and
in 1885, "Dpc" Fowers donated the land to the pecple of Bear
Valley "“forever®. The present building wes built to replace
the old ane abaut 1910, In 1852, Bear Valley school closed
its doors for the last time to the education of the young.
The Bear Valley school district became pert of the Jefferson
sehaol district. Sare question was ralsed by local resi-
dents at that time as to the legality of the Jeffersom
school district ammexing the Bear Valley school and property

when it hed been deeded Dy Dr. Powers in such a way.S0

23 gohmigt, 1963.

2 Iniqa.
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There were severzl schools in the inwediate vicinity of
the Pinpacles that were in operatic;n the last quarter of the
ninetesnth century. Willow Crecit kad a school that existed
until 1920. There was the Fark scipol at Pipe Bock, and the
San Benito and the Jeffersom schools, both in Jan Benito.
In 1891 s new scipol, the Villa school, started in the
vicinity of Olivas mnycn.al

n Sundayvs, the Bear Valley school ouss senred as a
meeting place for the Methodist Episcopal Clureh South,
estaplished in 1375 with & mabership of fcurtee:;. It was
cne on a olremit of the following churches — Peach Tree,
Bitterwater, Bear VYallsy, Live (hk apd FPaicines - that
shared the same minister. The Butterfields were devait
Methndists, and Gearge Butterfield served for many years as
Sunday sctool superintendent.3?  They would hold Sundey
school, the church service, followed by a picnic lunch in
the aftermoon and then, covening services. The children
would lezrn songs -::'.1.11';:;1_133 the weelt in school that were sung
in chrrch on Sundays ﬂ?

The psople af Bear Valley never bailt & ciurch, at

they Wmilt & proonage that boused & series of ministers.

31 gap Benito Board of Education, Hollister, Fipancial
records.

32 parrows and Ingerscl, p. 149.
33 scrrridt, 1963.

a2



The parsonage was located an 8 triangular piece of land,
nert to Rote 25, hetween HRoute 146 and the Gearee
Butterfield property. There was enoupgh rom for a amll
garden on the parscnape properiy. 1

The Methodist Episccpel Church North was represented by
a copgregation at Willow Creek. Though the people of Willow
Creek never tullt & mrsnnage,.tm:r kad a fine hrick chureh
that towered beside the smll Willow Creek Scheol.  The
church stood enm the site whers the Willow Creck Gattle
Coanpany corrals stand now.

Both of the comirches had cempteries pear Dy, Bear
Valley cemetery was close to the hlls east of the school
bt is covered over uow, and would be dlfiicult to locate.
Th= Willow Creck cemetery is atop a knoll acroes the road
fran the Willow Creek Clurch site. The Melendy family had
kept up the care of this cemetery a5 part of their
heritame. Currently, Mrs. Ralph (Lila Melendy) Elliott’s
daughter, Mrs. EBI11 (Sara Mae)} De Rosa and ber children
assume the responsihility.

The early 18707's were & usy time for the resldents af
eastern Montersy County. They wers active proving up their
land {and aving others prose up 1a.n.d for them which wes
fairly oommn practice), building nmes =2nd WArnas, estab-
lishirg tisinesses, raising families and all the while
resenting the poor representaticn they were receiving in the

county seat of Montersy, Inm 1869, petitions were circulated
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in Holﬁétﬂr and San Juan, then sent to the legislature in
Sacremento. The petitions were asking that & new cawty he
created of the territory east of the natural bartier of the
Gabilan Mountains.?! The division of the county wae not
recelved too favorably by Mmtersy County. Monterey Comty
woulld tend to lose much tax rewemue if such g plan waere
adopted,  Althmigh the eastern residents of the county were
turned down ob the first attespts at the establishment of &
new cointy, they were persistent; end in February, 1874, San
Benito County came ints being, formed out of the eastern
sections of Monterey County. Soon after, marts of the
western sectians of Fresno and Merced Counties were added to
mke the present boundaries of San Benito County, en-
compassing the Pancoches and New Idria areas,

The people of San PBendto were elated over thelr
victory, Bit they soon discovered that the dissensicn wes
not over. Now they ad to decide on the location of the
county seat.

The residents of Hollister thought that there wes only
ane obvicus choice, but those in the saith end of the county
would have liked 3 mre central location for the cainty
seat. Tres Pines scemed a mpre logical cholce to them.
After a1), the railread was building to Tres Pipos and the

poyulation of south county was Steadily increasing. By

3 Evening Free lance, October 16, 1863, mcrafilm.
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1880, San Benmite's population would ¢limb to £72, surpassing
San Juan Bantista, whose population would be 484, and not
far behind Hollister that would have 1,034, In 1880, San
Benito would boast & populstion of 1,234 to San Juan's 463
and Hollister's 1,349.%°

Soveral meetings were beld to discuss thé issue of the
lJocation of the county seat; snd at one of the meetings,
Icie and Clemente Argues made the offer to donate encugh
land in Tres Pincs to the coaunty for the pupose of estab—
lishing the comty seat in that city. Maoy residents fran
the southern part of the county. were active in this drive,
and George Butterfield was cone of the leaders.S® When the
mtter came to & vobke at the polls, those in the scuthern
end of the county 1lost cut and Hollister became the oew
county sest.

So many events cams following close upsn each other in
these days in the San Benlto area! There were the criminal
acts of Tiburcic Vasgquer and then his capture; the forming
of San PBenito County and the decision on the loecaticn of a
conty seat; the Vasquez trisl; the rallrcad tailding to
Tres Pinos; and almest daily those living in San Bemito
County woald find they kd new peighbors mwving in. The

roads wers kept 'l:uszr,' not only with supply traios to and

35 Barrows and Ingersol, p. 138.

% Evening Free Lence, March 21, 1874, micrafilm.
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fron the Hew Idria, bat also to the rest of the oountry.
For example, all the hwker used to uild hmises and other
puildings iz the cowmty was teamed in fropm Boalder Credk,
near Santa Cmz; and when people came to seltle, they were
often driving livestock down the rcad ahead of them.

¥hen the railrcad spur souih of I-bl.‘.iéter w35 near
conpletion, it became evident that thke railrcad eould oot
finish the project far the amount stated in the hid; that
w23, to reach the contracted destimation of Tres Pinces. So
the spur came to a termimis ip the smll commnity of
Paicines. Since the contract bad called for the completion
af the track tc Tres Pincs, it seemsd o simple solution of
the problem, to the mmilroad exscutives, mersly to reverse
the name= of the two toems. So, by pulling a few strings,
that is what thoy did; and from then on, Paiciznes was known
a8 Tres Pinos, and Tres Pincs wes known as Paicines. This
is still a point of confusion to the reeder of histery
bocks, for he mst decide which town was being roferred to
pricr to that time. The residents of San Benito Coamty at
that time tD:‘E the adjustment in their stride, however.
Talk about "“future shork"; perhaps it begano in San Bendto
County in the mid-1870's,

In 1873, Sedley and Son purchased the stage line that
ren betweon Hollister and San Bemlto. It mmde the trip on
Wondays, Wednesdays amd Fridays, with a stage returoing con

the following days. (nee a week, a stage woald contione fto



the Picarho mines, on to Peach Tree, then to M¥ose Tapding.
Twice a weekk the stage would make the trip just to Peach
Tree, in scutbeastern Monterey Couaty. The stage would
leave Hollister at 7:30 a.m. and reach its destipatiocn in
San Benito, about forty miles away, at 5:00 pum.2?

At a somewmt later time, Mr. George C-hicli, who had
been the driver of the stage at the time of the Vesques
hyldup, mist have had an interest in the stage, as be sold
it to Al Leonard of Leonard's store in San Benito in 1877.%
Cne report in 1882 etated that Ieonard had soild the stage 1o
one H. Aogan of Tres Pimz,ag ut later references menticm
the leonard stags. One such report commented that Lecnard's
Stage got the San Francisco paper to Bear Valley one day
earlier than "Uncle Sam's” mmil.40

In the latter mart of the 1800's muy families moved
into the Willow Creek and Bear Valley areas forming regular
comunities, and San Benito contimed to grow.  Where the
bridge spans the San Benitc River, with what is oow referred
to as the "Jungle Inn", there might have been someone by the
name of Colline Iiving there at one time, as the place

becare knosn as Collins’ Gra.de.41

37 Bwening Pree lance, May 10, 1873, micrafilm.

"3 1pid,, fupust 21, 1877,
29 Inid., July 7, 1sez,

40 1niq,, June 10, 1898,
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4 little farther scuth, 21 miles or so from Hollister,
C,Y. Hammond had a place pamed "Cinnaber," which was a post
office with Hammond serviog as poistmster and justice of
the pesce. He md several ildingas on his place; as cne
report noted, he scemed to mawe a mania for erecting
'I:n.u'.ZI.q:!:i.l:lg;s."'1:‘2 Nothing remmins to rTemind us of where
"npahar" mey keve been, except perbaps somne awcalyptus and
peprer trees beside Route 25. They are situated betwesno the
two large baulders at the side of the road before reaching
Willow Creex.?® The pame *Hammnd's Slide” remmined to
describe the area long after the name "Clonabar" bhad been
forgotten.

The road followed the Tiver in those days, so when
Willogw Creek intervened, the road .wa.s east of the school
hrise . Therse were sewveral families in this ares, not
necessarily at the same period of time. There were the
names: cCloskey, MeGrury, Allison, Bramnagen, Asherodt,
Bibhell, and cothers.

To reach Sap Benito, ohe would mke a left turn when
reaching a fork in the road just east of Willow Creskt
é.hurch; from there, it was a short distance to the residence

of Willism Burns. Next, the road went past the Sevwenrmn

42 History of San Benito County, p. 99.

43 Rorherick and Ellictt, April 20, 1977.
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place, and followed the eastern slde of the San Benlto
Valley. Hext came the place beside the road where George
Melepdy built his firet tome. George had perried Elizabeth
Kelley, Whose parepts bad picmeered in la Gloria Valley,
northwest of _ the Pinnacles. Gearge later millt & second
hoise acrass the river, oo the opposite side of the wallew,
near the hills to the west. As other pioneers tired of the
mecertain life of ranching end moved away, Georpe Melendy
persevered; he bought itiose picneers' unwanted lapd In the
Willow Creek ares, and the Melondy Panch becare one of the
last rapches ramining fTheres.

Past George Melendy's, Jemes Cormwell liwed, in a shady
corner at the western base of the hills that separated 3an
Benito valley fram Bear Valley.

After the Cormwell's, it was not far to "Hobber's
Roost.” Then the rvad entersd the sres of Park Mills, where
Wagner and W.K., Gof? nilt & grist mill ip 1873. The mill
was Tun by C.A. Werner. "The mil]l is run by water, s &
fall of twepty-two feet on & twelwve-inch turhine wheel which
mkes 700 revolutions per mimite. The capacity of the mill
is about & barrel and a quarter per hour . . .* The mill
wEs rin Sizteen hoiurs a day, and served pecple fram as far

away as San It'f:l‘.g;l.uel.“"4 The mill was later sold to G.W. Place.

4 History of San Benito County, p. 96.




Just below Park Mill, B.3. Starr, who had came from Gopzalez
to Hpllister, bought a place from Ramen Gonzales apd for a
time hod e store and overnight lodging place.?®

Park school was also located near bere, and this
district vas knowm as Pine Rock.

Other names along this road were Stephen.Kennedy, J.D.
Justice, A.J. Sqith, Jobn Shields and James Hoberts. 1In San
Benito, some names were W.H. Blosser, Buchanan Smith, Joln
Goldeh and a Mr. N. Schlessioger, who bad a store and was
postimster for a time.'q'e

Ooe Jamary mornipe in 1891, Mr., Place left home 1o g0
check the flume on the mill. When bhe did not retuwrn at the
usual time for lunch, the worried family began 4 zearch for
lm. They fouwnd his body wiere be had sufforated beneath
some caved-in earth on the San Benito River.®?

That was just about the end of the Park Mill. Mrs.

Flace was taving o very diffiemlt time trying to run the

mll with not enough belp. In 1823 the mll was destroyed
by fire,®® and Mrs. Place sold the property to William

Butts, Sr., and it became Known as the Pine Hock Ranchb.

45 Advance, April 28, 1882, micrafilm.
46 History of San Benito County, p. 98.
47 pdvance, Jamary 16, 1891, microfilm.

% Fvenipg Free lance, April 18, 1893, microfilm.
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Nr. Butts was well kpown in San Benito County because
he served as supervisor from 1836 to 1912. He was also
irstrumental in getting telephone seIvige to 3an Benito with
the establishment of the William Butts' Telephone Company in
1896.49

The Justice femily had settled on what is new the
Shnield’s lower ranch, on the Sin Bepito River. This wes
also referred to 2as “Justice's Grove" and was a favorite
spot for picnics.

San Benito, 8s we have wentioned, served as post affice
for the eatire countryside. It was also the closest general
store and Al Leonard carried a good mppl:.r-of Mmst necessi—
ties., &San Benito alse mad the coly tavern close by, which
sae of the picus Protestents of Bear Valley did not
consider an asset. The children of these families grew up
with adnonitions of what cauld came of too clese 4 relation-
ship with anyone from "Whmite City," as Sip Benito was
somatimes called. It did seam as though San Benito ad more
tkrp its share of riotous times.

ne cmld alwavs expect differences of copinion araund
electinn tim=, for e=aaple, as San Benito wes also the
polling precinet for the district. The political parties
would Hold their conventions ino the tavern, to pick thejir

slate of candidates from that district. Those in the

42 scpmdr, 1963,
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running would be anncunced dosnstairs in the tavern and the
delegates would go upstairs to cancus apd Then vote, after
which they weuld emerpe downstalrs, annawmaing  the
winners. Both the selected candidates and the loSers wolld
be there, stowing a united froot. A great time was then bad
by all as they adjourned to the ter for the rest of the
evening to plan the campaign. (Those halls beld many heeted
detetes.)

Of course, the voting on election day wes mever beld at
the tavern. In 1977, the polling place in_ San Penito was
the Grangers' ball, and the inspector was Stepben Kennedy.
The judges of that election were W.H. Blosser end Jolm T,
Prewett. o0

There were mrEy areas in this secticn of the ccunty
tint remined undeveloped becabss the land was still io the
hapds of tbe railroad, and had not reverted to the govern~
man'l:.r‘i11 Public land was selling for $1.25% an acre, and dan
Benito Coamty would kave i.iked this land to revert so it
coald bave been s0ld and developed, but the railroad wes
slow in cmpera.ting.‘:"z

Returning to Willow Creek, the fork in the road to the
right led past the Willow Creek church and school, past the

so Hollister Telegraph (Hollister: Evening Free lance)}
October 11, 1B77, microfilm.

5! History of San Bepito County, p. 98.

52 pdvance, fagust 7, 1877, micrcfilo.
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Hubbell ranch an the right side of the road at the bottam of
the grade. There is 2 rose bash still growing nesr the spot
where the Hubbell home opce stood. The old road led up the
grade on the opposite side of the canyon from the present
road. In the first large canyon o the right lived an
English family by the name of Lippscomd. This family hed
planted a ccuple of apricot trees an the hillside that may
s5till be seen blosscming in the Spring-Ea

The old road was quite winding, follcwing in and cut of
the canvens, and had & horseshoe bend before it finally
crested at the top of the Bear Valley grade. The road
entered Besr Valley near the Andrew Irwin Raneh, in the
first canvon on the right. Irwin’'s son—in-lew, A.A. Beker,
had the next plage on the right, in back of the present fire
station. Toe road migeed the foothills, leaving every
availsble square inch of land for ferming. Heary Yelendy's
ranch was next, across from the entrance to la Gloria
Bcad. The name “la Gloria" is a fairly recent one, as this
area was always knosn as Williams Camyon by the local
residents. The pame "La Qloria’ could hawve been applied by
nep makers because the roed ended near the La Gloria school
digtrict of Gonzales.

The road, after leaving Melendy's, followed bebind the
ame21l hills to the right of the present read, skirting

arcund the edpe of Bickmore canyon, {named for the family

53 Webb, March 20, 1977.
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timt lived there), to merge with the present Raute 25 at the
J.T. Prewett Ranch, near where the present Schmidt Brotbers'
Ranch hoomes are.

West of the JT Prewstt Ranch, there was a mrty by
the name of F. Dutton who had a claim that was owned later
by a Mrs. Merrin from Sap Francisco. Mrs. Merrin's son,
Jotm Jacob Dal, lived there and Mrs. Merrin would visdit him

24 This canyon bocame KnoRn as hkarrﬁ

fran time W time.
CANYON.

Abaat cne mlf mile swuth of J.T. Prewett's, on the
cast side of the rcad was the Fllen Prewett or Fred Prewett
Ranch.

The first canvon mst J.T. Prewett's, on the west side
of the rad wes the Beiss canyon, named for the Germen
coiple, Blanche and Otio Heiss, who settled there in 1B9L.
Thay had = two—year-old son when they arrivwed, named Harold,
and tley pamed their ranch, “"Harcolda." Mrs., Heiss #as an
artist, having studied in Eurcpe, and sbe gave lessons in
the commnity. Mr. Heiss was accapplished on the wviolin,
and taught rusic and German. In 1887, the Belss couple
separated, and Mrs. Heiss mowed to San Francisco. Me. Heiss
staved on for a while, tut in 1838, he too moved away. We
mention this only to inject the curicus ncte tint the Heiss
property had never heen soid, despite several attamis to

purchase it. The beirs still return, occcasiopally,

54 fyenipg Free lance, May 27, 1897, micrafilm.
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inquiring as to the locaticn of their ancestors’ property,
and still refuse te sell though there is no langer any
access Toad to the Heiss Praperty.o®

The next place an the east side of the Toad was the
James Muproe house, and the MunToe caoyon extended on the
west side of the road. The Mwroes bad severzl children who
a1l attended tbe Bear Valley schocl. The Munrce hulse was
built on & ledee of land beside the creek that runs through
Bear Valley. The remains of the Munroce's roat cellar in the
ank of thet ledge of land can still be seen fram the road.

Somewhat sauth of the Munros bhoume, to the east, the
Chapman family lived, and there were four children in the
family; Mable, Iottie, Btis snd Ieon. On the west side of
the road ancother Fnglish family by the name of Greenwood
lived. The CGreenwoods ad two song, Wilfred and Hareld.
The Mmroe, Chaprmn and Greepwood places were  later
purchased by Schuyler C. Hain."®

On the hills easti of the Fowers property, betwesn his
and the Cormwell place, sowveral families located over the
years. For sooe reason not kmown, this region was refermed
to as "String Town.” There were the Jomm Roots, William
Bootons, Dick Rileys, James Butterfields, Frank Tomilsons

ard Horace Bacons.

55 Statarent by Jef Semmidi, rancher, in persconal

' interview, Pear Valley, March 29, 1977. -

3 germidt, 1963.
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The Horace Bacon bome stood near the top of the grade,
in e drew beside the road that led to San Benito. Though
the bome was destroyed by fire several yvears agon, the tip of
the mmm roof can still be seen from the fre=zent roed, from
across the wlley below.

The Jotm Hain family arrived in 1886 and homestesded on
the east side af the valley, near the hills in back of the
Fowers place; and a femily by the name of Burton who were
some relaticn to DPowers, Wwers s:iu.&tters cn the Posers
preperty. Mr. Burton, bowever, was an itiperant preacher
and be performed omroy useful services for the commupity
{such as visiting the ill, providing spiritual camfort,
etc.y, in the absence of tie circuit preacber. The MDS
glso had several children whe attended Bear Velley school.”?

Ope half mle scuth of Powers, on the sast side of tna_-
read lived Oscar Butterfield, son of George Butterfield, and
his wife, Jossphine, (Pege). They had foor children:
Grace, who married Horace Bacon's son, Clarence, and is now
Mrs. Roy Robinscn; Vicla, who merTied Marshal Hardin, son of
R.0. Hardin of Hpollister; George, Who never marTied; and
Dorothy, YMrs. Ed Maventis of Hollister. The large barn and
some fence standing in the nea.dm east of the highwmay are
all that remuin *to mrk the location of the Osaar

Butterfield Fanch.

57 Webb, April 20, 1977.



o the west side of the road, two young men tyv the
names of Howard (ollier and Kirby Smith lived and raised
chickens in what bas becans known 2s the Howerd and Eirby
Canyon, though they had named their place the "Brodkside
Ranch.” They pever did much ranching, but worked on the
threster and other odd jdbs in the valley.

Although ttere was po rcad where the present Route 146
iz now, the Paul Strauss family located to the right, just
past the cattle guard at the present entrance to Route
145, TIn 18385, Strauss =old the ranch to a German family by
the name of Lange and mowved back to the city, because his
wife did not Jike the lonely life in the wlley. Mr. Lange
died a few years later and bis widew contimed to farm there
glone.

Hext, alcng Route 25 on the right, was the marsonage,

then on the 1eft, btefore reaching the N.D. Pege Fanch, there

was a W.M. Harrie who hed some acreage at cne time.

The Nelson D. Prge family were also fron New "England,
and Mr, Page bid been a teamster in Sonoma County before
settling in Bear Valley in 1875. This ranch, with meny of
the coriginal buildings, is at the foot of the San Penito
gragde oo Route 25, and is now the Art Smith Ranch. The H.D.
Page family had five children; Josephine (Mrs. Oscar
Butterficld), Elizabeth, Maude, Ed and Albert.

Starting up tbhe prade was the site of the Eloss
Zimmermen residence, and e little farther on, & bachelor by

the nams of Rapsom Rose lived., At the top of the grade,
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near & hige boulder on the side af the road, a Swede by the
name of Axs]l DBorgmen lived, where the P.O. Jameses now
live. Mr, Borgman's uncle, Cherles, alsc lived in the San
Benitc area, and be ws a carpenter who helped build mny of
the bomes in the vicinity.9®

There was ancther carpenter, Mr. J. Dorn who helped
build houses nearby. The Jlmmermen house was built by Mr.
Ebrn.ﬁg

Across the road from Azel Borgman another bachelor,
Alfred Butterfield, lived; and further an this road, nsarer
the present road to San Benitao, :.u'ere Elwer Butterfield, Murt
Shiclds, Albsrt Page, Mrs. Josephine Cota and meny others.™"

Back in Bear Valley, across fram N.D. Pege, there was a
road that led to the right, to the George BDutterfields.
Past the Butterfislds there was & cenyon leading up to the
Ranscm Rose place, and the Harlow Hills lived in this
canyon. Mr. Hill was & brotber of Mrs. Butterfield, and he
was a bechooper 'a;rhr:r supplied loney to all the residents in
the area. There were two daughters in tbhe Hill family,
Mabel and laursa. -

The rcad mst the Butterfields cut across the field and
tken followed the creek bed until it reached Mrs., Ellzabeth

Bacon's residence. Mrs, Bocon's family had 211 grown by

58 gormidt, 1963,

59 Advance, February 3, 1BB2, microfilm.

60 Scrmidt, 1962.
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no®; Debarah 5bel1l, of course, bad marrisd Henry Melendy and
lived in Bear Valley; SusaAn snd Mery hed merried and mowed
away; Ben Bacan terried Cresa Burns, daughter of William
Burns of Willow Creek and they liwed aut their lives in the
little bouse that is still standing near the bridge over the
creck next to Raute 146. (Orea Eecon drowned in 1935, when
ghe fell from the bridge near her home 1ot the swollen
vaters of the oreek., Her body was swept eway and finelly
recovere] near the foot of the velley.)

Horace Bacon attended Sap Jose Normel College, &and
taught school for a while in Contra Costa County, where be
mt and married Martha Jeanett (Nettie) Smith, before
returning to teach in Begito County and later in Bear
Valley., Upon his return to Bear Valley, be purchased the
ranch in the hills east of the school, where he tanght for
twenty years in the Bear Valley schonl., He was endesred to
all the stodents in the district, who affectionately called
hin "Uncle Horace, "6l

Oliver Bacon, who never married, bailt his fouse one—
nalf mile west of Ben Bacon's hame. The original Bacon bome
was beyond the creek from "Ollie" Pacon's house.

The road made a right twn near Ben Facon's, crossed
the creek ami went wesiward toward tbe Piopacles. A family
by the name of Jones lived along this road, on the west side

of the valley. "Ollie" Bacon found the body of Jonethan

Bl ¥obb, March 30, 1877.
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Jones beside the road ope morping, where he hed died of
natural causes.5? The widow and family contimued to live
there for mny years, apd Mrs. Jones grew vegetables for the
cawninity. Ewen after the Joneses were gone, the Iroperty
wes retained by the heirs.

Also on the west sids of the wlley, there was a family
by the name of Brown residing at one time.

Inside the present entrance to the Pinnacles Natiopal
¥ormument, just past the bridge over Chalone Creek, & mn by
the name of Berry cnee had a cabin.ﬁs

Henry Melwille from 3oledsd came to prospect at the
Pinnaleces around 1820. He had several mining claiums oo the
wostern part of the Pinnacles or "Palisades.” His name
appears op the 1891 mep thet hangs in the San Benito
Historical Miseum. The name oo the ¢laims changed to Copper
}a:u_ntain Wining Company when Melville took in partoners in
1908,

n the west side of the Momument, about sixz miles
nurl-:teast of Soledad, a man by the pame of Hoot once bad a
mining cperation in a locality referrad to as BEootville, and
the pame of the mine was the "Robsrt Bnmett™; and though it
was supposed to bave been a2 prospercus enterprise, it ssemed

to bavwe dissppeared without 2 trace by 1880. A Mr. Samuel

€2 Bvening Free lance, March 1, 1001,

63 Webh, March 30, 1977.
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Brannan and a Mr. H. Higgins were sald to ave spent a large
anunt of money there mining for g}ld.ﬂq‘

Back in Bear Valley there are mny other names to which
referance «~n be foaund, but their emact location and their
relationsmips to the otlers in the ares escepe search. Some
of the names of the era are: John H. Bradley; G.W. Modie;
Jom, George snxd Wash Brown; Alfred Thowpson; Paddy Lycns;
Artmir MeGill; Al Anderson; Iat and Del Hawkins (who worked
25 toad-msters in Bear Valley); Charles Zolin (a Charles
Zolin was later referred to as living in Bitterwater); D.W.
Bichard amd sons, Cherles and Hugh; William Maynard; Elishke
Brotherton; Hasbrouck; Hamilton; Mrs. Williams; E. Wall;
Luther Gaw (rented Ellen Preweti's ranch for five years when
she retired); Mr. Atlas and Mr. Gillmsn {resided far a while
in Mye Camyon); and C.M. White.

Even without these names added it is easy to see that
this pmart of the comty w8 much more populated at that
period of time than it is today. The fields were criss-
crossed with picket fences everywhere you lodked, for wire
fepce wAs too costly in those days. Besides, making these
fences gave the men samething to do in the slow winter -

mnths after the ocrops Were ha.rvested.sﬁ

G4 W story of San Benito Coaumty, p. 135.

55 Webb, March 20, 1977.
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Prices for orgps rose or fell, depending upon the
weather, mach as they do today. 1882, for ezauple, was &
very dry year that had only ten and one—half ioches of
rainfall, and hay was gaing for $15 & ton and tarley was
$1.50 per hundred pounds.f6 Scme renchers in & wery ary
year would take their cettle up in the Gabilans where there
was not mich feed but there was plenty of snow for mpisture
in tha winter.ﬁ?

The roads to apd in the scutbern part of the cowmty
were ancther item that was dependent upon the weathar. The
Butterficld brotbers worked on the prade between Bear Valley
and San Benito, but in wipnter there was the mud, and in dry
weatber, there was the loose dirt and grawel that s
dangerous on a steep grade, if the horses were 2 litile too
spry. 58

When the brard of supervisors in Hollister proposed
that & bridze b= built acrose Bird Creek at Cienega, the
pecple in the southern end of the cainty protestad. They
declared that & bridge over the Son Benito at Collins' Grade
wes & much mre pressing matter. Such a bridee oould be
tuilt et a fraction of the cost of ome over Bird Creek, due

to the fact thit the river was very narrow in thet spot, and

flowed between two large rocks. 4 bridge st Collins' Grade

68 Advence, April 2, 18582, microfilm.
87 pid., February 24, 1882.

6% 1pid., may 8, 1891.
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wES essential to keap the rced o the county seat cpen year
around for all those living in the southerm end of the
coamnty . hs it wms, the road followed the river wvery
closely, amd many lives had been Iost over the ¥Years in the
swollen waters of the San Benito River. They got thelr
bridge at Collins® Grade.%”

It is fortumate, what with traveling canditions being
whot thevy were, tlat there were S0 Enny young pecple living
in the immdiate vieinity. A yawmg mn did oot have to go
far in search of a bride when be decided t0 maxrTy. This is
why tie descendants in the valley today are often related to
two or more pioneer families.

Although weddings, showers, births and visits hore frao
school fusually high school in Hollister) were all causes
for eelebration and sordel gatherings, the cost popular
entertzinment had to have been the picnic. We Imve already
motioned the micnics on Sundays after ﬁ:uurch in Bear
Valley. Well, the other chuirches had the zame sort of
arrangement. Vhen pecple came a long way for morninog
sarvices, time did not permit them to po bome and then
return for evening services. Mesbers visited cother churches
in their circuit, and hosted the plenics when the minister

was spesking at their church.

69 Thia., May 8, 1891.
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There were also Arbor UDay plenics, Mey Day picoles,
Fourth of July picnles, end-of-=chool pichics, end-of-sumer
picoies and plenics just for the sake of E.wirg pichnics. It
Wwes B preat, inexpensive enterteinment that relied or one of
their pmost abundant commopdities, their good cooks. OUne of
the favorite spots for a picnic was the Pimnacles.

The Pinnacles, 1n thyze days, was own as the
"Palisades," and was the area referred to today a&s the Old
Pinpacles, or the Balccpies, Bear Gulch had not been gpened
up and was inaccessible except to the more energetic hikers
or climbers. There was a wagon trail, however, to within 2
mle of the caves at the "Falisades", where there wRs &
picnic amd camping area set up. Aocther favorite spot in
the area for picnics was the Bsnch, which was a ledge of
land at the comvergencs of Boar Creck and Chalame Cred.
Frem both of these spots, & tour of the caves could be an
the agenda for the day.

There would be hiking to the caves in the mornigg for
the experience of crawling owver, under and arcund the
rodks., Cne very tight place in the "Palisades” caves was
named “Fat Man's Misery.” Then everyone returned to canp
for an atundant spread, where there slways seemed To e mich
mre food than was needed. After dinner, there Were ganes
to play, and the msieal instruments were brought ocut apd
dancing was enjoyed till tire to load tbhe wagons and horses

foar the trip booe, scoetimes by moonlight.



Of course, life was not 2ll picnics and dancing. There
were disputes where tempers flared, and caution apd dis-
cretion were discarded., Most of these disputes were cover
land. The county -law wes over thirty miles away, and whep
disagreements occurred there wasn't time to follow ihe legal
procedures, even if the parties inwlved had the desire to
do so. Consequently, men usually improvised their owm laws.

inother cause for conflict during this time was
politics. In this period, so soon azfter the Clvil War,
politics were an important part of a man'’s life. Many af
the hiceraphical sketches that appear In local history bocks
of that day stated boldly the subjects' party affilietion as
one of their mjor roles. Ty were eitter “good
Republicaus® or “good Demncrats" apd they wanted eweryoune to
know it. They wore the title es if it were a badgs of
honor.

The following #es found by a Hollister reporter when he
mds a trip to S=n Bepito to write a feature story for the
loal newspaper ofi that part of the cawty. We ioclude 1t
here becmise it gives & feeling of the political clmte in
the areaz at that time and hecause it wes writben by oue of
Bear Valley's first settlers, end establishes the year of
hic arrival io the walley., It starts with the reporter's
explanation:

San ﬁenitc is a wvery bealtly location.
The climte 1is exceptional. Deathe sgldom
cocur — one death only s happened within the
past two years The eslewation is 1,325 feet

above sSem  level. The air is mure and
invigorating and cge or Two physicians who have
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wventured to fizx uvp a czhingle or cater for
asiness have bhad to leave oo account of the
general bealthfulness of pecple.

The following poem was placed an a publie
position near Jepnard's Store end  being
attracted by its singular method of bidding
farewell to & life-long profession, W oopled
it for the benefit of those who wish to
preserve a Literary curicosity.

“Bear Valley, March 23, 1874
Farewall, I soon shall leave yau,
Rt I trust the mrting will not grieve me.
More than thirty years I have bad ip this lipe—
I have treated the laborer, lawyer, lcafer and divine—
I heve traveled twenty thousand miles upon my beat
Fron my gquiet retreat, .
{rer nipe years havwe here stayed,
And how many coffins have ever been displayed?
Oh ye that judee with the knowledge of an ass
Pine for some fawrite male ower a glass,
I spon shall leave for distant lands
dnd T trast I shall leawe you in bettor hands.
I don't wish to mike another trip
Wiere the pecple are destitute of friendship,
43 I newer Iold the pecple dear
Where I cannot believe a word I bear.
Please bring scme drunkerd from e foreign clime
And let him bere put in his time.
is I have no furtbter time I wish to waste,
Aand be will be more coneenial to your tagle.
Scme revemis by chance be mey lay up if be should board or dwell
Fram Gilroy, Hollister or Hell.
. The day you make the change your God you will forever bless.
Especially if be is & litile on the secesh (secessionist)
Bat shld I in after lLife my error sce
I will bring yeu bmek 2 deck of ecards and a bottle of whiskey."
fsicned) A.W. Powers
"y whom it my omeern: N.B. I this day resign all
right, title and interest in the practice of medicine. I will sa&e
any cages I now bhave cn hand through, but believing that I should
not ho morally or financially benefited I shall positively decline
talting any new case. If nine years experience with you is of any
velue to me, 1, as a generus man am duty bound to resign in favor
of someone more needy."
feimed) A.W. Pcwersm

70 Evening Free lance, August 8, 1874, micrafilm.
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Trere was oot howewver, despite Dr. Powers' resignation,
any other cause to believe that b ever really did quit the
practice of medicine.

In September 188%, "Dopo' Fowers met a viclent da;a.th.
All the signs pointed to & conspirecy inwolving meny
praminent citizemrs in the arvea, Lut no coovictian and
sentencing were ever satisfied. Tbe only thipg thet the
incident did prove was an atopspbere of tension throughout
the ﬁlley tbkat placed mny -good families on copposite
gides. People eitber believed thet the dector was oo good
or that he was the kindest men wbo ever lived. This ewven
seamd to drain the spirit fran all those living in the
valley for a time, but this condition clesred after a few
vears, especizlly with the arrivel of a new generation and
of new neighbors.

Bear Yalley was not the only community in San Benito
County afflicted with & case of quick tempers snd smldering
guns. The conditions thraugbout all of San Benito Cowmty
weTe tecoming the brunt of meny derogatory remnrks appearing
in newspapers in otber cities.

The San Jose Mercury reported one day that:

A pentleman, well posted in the matter, Informs
s tkat in San Benito county during the seven
vears of its organization, there bave ccourred
no less then fifty—two bomlcides, and coly one
mirder=r, ¥asquez, has been punished.

To which the indignant editor of the Hollister
ne#spaper repllad:
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Your informant is so 'well posted" that not a
single stetement in the ebowe paragraph is
correct. In the first place, San Benito county
was organized eight years ago; secondly, the
Vasquez murders occirred in Monterey ounty;
thirdly, instead of fifty—twoy bhomicides your
Ugellposted” informant refers to only twelw
havwe been commtited ip this county sines its
organization. -

Thos= in 3an Benito cainty were beginning to be rather
touchy oo the subject of tbheir law enforcement. The editor
in tke local newspaper even went S0 far as to imply that the
reporters on the other newspapers that made such statements
as the one abowe, were simply spreading lies about San
Benito county in an attespt to keep pecple from wanting to
settle there. Judee George Breen, of Dry lake area, spoke
of the situation when he was septencipg a man for the second
degree murder in 1889 of Cornelius Waters. The man's name
was Stone.

Stone’s many friends, in tying to belp him, bad testi-
fied to his innocence and to witnessing the shooting of
¥aters. Their testimny had the copposite effect. By their
testiwony, Stone was found guilty, for it proved the hullet
could not have entersed the body fram the position, znd in
the way, that the defendant, Stone, had claimed.

Judge Breen stated that although his sympetiies may
have beep with the aging defendant, whem b2 had known far
mny years, "The pood name of the comty mst be vipdi-

cated.” He had no choice it to sentence the convicted man



71 The swentencing, khowever, Was never carTied

to prison.
ait. After mny retrials the case was forgotten.

But San Benito oounty residents soon learned to langh
at themsalwes and capitalize on their fame by getting otbers
to, smile with them, and from fhat time on they were co the
way to recovery from the tensions that bad prevwmiled. This
quality is exenplified by the San Benito correspondent who
began his colum one day: “This smell place has not been
heard frem in some time, so I will bresk the ice. The
weather is fine, No murders or suicldes since _ttu:eshing.“'?z
| The pecple in Sen Benito coanty wers ready to turm

their energies to mopre productlive pursuits, and to picnic

egain.

71 1pid,, day 3, 1889
72 1pid., October 2, 1891.
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Chapter 4

PRESERVATI(NIST INFLUENCE (1335-1308)

Before 1889, any reference to the “Palisades," or
Pinnacles, in local newspapers ar any other publication was
oost noticeable by its absence. The earliest citing was in
the 1881 publication that told of the old mining towm of
Rootville that bad been located six miles nartheast of
Spledad. The item titled, A Remarkable Canyon," though it
did not sive a familiar name to the canycn, is an acourate
description of the area on the west side of the Pinnacles
Mational Monurent threugh which the Balcondes, or Old
Pinnacles, Trail now leads. The reference iz found in the
Monterey County section of the book and is as follows:

Five miles north of this old mining pround is a
singular valley, probably helf a mile in length,
and exXecedinely narrow. Tomering upon either
hand, for a height of two thousand feet, are
perpendicular walls of rock. At the extrems
ooposite the place of entrance is an encawols
egg—shaped bomlder, just filling the interstice
between two walls, and fitting so sougly es to
effectually bar all entrance or exit. Beneath
the stone is a space just sufficient to admit the
passege of a mouniain stream. 4 short distance
below this is a =mll walley campletely rock
bound, if we except a passage way of six feet in
width af either extremity. It is a matter of
absclute impossibility to effect either entrance
or exit from this valley in any other way but by
one of these passes. This is said to have been a
favorite stronghold of Joaguin Murieta., Vasque=z
is a2l%o said to hawe sought its retirement, when
closely pursued, and to bave enjoyed many days of
guiet in its secure retreat.l

1 History of San Benito County (San Francisco: Ellict
and ¥oore Publication, 18381 p. 135.
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Local residents had the area of the "Palisades" as
almst a private playpround for what fame it had acliewed
was entirely due to work of mouth advertising. Perhaps this
unique region was taken for granted by the people who Lived
nearby since the jagged skyline was so much a part of their
daily lives. Theno beginaing in 1889, the correspondent from

Bear Velley to the Hollister Evening Free lance began

mentioning the "famous 'Palisades’” in almost every column
of his that appeared in that newsmper.

The correspondents to the local newspapers were usually
ane of the hest sources of information about the residents
livipg in their particular areas, mich as they ars today.
They mentioned new neighbors, births, deaths, marriages and
many Social events. The only differesnce between the
correspondents of today and the ones to the early newspapers
was their failure to sign their true names. Then around
1890, they began adopting pseudonyms. [espite pleas from
the editors, in the next few years, to hav;e the correspon-
dents sign thelr rightful names, the pseudonyms continued.
Sometimes, also, there would be little werhal RAttles
carried on between correspondents of different lecalities.
Beginning arcund the year 1882, Bear Valley, later known as
"Cock,” began to be represented by a correspondent who
called himself "Kpot Init.”

There was another event in Bear Valley that seemed to

almet coincide with the new awarcness of the Pinnacles;
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that was when the Jobn Hain family arrived fram Michigan to
settle in the welley in 1886.

The Hains had come overland, too, but in a2 boxcar of a
railway train that mde the crossing of the 3ierras quite a
different mtter than it bad been in a cove;‘ed wagon. The
Jotm Hains had eight children who were all fairly well grown
at the tims the family came west. The oldest socn, Sclmyler
C. Hain, was already oerried and remined in Michigan with
his wife aod children. The other seven Hain children, (BEve,
ﬂr;th.ur, Carrie, Flora, Mary, Sadie and Frank) made the move
to Czliformia with their parents. The Hains bad relatives
in San Jose by the name of White, which is probably why they
picked the station at Niles, pear Mission 3an Jose, to
disembark from the train. They did not remin in Sag Jose,
however, except for Arthur, but went to Bear VYalley where
John Hain began hemesteading on the east side of the Valley
behind the Powers estate.

There had been a btand playing at the Niles station that
day wren the Hains arrived ic (aliformia and, as Artiur Hain
alightted fram the train ecarrying a cornet, someone fram the
tand approached him and offered him a Jjob playing in the
bapd. So, Artiur reminadl in San Jose for a while working
85 & musician. He later joined the rest of the Hain famly

in Bear ?a.lle:;.z

2 Statement by Mrs. Lou (Bessie Hain Olsen) Webb,
retired rancher, in personal interview, Bear Valley, March 9,
1977, )



In 1889, Johm Hairn purchased the Power= estate and the
family moved their residence to the west side of the valley,
where the present bome of Mrs. Lou (Bessie Hain) Webb is
located.

The Hains were a family who a.lwa:,rs_ scemed to ke
actively involved in sawe new endeavor. Perhaps this was a
trait that bad been learned from their father, Jom Hain.
One example of this is the way in which John Hain handled
the problem of the Bear Valley rcad.

The Tosd through Bear Valley at the time the Hains
sattled there was not a public rcad. The road led across a
series of private properties that regquired the traveler to
he contimally scunting and disrounting his horgse or »agon,
to be cpening and closing the gates that greeted him on &
journey frem one end of the walley to the other. This
sifuation might have led the traveler to thipk the valley
should have been more appropriately named "Cate Valley.“
This was a condition that appalled Johm Hain, who set cut. to
rectify the matier by circulating & petition that was then
presented to the San Benito board of supervisors. The
petition asked that the rcad through Bear Valley be deemd a
county road.a

™m the north end of the valley, the new county road did

not follow behind the present fire station, arcund the edge

3 Bvening Free lance, (Hollister) May 5, 1889,
micrafilm.
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of Bickmore canyon end emerge near J.T. Prewett’'s home, as
the old road had. The new road led in front of the present
fire station, past Henry Melemdy's amd then on to J.T.
Prews=tt's, as the present road does. Joon T. FPrewett
resented this change in the routing of the mad. He tumed
in 2 bill for %100 to the county for cutting -B.cross his land
tiat he nommily had under cultivation.? Consequently, this
section of the road was dubbed "The $100 Reed,” a npame that
has "uing on" throsgh the years.®

Schuyler C. Hain bad visited the rest of the Hain clan
since their mowve west. In a2 later writing be refers to
thess visits, btut he does not mentlon ow mpy vislts or the

dates of the visits. In the summer of 1821, Schuler Hain

mved to Bear Valley and after eecuring & home, be was .

joined in November of that year by his wife and children.®

His brotber, Arthur, who was mrrying J.T. Prewett’s
dasighter, Nellie, had settled just north of John Hain's home
where Arthur's and Nellie's daughter, Mrs. Peter (!.hrga.-ret
Hain Weir) Clausen later lived. Artlr Hzin's bouse was
locited ngar the oad, just south of Bsar Velley sclool.

Schuyler Hain settled just north of the school, tut his

2 Thid.

5 Statement by Jef Schmidt, rancher, in personal
interview, Baar Valley, March 28, 1977,

8 Evening Free lance, November 6, 1891, microfilm.
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house wae set back farther fram the roed, where Mr. Horace
Bacon now lives (gra.ndsdn af the sanior Horace Bacon).

* There were sSeveral other noteworthy events in the area
that tock place near that period of time, Petitions were
being cirmlated and seat to the Postmster General
reguesting daily meil service to San Penito. This secined 2
reasonable rTequest for a  district that hed so many
residents.?

Altheuph it took several years before it became a
reality, the people of San Benito Were alsoc begimning to
want telephone service to thedr district. As it was,
without teleplones, it tock three days to get an order to
Hollister and back.B |

Tre talk of the whole county however, was the new steam
engipe threshing rechine that Jobn T. Prewett bhad purchased.
J.T. had causad quite a coamotion ag he drove the machine
throagh Hollister an his way bome after the purchase. It
was first thought to be some sort of conveyaocs for ha.uling
produce fram his ranch to mrket.? This was a reasonable
mistake considering that the machine was the first contrap-
tion of its kind ever seen in the county.

The pecple of Willow Creek refused to take the

mechanized monster sericusly and they suggested that John

7 Ipid., July 7, 1889,

8 Tpid., May 3, 1891,

9 Evening Free lance, September 11, 1891, microfilm,
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Prewett tad bought & ™white eclephant" instead of a
threshor.0 Thet year J.T. tad hirvested all the wheat in
the valley, save the hﬁeleMy's.ll

Soon, Flora Brin bad begun teaching at the Erie school
in Hernandez Valley and Cerrie Hain started teaching at Live
Cakx school, midway hetween Bear Valley a.ndl Paicines - and
soan, Frank Haio was off to college studying to became 2
lawyer.

Beginning in 1889, almost every correspondence fram
HBear Valley that appeared in the Hollister oewspaper mad
some reference mentioning the "Falisades,”™ and in 1881 it
began to be referred to as the Pinnacles. There were
listings of neigtbors who had visited the "Palisades,"!? and
rentinn was made of the Prewett girls escorting a visiting
friend on a horsebeck trip to the "Pelisades,” even if the
boys cauldn’t go: ". . . anything to view those magnificent
'Palisades. '3

One accoint was of a May Day picnic with all twan-ty-
three of the Bear Valley sclool children in attendance,
along with enough adults to mke the entire group mmher
fifty. James T. Butterfield drove the wagon that day and he

was assisted by Horace Bacon. The iftem gave a vivid

10 144, July 12, 189l.
1l 13id., September 11, 189L.
12 1y44., June 28, 1838,

13 Eveming Free lance, July 19, 1889, microfilm.
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description of the tumpy ride to the picnic grounds. The
picnic aroe was one wile from the caves (the Balconies caves
on the west side of the Momarent. Bear Gulch at that time
had no access road, and if ever mentioned was referred to as
& separate entity).l?

It was pot lomp before pecple living in the northern
end of the county were wondering what those living in the
sauthern part of the county were raving about when they
spoke of the Plepacles. To satisfy their curiosity, the

editor of the Hollister Evening Free lance sent & reporter

on & trip to Bear Valley and to the Pinnacles so that be
might report first band upon the place. The reporter mde &

glowing account of his trip for the readers of ikt

newspaper, ~°

It was =uch a glowing account that now the town
afficizls really had their interest araused. So two months
later nothing woald satisfy those officials oxcept to visit
the Pinnacles themseives. Ten of the most prominent men in
Hollister, along with a driver snd reporter from the news-
paper, left Hollister at 6:00 a.m. on a Saturday moming

with the Pinnacles as their destination and arrvived sboat

4 1ig., My 8, 1889,

15 mid., April 1, 1882.
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2:30 p.m.”s They were welcomed at the plenic by Mrs. Lature
and Mr. and Mrs. Alex Faton, along with a party of about
fifty persons.

The party fran Hellister camped that night at the
Pinnacles and returmed the next nnmingl to Hollister,
comvineed thet San Benito County hed 2 fine tourist
attraction — if only it were a little more accessible.

There was not mich more publicity in the Hollister
newspaper the next few years on the Pinnacles except for
correspondence from Bear Valley — such as when a young man,
Will Townsend, rode his "Cleveland” bicycle from Hollister
to the P]'_DDEI.GIEE,]'? or when A.W. White and friend, both

students at Stanford University, visited one Easter vacation

18 Thoce mking the trip from Hollister were: T.W.
Hawkine; undsr—sheriff Brown; L.M. ladd; M.C. Briggs, Jr.;
Frark Boulton; Dr. F. H. Philipps; Gordon MeFoote; Sam
Freels: James T. lahiff; #.W. Black, Montgomery and Shaw.
Among those waiting at the picnic ares were: Hamilton, San
Jose; three wamen from San Francisco; and the rest, all from
Sen Benito county, were: C.W. and J.F. Root, Mr. & Mrs.
W.J. Dosmey; Mr. & Mrs, Enoch Mylar & daughter; De Witt
Appleton; Miss Blosser; Miss Edith Shaw; O.F. and B.F.
Bacon: Wash Brown; Miss Kate Brown; Fred Towle; Richard
Riley; Cus Shields; Mr. & brs. Logan Cormwell, Hattie,
Jascn, Warren and Jesse Cornwell; N. Jose and hiss Maude
Jose; Charles Werner; Judge B.F. Starr; John Tatham and son;
Mr=. Latare and Miss MNormm lature; Misses Heva linlcom,
Lillie Henry, MNacomi Ladd and Mr. & Mrs. Louis ladd; Walter
McClure: ¥r. & Mrs., Alex Eaton and Eva Eaton; James A.
Kearpey; William K, Brown; William F. Shaw and A.D. Show;
Cass Ashcroft and James Hawlkdos (most of these names are
recopnizable as being from the Bear Valley, San Benlto or
Mulberry areas). Evening Free lance, June 24, 1882,
mh.crof 11m.

17 Gvening Free lance, June 23, 1893, microfilm.

T8



with White's uncle, Jolm Hain, and *todc in" the Pimmacles.?®
The colum noted when people from other cities came To the
Pinnacles, such as a Mr. Worthiogton of San Jose,lg or
several pecple from San Francisco who spent cne Fourth of
July tlEI‘E'.zU At cne time there was talk of putting up a
resort hotel there, after C.W. Root braught a party af
capitalists fram San Francisco to view the spot, but nothing
mre was ever heard of that proposed hcrtel.zl

In 189, it #as anncunced that Hear Valley was to have
its own post office, to be named "Cook.” Scluyler Hein was
to be postmster.22 It scems there was another Bear Valley
in the state; and when the second choice for a name,
"Brecikside," was submitted, the residents were informed that
the name was too long. Mra. S5.C. Bain's meiden name, Codk,
was then sent in and the postal department approved it. The
name of "Cock" remained until 1924, when the post office
nare was changed to "Pinnacles,” Eh.lifornia.za

Though Schuiyler Hain was postmaster, the fpost folice
was in the Arthur Hain residence. Since Arthur's house was

situzted closer to the raad than Schiyler's house, it was

18 jpid., March 30, 1894.

13 Evenipg Free Lance, June 23, 1893, microfilm.

20 Ibid., June 6, 1854.
21 Thid., sugust 3, 1894.
22 myig., April 20, 1894.

23 wepb, March 9, 1977,
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mch more convenlent for the mmil carrier and alsc for the
patrons, to have the post office in Arthur's bome Nellie,
Arthur's wife, ran the operation fram their ome.

Three of the Hein girls got mrried and moved away.
Carrie Hoin merried AW, Curtls of Live Oak whom she md mat
while she was teaching school there; Eva Hain married J.B.
Root from la Fayette and Flora Hain merried C.B. Hartes of
Yuba City.

There were moy otier e;.fents in Bear Valley of interest
arcund tmt time. In 1895, John T. Prewett retired from
ranching and left one of his daughters and her msband in
charge of the remch. Mr, and Mrs. Prewstt, along with
"Grandpa”  (Uncle Sam) Prewett, moved into Hellister to
live., J.T. worked as a butcher for the Rockdale Mercantile
Company in Hollister after the move.2*  The Rockdale
puilding was destroyed in the 1906 eartiquake.”

Schuyler and Arthur Hain purchased the Prewett
threshing mechine and saw mill. A rman by the name of Tms :
Mills worked as an engineer an the Hain Brothers' engine for
2 while. The whistle on the engine could be heaxd
resounding through the valley as wood was being sawed for

u=e on the Hain Brothers Raam:;:h.:?“’5

24 wobh, March 30, 1977.

25 pobert Iacope, Sunset’s Earthqueke Country (Menlo
Park: lane Books, 1971 p. 86.

% Evening Free lance, November 22, 1885, micrafilm.
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. Schuyler Hain apd Henry Melemdy were elected to the
schhol xmrd in 1886, . Jjoining such neighbors as Oscar
Butterfield and Axel Borgmn.2?

Henty Melendy hed always led the field in the mumber of
mountain lions killed, and his sons followed his example.
If a 1licn was after the Melendy' cattle in Erks CAnyon, you
caild be sure George would Mave the cat before long. One
lion that George and Tomy Melendy slew measursd saven feet
and weighed 120 j:.‘_@.lndi-zﬁ

Henry ¥elendy put in a blacksmith shop on his ranch and
==t out to lsarn the trade.gg

Before Gearge Melendy went off to college, e attended
buziness college in Hollister. This was a step & never
regretted, for this business education became a wvaluable
asset in the wears to came in the management of a large
ranch. 30

John Hain was teking 2 lot of ribbing abozt the "wild
horse” he hed improvised. People were telling him that fhe

imvention "locked like a cross between a rerry—go—round and

2T Iyid., June 14, 1895.

28 Eyening Free lance, Jamary 24, 1895, microfilm.

29 1hid,, april 27, 1897.
30 gtatement by Mrs. Kingsley (Charlott Melendy)

Berberick, rancher, in personal interview, Willeow (reek,
April 20, 1977.
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horse power! but John said it was just the thing for
breaking wild horses. St .

indrew Irwin traded his ranch for cune twelve miles from
Rigene, Oregon and moved his family there.52 A Professor
Walling and a Mr. Cook resided on the Irwin place for &
while,33 then Irwin's son-in-law, A.A. Baker bought the
property. This is now pert of the Melendy ranoch.

AJA, Baker and Mr. Hubhell put in 2 pumping station on
Hubbell's property at the bottom of the Bear Valley Grade,
in the Willow Creek district.~*

All during these years the fame of the Pinnacles
comtimed to grow as more and fore groups of peopile
contimed to visit the site amd return home "singing its
praises.” There was ane report o several "Hollisterites”
visiting the Pinnacles; one of eighteen pecple frum Fanoche
visiting the Pinnacles; and one report stated tiat a group
frem San Juan went to the Pinnacles on Saturday, Bear Guich
on Sunday and Chalone Peak on Monday, with Mary and Fra.nk

Hain acting as their puides.S° The first mentiom of a party

31 Evening Free lapce, Jamery 13, 1896, microfilm.

32 mid., June 27, 1398.
33 ibid., Jamwary 1, 1899,
¥ Ihid., May 27, 1888,

35 Gvening Free lance, July 10, 1B86, mhicrofilm.
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visiting Bear Gulch stated that ". . . it bid well to rival
the Pinnacles."

There was ape amising story told of a young minister
and a friend who arrived at the Piomacles on a Friday with
the intention of camping tbere that night and leaving for
home early Saturday afterncon. They twrned their horse aut
to pasture and the lorse wandered off. It tock "Ollie"
Eacon one apd one-half days, at tiree dollars a day, to find
the morse. Meanwhile, the minister had to walk to Soledad
and catch the train back home to Gilroy so as not to be late
for Sunday services, 37

There were several other activities in the Pinnacles
area that perited mention. There had been & quicksilver
mine in San Benito for some time and in 1829, Al Anderson
began tunneling for quicksilver co the Butts Panch at Fine
M_Eﬂ

A3 we noted earlier, Henry Melville mmd several mining
claims in the PBaleonies area and in 1898 some parties f;n:m
Faicinez located & mine near Bear Guleh.2? o names were

cited for these mrties so we do not know whetber a later

reference to Thoms Flint's mine as "looking eood,” and

3 1hid., My 8, 189G.
37 mmid., May 27, 1898.
38 thid., March 24, 1899,

39 Evening Free lance, April 1, 1898, microfilm.
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Mr. Flint being given the go-abead to simk ancther 100 feet
to tunnel, was referring to the Bear Gulcﬁ Mipne or not.‘m
There was alsc a Captain Nicols who Y. . . thought be
mad struck it rich at the mine', tut who Captain Nicols was,
or where his mine was located, reming a mz.l'steryﬁl
In 1806, William Hooton, Artiur Hain and L., lathrop

423.111501&

discoversd a ledge of quartz pear the Pinnacles
cther Bear Valley residents, Elmer and Oscar Batterfield,
Jemes Manroe and Ranscm Rose, bheld stock in the Alliance
Mining Company. Since they attended st;::cl:tnlders' meetings
in Gilroy, this mine my not have been located in the
immediate vieinity.*?

A1l this increase in mining activity in the Pinnacles
aTeaz only proved to the pen %ho wanted to preserve the place
for its scenic beauty that e was right in hig convictions,
and made him more determined than ever in that cause.

¥hen Schuyler C. Hain came to Celifornia in 1891, and
on previcus wisits, he had been very impressed by the
Pinoacles, but he found there wereé many scenic wonders in
California for one who had pot traveled in mountain

regions. Being from & part of the country that had very

different terrain, he supposed those sorts of rock

4C Thig., June 10, 1898.
4l mig., May 11, 1894,
42 1hi4., April 3, 1896.

43 1pid., June 12, 1886.



formations as found at the Pinnacles were common in all
mountain areas.
- Scyler Hain's coasin, A.W. White, was a student at
Stanford University. At the suggestion of Mr. White, one of
his professars, Dr. Gllbert, accampanied Mr. White to Bear
Velley in 1893 to spend Easter vacation at John Hain's.
After a visit to the Pinnacles, Dr. Gilbert stated, "I have
traveled in Scouth ApeTic and Alasha, visited Yosemite and
climbed the Matterborn, but for variety of scenery and
beauty of colaring, I have never seen the equal of this on
the same area." 3%
It was tlat statement by Dr. Gilbert that started
Schuyler Bain to thinking. After pondering upon the matter
for some time, he then resolved to use all his energles
toward the preservation of the Pinnacles for posterity. He'
began by trying to et organizations in the area interested
in the same cause. it started azs a2 one-man publicity
campairm but after a few vears he had not made mich
progress. He had lantern slides taken of various scenes of
th: Pinnacles, and elso same large photogrephs that he would
ave on display when he attended meetings of corganizations,
giving lectures and showing the slides of the Pinnacles. He

attended meetings in Hollister, Gilroy, Sen Jose, San

44 Schuyler C. Hain (unpublished paper, "Plnnacles
Matianal donument," Pinnacles Mational Monurent files, file
T H—'14:| 5%2.



Francisco and meny other citles delivering his lecture and
showing his slides. |

It was after one of these lectures in Hollister at a
meeting of the Central Coast Counfies Association, composed
of Sants Clars, San Mateo, Santa Crum, San Inis Obispo and
San Bepito Counties, that Schuyler Hain was ;.pprtﬂ.ﬂmd By an
official of the Scuthern Pacific Railrcad, Mr. Paul 3houp.

Mr. Shoup told Scluyler Hain an intr:'%guing story. He
said that he had always been interested in history, and even
when be was still an office boy he would spend his free time
reading history bocks at the Mechanics Iibrary in San
Francisco. That is how ne became curicus as to the location
of the "extrzordinary mountain” Captain George Vancouver iad
referred to as being in the Monterey Bay regdon in his

records published in Voyage of Discovery in 1801. WKhenever

Mr. Shoup had the occasion to be in the Monterey area he
would mke imquiries of locel residents as to the possible
lacation of such a mountain, Then one day, Dear Paraisa
Springs, soutlwest of Soledad, the driver of the stage in
which Shoup was riding suggested tiat it might be that
mountain to the east, as be pointed across the walley to the
Pinnacles, scme twenty miles away. Paul Shoup was convinced
thmt he had rediscovered Captain George Vancouver's

mountain.
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Schuyler HBain was delighted with the story, and e at
once incorporated it into his lectures. Scon, the Pinnacles
became known as "Vancauver's Pinnacles." ¥

This same stary appeared in Sunset mBgazine in 1803
under the pare of Deonald MeDonzld, with photographs by S.C.
Hin.2% Since Paul Sheap was reportedly an executive of the
Soutbern Peeific Company, and sinee Sunset was a publication
of the Scuttern Pacific Company, it does not seem likely
that the article conld mve been written without Mr. Shoup's
knowledge. Mr. Shoup may also have used a pen pawe for the
article but we fird no other connection between the two
names. The writer, McDvnald, also mentions & glide but not
by name. Sclmyler Hain mentions the Sunset piotographer in
s history of the Pinnzcles; "Here the sumsets (sic)
piotographer made as if to tirew his expensive camera and
Uttered the wish that he were an artist."¥’ This leads us
to believe Schuyler C. Hzin was the guide for the writer of
the Sunset article. |

Uet historians accepted  the Pinnacles as  the
"extracrdinary mouwmtaiun” that Vancouver had referred to
until 196E6. In that year Hobart and Bernice Lovett,

telieving that Captain George Vancouver had not traveled as -

45 Hain, p.5.

46 fonald Melonsld, "Vancouver's Pinnacles,® Sunset
(San Prencisco: Scutbern Pacific Co., August 8, 1203;
pPp. 345-348.

47 Yain, p. 6.
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far as Daraiso Springs thet day, st ot to do sole
iovestisating. Besides a wverbal description, Vancouver's
accalnt carried a sketeh by Jom Sykes of the mountaln in
question that was almost as good s any photograph.

The Lovetts found such a singular mountain osar Fort
Ord, off (brral de Tierra Road, and tock 2 plcture from
approximtely the same position from which Jolm Sykes Imd
mds hiz sketch. There seems little doubt from the
similarity of the <sketch and smapshot that Paul Shoup hed
been mistaken in his a_lzlal_',f'-sis.'i"El S>3, in 1855, _a.ll menticn
of Captain George Vancouver was dropped in connection with
the Pinnacles.

Cne reason for supporting the lovett theory would be
the relative size of the two mountains in gquestion. In the
foregraund of Jobn Sykes' sketeh there is a man leading 2
horse beside a stream. The mountain in the background rises
solitary to a height mre like the 242 feet of the [ovett
mountain, than the near 3,000 feet of the Pinmacles, which
lies nestled in e range of nountains of similar height.

Cne last reason to believe the loveit mountain to be
Venccuver's mountain is Captain Vancouver's owm account of
that day from his diary:

. » - & zZentle gale from the sea, amd during
the night 2 calm, or geutle breeze, prevailed fram

the land, so thmt the precaution we had teken of
gtriking our yvards and topmstis, since the

48 yotart and Bernice Lovett, mp and suapsiot (found
in the Pinpacles Mational Momument files, file no. H-14).
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mrent of our having done so, ceased to be
necessary. This apreesble weather cansed the water
in the Wy to be so tranguil, that landing was
easily effected on any of its slores, and rendered
qir intercoarse  with  the cauntry extremely
plea=ant.

The same canse operated to iovite excursions
of several mrties into the country on foot and on
horse-tack. These were rendered further agreesble
and pleasant, by the friendly end attentive
hehavior of air Spanish friends, of which I wmas
s=ldom able to avail nmyself, not only froam the
various matters of hisiness in which I was deeply
enmged, ut from the very debiliteted state of my
health, under which I had severely labcured during
the eight preceding months; I was, mwewer, on
Wednesday the 12th able to join in a party to the
valley through which the Monterey HRiver flows, and
was there gratified with the sight of the most
extrmordinary mountain I had ever behteld. On one
side it presented the appearance of & sampiuous
edifice fallen into decay; the columns which looked
as if they had been raised with mich Jabcur and
industry, were of great magnituds, seemed to be of
elefant form, and to be conposed of the same cream-
coloured stane, of which I havwe before made
mention. Between these magnificent colums were
deep excavations, resembling different passages
ints tke ipterior parts of the supposed hbuilding,
whose Toof being the swmwit of the mountain
appearsed to be wholly supported by these colums
rising perpendicularly with the most minute
mthemptical ezactness. They bad a most beantiful -
appearance of huamn ingenuity and labour; but sinee
it is not possible, from the rude and very huble
race of beings that are found to be the native
inhabitants of this country, to suppose they could
bave Deen capable of raising such a structure, 1is
being the production of nature, canoot be
guestioned, and it may not be preposterous to
infer, tmt it has been fram sisiler phaenamsns
that mn has received that architectural kaowledge,
by which be has been ensbled to mise those mssy
fabricks, which hawe stood for ages in all
civilization.

In this excursion I had the opportunity of
seeing what before I od been frequently given o
understand: that the soil improwed in richmess and
fertility, as we advanced from the ocean into the
intericor of the cmntry.

gg



Captain Vancoaver then goes on to state:

The situation we now reached was an extensive
velley between two ranges of lofty mountains, whose
mre elevated parts wore 2 steril and dreary
aspect, whilst the sides and intervening bosom
seemed to be coamosed of Jumiriant soil. On the
formar some pint trees were hroduced of different
sorts, though of no great size and the latter
sonerally cpeeking was a natural pasture, but the
long contimmnce of dry weather had robbed it of
its verdure, and Hhad rendered it not  very
ipteresting on the eye; yet the bealthy growih of
the cak, both of the English and bolly-leaved kind,
the maple, poplar, willow, and sione pine, distri-
mited owver its surface as well in cilumps as in
single trees, with a mumber of different sbrubs,
plainly showed the superior escellence of the soil
and substratom in these situationzs, to that which
was found bordering on the sea slore.

The sare uninterrupted serenity of the weather

" contimied, amd on Friday evening the courier fram
San Diego returned, but be brought kind of intelli-
gence whatever; and the 2d4th being the day fixed
for the return of the express to Mexico, L ewbraced
the opportunity for transmitting to the admiraliy a
brief account of our tfransactions during the
preceding suemer, and a copy of our Surveys mede in
that and the fO“R@I' veayp, which had been prepared
for that purpose.

Captain Vancouver clearly described the Salinas Valley
which was reached after seeing the “extraordinary” mountain
ant the impression is given that the excursion was a very
short one, returning to the ship the very same day. A trip
to Paraiso Springs would mawe required much mre time,
possibly two or three days, than the quotation implies.

It does not Seem to be that mich a concern of ours
whether Ggorge Vancouver sighted the cliffs pear Corral de

Tierra or whether be sighted the Pinnacles on that voyaze iu

49 Marguerite Eyer Wiltur, editor, Vancauver in
California (Los Anreles: Glen [awson, 1954) pp. 208-271.
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17, The important item to us as historians is the fact
that the early promoters of the Pinnacles beliesved that
Captain Vanoccuver hed sighted their mountain. It does not
dotract from the scenery of the Monument to know what
Vancouver missed that day. 4s it is oow, to the best of cur
knowledege, the first credit of written reference of the
Pinnacles goes to the American pioneers rather than a
British explorer captain.

When Schuyler Hain found that his campaign to save the
Pinnacles for posterity hoad not made much progress, be was
at a 1oss as to how to pro-cged.

Io January 1902, Dr. David Starr Jordan, who was the
Precident of Stanford University, was one af the guest
speakers of the Hollister Popular lecture Course, & Series
of lectures that run tlrough six fall and winter months in
Hollister. . Jordan's lecture, "The Fassion Play,™ was

iliustrated with sterecpticon slides teken from photographs

of the 1900 Passion Play at Ubera.mergan.ED

[avid Starr Jordan was an influential person and be was
renosmed for his love of nature. Scimyler Haln approached
Dr. Jordan after thg lecture in Hollister and told him of
his project. He invited Dr. Jordan to visit tbe Pinnacles
as his puwest btut Dr. Jordan was a very bDusy man and was

unable to oblige ¥Mr. Hain at that time.

S0 Evening Free lance, Jamary 17, 1802, nocrafilm,
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In Jamary, 1803, Schuyler Hain wyote to Dr. Jordan,
again explaining his interest in Mmviag the Pinnacles mede a
public park, ami again imviting Jordan to visit the plece as
his guest. In the letter Hain mentions a Judege Quaning, who
would be pleased to meet Jordan at the train in Tres Pincs
and bring the Doctor the rest of the way "ui) the comtry.”
But Dr. Jordan was unable to camply 2t that time. In a
letter written in Decemer 1903, from Dr. Jordea to $.C.
Hain, Dr. Jordan stated tiat be could not possibly take the
time for a trip to the Pinnacles at that date. He further
stated thit be wes willing to subscribe to any recomrenda-—
tion about the Pinnacles that Professor Dudley was willing
to make, 5t

The Prafessor Dudley mentioned wes William Russell

Dudley, professor of Botany at Stanford, who mst have

visited the Pinnacles as Dr. Jordan's agent.

An investization of the mrerofilmed Correspondence and
Letter-bodks found in the archives of the Hoover I_ibra.r.?. at
Stanford University, Pulo Alto, Califormia unfolded the next
series of events leading to the preservation of Plnnacles.

After Professor Dudley's trip to the Pinnacles and his
subsequent interest in its preservation, Dr. Jordan advised
Dudley to contact Congressmmn J.C. Meedham of Fresno who

represented the Congressional district comtaining the arves

51 Pinnacles Mational Momurent file H-14, Plnnacles
Meticnal Moourent, Paicines, Califormia.
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in guestion. Jordan suggested that Dudley emld sign the
president’s name to the letter as well as Dudiey's. From
that time, Congressman Ngedham became interested in Hain's
project of getting the Pinnacles land withdrawn fr§m entry
or settlement.

Dr, Jordan and his wife, along with a Professor
Kellogg, finally visited the area and were guests of Hain's
May 7, 1904. After the trip, Jordan thanked Hein for lds
hospitality, and asked if Haipn might send the sample of
coral fossils that ke tmd ssen ip Hain's yard. He was sure
Professor J.P. Smith would be interested in the specimens.

Hain replied that the samples would be sent as Socm as
somecne of his family had a chance to make the trip to Tres
Pince after having season. He timnked Jomdan for the bocks
that the educator had sent. -

On ¥ay 23, 1904, Jordan sent a letter to Heip advising
him that the Pinnacles territory had been withdrawn f;-n::m
entry.

Gifford Pinchot was the very powertul Chief Forester of
the United States Forest Service in 1903, Conpressman
Meedham bad contacted Jordan to ask his cpinion of why the
place should be presarved.

Jordan replied to Pinchot's imquiry on February 22,
1805, stating tkat if it were for geclogical reasons alone,
he would not recamend the preservation of the area - bt

that there were rare botanical specimens that warranted



saving, as well as the recreational value of the place to
the people in the region.

Tt is believed that Gifford Pinchot, who had the ear of
President Theodore Roosevelt, was the cne who aided in the
setting aside of 16,000 acres and the establisiment of
Pinnacles Mational Forest  Heserve b:.lr Presidential
Proclamtion on July 8, 1906.

Although Dr. Jordan was a cloge friemd of the
President's, Dr. Jordan's correspondence with Roosevwelt
contained no mention of Pinnacles.

Cn July 7, 1905, the Hollister Evening Free lance bad

carried a notice credited to that day's edition of the Sen
Francisco Fxaminer ammouncing that the Pinnacles was to be
made a National Fark or a Forest Heserve. The local news-
paper stated that this would be good news to all the local
citizens and to the California landmirks League, who bad
teen working to that end for so lone.

The locel citizens referred to in the article were not
named, but aside from Schuyler C. Hain, we know that
Arthr-T, Hain and the Bacon brothers - Horace, Ben and
Oliver - were 211 active in the drive for the preseration
of the Pimnacles.’r We do not know the identity of any
other local residents who may have been responsible for the

effort.

51 statement by Mrs. Framk (Ethel Bain) Wilkinson,
rancher, in personal interview, Bear Valley, 4 May 1977.
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Tke reference in the article o the California Landmark
Leapue iz the only one ever fcund. Usually the landmark
League, (or Club), was more interested in preserving the
California Missions than it was in the preservation of
wilderness areas - but there is one connection thet
logically follows that the League may have hed en active
part in the cagpaign for the preservation of the Pinnacles.
The Califernia landmrk Ieague was the publisher of the
mgazine Cut West, and the president of that mEgazine's
staff was Dr. David Starr Jordan. It was also in Qut West
that Semyler C. Hin‘s article on the Pinnacles was
published .52

Just wees before the proclamiion establishing
Pinnacles National Forest Reserve, on B June 1808, Conpress
passed a law which enabled the President by proclamation to
establish paticnal momuments. It is a little ironic that
these men bad been locking so hard for a way to preserve the
Pinnacles, and now the perfect law for deoing just that had
been passsd, but too late, because the wheels were already
in motion that led to the creation of Pinnmacles National
Forest Reserve. The name of the law was the Antiquities
Act.

The Antiguities Act was aimed at preserving Indian

gites and giving legal protection against dammging or

52 Setuyler C. Hain, "The Pinnacles of San Benito
Coamnty,” Out West, August 1905, Vol. XXIII, No. 2, pp- 128-
133.



resoving any historical objects from public lands. The Act
alse empowered the President to proclzim as a national
momment 20y lands osned ar acquired by the federzl
government  that contained prehistoric or  historic
structures, landmrks or objects of historic or scenle
interest. |

There prevailed for some time the question of what was
meant by the term, "mooument.™ A monument in this country
had penersily been statuary, such as a soldiers’ or sailors'
mmrent. 1o Burcpe the term %as used to desigpnate any
natural object regarded as a momment to nabire’s andi-
work. A national mohument took on oore of the Burapean
usage of the wanrd. One mmrin way 1in which a national
munment differs from a national park is that a monument
ustually s cpne distinctive feature while a national DATH
shoald have two or more distinctive features.EB

The Pinnacles Mational Forest Reserve was a part of
what was at that time the Menterey Mational Forest, wﬁich
ineluded Dos Palos and the New Idria area. The agriculture
Department Tealized that the limited timber walue in the
Pinnacles area hardly warrauted the administration of toe
region as & Mational Farest, and set cut to find anotper wny

to preserve the rock formations.

53 william C. Everhart, The Mational Dark Service (New
York, Wastineton and London: Prasger Publishbers, 1972) p. 12.
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Pinchot soom saw the advantage of the place being a
mmurent over being & forest reserve and set about to
correct the error. Forest inspector Georpe W, DPeevy was
dispatched to Pinnacles for the purpose of malhng a report
on the establishment aof Pinnacles as a national momment.
Peavy’s ;a.vorable report was macde on 9 Allg';.lst 19-0?,54 and
the Proclamation establishing 2,080 acres as the Pinnacles
Maticnal Monnrent was made on 16 January 1208,

One drawback of the Netional Forest status was that it
did not protect tbe land from such commercial exploitation
as mining, and mopnument status would offer that protec—
tion. So there probably would never have been any
uneasiness on the part of the Pinnacles bocstere if
Pinnacles Mational Monument had not been such a reduced size
campared to Pinnacles Hational Forest Reserve. Then too,
the natiopnal forests were a well known commodity in our
pation, but no ome was quite suré just yet as to what a
paticnal moourent was. Besides, the Forest Service was a
well organized agency in the Agriculture Department, and the
parks were in a sorry state with practically no organizm—
tion, being handled fram a desk in the cormner of the General
Land Office of the Department of the Interior in Washington.

Fran the archives at Stanford University we find that

Scluyler Hain egaip wrote to David Starr Jorden expressing

54 Pinnacles Matiopal Momument file no. H-14, Pinnacles
Hotional Monument, Paicines, California.
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his very stromg concern over the Porest Service's inteation
of atandoning Pinnacles as a Porest Beserve. Jordan aegain
contacted Meedham seeking his help to save Pinnacles from
private explcitation which would be the case if the Forest
Service withdrew from the area tlrowing the lands
surrounding the momament copen to entry. Jord:a.n suggested
tiat the abandomment of the area wold be to the advantage
of cattle interests.

Congressman Needham replied to Jordan in May of 1808
seconding Jordan's concern, end stating that he had written
to DPinchot asking him to wait on the abandonment of
Pinnacles Mational Forest Reserve until bhe had consuited
tmse interested in the mitsr. Meedham suggested that
Jordan also write Pinchot woicing his sentiments.

Jardan did write Pinchot saying that he never wanted
the Pinnacles area to become a "peep show,” and to have the
local flora destroyved by grazing interests.

Appealing to Gifford Pinchot mad worked, and the Forest
Service did not abandon Pinpacles National Forest Reserve at
flet time.

A= lopg as Pinchot was the Chief Forester, the Forest
Service rTempined to administer the Pinnacles and did not
abandon the reserve. But Gifford Pinchot was io the
historic tattle for his political life with Raymond A.
Ballinger, the Secretary of the Cepartmeat of the
Interior. In the year 1210, the Chief Forester was relieved

of bis duties by President Taft. So the plan to abandon the
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Pinnacles MNatlonal Forest BReserve began anew under the
urging of local mpelrvisorﬁ cf the Forest Service.

On 13 July of 1910, F.E. Olmsted, Districet Forester in
the San Francisco office, wrote to Schuyler Hain and Dmvid -
Starr Jordan quoting s report by Forest Superviscr Trler,
wiho had mde an investigation of the Pinnacles the previcus
vear, in which Tyler urged the eliminetion of Pinnacles as a
forest reserve. Although he felt the area should be
preserved, and it was under protection as & uwational
monument, Tyler felt it was not fit to be a nmational forest.
Tyler had previocusly written in response to a letter from
Hain that be felt it was not a matier for the Forest Service
to handle, and suggested that it might heip if Hain could
get the area set aside as 4 state gamre refupge.

Jordan was aut of the country at the time Olmsted's
letter arrived and it was referraed to FProfessor Dudley.
Dudley sugmested that Olmsted contact locel pecple on the
mtter, that they would be more informed on the su.bjua-cf -
but Dudley did not believe that all the rock formtions were
covered by the mational momnent.

Phen Jordan did apswer Olmsted's imguiry, it was to
gtate tmt Dudley would be more informed on the mtter, and
he would stand by amy decision that Dudley might meke.
Jordan said that be realized that the Forest Service had to
carry out its general policy, and that he agreed entirely

with Olmsted's sitaterent of facts in the case.



The rest of this portion of the story comes from the
Pinnacles files at the Matiomal Avchives in Washington,
D.C. ©no 13 august 1910 Olmsted sent a letter to the Chief
Forester, renewing his recammndation for the elimination of
that secticn of Montersy Matiopal Forest Kncem as Pinnacles
Forest Reserve.

Associate Forester Fotter answered on 24 August 1910
that Olmsted's recowendation was approved and the ares
would remain under the jurisdiction of the Department of
Interior. On 16 Decemher 1910, the Secretary of Agriculture
wrote to Secretary of Interior Raymond Ballinger that the
Pipnacles wes now under Ballinger's Jjurisdiction by the
Presidential Proclamtion of 12 Decerper 1910 which mide
certain choneges in the boundaries of the Monterey Maticnal
Forest, Galiformia - the area formerly known as Pinracles
Division having been eliminated.

One cother interesting sidelight involving praminent
pames of that era occured in January of 1811 w.hen
Congressman  Needham wrote to  Secretary  Ballinger
recomending & S.E. Witcher of Soledad to the job of
aistodian of Pinnacles HNational Monument. Needham also
imuwired in the letter as to whether any money coald e
found for & road from Soledad to the momument.

Ballinger forwarded the letter to the Commissioner of
the Buresu of the General Land Office, Fred Dennett.
Ballinger relayed Dennett's message to Needham in which the

Commiseiconer stated that they ‘could not afford a ausiodian
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at Plnnacles, and that there was no money for the ilding
of a road to the romment.

Back in 1909, when it locked a3 1f the Pinnacles
Maticmal Farest BReserve might be abandoned, Schuyler Hain
started working on the suggestion that the lapd surrainding
the momument might te afforded some protection if 1t were
mde a game refuge. Be again contacted Dr. Jordan, who lent
his support to the matter, and Congressmn Needbam.

Congressmen Needham informed Mr. Hain that it was the
policy of the Farest Service to let the states contrul game
in reserves. At which time Schuyler Hain belped draft a
bill that was introduced by Asserblymen W.R. Flint, of San
Benito County which rassed the California lLegislature in
1209, sattlng agside the land surrounding the Pinnacles, that
was previously in the Forest Reserve, a3 a State Gare
Refuge. This bill mde it unlawful, under heavy penalty, to
kill any game within either the Forest Reserve or the
Natianal ¥Yomment. Schuyler Haln gives a description. af
these happenings in his history of the Pinpacles.

Both befare and after the establishment of the
Pinnacles Forest Reserve, the Pinpacles itself was actually
administered by the local residents. They continued not
only to use the place for recreation, but built picnic
tables and campgrounds. They acted as guides, bhosted
visitors at their homes and worked at pramting the park as

the mrin tourist attractian of San Benito County.
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Before leaving the pericd of the “pressrvaticnists,” we
wolld like to bid farewell to somecne whom We came to repard
as almost ap old friend. When the Bear Valley news in the

Follister Evening Free Leance, in 1882, begen 1o be the

correspondence of "Knot Init," we found ourselves eagerly
aweiting each weekly installment. In 1854, when Bear Valley
got its own post office, the column becams entitled, "Codt
Cullings." Under the penmanship of "Enot Init,” the columm
becars more than just an account of who had passed through
the commmity or wio had gone out of town that week. He
occasionally inserted a plece of orlginal poetry and
frequently inserted witty puns and anecdotes. “Knot Init,™
unlike some local correspondents, uever resorted to any
remrks mesot to amm or embarrass any member of his
comunity, He reported only items of interest about the
local citizené,

Wren the editor of the newspaper put cut a plea for the
columists to use their true rnames, he also laid down some
puidelines for a gead correspondent. The first rule was to
caution the correspondents to be careful as to what they
sald about other people in print. "Koot Init" was innocent
of this infraction of the rules. -

Apother Tule was that no editorializing should appear
in the correspondent's colurms. ‘Koot Init" was not so free
from blame iu this instance. Fran time to tine he could not
resist expressing his own political views, usually on local

issues. After the editors® reguest, "Koot Init" expressed
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the belief that the editor omild not possibly leve peant
him, as be was sure he #»as innccent of this, also.

The editor pleaded with the correspondents that they
take the criticism in the spirit in which it was offered -
to mke for more interesting columns and a better news-
paper. dost of &ll, be pleaded that they contimie to send
in the correspondence as that was an important part of the
DEWSDADET .

Somz of the correspondents were so pigqued by the
editor's criticism that they resigned their jownalistic
avocation and others, like "Knot Init," merely preoclaimed
their innocence in their colums. But the interesting
cutccme of this episode was that the ones who remained
continued to report just as they alweys ind and continued to
uge their pseudonyms, just as if the editor bad never made
the plea in the first place.

Trere is little c¢lue as the true identity of "Knot
Init" So any guess on owr part would be pure specula.tilon.
e do kpow that = was a poet, 2 wit, a person who was
interested in his neigtbors, political events and the
advancemant of the Planmacles. COnly on one occasion did the

editor of the Ewening Pree lance insert 4 comment that cansed

us to think perhaps the sriter was Schuyler C. Hain. After

the colusn renticonad, ". . . C. Haln was reelected to the
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school board," the insertion read, "(is the school mim
pretty’? Ed. Lance}.">>

The correspondents fram San Benito and Pine Rock on
accasians had hinted that they knew that “Enot Init" was
really Schuyler. Hain and would meke chiding remprks abaat
S8.C. Hain that went lgnored by "Enot Init"* in his columms.

In 1899, "fnot Init” suddenly stopped remittiing
carrespondence. For whatever reasaon be bed quit the columnm,
he was sorely missed by the historical researcher. It was
as if a well of informetion hed ceased producing. The
reader even wondered if his favorite correspondent could
mwe met with sore misfortune; be might mve taken ill1, or
calld even mave died. Very lofrequently some other indivi-
dual would contribute some news from “Cock," but the oolumns
lacked the ipteresting format of those offered by their
predecessor.

Then in 1908, almost ten years after his last
contribution, "Knot Init" reappeared upon the scene and .his

offering began as follows:

Cock (Qullings - Years ago 1 used to #rite &
few items far your paper, but like ‘Rip,' I hawve
een slumbering. Mow sgince Reuf bas  been
convicted, I hawe awakened and will try to take a2
ne¥ lease é:él " life and send a few items
occasionally. '

55 Bvening Free lance, Jupe 11, 1897, micrafilm.

56 Evening Free lance, December 18, 1908, microfilm.
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The reader was not the only cne to have missed our
reporter. The editor was so delighted to see the return of
the -amusing correspondent that he inserted the following
poem at the end of the "Cook" colum cne day:

A Pastoral: The sun was rising in the west,
and shed 1ts beams on Cedar crest, where pensive
goat and sportive cow were perched upan the cedar
bough. There Elmer Butterfield watched his flocks
and slugped the gentle sheep with rocks, and drove
his hens to lakelets brim, so they might dive, and
bathe and swim. The pigs c¢climbing elms and firs;
his hired men gathered cockleburs; & dootor passed
on horses ek, and all the ducks called 1oudly,
"Quack"! The fruit tree agent asked to stay the
night: the horses whinnied, "Neigh"! Peace
hovered o'er the prarle wide; the cattle lowed,
horses shied; and sounded thraugh the village smoke
the lark of the wateh dog, elm sod cak — and he who
owned these rustic scenes mnd sesded down his famm
to beans, Yoo all should know hig‘?like a ok,
recideth be not far from Cock. - Ed.

Bat our pleasurs zt the retuwrn of our favorite corres-
pondent was short lived; for after only a few entries, "kKnof
Init" was gone agzin, leaving just as quickly and abruptly
25 he had reappeared.

“Brevities from Bear Valley" became the title of the
colum after 1912 and was submitted by Ethel Hain, S.C.
Hain's daughter."d

The present "Pinnacles aod Ssn Benito Notes," 1is
written by Mrs. Lou (Bessie Hain Olsen) Webb, Arthur Hain's

danghter, and 3.C. Hain's niece.

57 Bvening Free lance, Jamary 20, 1508, micrafilm.

o8 Willkinson, May 4, 1977.
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Chapter &

THE PROMDTIONAL, INFLUENCE (1905-1916)

The tirn of the century ushersd in meny progressive
changes around the FPinnacles area. It was a time also when
residents in that vicinity endeavored to bring the Pinnacles
to the attention of the Test of the country with seweral
promoticnal plans.

One big progress was the telephone! The William Butts
Telephone Comany had been built in 1896, The teleplone
line had come down the 3an Benlio River as far as San
Benito. The people of Bear Valley still bad o po to San
Benito if they wanted to use & teleplone. In 1905, the Bear
Yalley Telsphone Company wes formed and there were thirteen
subsceribers an the Bear Valley line. The new telepione
service sure made 1t much easier to keep up on the news, as
uzually every call had thirteen listeners. The "switch™ was
in Debhie Melendy's care at her bome. "Ollie" Bacon lad a
"talking mchine” and every evening bhe would entertain his
neigtbors Ty playing the mchine over the teleplrnne.l

eolggists hal begun to take an interest in the
Binnacles and were saying that the umisual formations had
been cansed by ancient volcanic action that ran from Chilone

Peak to Willow Creelk Peak.z

1 Evening Free lance, (Hollister) Aupust 31, 1205,
micrafilm.

2

Ibid.
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The U.5. Forest Service was annowncing the dates far
¢ivil service emaminations for the purpose of hiring raongers
from that area. The Forest Service was also taking applica-
tions fron renchers who Were wsanting to graze caftle in
eitler the Monterey or San Benitec Meaticnal Forest. These
arnouncements were made from the district sﬁpervisor, H.C.
Torstenson's, office in Sa.lina.s.a

The U.3. Forest Service was also cutting wood in the
San Benito Mational Forest, in the area of Hernander Valley,
for the purpose of selling the wood to the New ILdria Mines,
at four ar five dollars a cord. It was reported that the
relations between the area residents and the ranpers were
vEery a.greea.ble.4

Henry Melville, who bad owned mining claims in the
region of the "Palisades," or Uld PFinoacles, since around
188D, ook in some partners in 1908 and incorporated his
mining pursuits into the Copper Mountain Mining Company. It
was reported that the president of the new campany, H.J.
Lind, was from Salipnas. Mr. Lind stated that he planned to
taks an active part in the extraction of the carbopate
copper, by the leaching process, from what looked like &

tich vein. The company was suid to have treoty—four claims,

3 Evening Free Iance, February 7, 1805, microfilm.

4 Ipid., June 26, 1908.
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enbracing araund four hindred acres inside the Pinnacles
National Momument.?

In the years that followed, the Copper Mountain Mindng
Company played both a positive and negative mole in the
future develaoment of the Pimnecles, ending in oot
proceedings brought by the federal government against the
COTpany .

As the antambile began to emerge upon the Ioczl scene
it hbreught with it a compefitiveness between the two
camnties of Montersy and Sap Benitos that has newer quite
disappeared. In 1208, it was reported in the Hollister
Evening Free lance tmi the survevor of dMonterey County mmd
Jjust completed surveying for =& roed from Soledsd to the
Pinnacles, &ince 1t was felt that the Pionacles wounld soon
ecome a famous resort and since the FPinnacles were in San
Benito County, the reporter felt tmt it belpoved the pecple
of Hn Benito County to look into the matter. The reporter
felt that the people of San Benito County should be the
first anes to uild 2 good road to the Pinnacles from the
existing county road in Bear “.?a.lle:f.ﬁ

Apmin in 1902, through the correspondence from Bear
Yailey, tbe readers of the Hollister newspeper were alerted

to the sitmation in Monterey County with:

5 Ivid., Mey 22, 1908.

6 Evening Free lance), June 25, 1908, micrafilm.
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We bave 1t on good autheority that 32,500 is
raized to build a road from Soledad to the
Finnacles — the people in this county must be
asleep. Tt would cocst us only about 31,000 and
hapdly aoy ?grade for a road to a4 fine tourist
attraction.

0 the race was on between the two counties o see
which would be the first to build a FPipnacles road and reap
the benefits from added tourist trade that such a2 road would
Snsure.

There was also talk of en electric railway that was
supposed to be built south from Tres Pinos, It was felt
that such a reilway would be sure to prosper with smich
lodestones as south county produce and the Pinnacles.s

¥hether or oot the electric railway becaure a reality,
the need for a good road to the Pinnacles still repmined.

The aditor of the Evening Free lance pramoted the Finnacles

road ides in an editorial one dey in his newspaper:

Openn Up the Pinmacles -- A proposition is
afoot to have (ohgress make an erpenditure of
$1,000,000 for milding roads, trails ard accommo-—
dations in Yosemite Maticnal Fark, giving it the
same advantapes enjoyed by Yellow Stone Mational
Bark, It iz reported fram Washington that
Secretaty Ballipger and Congresasmn Meedham have
agreed upen 2 plan to make the ipprovements.

Here in 3an Benito we khve a Hational Forest
Preserve containing =ome of the greatest natural
vonders and beauties in the world. Heference is
mude to the Pinnacles situated in the lower end of
the comty some forty miles from Hollister.

7 Ihid.

8 Evening Pree lance, February 10, 1910, microfilm.
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It is hami to explain to a visitor abaut this
wonderful Preserve aod #hy it has not been advwer-
fised to the warld.

The primary reuson lies possibly in the fact
that the government has never taken the necessary
stops to improve its property 2nd buiild highways
that would make the Pinnagles easy of access.

Why not induce Congressmn Needbam to take
this matter up and secure an apporticnment of
$500,000 for muilding a fine roadway fram the
cminty rad to this fine natural wonder? The
comty wauld doubtless be willing to spend an equal
cum in putting its roads in good condition leading
to the Preserve fram 21l directions.

Cnce the worldd learns of the beanty and
grandeur of the Pionacles and the thousawis of
acres of forest comrising the Preserve, tourists
will flock there every year.

The Pinnacles surpass Yocemite Valley or tha
Grand Canyon of OColorado. It is time the world
knew of this. L[et ths Merchants dssociation take
up the mtter with Conpressian WNeedbam without
delay. Congress stands ready to make such
apportionments to wprove the National Preserve and

it coly requires a little eff{:-l.‘*n'..9

4t just abcut the sanme time the Soledad Bee was statiog
thait there had been encuch falk ebout a rosd fo the
Finnacles - that it was now time for action. The Monterey
County =upervisor from the Soledad distriet, Telbot, was in
the very near future himself going to inspect ap altemrnative
raute for the Soledad/Pinnacles rozd from the previcasly
plamned one throagh the Bailey Ranch, that required a cash
ouatlay of 3,000, Work shrould bein wervy soon, as Bay
Wescott, The building contractor, did not want fo e

hilding the road in the summer m:ntha.m

9 1pig., February 11, 1910.

il Evening Free Lance., February 20, 1910, microfilm.
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Cespite the urgings to the contrary, the pecple of San
Beni o County hesitated for a few mre years an the road to
tte Pinnacles issue. In fact, all of the remote roads in
the county »=re sorely in need of attention.

The U.S. Fnrestq Service under the Departmeat of
Agricniture relimquished its care of the Pim-la.cles Maticnal
Momiment arcund 1911, The Notional Park Service, part of
the U.S8. Derartment of the Interior, was not formed until
1216. That time span was like a pericd of lipho as far as
the admnistration of the Monument was coocermned.  That
period of time was one of utter eonfusion in several areas
to the pecple in the county as to just what was the status
of a MNational Momment.

One area of confusion concerned the title of the place
as can easily hee seen in a citation that will follew.

There were many besides the editor of the Evening Free lance

5ti1l referring to the Mational Monument as a Mational
Forest Beserve.

Ancther example of confusion dealt with the hnting of
garre wWithin and arcund the Momument. There was an article
in tle BEvening Free lance aimed at clearing up some of that
confusion:

Hinting at tle Pinnacles National Porest is
againgt the law apd it is the prupose of the state
fish apd game commssion to prosecute all of fenders
found slooting on the pressrve.

Jince the Pinnacles was throwm oot of the
Mational Forest Beserve by an order firam Washington
it has been the general impression thet unting
could be indulged in there, but the following from
the state fish and geme commission disposes of that
ideq. .
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July 28, 1811

"Sun Francisco Board of Fish and Guane Canmissicners,
Balbca Building, Sen Francd sco, Crlif.

Gentlemen:

Beplying 1o yours of recent date imguiring as to
the prosecutions for mnting withing the boundaries
of the 01d Pinnecles Haticnal Forest, I beg to say
that altloogh the Pinnacles Maticonal -Forest lhes
ewen eliminated as a Torest Reservation, T az2m of
the opinion that this #itkkdrawal will ip no wise
affect the law as it no¥ stapds in the state as (o
tunting on the property known as the Pinnacles
Mational Forest. 1 Delieve that the words used in
oir code are mere fecgraphical descriptions of a
tract of land which the state desires to withdraw
from the minter and for thot reason a person found
mintimg upon this lend should be prosecnted as
teretofors.

Vary truly yours,

State Board of Fish and Game

Camri ssioners

{signed) H.F. Deart, Deput?'ll
To further illustrate soother area of confusion, this

time about some of the restrictions on property contained
within a National Momiment, we cite the incident of the
Fresno, Coaling: and Monterey rmilrcad. The pramoters of
thizs wenturs ran several full pegs advertisements in local
newspapers amncincing mss public meetings at which there
would be stock s0ld in their railroad at 550 per share to
interested parties, They claimed the bids for uildiag the
railrmd were soon to be let. The planned railroad wes to

nn directly through "Vencouver's Fionacles" and contimne to

11 Eireni.ng Free lance, August 31, 1211, micraofilm.
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the . . . beantiful Del Monte Hotel, laid ocut on ten acres
of drives and gardens."l?

Talk of the railrcad went an for quite some time. The
runcrs would die down for 2 while and then reappear. Once,
it was said that some American and English capital had been
found to back the project.ls |

Then cnce, Modesto way wanting to be the eity included on
the raite imstead of Fresmo - that routing would possibly
run thraigh Packeco Pass.!? At one time it was reported
that the railread wes conpletely fimanced and work on it
would begin soon. o

Monterey County at 2 Chamber of Comrerce meeting sel in
motion a plan to get land osners to agree to an assessment
of two percent of the valuation of their property in order
to raise $500,000. The money would be aoffered as 2 bonus to
the railrosd that was the first o enter Monterey fram the
San Joaquin wvalley, providing the railrond was completed by
five years fram the date of January 1, 1915. Harry A.

Green, who hagd introduced the proposal, said be tnd it on

12 pvening Free lance, August 8, 1911, microfilm.

13 bid., Japuary 17, 1912,
14 mig,

13 thid., July 14, 1913.

113



good euthority that & rmilroed would be built if 2 bomus
were of fered.®

In 1912 it was told that the mckers of the Fresno,
Cmlings and Mantersy railroad, A. Albrecht and E.H. Shaw,
were pramcting a new mllrcad fram Sen Jose to Bakersileld
and that this one would include Hollister and Monterey.l?

Talk of & mailroad throogh the Pinnacles National
Momirent, or even in the immediate eastern vicinity of the
domiment, died bard, tut die 1t did, after a prolooged
struggle. The people in the southernm part of San Bemito
Comnty Dmd finally to accept the realization that there
wHild never be a railrosd in their end of the county.

Railroad or no reilread, lifa went an in Bear Vellev.
The automobile was mrking its bow on tie local scene. Heary
Molendy and luther Gaw had about the first "ought-to"
around. Cmarles Meleod was their chief mechanic. It was
mentionaed that "Uncle Hobert" (Burms?) thought it was a fine
mechine.® Soon there were several cars in the neighbortpod
mut it was felt that gquite a bt of road work would have to
e dome before the rotds would be safe to driw the
Butomoimlies on.

In the days of before the automohtile 1t was 2 long trip

to bl ster. BEwen after the sdvent of the auto the trip

18 hid., September 24, 1913.

17 Evenine Free lance, January 24, micrafilm.

18 fhid., April 22, 1909.
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was still a long one, espacially in cold wsather, and the
first cars were not noted for their pood heaters. Two
sigters, Mrs. Roy Robinscn and Mrs. FEdw. Marentis, recall
how they would be bundled up by their mother for the long
trip to town. She would a2lways wrap them in blavketz and
put hot bricks (that had been heated on the stowe), at their
feat. By the time the family would get as far as Malberry
the bricks would be cold. Mulberry, midway between Bear
Yalley amd Taicines, was a4 town of fair zize in fhose days
thit even ad a bxfel and general stors. 5o they would stop
in Mulberry to po inside somewhere to get warm amd to
exchange tHe cold bricks for som more hot cones before
contimuimg their trip to Hollister.

Prom these two sisters eomes ancther chaming story of
their mtemal prandparents, dr. and Mrs. ¥.0. Page. Nelson
D. Page was very prouzd of the first automobile that he had
purcha==d, but it seems his wife had a stubborn stresk - she
refused to ride anywhere in thet danperous conitraption.
Today the couple's grandchiidren cherish the photograph
their grandpere=nts had taken of N.D. standing proudly beside
nis touring car and Mre. Pape =itting sidesaddls atop her
orse which she continued to ride wherever they went. It
was a conmn sight to see N.D. Page cruiging down the rond
in s sutombile apd Mys. Page following along behind on

ner faithful horse.:?

1
Statements by Mrs. RBoy {(Grace Butterficld Bacon}
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Of caurse there were accidents with Inrses, too. Henry
Melendy, Jr., received a serious injury with a btorse sod vas
iaid up for several months. The horse which he #was riding
fell while crassing the creek. emry hed mnaged to junp
clear in the f2l11, ut as e was trying to free the forse,
who was stuck in the mud, Menry was kicked -in the lmee as
the borse thrasbed about irying to climb cut of the mud.
The roe was fipally freed from the mire, but the story did
not ave as kappy an ending as far as Henry, Jr. was
concerned, 20

There wore seweral other events in Bear Valley worth
recording during thet period. Artlur Hiip bad bwilt a large
cement reservoir on his property Io supply water for the
valley's needs.gl The place must also have beenla public
swimming pool for at a later date it was noted that Arthur
Hain's swimning pool was arain open to the 1::111::«1]'.c..22

n 1912 "0llie" Bacon ryeported killing his fourth
mountein lion that year. The last one had been shot on the
Chalone Cresk near the Pimnacles.?3

On Faster Sunday, in the year 1912, the pecple of

Willew Creek and Bear Valley met in Bear Valley school for a

20 Eyeniog Free lance, August 11, 1911, mierefilm.

21 ibid., December 18, 1908,

22 Thid., June 6, 1914,

23 1pig, September 10, 1912,
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On Easter Sunday, in the year 1912, the pecple of
¥illow Creek and Bear Valley met in Bear Velley school for a
joint clurch service. There %8s a2 program put on by all
the children of the two achool districts. The purpose of
the program was to lonar Mr. and Mrs. Melendy, Sr., Henry
and Debbie, on their forty-fourth weddiné anniversary.
After tle program, John Hain, acting as the spokesmmn for
the joint commnity, presented the couple with two chairs,
ad anniversary gift from all those mmesent, The day hecame
& fond memmry for all those who a-ttended.24

Shortly after this, the walley was saddened by the
death of Henrvy Melendy, Sr., #ho along with his uncle, Dr,
Powers, had been the first settlers of Bear Valley. Henry,
wh hed been the victim of a stroke sevweral years before,
died in his 51.993;.25

Aot two years later Bear Velley residents were
ghocked by another death when the body of Mrs. langs, an
apmrent suicide victim, was discoversd by Fred Maler, the
driver for the Tréa Pinma and San Benito stage. Sheriff
Craxcn had suspicions as to whether it was a2ctually a
suicide or not. The suspicions concerned some of the
circaimstances surrolnding the death - but be tock only one

percon into his confidence, A.A. Baker. Baker was to notify

24 4., April 9, 1912.

25 Fvening Free Iance, July 24, 1912, microfilm.
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the sheriff if e =w any strangers in the vicinity o if
anyane left toan suddenly.

Baker notified the sheriff when he heard that Edward
Welker had mun away. Edward was a young orphen boy of 16,
who looked only 12, fran the "Jackie" orpanization in San
Franciseo who hed been staying with Mrs. Eutl.terfield. The
bay headed for King City intemding to catch & train. While
passing through Eitterwater he met Mrs. C.F. Zolin at the
store. OShe reccgnized the oy from the times she fos seen
him with ¥rs., Butterfield and invited bhim to their home to
gpend the night. When the sheriff found the boy atl the
Zolin home, he confessed to the crime.2®

Mrs. lange, who had been 2 widow for several years, was
a nativw of Germany, amd she bad newer leamed to read or
write English. Her four children were grown aml they lived
in the city, where thay ecither worked or attended schol.

Whenever Mrs. Lanpe received a letter fran one of her
children, she would hawve eitber the stape driver or Walker

read the letter to ber. nite often the children would have
a few dollers ticked inside the envelopes of the letters,
causing Walker to bellieve Mrs. Iange must have s lot of
roney stashed awey. It was known that she carried with ber
at 2ll times, a purse which contained her valuable papers.
The purse was missing when the body was found. The purse

wig found ino the possesslon of Walker at the time of his

X Ibid., June 14, 1514,
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capture. The purse econtained 3$16.20, all the money that
Mrs. Lange had owned.Z!

After the death of Wrs. Lange, the property on which
she bad lived was farmed by C.C. K:r"uga.-a-]:'.m The oroperty is
located to the right just past the ctile puard after
turning onto Rorte 146 fram Houte 25. Mear én old oak tree
are some cement steps where the [ange house onee stood.

The Kindness of the stage driver in taking time to read
letters for Mrs. Laoge was not uncanmen in those days. The
milmen was ancther esxample of such tboughtfulness. If a
lady needed an erticle from the store in Szn Benito, ske
would put a pote in the milmn's saddle bag and be would
bring the purchase on his return trip throagh the valley,

In 1813, a btotel men from Santa Bartara, J.E. Brown,
came driving his touring car into Hollister one day secking
the sarvices of Sch.wlér Hain as a2 ouide for a weekend at
the Pinnaclezs. DBefore he Ieft town at the end of his stay,
ke informed evervone that ke planpned to tuild a resort hotel
at the Pinpacles and it should be finished and ready to open
the following season. >’ Nothing more was ewver prioted of
ir. Browm or his proposed hotel.

With the failure of the railrcad to buld a route

thrcugh £he San Bapitoc walley, and the subsequent popularity

27 Webb, March 30, 1977.

2 Evening Free lance, February 1, 1915, micrcfilm.

29 Evening Free lance, November 6, 1913, microfilm.
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of ile sutorobile, the cancern of the peaple in the aren
3000 became the improvement of roeds. In 1812 a pew road
was put in fron Fresno and Coalinga in the San Joaguin
valley that lad thr@igh Bitterwater and also cansed quite an
increase in traffic throagh SE-].iI'lE-E-SD

In 1912 algso, Aribmo T. Hein was elec:te-d to the Board
of Supervisors of San Benito comty. Fram this position te
was able in some way to essist thoze who had been tryving to
praote the Plonacles. The Boarmd of Supervisors was at last
ready to put in 2 road to the Finnacles after the Chamber of
Comerees in Hollister had brought pressare to bear on
them. A committee congisting of the full board, County
Jurvaeyor McCray a.nr:i R.P. [atlrop, was to investigate the two
pesibla routes; one from N.D. Page's plece, past the Gearge
Butterfield’s and the Bacon's; the other was fram the county
road at J.T. Prewett’s place (the old Spanish trail). The
eoermlittes was then to report back cn the estimeted cost and
which in their oplnion waz the better routs. C(onprescmEn
E.A, Hayes promised to u=e His influsnce to secure federal
funds to bwild a road throegh the park, providing the County
would build a read to the edge of the park.Sl

50, "Boad to the Fionacles" htecame the theme of the
Chanber of Commerce in Hollister amd 2 trip with eight ar

ten interested parties was planned to the Flonacles.

30 Thid., December 12, 1912,

3l Ewning Free lance, October 18, 1913, microfilm.
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A.M. M:Cray volunteered the use of his car for the outing,
gnd a ¢211 was put cut for at least one mare car that the
men could rent for the day. The party would leave Hollister
gt Six in the morning of the day in question and be the
guests for lunch of Arthur Hain, who would also prowide
wagons for the rest of the trip to the Pinnacles proper.S2

They were acompanied the rest of the way by Arthor
Bain, his son, B.F., and "Ollie" Bacon. The most feasible
location for the road seemsd to be, in the opinion of the
cammittes, thke one that led in fran the MLD. Page Ranch.
Mellray bad made the trip from the Prewett place that day and
was to report on his findings at a later time. ‘When he did
report, his findings concurved with those of the rest of the
commitiee, that the former rouets was the betier site for a
road to be milt.SS

Congressman Hayes was unable to make that trip with the
rest of the comittee, but he arrived about a weck later and
Secretary Agnew and Schuyler Hain repeated the journey of

the past week with the Congressman. This group was also

92 Ibid., October 21, 1913,

33

tree anranb TN P e trip from Hollister thot ¥ 19
Comerce, Agnew, wio it was said de-served mich af the credit
for the then present interest in & roed to the Pinnacles;
Elrer Dowdy, County Clerk,; A.M. EeCray, County Surveyor,
Adam Renz, Supervisor; R.P. latlrop; Schuyler Hain; Henry
Prescott; Harry Ley: F.P, Rovle; Eugens Jobnson; lester
Knapp and . J, Lawn. BEvening Free lance, October 24, 1313,
microfilm. ,
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hosted by Arthur Hain., Cthers meking the f{rek were Mrs.
Haves, W.A. ¥Winn, M.F. Hovle and Lester Knapp. They were
met in a glade three miles from the park eotrance by the
Arthur Hain family, the Bacon family and the Beker family.

Congressman Hayes stated after the trip that he:

« + » came hgpe filled with somsthing of the same

spirit or eurprised wonder and admiration that has

made the congenial guide of this part, Schoyler

Hain, a life-lang e.nthusias% 4c£f this, cme of the

world's greatest wonderlands.

The Congressman pledged his support of the project and
susgested that they should try to interest the District
Forester and other fedeml officials in the idea of
enlarging the park. G.W. Lawton, an attorney from Maiberry
wno was himself an owner of some property adjoining the
park, Was alsg at that gathering. On behalf of himself and
other property owners in the area, he pledpged & year's
option at $6,000 for his property, and said he was sare the
others holding property adjoining the partk would agree to do
the same.

An interesting ending to the excursion to the Finnacles
with Congressman Hayes ococurred that night when the car with
Schuyler Hain, AW, %Winn, M.F. Hovle and lester Knapp,
driving, got stuck in the md ootside of Tres Pinos. The
other men waited in the car for three and one-half hours

while Knapp walked into town for help.35

34 Eveninzg Free Lance, November 3, 1913, microfilm.

32 1pia.



To further pramte the movement of putting in a road to
the Pinnacles from the county road, Schuyler Hain presented
the lecture, eccopanied by sboaut 50 hand-colored elides,
"Lomt Garden of the Gods,” at a Chember of Commerce banguet
in Hollister. He explained the program under way for a road
to apd through the Finnacles. The pecople involwed folt that
the county's part of the road could be completed at a cost
of abent $1,000. Supervisor Arthur Hain added higs approval
to the project, as did Secretary of the Chamber of Cumerce,
Gllnore Agmew .36

Then the Chamber of Commerce made 4 few decisive steps
to bring nore attention to San Benito County. They backed a
project to erect signe on Pacheco Pass road which rezd,
"Yocemite to the Sea,™ that made Hollister a repular part of
that famous teurist raite. Then they decided to issue some
desceriptive folders advertising the Pimnacles area. The
final decision was to Jjoin the "San Francliesco Bay and Rivers
Counties Tourist Association.” Membership in that orpganiza-
tion entitled San DBenito to share in the work and share the
results of that organimtion's 1914 publicity campaign. The
organization would also be starting to prepare publicity for

the 1215 Sap Francisco World Expcsition.a?

%6 Ivening Free lance, Movember 26, 1913, micrafilm.

37 Ibid, December 12, 19153.
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The road o the Pionacles wes not the uly road
receiving attention in these days. Hopes were still high
that sore sort of transportation artery swoceld be put through
San Benito County. When the state began to lock at possible
raites for a state highway, the San Benito B_oard of Super-
visors appointed a committes: [Dr. H.J. Maccaber, Thoms
Flint, Judge M.T. Dooling, A.M. McCray and William Balmtag;
to go to Sacramento and present the county's claims in the
matter of roiting the state hipghway throogh Jan Benito
County.3®  After several months of delay, the state turned
dewn San Benite's request when it selected a different route
for its highway from San Francisco to Los Angeles.

The coanty wos working on road improwvement, however,
the work did not =szem to progress at a wery rapid pace.
There wers surveying crews busy in the ares of NHew Idria and
Panoche, and by March of 1812, the cress were within two
miles narth of San Bemito.® March of 1914 saw Supervisor
Arthur Hain, F.H. Prewett, 4.A. Deker and Halph Hain working
¢n the road in the upper end of Bear Valley and A.D. Page,
Bert Smith and Gus Shields deoing the same in the lower end
af the vallesr.4'3

Bit it seamed that no mtter how much work on the roads

was done there was alwnys so mich more to do. People sere

38 Evening Frees lance, December 12, 1913, microfilm.

39 Inid., March 8, 1912.

40 Ipid., March 15, 1914.
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asking, "When is the hoard of superviscors going to do
something abart the Gollins hridge? Wait until the county
hes 2 big damage suit cm its hands? Men who cught to know
say that this bridege is absolutely mnsafe . . &

Even if the road conditions were not the best it did
not keep poople fram coming to the Plonacles. One month
alone saw a camping party from San Felipe make the trip; the
Hobinson party from (Alroy who were hosted hy Arthuyr Haing a
party from dan Frencisco who wers hosted by Schuyler Hain;
17y Smith drove his Ford machine up thers and even drove

acroes to the mouth o the cﬂmron:42

nine carloads of pecple
from Gilroy camped at Bear Gualch and visited the Flonacles;
four men on mtoreycles vipited the ploce; Mr., Beker from

San Jose vecationed there;dd

B U.3. pgeclogical surveyor,
Mr. Martin visited;** and no daubt there were mny more who
vizited the HWaopacles during that mooth who were never
mentioned in pmint in the Hollister newspaper.

Many groups that were heading for the Finnacles left
their cars at Ben Bacon's residence and hiked the rest of
the way. Meny wolld drive az far as the Arthur Hein
residence. Mrs. Lou (Bessie Hain Olsen) Webb recaells that

those vears woere a tusgy time for har as s yoing girl. She

41 1bid.
42 fvening Free Lange, May 28, 1914, microfilm.
43 Inid., June 5, 1914.

44 1hid., June §, 1914.
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would o by horseback to guide people the rest of the way
ts the park after they had stepped at the howe of her
father, Arthur Hzin. Bessie would make five dollars a trip
for the guiding service. Sinca the road fram the ccunty
road was still not a poblic one, there were mny gates to
open and close on that part of the trip. One time, when she
was just beginning her journey home after escorting a party
to the Pinnacles, her horse took off without her as she waz
closing & gate behind ner. She worried, wondering what she
would do if she could not find the horse and if she woald
hawe to welk 511 the way home. But when she reached the
next gate, there stood her horse waiting for her. Bessie
says that she was certainly relieved to =ee that horse
gtanding there that day.

It zeems that all the visitors to the ares were an
indication that the adwertising that had been deone was
beginning to pay off. Fven the roads were improviog bot
with all the atftenticn to the roads the promoters had
fomotien coe little item:

A state mlietin on road conditions throophout
the state cites the roads to the Pinnacles as being

in pood condition but have no sions.  Kow that the

advertising campaign by the Chamber of Commerce and

the San Francisco Bay amd Rivers counties Tourist

Asgociation has brought the Pinnacles to the atten—

tion of the public, it would be nmice if someone put

up SEe signs - one is needed at Willow Creek - the

fork in the road is confusing — one at Melemdy's at

La Gloria, apd then on down by the turn, with

rmileazes stated. Who do you suppase will do this?

‘The Fimnacles - San Benito County, good, via
Bolsa Road to Hollister, Tres Pincs, Faicipes to
Willow Creek, turn right at church to Bear creek

valley roed. Inguire at rench hause for rocad to
summit. (Mo sipns on this road.) Report ob roads
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in Central California, a wedkly 'D.llletlg Efrm the
(alifornia State Antomobile Association.'

To further emphasize that the rcoads to the Plmnacles
were in good encugh condition to be navigable by automohbile,
Sehuyler Hain acoompanied driver J.V, Graves of the Mazwell
Motor and Sales Company, Burliegh Devidson, and photographer
Arthur Spaulding on A trip to the Binnacles in & 19150 model
Maxwell in MNovember of 1914.%7 A feature story then
appear=i in the Sunday December 27, 1914, edition of the San
Francisco Examiger about the Plnpacles and theose hard
workers who were endesvoring to bring them from obscurity,
Jemiyler C, Hain, Supervisor Arthur T. Hain and Sec. Gilmore
Agnew; and of course, about the Maxwell. It was quite an
advertisement, not only for the autcmobile but for the
Pinnacles, too.

The Schuyler Hain family moved to Tres Pincs in 1814.
Seouyler had become interested in growing English salnuts
and baight eomz lamd down by the river in Tres Pionos where
he planted walmit trees. He hecame gquite an expert in the
art of the grafting of walnut trees and did mich of the

grafting that was done on other ranches in the a,rea.-qg

46 fvening Fres lance, June 13, 1914, microfilm.

47 Ihid., November 27, 1914.

%8 pvening Free lance, Jamuary 2, 1915, mierofilm.
49
Tancher in penso%a.?y 1%&&%ﬁ%%m}h§§%nﬁ%
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living in Tres Pincs, he wes also close st hand to meet
people arriving by trein, or comng by autoc from Hollister,
who wanted to wisit the Pinnaecles. His brother, Arthar,
handled the wvigitors arriving at the other end, in Bear
Valley.

The roads moy have been improved & great deal in 1914
hit there were spots that were a coaplete disaster in 1915,
in the opinion o&f some peaple. The correspondent Ifram Eear
Yalley delivered a pretty stroong criticizm abouat the subject
one day when he wrote:

The road between San DBendto and Tres Pionos is

in a very bad condition. How long will the board
of supervisors contime to whip Dr. Macaoober over
cir shoulders? The grade arcind the reservoir is
sanething fierce. That muist be the place where the
doctor's ecattle would sink cut of sight. The
public is beginning to think the heard and the
doctor as well Shagéi do scmething to improve this
deplorable mudhols.

The Bear Valley correspondent was not the omly one to
voloe disapproval of the roads in the southern end of the
eonty . Mr. M.P. Eelley who lived in Lo Gloria Valley,
nortimest of the Pinnacles, zent & letter to Che newspeper
in which he saunded his pinion of the roads. He stated
that he had lived in San Benito County and paid taxes in
that coanty for thirty-four years and he still had to travel
ten miles before he reached 8 public road. He agserted thet
the cnly pood roads in the coanty were within an eight-mile

radius of Hollister., His letter continued:

20 Evening Free lance, March 4, 1915, microfilm,
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I went over the Bear Valley grade and saw men
with four horses pulling an zuto oit of the mad at
the horseshoe tend. This grade is mrilt on the
side of a hill and from opposite ALA, Baker's
windm, 1l at the head of the grade to the bend there
jian't a culvert or & place for the water after a
rain to cross the toad to run into the gulch
below. This distencs must e half a pile or
mTe. The qully o the tank side of the grade
carries all this water to the horseshoe bend and
the result in wet weather is an impassable md
oile. . - « The rood menticned by Dr. Macomber
Temine a mmment to the folly of the road
commissioner or superviscrs for a roadway on the
side of a sandbluff without anchoring it to the
mon to keep it froar sliding intoe the creek, for
circliog the alfalfa field and paying to have a
good road plowed up .

(Ed. agrees with Kelley)

Promably posbere coild we have found a more vivid
description of the old rxad that led up the Bear Valley
grade than the one in the Eelley letter. The rest of the
letter, describing the road around the reservoir amd D,
Macomer's, was left in as a testimony of appreciaticn to
his mmor.

The roads had to be improved for the benefit of all the
tourists to the Finnacles that were anticipated, if for no
other reason. In Jamary of 1915 the Chamber of Commerce ino
Hollister decided to isoue ifmmediately 25,000 booklets,
consisting of twelve pages, that extolled the virtues of San
Benito County. Theas bocklets were to e di=triboted to
pecple visiting the Pamama-Pacific Interuational Expasition
that year in San Franclsco. The Woren's Club pledged $150,

and the Charbwer of Commerce, 100 toward the printing of the

3l gvening Free lance, March 9, 1815, microfilm.
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bodklets. The rest of the cost was to be covered by public
subseription .52

There was another project underway that it was thought
would benefit the Pinnacles. Some local people were at work
to secure scme Tule elk for the Pinnacies game preserve.
The large cattle copeny of MHiller and qu af Gllroy
annoanced plans for a gigantle ramndup of elk. There were
several young men from San Benito County who woald he
working as vaguercs on this drive in the lost Hills of Kern
County, corraling 400 head of elk that Miller and Lax sould
supply to state parks.™

The Pacon brothers and the Hain brothers of Bear Valley
immediately made arrangements  through the Acadeny of
Sciences in San Francisco to apply for three of the elk for
the HMnnacles. A representative of the Academy wazs then
sent on an inspection tour of the Pinmacles to miks sure the
place would be & proper halntat for the animals. The J.J.
Cremon Hanch snd the William Butts Rench, shove Emet, also
put in bids for sooe of the elk. The Finnacles was approved
by the inspector framn the Academy: then the waiting

began.”? It was planned that Supervisor Arthur Hain would

52 pvening Free lance, Jarnuary 27, 1815, micrafilm.

53 The young Sen Benito rmen that worked as vaquercs on
that drive were: FEldie, John, Bob and William Butts, Jr.;
Thoodor, Frank and Wilton French; E. Ware and Horry Ley.
Brgninz Free Lance, April 22, 1814, microfilm.

%% 1pid., September 30, 1914.
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be on hend ir Gilroy when the <lk arrived by train to
arrange for the transportation of the animals the rest of
the way to the Pinnacles. But the elk had not been shipped,
so they did not arrive in October when they had been
expected,® Then word came that the elk would be shipped as
soon as they were docile encugh to h:a.ndle.. In the mean-
while, the 'm:sidents in the Pinneeles area were busy
building & twelve acre enclosure to hoise the animels uptil
the time cams when they were endugh accustoms] to their
surrcundings that they might be turned locse. These people
were paying for the meterials themselves for the present bat
planned to affset the cost of the pen by selling public
s'..:;‘t:u&;*::]:"j.pﬂt.ir;::ns.56

Months went by before moie news was heard about the
elk. Finally, the big day arrived. The elk wmre {o come
intg Tres Pincs by railway it instead of the three elk
hoped for, there would only be twe, a male E.md a femle.
When the train arrived the boosters were yet disappointed
for scmething had happened to the male enroute and he had
died, leaving the one lone female elk. The animl was etill
not very docile, so instead of taking her the rest of the
way to the Pinnacles, she was taken to the Alme. Indart Ranch

east of Paicines where she spent the rest of her life

53 Evening Pree Lance, October 15, 1914, merafilm.

56 Ipid., Hovember 2, 1914.
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erazing with the Indart cattle. Soame pecple still living
remenber going to view the famrus elk at the Indart Ranch.2?

From Mrs. Ray (Babe) Hubbell comes the sad finish to
the elk story. Mrs. Hubbell's husband had been 2 very good
friend of Mrs. Indart’s son, so the Hubbells had seen the
el many timeg. One day, the elk attacked cne of the Indart
co¥hands and killed him, S0 the animal had to be de-
stroyed. Mrs. Hubbell was given a tooth of that elk as a
sauvenir, o8

Ancther event during that time pericd that affected the
pecple in the Pinnacles area also concerned animis. Tt
bean doring the 1907-1208 epidemic of the plagee in San
Prancisco when it was discovered that the pround sguirrels
had became infected and were spreading the dissass. There
upon a2 campaign was begun to rid the state of ground
squirrels, which bad an estimted population of 20
rmllion. In the years between 1908 and 1914 some 150
thaisand squirrels on some 3,100,000 acres of (Rlifornia
ranch land had been exterminated. Traces of the plague in
Tural areas had keen tracked to these rodent. By 1913,
4,843 sgquare miles had been treated, or S0 percent of the
Populatich destroyed. In 1913, only 21 ranches ramined

infected out of 238 that were formerly infected., The

57 Statement by Webb, April 27, 1977.

53 Statement by Mrs. Ray (Bake) Hubbell, retired, in
rersonal interview, San Juan Bautista, June 18, 1977.
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squirrel inspectors who tunted the animals in 1914 had to
covar an averare of 26 acres to find ane squirrel-ag

While the fear of the plapue was present there was no
hesitation on the part of the board of superviscors to assigt
in the support of the pgovernment squirrel men in San Benito
County. YWoen the epidemic began to be under control, the
county withdrew its financial support of the project. 1In
February of 1915, a squirresl inspector from the state health
department visited the county to see if the infestaticn
warranted the continued support of the five sguirrel men
still in the county. If was decided that the program should
contine for a whils 1onger.m

In Bear Valley the sgquirrel man was 2 young man by the
tare of Carl Olsen who tock a liking to the coommunity and

remained there when the squirrel job was finished. COne

reason why he could have taken a liking to the community may

have heen that Arthur Hain's daughter, BDessie, lived

there. &ar} Olsen bacame Bessie Hain's first husband when

they were marrTied in 1917,%

52 Evening Pree lance, Decamber 11, 1914, microfilm.

8 Eyening Free lence, February 17, 1915, microfilm.

80 wepb, April 27, 1977.
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Chapter €

ESTAELISHING A BUREAU FOR
PARES AND MONUMENTS

In 1914 Stephen T. Mather, who was a tycoon in the borax
industry, wrote to Secretary of the Interior Iane to
complain abont the poor conditions in the national parks.
dather had been a big pramter in the borax campany and he
felt someone should promote a burean for matiomal parks.
Lane answered Mather's complaint with a3 challenge Ly
offering Mather +the Jjob of trying to gzin support for a
miresn for the parks. Mather came to Washington and hroupght
with him a young collsague of hig by the pame of Horace
Altripght, The two men pledeed a year to the campaipgn for
the orpanization of such a tureau. After a year of pro-
motional work on congressmen and other influentisl pecple,
meny of them from the press, they bad still agt rTeached
their poal. So, not wanting o admit defeat, the two men
pledged another year to the effort, This cempaign inciuded
camping expeditions into Yosemite and Yellowstone National
Iarks that afforded the puests mest of the comforts of home.

The vigorais campaign paid off, for in April 1918 the
bEill creating the Batiomal Park Service was passed Ly
Congress and signed into law by Woodrow Wilson. Lane nared
Stephen T. Mather as Director of the new apency. Mather
asked Horace Albright to be his Assistent Director. Eat,
the intense campaipn had Jeft its toll on Mather, and

illness preventax] him from returning to the office of
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Director for one amd a half years, during which time
Albright took over the duties of Acting Director.

It was a tiny orpanization with a meaper badget, bat the
bill oontained the statement of purpose for the natiooal
patk sgystem which heas never been impeowed upon. This
statement is credited m=tly to the work of the noted
landscape architect, Frederick Law Olmsted, Jr.: "To
conserve the sScenery and the natural apd historie objects
and the wildlife therein and to provide for the enjoyment af
the sare in such mroner and by such means as will leawe themn
unimpaired for the enjoyment of future generations.”

Ater Mather returned to the director's position in the
gpring of 1918, together with Albright, he played an impor-
tant role in the formilation of the Mationel Park Service's
first "Statement of Folicy" which read:

In the copstruction of roads, tralls, oildings
and cther improvements, particular attention mist be
devoted always o harmonizingg these improvemEnts
with the landsecape. This is the mst important item
in our program of development and reguires the et
ployment of trained engineers who either pogssess g
tnowledpe &f landscape architacture or heavwe a proper
aprreciation of the =sthetie wiuve of park lends.
Al imgroverents will be carried ouat in acceordince
with a preconceived plan developed in gpecial
referance to the preservation of the landscape, and
compretensive  planse  for  future development aof
national parks on an adequate scale will be prepared
a=s funds are available for that purpose.

In 1916 MPnpnacles wes one of the smller of the
sewenteen parks and  twenty-two oormurents of which the

Mational fark Service acquired the administration.
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Consequently, the impact of the c¢reation of the new agency
did not have an immediate sffect upon the mmment. The
local people contimred to administer to the needs of the
park for sone time. According to informetion from Pinnacles
Nationel Mormurent files found in the Mational Archives,
there were occasions when diifferent citizens wrote to the
Service requesting money  to cmstruct moads  to the
Finnacles. The answer was always that there were no funds
for that purpase, and the park wes oot considered large
encaigh to require a superintendent or custodian.

In the Owerland Monthly in the wyear 1915 there had

appeared an article by W.W, Canfield on Finnacles Mational
Momarment. In 1919, the =zame W.W. Canfield wrote to the
Director asking for permiasion to ereate 4 camperound at the
Finnacles. (arfield had a ranch in San Juan and a siness
address in dan Francisco. He stated that he wanted to
sublet the carpgraind to some local party, but did not name
the mrty¥. He alsp wanted permission for 2 friend to tun &
transportation service fram the milroed temmims at Tres
Fnos to Finnacles. He did not meontion the friend's name,
it did =ay he had let 35.C. fain read the correspondence
fram the Mational Park Service. The Service permiited the
isguance of a peroit for the camppraind to Canfis=ld, Wt
woilld not issue ane far the trmansportation service. A naote
on the botton of the Canfield correspondence by Albright
stated that he kpnew much of Cainfield, it did not koow

anything of the friend. The permit for the camppround was
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issued for one year, and was to e reviewed each vear oy
each marty before renewal. This is the last mention we f£ind
of Canfield, amd the files for the 1919 apd early 1920 pears
are missing from the Mational Archives.

In Jamuary of 1919, Stephen Mather paid a visit to
California. During his stay at Yosemite, Schuyler Hain, Or.
¥.E. Parker and Meyer Lissner of Hollister sent 2 wire fo
Mather at Yosemite asking him to come visit the Pippaclss.
Adpain in Mipust of the same yedar, Hain and Meyer both again
wired Mather to come visit their area. Superintendent Lewis
of Yosomite sont word to Hain and Meyer thraugh Charies
Townsend of Tahoe that Mather could not po to Pinnacles, hat
that Mather was sending Herbert W. Gleason thers in his
place to lock to the needs of the monurent.

IL was during 1920 that a situation began at the mom-
ment that wazs o focus mich attention vwpon the park for
quite some time. Many letters of complaint flocded into the
affice of the MNatiogpal Park BSBervice, =5 well 8= to the
Goneral Land Office, which had been responsible for managing
parks and monuments befcre the cresticn of the new buresu.
One of the mnet frequent complaints came from Schuyler Hain,
and the tables and benches he mentions in the first letter
undoubtedly refer to the property of the camperound that had
been built by the permit to W.W. Canfield. Mr. Hain's

letter follows:
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Tres Pinos, Gal. Ogt. 25th 1920

Hon. Stephen Mather,
Washington D.C,

My Dear Mr. Mather:

I am in sore strzits. I have labored years, I
am mach afraid, in vain, to sawve one of the wonder-
lands of the world fraon comercialism. A place
pronounced by Dr. C, Hart Merriam as "second only
to Tosemite.” By Dr. Gilbert as "The most diversity
of scenery and besutiful ocloring of any equal area
ever visited", By Capt. Dosler Finley, "I have seen
negrly all the scenery in the United States. This
is the most wonderful place I ever visited. Yo
have a trip to the high Sierras within two hours of
your camp and also the eguivalent to the Mammth
Cave of Kentucky except its stalactites and
stalagmites, and most of those are carried away.”
But why contimea. The sulstance of the mtter is
this: Ope Hundred Sixty acres of the rocks with
caves, Scenery was taken up under Stone Act aboet
1882 by Gec. W. Root, and oy him =cld to three
parties in San Franciseo, The property chanped
hands last spring and just before the Lecoration Day
Baliday a siort wire fence and mete was placed
acrcas the canyon, belcwy the rockzs and over the
sotrance a beard mrked 50¢ admission, children
under 12 not inciuded. I was acting as pguide for
some 90 of the Sierra Club and asked their leader,
¥allace Bradford if there were any attorneys in the
COMPATY » W found two and 1 placed conditicns
existing in the region. How roads had been ailt
over the land claimed. PFarking places for antos,
spring camented, tables & benches muilt—on the land
and necessity for crossing to get to part of the
FMational Momment, and asked them if the public had
net acguired an =azement over the properiy. I
stated I had traveled over, through and under these
selfzame rocks for 29 wears without let or bhin—
drance. The decision given was favorable to an
easament. I askKed them if they would back up their
decizion by refuzing to pay amd also advise the clab
as a whole to resist payoent? Yes was their anower.
S0 we refused and gave air reason. We were told we
aould b2 reported and acticn for trespass insti-
tuted, Wt nothing came of it. Yesterday I wae
there arein with a few friends and went throuch
nobady appearing on this side. On aur return at the
cpposite end, we were asked to contritmte and we
refused, and was told to get off the property, I
told the keeper 1 was headed that way ot we stopped
ingide the inclosure at air end and used the site of
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my old camp fire emd Gir tables and benches for air
dinner. The parties charpe all persons they can get
to pay and thelr mimber has been considerable.

There is snother Gorge several miles from the
above mentioned one inside the Momiment end of egual
inportance from a scenic view ut unfortuoetely the
canyon mouth leading to it is not inside the mm-
ment and has now been filed upon as well as the part
of the rodway leading to the first mentioned place.
lnless this land can be withdrawn or something of
that nature, the other Gorge will be in the sume
Category.

I am enclesing notice of visit of Herbert W.
Gleascn last vear who came at your sugegestion. M.
Gleason did not, es wes proper, glve me any idese as
to the nature of his report, ut I am confident it
wes not wholly head. (Herbert W. Gleason, who with
his wife wvigited the HMnnacles, 17 Septenier 1919
and took several views of the formations and nede a
report of conditions thers to the Uirector.)

Now Mr. Mather please tell me what I can do in
any way poasible to further the interests of this
place.

The first recoemition for the place I secured
was the settine aside for protection of this region
for the pibhlic of @me 1400 acros of a3 Forest
TreSarve. I thea secured & gue preserve of the
forest reserve thraigh state action. Some vears
after fthe Forest Beserve was elimnated and I
secursd State action creating a speciel gare dis-
trict of the former Forest Beogerwe and this is in
comtimiance at present.

Dr. (David Starr} Jordan used his influence
with President Boosevelt petting 2,080 acres =et
aside as a Mational Momiment Wt the ares is
entirely too =smll as 1t Jeaves chances for
acquiring Govi. land to thwart the piblie fram their
rights to an enjoyment of their wonderful scenery

It is too bad this rmegion was not selected as
the Ooosevelt Memorial Fark for I believe it is big
enauzh and I hate to lose the name  "Sequoia”
connected with =2 Mational PFark as it means so
mach. I find many of the Club members of the
variogs Califorpia outdoors organimmtions share my
T1IEHS: =« « &

Hoping my love f this place has not caused me
o bore wvou with this obessive and that I will
shortly hear fram you and that it is not as hopeless
ag I seem o feel—I am

Yours traly,
{S8igned) S8.C, Hain
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The evants that upset Schuyler Hain were directed by the
cwners of the Copper Momtain Mining Company.

Henry Melville hard been trying to mine some c¢laims in
the Plnnacles formatlons sinee aboat 1880. Im 1908, the
same year that the area became a national momument, Melville
tock in some partpers, bought up an old timber 2nd mining
¢laim that had been proved upon by George Root in 1283, amd
formed a corporation—Copper Moungteip Mining Company. It
was =mid that the ned compeny had English capital bebind
it. 4 Mr. lLind was named in several places as president of
the company. There were twenty-—six claim-sites on the cne
hundeed and sixty acres, an L-shaped tract in the northwest
corner of s=ssction 34, T. 18 3., H. 7 E., Mzt ODieblo
Meridian. Melville was zl=so a squatter on the east one-
fourth of section 33 of the same township. Both af these
locations were within the momirment.

If som became appmrent, however, that the campany was
not there solely for the copper; the copper content of the
ore taken fran the mine was =p 1low that it hardly seamed
worth mining. The State Mining Burean Field Heport of
Devember 7, 19150 stated that the locators of the mine were
H.J, Lind, H.F, Melville et al. There were 21 lode cleims,
3 mill sites, 1 water right and 2 dumpsites and & town—
site. The character of depasit was copper stalns (alachite
and chalcopyrite) and smll lenses. The method of working
was opett cuts and tunnels. For the method of treatment they

planned to lagsh out copper and precipitate with iron
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scraps. Their only eguipment were 6 redwood tarks, 3 1/2
feet in dameter, 3 fest high; a oine car awl scoe drills.
The mwter of meEn on wages was one. The report states that
& 40 foot open cut, 12 feet wide on a lense of dark rock
which shows mlachite and traces of borite stains, and this
lense 18 feet by € feet has been cut through., Strikes NW
dips NE 45°, Three or four tons of “ore” had been removed
from the mine. Above cn the same hill to the north wers two
10 foot tunnels, showing oi. stains at portals, and a 30
foot open cut. Twenty feet higher was cne mpre tunnel with
cu. stains. The report observed that the country was
franite (weather=d).

The cne hundred and sixty acres enccrpassad the lovely
canyon through which our Baileonies Caves Trail 1leads,
Machete Ridge, the west side cawves, and even some of the
campgrounds east of the caves known as "Old Pinnacles.” 0Old
Pinnarles was the same area that the Bear Valley neighbhors
had been using for twenty or thirty years. Imagine their
anger when they found the area fenced, their picnic tables
confiscated, and a woman with a shotsun who demnded fifty
cants fran anyone wanting to enter the property! The woman
was Mrs. Olive ERivers who claimed that Melville nad leased
the property to her.

Recently, Hildegard (Mrs. Fred) Monhoff, a friend of
Mrs. RBod (Phyllis) Broyles, sent Phyllis a colorful descrip-—

tion of Mrs. HRivers that Mrs. Monhoff had entered in her
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personal diary on the ocecasion of a trip to Pinnacles. The

entry is as follows:

Jupe 1831 . . . we barned off at Soledad and
went to The Pimacles. An outeropping of gieantic
and fantastic rocks erupts in the smooth domes of
hiph hills. God took a fancy to this place, rubbed
itupa wt and put in some ice—cold springs.

There is a remrkable womee in charge, dressed
in a large sombrero wound with coloired scarves; she
wears hoots and trousers, and over the latter a
short  scant  wrap-avamd skirt of a  figured
material. Her acecunt, told from between gold
teath, of the geological sequence of the place, is
enough to =olidify the geologist into good agnte:
She says that in reality the hupe rocks are petri-
fied wood and that the dramtic cshape and
arrangement are due to liot geysers that fimished it
all off and "put it 211 together and basted it up
again." "The professors” she said, “elaim that hot
gersars are boiling under the whole aresa, and that
drilling woild release them. But owing to the fact
that the geysers could not be controlled and would
turn the country upside—dcem, they are to be left
where they are." Vancouver, the British explorer,
was there abcat 130 years azo, and she says, “"he
must have been guite 4 feature.® The historians,
she says, were "“very cute” in calling the place
Vancouver's Pimacles. She handed us a gircular,
saying it was full of "anappy informmticon.” Fred
sald he espected to find 2 few quotations fran the
Decameron.

The other intrusion that Hain had mentionsed in his
letter to the Director had been the filing of claims on the
eist and north sides of the momument. These were by the
five homesteaders, all ex—servicemen Who came to the ares in
1920; Perman Hemansen, Yigo Tetersen, Alonzo Bourke,
Russell Bourke, and Zotic Marcott. Fetersen had the land
including the entrance rcad and headquarters area of today;
Alonzo Boaurke, the preoperty north of him along the Chalone
Crecit; Marcoti’s was a little farther north, including =

part of the north fork of the Chalone and Marcott Spring;
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Fns=all Baurke's property was west and nortiwest of
Marcott's; and Hermnsen's was farther west of DBourke's,
contimiing to the west side of the momument and west of
Melviile.

There were so| many complaints registered with the
Mational Bark Service that in the June 30, 1820 report of
the fiecal year, Mather mentioned the canditions at
Pinnacles apd stated fthat he iptended to investigete the
gituation in the coming year.

On Jamary 28, 1921, Mather wrote Comdissicner Clay
Tallmen of the General lepnd (Office telling him of the recent
events and questioned the right-of-way from the entrance
oad thraugh the tract of land c¢emed by Melville, and at
that time he stated that he was having a thorough investiga-—
ticn made of the lepal aspects of the case. He went on to
gay that because of the mny caomplaints W locel pecple of
other entrics beinzg made on the other land surrowmding the
momament, that they had begun to notice all the other
private holdings on the approach road leading fran the
county road into the Pimmacles. Mather also stated,”. .« o
it is requested that before final patent is issued to any of
theze entries that a right-of-way for this road be ressrved
to the Gowernment.'

On the same dy Mather wrote to Congres=men Hagh 5.
Hermen enclasing a2 copy of the letter he had sent to the

comm ssicner of the General land Office, and suggested that

143



the cointy should take steps to have the approach road De
mde a county road. He continued:

I followed up your sugeestion of lodking up the
former area reservex at the Mounterey National
Forest, which was elimlnated and opensd to entry io
1910, and I find that there have been a great many
entries made in this ares, and it would seem that it
willd not be advisable to rewithdraw this area or,
in fact, to enlarge the mmment unless there are
some exceptionally scenic features, which should be
included, and then, of course, it is & question
whether these features ars located on the remining
wmeant public lamds.

JuH. Favorite, Chief of the Field Division of the
General Land ffice in San Francisco, had written to the
Director of the Hational TPark Service in April of 1920,
informing him of the muny coamplaints his office had been
receiving conceruing the situation at  Pinnacles. By
September of that year, the commissioner of the Gemeral land
Office in Washington wrote Mr. Fayvorite in response to a
letter from Favorite on the same subject:

The mmuent is under the administration of the
Fark Service and the following paragraph in the
report of the Director of that Buresm for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1820, relative to this Monument
Indicates that an investicption of the matter iz
contemplated by that Soervice:

"an  unfortunate sitation exists in  this
monurent. Recent purchasers of an alienated tract
af land within the mmument which is traversed by
the sole roed havwe fenced off access to the monument
and are charging a toll for passape over thedir
leand. It is nol posaible o say at this time what
the remedy is, Dt during the next year I heope to
investigate the situation fully in order to mke the
mmiment accessible without charge to all who care
to see it

We have not Deen reguested to assist in such
investimtion and no action by this office therefore
appears necessary at this time. It %would seem that
the question as to whiether the roed is & priwtie one
cld e determined bty the local authorities.
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Canplaints contimed to pour into the Director's office,
until early in 1922, Saperintendent Washinpgton B. Lewig of
Yosemite was asked by the Director to order sgme sipns for
Mnnacles and while on the trip to install them, Lewis was
to lock into the situation amd make a report of the metter.

Lewis' report was dated April 5, 192Z2. He had gome to
Gonzples by milway and engaped an autombile to drive the
rest of the way to Pinnacles. After a long drive over muddy
mimtain roads he finally had reached the momiment. He
spent forty-five mutes looking the place over and taking
with Melville ami Hivers. His recomendation was for the
Service to alendon the momument a= the private land owners
had all the secenic atitrections tiel up. He reported more on
his trip tack to Gonzales than he did of the conditions at
the mmment. It had been & trying trip. His automobile
had potten stuck in the mud; then the rancher who had come
to pull him oot also got his car stuck. Finally Lewis had
to walk inck into town aft 1:00 a.m.

in Cctober %, 12922, Herman Hermansen had his first
carrespondence with the Park Service. e wrote to say that
lewis had been wrong in his report. Hermansen stated that
there was ancther canyon an the =ast side of the monument
that shmld e included in the park, and a road shoiald e
muilt to that side of the mumment. The answer from Mather

informed him that there were no funds for such a road.
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On Rovemher 19, Hermansen epgain wrote to the Director
telling how he and four other ex-servicemen were home—
steading lands north amd east of the momument, how they had
set vp a camppround but that they did not charge for
camping, only for pguide service. He stated that he would
arcept any pasition, no Eatter what the pay, to further the
interests of the momment.

In Decewber of 1922, J.H. Favorite of the General Land
Office took it upon himeelf to investigate the Pinnanles
situation. He mde a report dated December 11 and sent &
copy to the Director of the Park Service as a courtesy.
Faworite'’s report was a very thorcugh one in which he told
of the caves and formations in the Bear Gulch area. He
informed the Director that theee lands were on public
domain, and that the government should move quickly to
include them in the mpmument. He also sugzested that a
local man mipght keep order in the area, if he were named
c1stodian. He recommended either Vieo Petersen or Henmn
Hermansen, two of the homesteaders whom he bed found to be
honest men, for the job., He was sure that cne man would be
all that would be reguired for the position.

Bemrmn Hemrmnsen wrote to the Director on April 7, 1923,
to again complain about Melville and Rivers and the wey they
were treating visitors to the momurent. He was sure their
claims were frandulent and thought the Park Service should

try to oust the two.
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In a oommnication of May 8, 18923, Arthur E. Damaray
wrote to Armo B. Commerer {both wen on Mather's staff) and
agread with Favorite that Hermansen would make 2 good choice
for astodian. In turn, Camrerer wrote to Favorite thanking
him for his suggestions and the fine report he had mde on
the Finnacles. The Mational Park Service then offered
Hemmansen the job of austodian at a salary of twelwve dollars
a Yeat. Hermensen accepted the position, and on June 1,
1923, the Service notified him that he had officially
entered on active duty May 25, 1923; and sent him a copy of
the rules and reculations, with instructions to be sworn in
by Marshali ¥Mcbhil in Bollister.

On Moy 7, 1923, President Warren G. Harding enlarged the
area of Pinnacles Mational Monunent accordiog to the recan
mendations of F.H. Favorite, adding lot 4, SW 1/4 N¥ 1/4,
and 59 1/4 Sec., 2, and W 1/2 See. 11, in T. 17 5,, R. 7 E.,
Moont Diablo Base and Meridian.

On Jupe 17, 1823, Hermansen wrote requestips 512,000 for
trail work and 5500 for 24 cabin for headquarters at
Pinnazles. He said Vigpo FRetersen, the homesteader whose
propetty was directly east of the momument and at the
entrance to Dear Culch, would rive an aasement to have the
cabin tuilt on his property with oo charge to the govwern—
ment. Fetersen had sent a letter on the 16th attesting to

this fact.
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The reply fran the Service was thai there was no mpney
for a cabin tut there would be $600 for the building of
trzils. This was July 2, 1923,

In Hermmnsen’s monthly report of June 28, 1923, he
advises adding the East one half section (4, T. 17 S., R. 7
E., M. D. M.) to the momment because it contained a water
supply on the west side and also part of the entrance road
on that =zide of the momurent.

Hermnsen told his superiors that he had taken up the
acces road guestion with the San Benito county board of
supervisors and the Chamber of Comerce in Hollister. In
this report he requested a Matiomal Bark Service badee so
that he would have something to show his authority.

In the report dated July 202, 1923, Hermnsen tells the
National Park Service of the court attle he had been having
with Melville, ftrying to st Melvwille off Hermansen's
land. Hermansen tells of his future plans for his land just
nortivest of the momwent. He hoped one day to put a read
acrass his land to the esast side of the mmument, by-passing
the 160 acres owned by the Copper Mountain Mining Cospany.
He reportad that Mr. Pavorite had been to Finnacles, and the
wo of them went to call at the office of the Mining Company
in Scledad. Favorite was to be a witness for Hernansen in
the coart case against Melvilie.

He reported a2t that time that Fetersen had donated land

for a weteran's camp on his property east of the nogument.
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Hermansen in that correspondence acknowledged the F600
for trail work, and inquired just how he was to receive the
money &5 ne wanted to get started on the trails very socno,.

The Assistant Director answered his inmguiry by saying
the money was on bhand and held in abeyance until it was
needed.

In the mext communication from Hermensen on August 11,
1923, he told of the movement in Hollister for funds for an
entrance road to the east side of the Pinnacles. He wWas
quite upset with the Service, becaise he misundersteood the
word Tabeyance," thinking the Service was withdrawing the
funds for trails, just whan there was beginning to be so
mich local interest in the progpect of an entrance road.

The answer from Assistant Director Cermmersr on
Mgust 20, 1923, cleared up the matter. Cammerer assured
Hermpnsen that the money would be available providing the
Pinmacles todk edvantage of it within gix months. If npot,
there were other parks that cold use the money.

In Hermansen's report dated September 11, 1923, he told
of the dedication ceremonies for the camp for veterens, pai
on by the Veterans® League of California, at the camp that
Petersen had donated for that purpose.

It was in that letter that he told of the Hollister
Merchants' Association and the San Denito Farm Burean and
their plans for funding the Pinnecles entrance road ioto the

moourent through Bear Galch.
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The actual funding did not came thraigh until after the
Krector, Stephen Mather, came to Pinnacles in dmrch 1924,
In a speech before the interested organizations in
Hollister, Mather expressed regret for the Service's lack of
funds to help the Finnacles. Bit in Aupgust, it was
anncunced that federal aid would be available for the
purpose of Wrilding trails and sinking wells at the pork.

After this good news, the people of Hollister were
encauraged to contime the drive for the raed up Bear
Guich. Twelve ormnizations and private citizens domated
F200 each, and with the 32400, a contract was let to build
the narTow, one-vway road inte Bear (uich, improving upon the
one—quariter-imile of road that had been built by the "Boys® -
as the homesteaders were called.

On July 2, 1924, Czlvin Coolidge, in another Presiden-—
tial Proclamatictl, increasesd the size of the monument on the
west side by adding the east half of section 4, T. 17 5.,
B. 7 E., ¥. D. M., according to Hermansen’'s recomendation
given the previals yezr. The reason stated for the additicn
was the valuable water source and camp sites. The MNational
Park Service was now a well-established bureau that made

itself felt in Washington.
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Chapter 7

CaMP PINNACLES
Sare of the events leading up to the establishpent by
the homesteaders and H.C. BRyker, =z photographer #ith the

Cekland Tribune, of the short-lived “Carmp Pionacles,® are

very interesting--a5 are the events following the enter-
prises' short existenci. The information in this section

was found in bound copies of the Hnllister Evening Free

lance (unless otherwise stated), and started when the
interest of the people of San Benito Coumty was tamed
toward pronoting  inprovements ang  travel to Pionacles
Yaticonal Momument. It wag at this time that the newest
praoter of the Pinnacles, Washington Irving Hewikdins,
efitered the scene.

Washington Irving ("Tireless Irv®) Hawkins was a
prominent businessmn and rancher in Mollister.,  In 1923,
Hawkins was the president of the San Benito County Farm
Burean. His father, T.3. Hawkins, had been one of the
pion=ers of Hollister, W.I. Hawkins had been instrumental
in the move to have Fremont Peak mde & state pzok, and at
the current tice, in 18324, was putting the finishing touches
on the creation and development of San Benito's ccunty park,
Bolado, near Tres Pincs.

The Hollister Evening Free lance kept a rumning account

of the drive to advance the popularity of the ronument. As

early as February in 1924, the 3an Benito County Parm Buresu
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met at its center in Hollister where Hawkins spoke of the
many projects that the organization planned for the
future. At the top of the list was the plan for the
pranytion and the improvement of & road to the pational
momunent. Hermaneen, along with his puides, Petersen and
Marcott, also spcke at the meeting, stating that the federal
government would be willing to meke improvements in the park
if approach roads were improved. S.C, Hain read an origipal
poem on the Pinnacles at the meeting.

The promotianal work began to pay off, for in March,
Hermansen annoinced a commnication from the Californla
State Autombile Association that they weres roubting all
traffic to Pinnacles through Hollister, George Grant, of
that association (later a photographer for the Mational Park
Service), amd 4. Weller, autcootive editor of the San

Francisco Examiner, were to visit the moounment within the

next month to see about giving Finnacles more publicity.

Two days later, the Farm Bureau reported that Stephen
Mather, director of the Mational Fark Service, would e in
Hollister. Mather had requested 2 specisl Farm Bureaun
meeting for Thursday, March &7.

At that Farm Bureau meeting, the Fark Service head told
of the lack of funds to aid the Pinnaclies. The meeting had
teen held jointly with the Hollister Chamber of Comrerce,
and Waldo Fohnert, chairman of the meetiog, introduced

tiather who told of the pationel parks and momuments in the
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United States. These in the meeting were extended an
invitation to participate in the Imsket picnic at the
Pinnacles the following Sunday.

Mather left Hollister the following worning to person-
ally ilnspect the somument and to gonin first hand knowledpe
of its needs. The local pecple were encml.ra.ged that the
Director would help to see that the Pinnacles wuld gain its
share of the appropriations.

The promotion for the Plonacles road had a slight inter-
mipticn becanse of the aithreak of hoof-and-mouth disease in
iy, which resulted in 2 road ban. The Pinnacles road btan
wae lifted on the twenty-fifth of June. This was just one
month after twelve organizations and private citizens of San
Eenito county had pledged $200 each toward a roed up Bear
Gulch.  Theoee contrituting were: the Bank of Italy; First
Mational Eapk; 3an Benito County Farm Bureazu; P.F. Browm;
W.K. Brown; Dr. H.J. Macomber, Georse Sylkes; Waldo Rohnert;
C.N, Hawking; W.I. HawMins; H,A. Harmmnsen; V. BPetarsen and
Z. Mareott. Eight members of the King City committee had
met at the sume time and expressed no dodbt in theic ahbility
to ralse their F1,000 share of the monsy.

On July 158, the San Francisco Examiner men arrived at

Binnacles. The party included the '"Motorlogue" eoditor,
fienry P. Flynn, and Mrs. Flynn, Henry EKales, adwvertising
menager of the Earle . Anthony Conpany of Los Angeles,

W.L. Moore and Harrison Fisher, the noted artist. So the

publicity canmpaign was under way!
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On Augnet 2, 1924, came the anncuncemant that a complete
survey of the Pinnacies had been ordered-—after the
annaincement of the Presidential Proclamtion by Calvin
Coolidge of the enlargement of the monument by 320 acres con
the west side to include a valuable water source as had been
recomended by Hermansen the preceeding year. The monument
how abraced 2,973 acres. Hermansen also stated that abont
one—third of the cne and chne-halfmile road up Bear (ulch
that had been financed by the Farm Burear wis completed.
Cattle guards on the approach road from the main county road
were belng Hilt, sliminating all gates on the road. Gutes
were being made in fences alongside the cattle puards for
pecple who might be riding or driving horses. A big ccunty
picnic was being planned on Angust 16 at  Pinmacles,
annoaanced W.I. Hegkins and famm advisor W.J. Tocher, to
bring attention and foms to the improvements that had been
ede by the Farm Bureau and the county of San Bepito. It
was to be a free arbecue with such puests as Harvey M. Toy,
of the State Highway Commission, and Congressman Arthur M.
Free of the local digtrict. The picnic was to be at the
foot of Bear Culch. BSupervisor R.G. Garner stated that he
was tushing work on the road into the Plonacles so all mates
would be eliminated by the day of the berbecuc.

The news that federal aid would be given Pinnzcles for

the purpose of Wuilding trails and sinking wells came the
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day before the barbecue. The newspaper article stated that
the monument was proving to be 2 hig lure to fourists,
tharks ton the efforts of H. Hermpmsen, V. Fetersen and
W.I. Hawkins, and the Farm DBupresnu. At the picnic, the
settlers of the area would act as guides to show the scenic
wonoders aof the momiment.

At the barbecus, Harvey WM. Tovy stated that a state high-
way straight through San Benito county loomed as a strong
possibility, as 6 result of vigitetion to the Pinnacles Ty
officials and oeneral public. There were eipht or nine
hundred pecple and cne hundred antombiles at the affair.
Toy spote metly of the Hollister-to-¥ing City road. He
=3id that the San Juan Grade already hed = problem and the
state had to decide whether to struighten the curves in that
road or build a new road.

Hommnsen and Marcott had led a two mile hike to Bear
Guleh caves, owver a ftrail on the ridge where the entire
canyon onuld be viewed, and then back to the cars below.

A few days later, on Angust &5, 1924, came the announce—
ment that the cmnty of San Benito had recently purchased
rights of way from Cook to Finnacles for the sum of 33,000.
The article also said that the rosd up Bear Gulch should be
coplete by fall; and stated that Toy had conferred with
¥.l. Hawkins and Hermpsen—and in turn, Hemmosen with the
Govwernor--all trying to ipterest the state in mMing the

Bolsa/Hollister/King Clty road a state highway.
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The middle of October of 1824, Federal Surveyor
A. Seeboker arrived at the mmuent to begin 2 survey that
tocdk glx wedts and resulted in the federally accepted map of
Finnacles.

In Jamary of 1925, a big caravan of San Jose boosters,
mstly members of that city's Chamber of Comrerce, came to
Finnacles. They were feted at 2 mmrbecue given by
Hermensen, FRetersen and Marcott, assisted by len Townsend
and W.Aa. Weller., W.l., Hawkins had been instrumental in
bringing the grcup to the park., Hawkins announced at the
barbeale that Jamary 28 wauld be "Finpacles Doy" in north-
ern Califorpia. While "Pinnacles Day" was initially a Farm
Euremn project, after Hermansen's copening speech meny
Hollister businessren hecame interested in the idea. Harvey
Toy, who had been a hotel and resort oen all his Tife, told
the group that he saw feny possibilities for the Pinnacles.

From this meetipg 4 state—wide organization, Pinoacles
Maticnal Mark Association, was born. It would be hesded by
Harvey Toy, the vice president would be Hobert Benson, and
Hawlcing was to be the secretary-treasurer. Hawhing had been
the tireless worker, imstrumental in forming the orgaini-
zation. The directors were chosen from King City,
Watsoneille, San Jose, San Juan Bantisgta, Hollister, Gilray
and San Francisco, gnd included some of the most well Inown

misinessmen of the day.
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The first wesk f Eebruary, Hermansen annoinced that the
county would donate permenent cerment barbecus pits and the
Farm Buresn wis to glve camplete barbecue aatfits; grills,
knives, forks, rlatters, ete.,—exclusiwly for the use of
trapsient pichnickers and tourists. Autamphile campers mist
use the other cemperound. AL the same time he annaumced
that a crew of men were dodng preliminary road work frao the
13,000 appropriation secured by Stephen T. Mather, and in a
fow days the regnlar work was fto begin., (It is believed the
“other campground” referred o was (d Pinnacles).

These donaticns came as a result of the gathering of
dipgmitaries fran all owver porthern Californie who hed
assemblad for "Pinmacles ODay" on Jamary 29. Fran thet
meeting =2lso came the decision to sponsor a free rbecue on
May first for ell the pecple in San Benito County.

On February 3, 1925, a small erticle appeared in the
Hollister newspaper stating that & corparation to e known
as "Camp Pinpacles" Corporation had been formed. The
article stated that it was understood thet the corporaticon
would not affect the mmugent proper, Wt was for the
purpose of establishimg private auto campgralnds, stores and
other accamodations near the entrance to the park. Corpo—
rate stock of the capany was reported to be 3$10,000.
Hermensen was to be president, ©. Byker of Cakland was

sacretary, and Detersen was the treasurer.
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It mst bz remenbered that at that time the momuent
boundaries began near what is the Chief Ranger Residence and
the upper parking 1ot at the present time, S0 anyone
entering the momurent wolld heve to pass over the land osmed
by the new corporation. This fact might have had some
bearing on scme of the evenis that were to ocoar in the pear
future.

Flans for the May Day c<elebration contimed to move
forward., It was etated that Govermor Friend W. Richardson
and the acting Mayor of 3an Francisco, Halph Mcleran had
accepted invitations to the event. A crowd of 3,000 pecple
was expected fo atfend.

In April there was a gathering at the Italian Room of
the S5t. Francis Hotel in 3an Francisco, at a meeting of the
San Francisco Downtown Aseociation, to pronmote the Finnacleg
road building program. Sixty men from San Benito county
attended along with forty franm other cities. Harvey Toy
presided and Schuyler €. Hain lectured on the momiment and
showed slides of its scenic features., Toy stated at the
meeting, "As matters now stand the bill to appropriate
3,000 for a2 survey of a road from Hollister through
Pinnenles and the Pinnacles National Monwment to Soledad, a
change of the original idea, had been passed through the
varicus committess and will scon be woted upon, with an

excellent chance to pass." Two former governors of
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California, G.W. Jeter of Santa Cruz, and Warren Porter, of
Weimonviile, were pressnt gt that meeting.

The Pinnacles rcad survey i1l was introduced in the
California legislature and passed unanimously. It then went
to the Gowverncr, whers it lay on his de;k for several
weeks, It was part of a gas tax bill that the Governor
eventually vetoed as being too inflationary.

Plans for the ¥May first barbecue rolled rignt along. It
was anncunced that famed chef “"Pop® Yrost who more than amy—
one else, ", . .« has done mere to aoguaint the eplowres of
California with abelomne in Monterey," would be in charge of
the fish and mssel barbecus pits. Ermie Weller would be in
charge of the beef pits, and frijoles and salss would be
prepared by Scnorz Juanita Corbett.

Cr April 19, newsien from every mjor newspapeT in
northern Californiz were feted by Hermnsen and Feter=en.
The DPinnacles was presented to these guests by Miss San
Benito County (Eula Powers), and Miss Pinmacles (Aldah
Fowles), and to Miss (alifornia (Miss L. Horrie of San
Pranciscod.

Oo April 20, the Hollister Evening Free Lance carried an

editorial, stating;

First time this writer has seen the park since
the "homm" started. Remarkahle what the Pinnacles
Company accomplished . . . A road has been huilt
right to the foot of the trailes . . . (A} Herculean
task . . . (for bsing so) short of {ime and funds
+ + » (The) last mile (of the road is) one way . . .
{They have} erected a diping cabin . . . dance
floor, « . . radio for msic, . . » BB pits, wells,
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benches, . . - tourist tents and shacks . . . {(all)

accomplished by Qustodian Hawkins and his band of

young war vels, settlers who came here 2 coaple of
years 2ga « . - 400 visitors, including a couple of
touring parties from Germany, registered yesterday

« « -« There are seven or eight guides.

Three short days later, the Pinnacles Company came aat
with the news that they would make a smll charge for
camping facilities after the May first celebration—starting
May second the regular fee of fifty cents per mechine woald
be charged. They stated that the ¥ay Day dance would be
free, ut the dance the next night, with the sare orchestra,
wold cost one dollar per couple, as would 2ll dances there—
after. The amcomeement was made by H.C. Byker, who added,
"Ouir man Petersen has been menerals enigh to provide free
prking spaces. After May lst you will no doubt be glad to
return the favor."”

The folliowing wesk, W.I. Hawkins was assurins everyone
that the May Oay festivities were free, . . . as free as
the  air." He alsco announced that he had secured the
Monterey Presidio Band for the day, and that there would be
encugh food to feed an amy, ut people were urged to hring
their owm cups and plates. There was to be a squad of
motorcycle police to help with the traffic.

The Governor backed aut of the celsbration because he
was busy working on the 00-odd bills that had been pmssod
by recant legislation, ut from all other reports, the May

Cey berbecue Was a hipe Sucoess. Between fiwe and six

thousand pecple attended. The regtaurant was said to be
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ingenicusly rmade so the walls coinld be taken aut at the last
m.nute, thns mking 8 large dance flcor. It was reported
that 2 large cold drink, ice cresm amnd tobceo stand faced
the restaurmant. Bunming w#ater, toilets and other conven-
iences were also immediately at hend., Even the San

Fancisco Examiner and Oakland Tribune covwered the

eelehration with publicity.

On May 12, Ban Benito county filed suit against twenty-
one land holders for right—of-way to Pinnacles. The defen-
dants pamed in the suit were: Henry Melville; Olive A.
Rivers; Wep Fetersen; Alonro Bonrke; Russell Bourke; Herman
Herminsen; Copper Momtaln Mining Compamny; Helen de Famuett
(also ¥nown as Lena de PFamguett); Belle Eelley; &ara
Elizabeth Melendy; E. Collonan; Gecrge Eelley, Alta Bogue,
John Doe; Hichard Boe; Anna Doe; Mary Doe; Johm Doe Company
(& corporation); and Richaml Hoe Company (& corporation).
Ag it turned out, the defendants did not fight the case, as
they all wanted the pecple of the county to hawe right—of-
way to the mmiment.

In June, reports of the May Day picnic were still coning
in. It was stated that that picnic had been held in Bacon's
flat, east of the park, end Charles Selfied had been the
cook,. The June first report stated that more people had
visited the Pinnacles thet last weekend in June than had for
the May Loy event. The report came that Finnacles was

leading other naticonal parks in attemdance, provided they
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cauld meintain the May attendance average throughoiut the
entire season. This #as an amzing feat considering that
the drive to popularize Pinnacles had only started the

previcus year, the reporter far the Fwening Free lance

Ftated.
"Carp Pinnacles" was running an advertisement weekly in
the local newspaper which read:
dpend Your Weck-ends
at
THE PINNACLES
Restaurant
Mmnecing Every
Saturday MNight
V. 4. BETERSEN
Manager
While everyone else was tusy praising himself for the
wonderful job that bhed heen accomplished at the momment,

the editor of the Hollister Evening Free lance wrote an

editorial on June 29 that led to the installation of a
device that the old Pinmacles roul #as most remeasbered
for. #H.F. Howyle stated in that editorial:

If the Charter of Commerce or samebody can't
solicit encueh fundzs to get the rcad widened, the
aefficient time—clock system shold be installed.

Several thausand visitors a mpnth means a whole
lot to Hpollister and the st of Srn Bendito
county., They leawe thousands of dollars behind.
Will we gspend & few dollars to keegp them caning; or
shall we chalk up another worthy project thus—
"Started with & tang, ended with a fiz=zle"—
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Hollister i= pgetting that reputation ic many
thing= of the Iast few years. It iz time the
camunity wcke up and did something to wipe that
reputation off the slate.

By the middie of July of 1525, the Socuthern Pacifie
Railroad Company begern a stage service to the Pinnacles from
Hotel Hollister and told of this service io the company'’s
periodical Literature distribated to all agents in the
camtry. The service made the same charge for one to Five
Persons, carrying passengers to Pinnacles, snd arrangiog for
8 piide.

On August 1%, news of the Piopeclss Mationzl BFagk
Adgsnoiation agpin surfaced. The article stated that the
association held a conference in San Francisco aod president
Harvey M. Toy apnounced that intense publicity regarding the
wonders of the momiment would socn e started amd that plans
were under way which would insure perfect service to all
visitors.

The article slso stated that W.I. Bawkins, sccretary of
the asmoeiation, was leavine for & visit to Sequoia Mational
Fark to be the guest of Superintendent Col, John R. White.
Hawkins had visited every park and monurent in California to
leaxrn of methods used in handling visitors, services given
them, and general park mpagament.

The same article went on to say that three San Eenitol
Farm Buresm! aofficials believed that developments now under
way warrantad the lamching of their project to pet a tour-

ist inn in Hollister in conjunction with the Finpacles, The
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three men 2lso statad that the highway project was to be the
muin topic for discussion at the buresu directors' meating
that month.

It was just a few days later that an item appcarad which
might have seemed unrelated at first glance to all the pub-
licity that the Pinnacles had twen receiving of late. It
seems that the court tmttle between Hermensen and Copper
WMountain Mining Compzmoy that had been waged faor over three
years was fipally settled in Bermnsen's favor. The land
concerned included G40 acres in sections 33, 28, apd 27, of
the 1680 acres in section 34 that the company still held
¢laim to. The article stated that two tunnels dug by Copper
Mountain Mining Company had been dug on Hermensen's land.
The land coversd in the suit incloded mich of  the
"Falisedes” and elso included roads leading in on both
sides. This left the miring company hemmed in on 21) sides
by Hermansen and the U.S. Government. The writer implied
that this was e big lass fof the English capital thet had
invested in the Copper Mountain Mining Company.

One month later, on September 18, 1325, came the news
that W.I. Hawkins was replacing Herman Hermansen as aisto—
dian at Pionacles, and that Zotic Marcott had been appointed
as ranger. The article stated that the shake-up in the park
wag due to the Fact thet some officials had been spending

too mch time in promotional work,
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Fron correspondence found in the Pinnacles Maticnal
Monument files at the Mational Archives, Washington, D.C.,
we find that letters had been sent to the Dirvector af the
Mational Park Service fran the Farm Burean in San Benito
county, from the Hollister Chamber of Cmm, frem the
Pinnacles Mational Park Association and from the San
Prancisco Downtown  Association, all  recoamending  the
appointment of Hawkins as the austodian of the mmment. In
addition, Hewkins had pained the ear of Horace Albright, and
Albright recommended to Mpther that Hswkins be made austo-
dian of Pinnacles.

Hermmrnsen, when asked for bis resignation, offered to
give up his interest in Camp Pinnacles, bat this was not
enoleh. Both Hermansen amd DPotersen did sell cut their
interests in the enterprise and leased their lands.
BEvidently, the Service felt that Hawhkins, who was ever the
politician, could & more to pramcte the interests of the

park.
Through the Hollister Evenipg Free lLance in September of

1925, Hawkins as the ne’ custodian of Pinnacles anncunced
that Superintemdent W.B. Ilewis of Yosemite Mational Fark was
to visit Pimnacles shortly. He would be accompanied by the
chief landscape architect for the Park Service to investi-
gate attractions and decide upon improvements to be mede at
the park, which was cne of the vwery few year round resorts,

and plans for revival of publicity were to be mde. Within
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three wedts it was expected that moy imorovements would
Degin—such as iree guide service, and other needed changes.

Bat the ooly cother publicity ip 1925 came in Movenber
when the Pinnacles Mational Tark Asspeiation anncunced
thraigh Toy and Hawkins of plans to enlarge the game
preserve to include mrt of the couwntry adjacent to
Pinnacles Metional Momument and to make Pionscles a larpe
deer preserve.

Faur days later Col. and Mrs. John R. White of Sequoia,
Superintendsnt W.B. lewis of Yosemite and landseape
Architect Daniel R, Hull arrived at the mmrment to survey
the 1926 oeeds of the perk. Pioctographer James Lloyd would
arrive a few days later to take scores of pletures to dig-
tribute to hotels and railroads.

In Jamery of 1226, Howking and Marcott ettended a Chief
RBangers' dimner, hosted by the ¥Visalia Chamber of Comerce,
where Hewkins was one of the speskers.

It was in February of 1926 that the San Benito Farm
Birean snd the Hollister Hoftary Club aznnoinced that they
were both donating $250 for the purpose of fipancing a
pageant to advertise the Pinnecles. The pageant woild play
for three doys—iay 2, 30 and 31—and would feature local
and Hellywood actors and director, It was bto be held in the
outdoor amphitheater at Bolado Bark,

The pageant included Garet Holre's and Don Totherch's

"Werna of the Forest”" on the 25th and 30th and the Indian
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lesond, "Taguitz the Evil One," 25 a matineg ¢m the 3lst,
Hawkins announced that the pageant was to be an anmel
event. Hawkins also announced that E. Walton Hedges was to
kecape his aide at the Finnacles. E. Walton Bedges, Jr., of
Rancho Haciends del dJusto wms already Statfa Fire Warden;
both were bhonorary pesitions. 4t the time of the pegoant,
the ait—cf-town actors were guests at the Hedeges' home.

Howkines invited Garet Holme, the director of the
pageant, to return the following fall to assist in layiog
cut plans for landseaping the npatural anphitheater at
Mnnacles. The plans included the planting of willows for a
backaround.

It was alm=t m Year before nore news of the momument
appeared in the Free lance. ¥arch 22, 1827, it was reported
that A, Fdwards, Under—3ecretary of the Interior and Mr., and
Mrs. Horace H., Albeipght, Assistant Director of the Maticnal
Fark Service, arrived to inspect the mormument and annomced
that an appropriation of $2,774 had been mde for use in the
park for the coming year, The inprovements woild include
construction of & stone ranger cabin and the installation of
8 telephone line b the ranger's residence. The artiele
seid that this was in addition bo the money already alliotted
for a swimming pool. 'Ihé Bolado swimming pocl was to be
poured the following week, then the forms were t© be nowved
to Pinnacles and used in the construction of a swimming pool

there.
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In June, the report was that the inprovements would
include not emly a telephone line and renger's capin, but
also a lavatory and stairs and ladders in the caves—
connecting the upper, middle and lower caves. The middle
caves had never before been open to the p.lb]i;:.

¥ork started on the confort gstation and ranger cabkin in
July, under the supervision of Jobn B. Wosky, a Landscape
drchitect for the Maticmal Park Service.

W.Il. Hawkins farnsed in his resignetion as president of
the Han Benito Farm Bureau, to be effective January 1, 1923.

Frank A. Kittredge, Chief of Engineering, and Thomas C.
Vint, lendscape Architect, conducted & survey of a five year
improvement plan of the momment in Decomber of 1827, and at
the same time, Hawkins announced that he planned to feed the
deer at the park that w#inter. He made a trip to Hedwood
State Park to study how they fed their deer there.

Mot much had been heard of "Camp Pimbacles" since its
formtion, but on Auegnst 28 of 1827, a new name became
associated with the enterprise.

There was an item in the Evening Free Lance that told of

four men who had been arrested for posching on the property
of Petersen and Hervensen. The men, the item said, had been
given permission by the lessee of the property--Mr. Coffee—
for the parpose of meking a test of the state ganre refuge
law. The fine for viclating the refuge laws carried a mimi-

min of $25 and a maximum of FS00 or up to fix ronths in
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jail. There had been a total of seven arrests an this
account made in the past week. Three of the men had been
dismissad, at the foar on the Petersen and Hemmnsen
properties had not had their ceses ssttled yet. The article
went o to state that A.G. Coffee, the 1%58?, W5 & resort
promoter from Pasadena.

Mast of the news of PFinnacles during this period
centered arcund the appropriations from Washington for
different improvements to be mede aft the momuent znd in
general advertisement for the park.

in February of 1828, Hawkins attended a superintendents’
meeting in Stockton and when he returned he told that the
ranger's cahio and comfort station were nearing cople-
tion. He also stated that the pony trails and the steps apd
ladders in the caves were alwnst done.

John B. Wasky, Jr. arrived at the Pinnacles again in
April 1o supervise the masonry work on the two Duildings.

¥W.I, Hawlkdin= was an enthisiastic supporter of Pinnacles
who was always ready to “sing its praises" to all «ho would
let him borrow their attention, and was not above glossing
over any aspect of the place that he thought might detract
from its drawipng pover as a tourist attraction. To 1lius-
trate this facet of his role as custodian at Plnnacles there
iz a story related by Hobert Oliver ({(clerk-typist at
Pinnacles from 1940 to 1842Z), told to him after his trensfer

to Yosamte Maticnal Park by John B. Wosky, who was then
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Agsistant Superintendent of Yosemite {end the Jlandscape
architect who-had earlier supervised the comstruction of
Pinnacles' buildings).

On cme of Wosky's first trips to Pinmacles during the
hottest weather of the year, Wosky and Hawkins were driving
along the entrance road one day when Wosky camented, "This
sure locks like rettlesnake coupntry to met" Te which
Hawkins imdignantly replied, “"No, we don'i bave any rattle-
snakes here!” Just about that time a2 rattlesmake crossed
the rogd in fropt of them. Wosky pulled the car aver to the
#ide of the road and getting out of the car, tock a gun and
shot the rattler. Hawkins imediately rebutted, "Well, that
i5 the first rettlesmake I have ever seen in the aree.”

A few months later, Wosky had occasion to retarn to the
monument aind the same scene repeated itself zlmmst enctly,
even dosm to the shooting of the second rattler.

At this time the nonplusad Hawkins turned to Wosky and
said, "You must be related to 5t. Patrick, or samething, for
we nevwer havwe seen rattlesnakes in these parts wntil Fou
came aroand.™

There were several items felling of the varicus autom-
bile clubs and tourist ormanizeficns that were publiciziog
the Pinnacles with trips to the mmment, and with articles
in their publicaticons.

In May of 1923, several local artists did an hour long

radio moadcast over KQW, sponsored by the San Benifo Coanty
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Farm Burean and erranged by Bill Bengard of San Benito.
Armong the local artizts appearing on hroadrast were: Dr.
J.M. Oonneil; Jack Tocher; Roy Gilbert; A.J. Yearian and
A. Coffee.

Mr. Coffee's pame appesred mgain on Dec;ﬂuer 11, 1988,
in en item abcut an accident he had. In this article he was
referred o a5 the owner of "Camp Pipnacles.® The article
stated that Mr., Coffee’'s car had run off the road on the
sharp turn cne-haif mile beiaw the camp, careened down the
canyon and turned over several times. The camp proprietor
had received several cute abaut the head, and "Hig® BHill
Bengard of San Benitc had responded to the call for aid,
rescusd Coffee, amd had tasken the injured man bo Hazel
Hewkins hospital in Hollister.

The talk of a throegh road to Soledad seemed to gain
imyentum during those days. In June of 1823, state
officials wvisited Finnacles in comneciion with the 55,000
state survey for the road (which subject head been re-
openad). The report stated that the plans for the
aprropriftion had taken a big step forward the preceding day
amd that the money should be fortheomiog socn, and the work
ordered done. The state officials were escorted through the
rormment b caunty officials.

In September, U.5. Buremn of Rublic Roads Chief Dr. A.
Hughs was escorted through Pipnecles by "Tireless Irv"

Hawhins him=elf.
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This was io addition to the pesw interest that the FPark
SJervice seamed to bBe fsKipg in the momament. In May,
Hawkins returned from a meetiog 1pn San Prancisco with the

approval to spend 32,000 on horse tralls. The Evening Free

lance article stated that the President had anly just signed
the bill that, among other things, called for improvements
to the Pinnacles. Hawkins claimed that $2,000 was only the
berinning; that federal park surveyors would visit Pinnacles
the following week to map ouf trails. The first would be up
Condor (lch to Hawking Peak and wonld take in all the peaks
and scenic areas. Thers were to be seven t ten mles of
trails, including the caves. There wes fo be pony guide
service established at the Bear Gulch end of the trail #here
animals and guides would be available at all hours every day
af the week,

In Augist he aoncunesd that an additional 3500 had been
allotted to complete the restroom, and thet the btrail amcunt
had changed to F2,000, and was just the first instellment of
510,000 for improvement of hworse and pedestrian trails thet
wolld start after the mains began in the fall.

It sounded as if the Perk Service was ready to spend
several thousands of dollars on the momment shere in the
past they had not teen concerned to advance any appropria-
tions in & park that was surrounded by private oenership.

Jamuary 5, 192, there was an event that, although

important to the administration of the National Fark
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Service, did not seem to particnlarly affect Plnnacles
Mtional Mormwent, Bt in the long ™an meant 2 great deal.
Stephen Mather resigned as Director of the Park Service, and
Horace Albright tock owver as the head of that Bureau.
Albright had always been an 21ly amd s:.u;:p::rter ef  the
Pinnacles. His appointment as Director no doubt had mch
influence in the many appropriations that were to come the
way of Finnacles in the next [ew years.

Then on Jamary 21, 1929, came the news that the coanty
of San Benito bad filed condemation proceedings against
four of the private land holdings that surrommded the
Pimnacles Metional Monument, for the purpose of purchasing
the land and in tern donatins the land to the federal
government to be included in the monument. The condemnation
ants were filed against the Copper Mountain Mining Company,
and the lands that had been horesteaded by Herman Hermensen,
Vigo Petersen and Alonzo Bourke. In gll, these lands werse
1,286.27 zeres, more or less. It was the finding of the
board of supervisors to e in the public interest and a
necessity, to acquire said land For purposes for a public
park. The board of supervisors consisted at that time of
Burnett, Carner, Turner, Priis and Chairman Etcheverrty. The
decision of the beard was unanimous and there were o super-
visors who wore aisant.

Precident Herbert Hoover sipned the third proclametion

in April of 1991 that ineluded 1,926.35 acres, donated by
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J3an Benito County, enlarging the park by Ovo-thirds, fo
4,906.61 acres. The suit against Copper Mountain Mining
Company #%as. Lo contimie for many years, hut with this new
additionzl lJand the park conld contime to moKe the mmoy
necessary improvements in the Bear Gulch area as planned.

"Camp Pinnacles" had not bEeen faring as well as its
backers had anticipated. Coffee at one time #ns being sued
for back wages by one of his employees. Wen the condesr
nation proceedings came along, they just abcut meant the end
for the enterprize.

Az part of the sale of the condemned land, the county
acquired, and turned over to the momument, all the posses-—
sions of '"Carp Pinnecles.” A1 of a sudden, the Patk
Service at Pinnacles found itself in the positicon of finding
a qualified concessiconzire for the Lodge and campgrqind.
Tney also found therselves with a great increase in land to
be adrinistered, hiildings to veprair, improvement of the
water supply and the almost non-efistent sanitary condi-
ticns, besides the nesd for bhuilding trails and roads in the

monarent .
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Chapter B

FERICD OF DEVELOPENT

Beginning in 1928, work began on severzl different
projects at Pimnacles Mational Momment, and would contirue
for as long as the funds held out—then halt—awsiting
additional funds to contimie the programs. This process
coptbimed until the First legislation creating public works
programs appeared in July of 1833, At this time Pinnacles
fell intos a share of the mongy designated for lmrovements
“0 be made in the national parks, moouments and naticnal
forests as 2 measure to give work to the unemployed and to
stimilate the flattensed economy.

Then in the first years of the Boosevelt administration,
bepinning in 1833, there was fMore [oney poaring out of
¥ashington than had ever been imagined possible for lmprove-
rents in naticnal conssrvation areas. The governmwent had
done a complate sbout—face, and the money was there for the
asiking. 1t was during these years, from 1228 1o tne late
1930's, that most of the road work, the Dullding of struc-
trres, trails and utilitarian facilities wers instituted at
the momrent.

In the vears Tollowing this period of development, toe
erpizasis has been on mintenance and renovation of those
existing facilities that had been inaugurated during that
period. The craftsmanship and hand labor that want not only

inte creating structurss, but into building the tralls,
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eaald not be duplicated on today's inflationary merket, nor
in an atmosphere of indifference. The coomon trapedy of the
depression pulled the pecple of the nation together, and the
rersonal trapedy of unerployment showed when & mED was given
a job. The Jjob bocame e syrbol of his seli-worth, and so

becammr a Jlabor of lowe.

Dinnacles Tralls

The first trail in Pinnacles Hational Momument was an
sncient Indian or Speanish trail that followed the Chalone
Creck until it branched off with the west fork. The trail
then followed the west fork of the Chalone to a campground
at the bese of the "Ralisades,” contimed up over the caves,
and then returned to the creek bed on the west side of the
LOTARENT . After the Copper Mountain Mining Comeany set
cleim to this section of land containing the "Falisades,”
fenced it off, amd then deranded a fee from anvome wishing
i enter their LBO acres, irmate citizens who testified that
the trail had been used by the public for mny years claimed
they should have a right—of-way owver this land as a public
thorcuzhfare. They protested to the National Park Service.

(ne who has never seen . the "Falisades," or Balconies
Canyon, can neverT envision the type of publie thoroughfare
the citlzens were referring to. S0 the Service fsli there
was nothing to be done since the trall was never docutented
as a road and was on private property.  Trail developrent

would Yeve to e done in the eastern portion of the
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mominent, in Bear Culch. The campgraind at the eastern emd
of the Balconies became known as "Old Pinnacles," as new
developrents in Bear Gulch sesmed to refer to 2 new moml-
rment. The first trail toat was developed in the easterm
portion of the park was one that went up Bear Gulch on the
north side of the canyom, over the caves, with 3ide trzils
10 the upper and lower caves. Tne trail then led through
the basin shere the present reservoir is located to the
camyon in the rear, or west end. It then dropped doem
through the canyon to eng at the western approach rcad up
Shirttail Canyon. It is not known exactly when this trail
was built, iut 1t wes probably  developed by the bome-
steaders. Tnis is the cnly trail shown on the diaprams that
accotgany ooth the 192% and the 1524 Presidential Proclame-
tigns that increased the size of the momnuent. {The
movernnent was discouraging travel to the Copper Mountain
Mining Company's aoldings, so would not have shown a trall
to 1d Finnacles.)

This trail, or some form of it, may have been in exis-
tenoce before Hermen Hermensen, the first custodian, was
giver a 3600 appropriaztion for trail work in 1922, but the
money was used to lmprove thé trail at least. Hermnsen was
aided in the trail improvement by one of his guides, Zotic
Mareott. [t is on this trail that Moses' Spring is found
and the discovery of ¥oses' Spring has becomz 2 legend at

Pinnacles.
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As the sTory goes, ihe two men were working on that
trail one very hot, dry day when they noticaed sore damp
earth a little asbowe the trail. Mareott said, as he raised
his pick over his head, "Moses smote the rock and water came
forth. I'l1l smite this one!™ Then he dug his pick into the
darp sarth and water begnn to come forth. The two men mude
A ¢cateh tasin for the water, amd Moses'™ dpring has ever
since been en oesis at the momument, where the climete is
hot and arid in the sumer conths.

Stephen Mather, Dirsctor of the Mational Park Service,
visited the Finnacles in 1824, B told the interested
promoters of the park of his regret for the lack of funds
available to aid the momument.

Trail work a2t the Pinnecles did not seriously begin
until after the wisit of fssistant Director of the Rark
Service, MHorace Albright, in 1827. After Albrignt's wvisit
care the word that moy improvements were in store for the
Pinnacles. By this time there was o new custodian, W.I.
Hawkins.

A vear after Albrignti's visit, the Chief of the Eagi-
nesring Olvision, Frunk A, Kittredge, came Lo survey the
needs of the mmarent. Thé locsl newspaper in Hollister,

the Evening Free lance, reported that the enpineer had been

taken on 2 three-bour horsebeck tour of the park by the
custodian, and talk began of seven to ten miles of trails

timt were being planned for Pinnacles. An engineer from



Kittredee's office came that fall to stake aut the proposed
trail, at almost the same time that Hawkins made z trip to
Washingion with a f£ilm taken by Dr. E.C. Sheldon of
Hollister, which showed the Bear (unlch Caves (upper, lower,
and middle), the entire camyon trail, and the roste of the
seven mile trail over the highest pesks. The report stated
that seven men were already working on that trail. Hewkins
proposed to show the film to Congress to obtaln tore appro—
priations for the park, armd upon his return it was reported
that the trip was successful.

The trail that had heen staked by the first trail
enpineer, A.B. Lewellen, (Associate Engineer from the San
Franciseo of fice of the National Fark Service), was o start
up Conder Guleh in a nmorthwesterly direction o the summit
of the rangs, then do®n the western slope to a Spripg in the
solthwest coraer of Sectien 34, and then clicb ino a Eneral
soitherly direction to the summit and descend to the old
trail in the northwest corner of Section 10. From this
point the location was to be carried on the socuth side of
the Bear Gulch Canyon To the headguarTers AIeS.

It was considered less eoatly to run the trail oo the
smth side of the canyon thaﬁ to improve the stesn grade of
the old trail on the north side of the canvon. Besides, the
new trail was to be primarily a horse trail, znd this way
the horses woild be separated from the pedestrians on the

north canyon trail.
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It was considered necessary by that enginesr to drop to
the spring in Section 34 becense it was the only water
salrce in the area. This reasoning was later discounted by
engineers who followed, painly because the spring went dry
before the really hot weather arrived. The "loop" trail, as
it would be called, opted for following the saddies belw®eén
the ridpes, and although this trail would be mre costly to
build because of tunnels and bridges reguired, it would be
shorter and more scenic.

The High Peaks Trail was gterted then, 1in 1928, The
first sections were miilt in three parts, and began up
Condor Gulch to the summit, aroind the eastern side of
Hawkins Peak, and to the saddle near the Fingeml. These
sections were complete by the end of 1830. Compressors and
comoressor orews were loaned from such parks as Sequoia and
Yoserite unti) May of 15831, when Finhacles purchased its own
compressor. Huch tire was lost when a borrowed compressor
was used in moving the eguipment in and oat, since they
were only able to use the rmachinery during the winter
months., The next sections of the tredil were started fram
the Bear Culch end, and cut the time required for the crew
to reach the work siie. The Ibridge at the Fipgers gorge was
built in 1932, AL the material was carried to the site by
oark rmles. The tunnel was ooopleted in 1833, There
rerained only one—guarter mile of trail to the surmit from

the tunnel to completes, as the two crews, working toward
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each other, would mest at the top. The five and one-half
mile trail was cocplete in 18033, except for some widening of
the trail betwesn the tunnel and the sumit, at Scoats’
Feak. Tae Highn Deaks Trail wes fipally completed in 19034,
A1l the work on this trail had been dons LY. smll five to
SEVEN [RI CTEWS.

In Decarber of 1929, engineer Allison van ¥. Dunn turned
in the plans and recaprendations for stairways and landings
to be ilt in the Bear Julch caves. The stairway would
connect the upper, middle and lower portiong af the caves.
The middle portion had never been cpened to the public
pefore. This would meke the caves part of the main Cave
Loop Trail, and would eliminate the side trips needed to
view the caves, ‘This would also eliminate the necessity of
climbing over the rocks, moking it safer for the visitors,
and eliminate the need for guides on ewvery excursion to the
caves., Tne work was started on the stairs in the caves In
1930, A1l meterial had to e carried to the site by horses
or miles, and all toe work bad to be by hand as the trail
was too marrow for the passape of a compressor. Concrete
waz decided upon as the best medium for censtruction, and
the work alwavs had to prn-::-:eed from the botton upward,
section by sSsciion, until the stairway and railiogs in toe
caves were completed in 1831, The trail past the caves to
the present dafm site consisted mostly of stalrs ait in the

natural rock, and was completed shortly eftersard. There
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rexained only the cwe cut—off trail to t_'ne camperalnds and
headquarters. The total cave loop trail was complete by the
say Day celebration of 1932, and had been the work of mostly
a sSix mn crew, due to The marrow confines of the area in
the caves.

late in 1833, Pinnacles received approval to house over
300 men with the Civilian Conservation Corps in Camp
Pinpacles, which was located at the presest Chalone Pienic
Area. In 1934, the QCC built the Chalone Trail, which led
frem the COC camp {(present Chelone Ficnic Area) to the High
Beaks Trail.

When, in cooperation with the (alifornia Division of
Forestry in 1833, it wes decided to erect a lookcutl station
on top of Chalone Peak, the OCC men madlt the Chalone Peak
Trail, and then & treil on to Scuth (halone Peak.

ey trails were contemplated during this period. r.
Hawking nad alweys wanted z trall up Frog Ganyon, but that
trall wes never mde. He also wanted a trail to conmect the
High Peaks Trail two the trail near the caves oo the west
zide, which mever meterialized. He had plans for stairs in
the west side caves that would zo directly to the tocp of the
caves shortly after entering at the esast end, but this plan
was held up afiter the county obtaiged title to the Copper
Mountain Mining Company land and was slow in gcrantiog an
sasement for the building of traills to the federal govern-

ment. Yhenh the scasement was finally received in 1342, a

182



treil wRs ailt to the caves on the west side, and the
cutaff trail ower the top of the caves was constructed
closer to the crees bed than the ancient trail had been.
The murpose in the chaoge of the location of the trail was
to avoid the mird sanctuary where the rare duck hawk, or
peregrine falecon, mede its nest. Then the old trail which
led deeper into the area was ocbliterated.

With the ootoreak of World War 11, visitatiog at the
rontment drastically decreased. The COC was atmadoned and
the smll staff at the momment did not have time to be
concerned with the building of trails, nar was there 2 need
for smdditional trails,

After the war, the citizens of Soledad, ever faithful
with their annual Soledsd picnic and their cries for im-
provements on the west side of the momument, began to Le
heard.

San Benito County fave the old Copper Mountain Mining
Company boldings to the Department of the Interior for
inclusion into the momuent in 1958, with a ninety-nine year
provicional lease deed. In 1965, 8s part <f the long-
proposed  developments planned in Finnacles'™ portion of
Migsion 'H6, and with funds from the BAccelerated TRiublic
Works Program, tie west side of the momment was devel-
oped. Part of this dewelooment included the ilding of the

Balconies Trail over part of the existing road that led up
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10 the western enfrance to the caves. The roadway was then
obliterated and only a foot trail now winds through the
beantiful camyon west of Machete Ridee.

Bear Gulch Trmil was campleted in 1872, This trail
eliminated a danger to visitors, who for thirty years hed
had to walk up Bear Guleh wia The road.

The latest trall at this writing a2t Finpacles Mational
Momurent was not constructed until 1875. The Juniper Canyon
Trail connects the west side with the High Peaks Trail. It
is curicus to note that this latest treil to be built leads
Dast ok Tree Spring-—ahich was the spring in the solthwest
corner af Section 34 that the firtst engineer, lLewellen, nad
staked out to be included as part of the original rmin loop

trail.

Buildings and Stmetures

In 1927 when word came that the Park Service was to
extend funde for the tuilding of trails at Finoacles
sational Momlsent, it was also stated that two uildipngs
were To ™ built frem the funds. One wes to he a ranger's
cahin and the other & public comfort station.

The two huildings were  begun in 1927, but were not
finished until late in 1829, In Allison wvan V. [unn's
report on the needs of the monument dated July 1, 1892, he
referred to the incamplete structurss at the park. The rock
exterior walls were left to be finished on the comfort

station {Building 18 at the upper pariting lot), and the
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estimted cost to finish the project was FE50 according to
Dunn. Toe roney To finish the restroom Dad come fvom funds
in the Smithwestern Momiments under the supervision of Mr.
Frenk Hnpxley. The tale of how the funds were acguired was
found in the Finmacles file H-14. A letter was written to
Mr. Pinkley on July 7, 1933, which read as follows:

Mr. Frank Pinkley,
Superintendent,
Southwestern Momments,
Coolidge, Arizona.

[ear ¥r. Fnokley:

We hawe Just received a wvery urgent request
from  Custodian  Hawkins of Plmnacles Tatiomal
Morument for $900 from the 1929 Momument appro-
priaticon with which to complete a wery mich needed
confort station at that mmament. Both DHMrector
Mather and Assistant Director (Field) Albright, who
remantly were at Sun Franclsco, promised to do
everyihing possible to obtin this monsy for aim.
Of the total appropriation of 35,000 for the
Frotection of Metionsl Momoments for the fiscal year
1829 323,666 mas ellotted to you for Zoutiwestern
Monumrents. The rempining §9,324 has bteen allotted
to waricus other momuments in very sell amounts.
It would be irpossible to reduce any of thesse allot-
ments since the wery mnimim of inprovement and
protection can be given with the limited funds
available,

We are wondering, in view of this emerzency,
whether you could not relesse 3500 of vour allotrment
to help aut Plnnacles. If yoa can, please submit a
recawendetion for a change in Qutline of Work
suowing what orojects are to be reduced.

© Hlacerely vours,
(Zigned) AE. Temuray
Azgistant to the Director
Toe money for the completion of the Flanacles comfort
gtation was fortheamng, but not without Mr. Pinkley adding

his tauch of sarcasm:
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Pipe Sprinz Mational Womument
July 26, 1928

The Nirector,
Mational Park Service,
Washington, D.C.

Cear Mr. Director:

I have Service letter of July 7, 1828, fram
¥Mr. Demaray, regarding the transfer of 500 from the
funds of the southwestern nmoruments to the Finnacles
Metionel Momument so Mr. Hewkins can cooplete & much
needed comiort station.

I can spare 3300 just aboit as aicely as I
could spare an arm or g leg. In the 17 monuments
under my charge we nevxd about 30 comfort stations,
some of which we hawve not yet bteen able to build for
lack of funds and none of thotse we have bullt have
cost 1o exceed 325, also becanse of lack of funds.
If we bad $500 lying araund loose we would build 2
mstodian's residence witn it.

The conly Way to pet 3BO0 cut of my funds is to
g0 right in with = wrecking Dar and pry it loose,
setting work back for another year. It isn'i & case
of scalping a pupdred nere and another thers; the
only possibie place io take it is mt aof tha 1290
Repairs to Ruins and the only job under 1280 which I
am willing to sacrifice and set my work back a year
iz ar the Case Grande Mational Mormurent.

You may therefore transfer the 3500 which we
tave alletted undsr 1220-Repairs to HRaians, Casa
Grande lMetional Momment,  49404-Protection of
Hational Momuments, 1828, to Pianacles Mational
orurment..

Cordially yours,

Frank Pinkley,

Supt. Southwestern Monunents

The ranger residence was started at the same time as the

firgt confort station. In Dunn's report of July 1, 1922, he
statal work v¥et to be dona on that ‘ailding: The rock
exterior; front porch of concrete amd wasonry: plumbing To
connect with water mins and septic tank, the building of a

sepric tank apd the palating of the interior w2lls--an esti—

mted cost to complete, sccording to Dunn, of 51,999,

135



The total cost of the original tilding sccording to park
records was 54,80, The criginal building was a two rocm
cabin. John B. Wosky was the landscape architect #who came
T the momunent from time to tire to oversee the construc-—
tion of these Wuildings and the rock misonry. Mitural stone
steps and a retaining wall in the redar wers Wuilt when the
cabin was findshed. The grrage and a woodshed were builf in
1934 after which the driveway was widened and improved. The
residence garage is Building #23. |

In [ecembsr of 1937 work wes underwny which adderd ‘t'i’cr
oS o the rear of the posidence and put 2 new roof on the
huilding-—in additicn to other inside remcdeling.

Building #2, the Ranger Pesidence, as it is now known,
was agrin remydaled in 1957 when camercial electricity was
introdueed into the momment. At that time, the »alls were
fiberbeard and the floors wers douglas fir and linoleum.

In 1847, a2 propeane furnace was installed with panel-ray-
promng electric hot water heater, and the house was roofed
with cement shingles. The milding was azain oonpleiely
renovated on the imside in 1878, which remulted in A three—
hedroon, wood-panelled home.

After the acquisition of the first lands in 1931 through
the condemation oroceedings instituted oy Sin Benito
County, which they donated to the mpmiment, a second confort
station was erected at the foot of the trail which led up

Condor Qulch. At this time, stone steps were tuilt leading
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up to both of the comfort stations. This is Mnown as
Bailding #17 {(the first coafort station is Bailding #18).
Tne two Wiildings were rehsbilitated and new fixtures in-
stalled in 1951, HNew yolled paper roofs were put on the
huildings at this tige. Comerceial pover wiring was in—
stalled in 1957, and in 1870, new composition roofs were
sdded. The total estimeted originel costs of each of the
mildings was $6,323.

The Ranger Residence and the two comfort stations are
three of the uildings at Pinnacles Mational Momumeni that
appear to qualify for Maticnal Register of Historic Flaces.

Vhen PBinnacles acguired the additionsl land in 1831,
thev also acquired the Lodge that had been uilt by the Canp
Finnacles Company in 1925 and four smaller buildings that
had been used bBY the mnagers for storage and for living
quarters.

The lodpe was situzted under the cak trees io the center
of the present parking lot, acrcss the creet fram the
Vigitors' Centar. Toree of the smll muildimgs, or sheds
were east of the lodege, and the fourth was beyond the creek
near the site of the Visitors' Center. The lodme was a
large square shaped b.lilding' with windows all arcund. The
kitchen was an the east side, and douwble French Type doors
faced the front on the angrth side. There was a muge stone
fireplace on the south side of the tuilding. The roof was

supported by a large pole in the center of the room. It is
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not known whether the stone facing on the cutside of the
Iodge was part of the original bullding or was added after
the Park Service acquired the place, but the stone veneer
went to the heichit of the windocws.

The Lodge was first operated as 2 concession of the
ronurent by Bell Hain and ¥argaret Weir for 2 short time.
Then, Mrs. ¥eir todk over the management by herseli. Mrs.
Weir continued as mapnager of the Lodpge until 1936,  Hrs.
Gene Prewett then was the concessionaire until 1537 when
Mrg, Hazel James took over the rmnagement. Mre. James
stayed with the managemsnt of the Lodge throagh the bleak
World War Il vears, after which she sold her interest to
Mrs. Anderson. Mrs. Anderson did not stay at the Lodee nore
thap a year or two. The lodge was last cperated in 124H.
In the late 1940's the tuilding was falling into such need
of repairs that it was Jdifficult to get anyone interssied in
taking cver the job—and the government did not feel that it
wanted to invest any more meney in the place. Even shen
someone woeld cane along who would be willing to spend the
money necessary to restore the milding, they waere deterred
by the fact that there wes still no electricity at the
formment. 5o the Park Serviée gold the Duildings at bid in
1853 to rneighboring rancher Art Sedti.

There wore many pecple who hated to zee the old Lodge
go! They admit that it wes not much & o tmildiag in the

latter years, ut it was a place to father in the evenings
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to just =it arcaund and telk. Waoy fond memories of the
Pinnacles Icdege are held by former park personnel and
isitors.

In 1832 when the news came to Pinnacles that they would
recaive 350,000 for & new road to be bailt up Beazr Gualeh,
ami that the project would ampley 200 men, the biggest
[roblem facing the new plans for develcpment was the lack of
hoising for those workmen. Housing had always been a pro-
blem even when the mmkers of workmen were five or sgven—
when the work on the trails was started. S0 before the men
could %2 hired to lmild the roed, it was decided to erect
ten wood frame cabins south of the Bear Guleh Creck alcong
the flat east of ithe Lodge where the concessionai.re had &
=eries of tent frame cibine used for tourists. Five of the
cabinz sere to be larger, 16 feet by 18 feet, and the
resaining five walld measure 12 feet by 18 feet. The larger
and smller cabins were separated Wy a comfort station. A
crew¥ of twenty carpenters and ten crrpenters’ helpers began
workk on the cabins in October of 1982, and the buildings
were finished in Jamary of 1233, The cabins that sat ina
row would house many of the men constructing the road, and
later they wauld he used as tourist cabins. The original
cost of the cabing was 3500 each. In 1837, the cabins had
showers and toilets installed by the Civilian Cojlservetion
Corps (GOCYy. It was at thatT time that the wuildiogs were

shifted on their foundations and 2 stone veneer was Luilt
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to the bheight af the windows o make the cabins more
architecturally plessing. The cabias were rempdeled several
tires (1937, 1934, 1857, and 1973), until they are oow
mdern offices and residences that hardly bear any ressr
blance to the ariginal structures.

Building #4, Operations, later Diztrict Banper Offiece,
was formerly Building #1. Building #5, Corference Room, was
formerly Building #2 (the Administrative Offlce). Building
#6, the 3uperintendent's Office, bxgan as Building # it
was commined with Building #1, (cne of the smll calbins) in
1957 to mke it the present size, and served as an efployes
regidence fram 1957 to 1974, and as Admianistrative Office
fron 1974 o 1979.. Brilding #7, employee residence, was
cambined with cabin #1% (formerly #9) in 1957 w mke the
present  three room  residence, and was formerly cilled
Building #4. Buildine #8 (formerly Building #%), an
mplovee residence was the last of the larger cabins and was
known in recent yvears as the “Boys' Dorm,' until 187 when
it became the "Girls' Dorn' Building #@ (formerly Building
A7y, in Mday of 1974, was moved to the mintenance area oOn
Cralone Creek, put on a permnent slah foundation, oguipped
with a rest room, in addition to other improvements, and
hecame an office in the shop aren, Puilding #0 (formerly
Building #8) is the cabin that sits up on the hill and ia
the goncessonaire devs was called the "Honeysmon Cabin,™

TMiis cabin #ws the "GErls" Dom™ wntil 1978 shen it becanme
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the "Boys' Dorm.” Building #13 (fonmerly Building #10), the
Interpretive Lab or the "Maturslist's Snack," is the last of
tie ten origindl cabins bollt in 1902 apd although the
inside has besn remdeled sevweral times, it is the omly one
af the original ten cahins whose exterior remins tAsically
untouched——it even retains the original casement windows.
Buildings #'s 4, 3, 6 and 7 had concrete zlab front porches
with a pipe framed canvas roof. In 1977 when the buildings
aoquired new asbestos shingle roafs, frame parch roofs were
tailt and also covered with asbestos shingles.

Building #14 (formerly #18) was the last of the original
ildings erected in 1952 under the CWA program. It was the
restroom and shower room for the men working on the new
road. After the read was built, the kuilding was converted
into men's and wamen's restrooms, WwWith entrances on the
north and east sides of the building for the tourists that
stayed in the cabins. After there was Do longer & CONces—
sicneire, the Wuilding was converted in 1957 to a laundry
roan for employess on the east side of the building and &
storage room on the west side of the ilding. In 1878,
remxdeling beman on Building #14 to convert the former
comfart station into offices to hnause the Chief Hanger,
Chief of Miintenance and Administrative Officer, in addition
to providing space for a laundry room, 2 gtorage room, and
storage for Building #7 residents. 4 twelve oot sguare

addition was added to the east side of the boilding; the

132



rear of the addition woald contaln the laundry and smplovee
storage, and the front would be the janitor storage. Then a
twelve Ty thirteen foot addition was constructed cn the west
side of the miilding which wou.lﬁ increase the office space.
4 four foot covered walkway was built the length of the
"new” Building #14., This was quite an advancement for a
building that was being considered for confiscation in 1954
for its lvmber becanse it was felt that it had served its
usefulness.

The next huilding program to get under way at Pinnacles
started whep it was learned that the monument would be
selected as a site for a Civilian Conservation Corps carp
(OCC) in 13, Officers from the Monterey Presidio came to
supervise the work of ten cerpenters, five helpers fram
Hollister, and OCC men w#ho Dailt the camp on the Chalone
Creck, at the site later used a2s e park campgroands. The
btuildings that were erected almost overnight to accomodate
the expected 200 OOC enrolless consisted af: four tarracks,
30' mach; a recreation/mess hall; executive officers quar—
ters, 103" by 20'; two lavatories and a dryer, 42' by 20°;
and a cooler, 18" by 20°. ‘These buildings havwe all been
dizmantled. The camp latar inchaded a rachine shop (18383,
and an equipment shed and garage, B0' by 24' (1234). These
two baildines remain stamding and are used btoday as pare of
the Chalone Creek nmaintenance area, as Baildings #300 and

7301. Two retnining buildings in the shop arew, #3059 and
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#3068, were tuilt in 1837 in the Chelone Annex as powder and
cap mmazines, and moved to the meintenance area in 1977 to
e used for feed storace amd rpoint storage, respsctively.
Building #302 in the muintenance area, used for Years as a
paint storzge shed and at present sServing as a Tack roan,
my have been from the old OCC ecamp. Finally, a prefabri-
cated metal storage miilding for smnitation supplies, #3l7,
was built in 1965 at Chaparval as & generator building, =od
was moved to Chalone mpintepance ared in 1975,

Cne of the first buildings erected by the CCC men at
{arp Piopacles was an egquipment shed in the Condor Galch
aren, then known as the utility area. This wuilding w»=s
erected in 1934 apd wos Building #2001, Imforbunately, this
wiilding was destroyed by fire in 1953 by a ocreless
anployee Wio, it was suspected, was stealing property left
fran +he former concessionsr days. There were many of the
park records also stored in this equipment shed that became
lost to future nistorians. That eguiprent shed was com-
pletely rock-faced, as are the two remriping bulldings in
that area that were erected in the mid 12680's.

Boilding #200, the fire cache, wes erected in 1935 as
an cilhouse, complete with gas pumps in front of the
i el e The oﬁgina.l cost of the two room, opletely
stope-faced tuilding was $1,000. In 1956 the pumps were
reroved and the milding wired for electricity in 1271, The

milding has since heen used as a fire cache.
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Building #202 in the Condor Guleh sares, uSed now for
storage, was originally & horse barm bailt in 1936, and had
three atalls, a feed room, and 2 corral behind the
building. The Wilding is alsc completely rock-faced. The
stone meson on these uildings was o Mr. Mofdams,

The fire cache and the horse tarn in the Condor Gulch
area of Pinnacles National Momirent are two more examples of
rustic architecturs in the Western Reglon of the Mational
Tark Service that appear to gualify for the Metional
Register of Historic Places, apd are proudly preserved by
the staff at the ronurent.

1935 sy the Mmilding of a fire lockout on fcp of
Chzlone PBeak, built by the COC, alsc completely stone-faced
and menned by the California Division of Forestry. i was 2
beautiful example of the Fark Bervices' rustic architecture,
it unfortunately this blilding was destroved by fire in
1851, ‘The California Division of Forestry erected a new,
tore modern, wnite iframed structure in 185¢.  This three
story building is Building #4402,

Pinnacles Mitional ¥Momment's Visitors' Centerx, Building
¥, was started in 1936 and was 95% cospleted by the end of
that vear. The uilding was Ir::rj.gina.ll:,ir called "Dwelling for

ficial Wisitors." Becanse of a feared shortape of the
gray rock which was used for the veneer on all the other
bildings, this building was faced with cut green wvoleanic

rock wnich seemed to be in abundance in the Chalone Creek
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area where a truck trail was being tuilt. The milding
consisted of two rooms with fireplaces and mths, The land-
scape architect, R.L. McKown, explained that while the green
rock was a very bright color at the time, he felt that with
weathering the color would tone down and not be as notice-
ahle. On this acecount, Mr. McoKown was mstaken, as the
precn hiilding is as attractive tocday as 1t was in the
beginning. Mr. McEowm was also the architect who ordered
the cabing {0 b moved on their foundations to be nore
pleasing in appegrance by fitting the topography of the hill
behind them.

Robert QOliver who worked at Pipnacles in 1940 and 1841
as & junior clerk-typist tells of one of the rare times when
the momurent was visited by an official from Washington.
frmo B. Gaewerer, the Director of the Xtional Fark Servica,
oraced the smll mooument with a visit in 1940, Mr. Hawkins
was showing the Director around the park and et last came to
the little green Wilding, sitting there glisteniog in the
sun, of which Mr, Hawkins was very proud. "And what is this
huilding® aesked Canmerer. "This is ir 'Dwelling for
Official Visitors'," was the reply from Mawkins. Cammerer
exploded; "'Dyelling for Official Visiwrs,' who ever
apgroved plans for socrething like that?! The men went
inside the 1Little house, which at that time sas already
being partially used for an office, and dug cat the plans

for the green uilding. There, scrawled io big letters
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under the heading "Approved by," was the name "Arno B.
Carmerer.” Bt nevertheless Mr. Cammerer was not heppy with
the title of the wuilding, and from that time on, the
buiiding became the Headquarters, until in 1968 when
Orerations was moved to PBailding #4 and, io 1874 when
Administration was moved to Building #6. Oliver states chat
tir. thwkins used one rooam of the bailding, wshich Oliver
aiways referred to as the "boar's nest," and he and Rager
Walter Powell used the west side rom for their desks aml
files.

In 19741978, the inside was remodelsd and the porch
enclosed as a vestitlle with & single door, where previoisly
both rooms had doors enitering off of the porch. The owo
rooms were pRde into orne largs room. At this time the mreen
building becare the Visitors' Center of the park. The
Visitors' Center is a nominse for the Mational Hegister of
Historic Flaces.

The pit toilet on the High Peaks Trail is Bullding #4000
and was built in 1937 by a COC spike camp. The stone—-faced
80 sauare foot structure originally cost 33,000,

Building #40G is another pit toilet built by the COC cn
tp of Chalone Beak and is alse stone vensered. The origi-
nal cost was $554.29. This structure and the fire tower ere
maintained by the California Department of Forestry under a

gpecial use permit.
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The one ramining pit ftoilet in the mnment iz the ane
of frame constriction located at tine entrance station for &
cost of §50. The estimted date of construction is 1957,

Building #12 is the Saperintendent’s Residence of which
the faundation and frame were started in 1941, It was
always believed that the S=cond World War and the shortage
af help and supplies were the resson that the building was
never ommpleted unzil 1949, The original plans called for
this huilding t have a stone veneser but because of the
shortage of help, the 'pla_ns wore altered and the residence
rameins 4 twostory wood frame holss.

In an interview with Bobert Oliver, the former emoloyes
gave a somewhat Jdifferent light {o the subject of the con-
struction of the Superintendsnt's residence. Mr. Oliver is
of the gpimion that Mr. Hawlkdns was not aggressive enough in
applying for the funds for the building. Oliver stated that
the plans were reazdy and approved, it because Mr. Hawkins
did not press the mtter, the funds went to Yosemite
Mational Park, wherse Yosemite built another of their many
amloyee residences. So Bullding #19 sat in a partial state
of construction until a more aggressive superintendent
misned for its completion in I1949.

Building #20 is a wooished orielnally erected to lilSe &
poYer-plant at the superintendeni's residence at the time of

that tuilding's completion.
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The criginal cosT of construetion of the superin-—
tendent's residence was 57,250,200,

Building #25, the 45 sguare foot entrance station was
constructad in 1953 at Yosemite Mational Patk and mved to
Pinnacles where it was placed in the aree of the Lodes. The
cost of constraction was $715.33. It was originally known
as Building #600. Becau=e of the shortage of employees at
Pinnacles, it was felt that the location on the edge of the
Loxige parking lot would ceke it easier to mn. It was on e
portable foundation, and when the decision was made in 1957
to move 1t to the entrance road next to Chalone Creek, it
was put on a permanent foundation. The entrance station is
not equipped with & telephone, but nas a poriable Tadio.
Comrercial power was installed in 1973,

Drior to this entrance station and the Visitors' Center,
there was a smell frame tuilding that sat at the bottom of
the hill where the comfort station near the upper patiog
1ot is. This sguare building nad windows all arcund znd was
located to the west of the par@ing lot in a shady spot.
Tais maildiog served as a visitor informmtion center in the
late 1850's. There are pictures in existence aof tTais
milding, mit it is not km:im when it was dismentled.

Building #4311, the water pump hoise, was constructed of
concreta block on Chalone Cresk in 1959 by contract, the

original cost being &7,325.35.
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The comfort station at  (halone Creek Campgroand
(Building #3(®) and the Chalone Annex comfort station
(A310Y, both 400 square feel, were Diilt in 1961, amd cost
513 ,802.45 and S13,895.73 respectively. In 1977, #3(B vas
the first building in Pinnacles to be tﬁmﬂe]red for handi-
capped access. Tae Chalone Creek Campground was converted
to a picnic ares in 1979,

Follewing Yorld War II, facilities in all the Xational
Farks were so badly tun down and so inadequate to the
suddenly increased visitation, that the then Uirector of the
iBtional Park Service, Conrad L. Wirth, went to Congress
with the whole sad story, and received appropriaticns for a
rejor 10-year program of reconstruction and construction.
Imitiatad in 1956, it was known as "Mission 68.Y The
Chalone Creek canpercand and Annex comfort stations resulted
2% a part of Pinnacles' snare of Mission 66 funds.

Iut the most important Mission 66 development Was on the
west side, at Cheparrtal. In the final year of the improve-
rent program, 1966, the road was paved, and a sewer sysiem
and 2 water ovstem with 20,000-gallon storage ook wers
installed. A canppround and comfort station (Puilding #318)
were built. A trailer (Ruilding #505) was travsfered from
the 301l Conservation Service for use as 2 ranger station/
residence, with a ramds (shade roof) over it and a garage
for the ranger vehicle {(Building #05, of shich more later).

A gmll shed was Dilt partway up Juniper Canyon, to hodse a
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vanerator, but in 1974 it was judged that this little “power
house"” was seen and heard fram the High Feaks Trall, and was
therefore intrusive. & new building {#521) was begun in ‘74
near the ranger trailer, and finished in '75; it is a main-
tenance shop and generator milding cobined. When it was
completed, Building #517 was moved out of Juniper Canyon, to
Chalone Creek Maintenance Area.

In 1971, the garage at Chaparral (Building #4520} was
elevated to the status of a public contact station, althocgh
the parage doors remined; it received a concrete floor.
Then in 1975 the marape doors were recoved and replaced with
a door having & Ej_l.idiﬁg window; the original counter was
replaced with & partition w form a district office; and a
new sign on the front announced, "Chaparral Ranger Station.”

As the staff at Pinnacles increased and the eabins in
Bear (mlch beman to te used for office uildings, living
guarters for employees again became a problem at the momu-
rent. To =olwve this problem seweral mobile homes have teen
roved into the park. DBailding #203, a 550-square-foot 1962
Kit, was transferred from the Buresn of Reclamation in 1267,
and placed first in Condor Culen, then in 1972, in Bear
Guleh between cabing #10 an;:i #13., TFinally in '76 it was
moved to the Chelone Cree Area near Suilding #¥300, Also in
76, a storage shed and overall rameda were added.

In Condor Guleh, Muilding #204, a3 dwuble—wide 1862 Eit,

was tranaferred from Buvean of Baslaration in 1968,
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Building #2053, the other mobile home in Condor Galch, iz &
1,320-square-foot [ehll Indistries aroduct, purchased 1n
1972,

Building #2068 iz a 1980 Skyliner mobile home that was
transferred from Saguaro Mational Momiment in 1977, and sits
in Bear Gulch on the fommer site of #203.

The latest nobile home addition at Pinnecles iz Building
#5056 at Chaparral, a 1974 Kaufman and Broad that houses the
Chaparral Distriet Fanger {the second ranger position on the

west side).

Other Structures

As one enters Pinnacles National Momument he is struck
by the majestic scene of thes Pionacles as viewsd from
between the "Creen Hocks,” or the entrance pylons on each
zide of the road. The pylons were Duilt 25 en Erergeoncy
Conservation Work project in 1835, cut of the voleanic green
stone that has become a symbol of the ronument. The form
they take is the original design, which is of solid cut rock
with cne pylon ruch taller than the other one. The comple—
tion of these pylons sertved 25 an atiractive motil to the
entrance to the momrent. Construction of the entrapce road
vave 2 Ffinal grade between the pylons and diminished the
height of the stons work.

The dam that was started in 1934 was to fomm 2 recrea-
tional reservoir. By the end of thet wvear, MEN Were

erployed in scaling the rock facing so that when the
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concrete was poured in place there would be the proper
contact bebwsen the concrete and the exdsting stone walls.
The dam was built by a OOC spike camp.  Supplies were
braught in on 2 service road from the west side, upstrean
frcm the dam.  Air hammers were used in the preparation
work. The original dam was built to a heipht of twenty-five
feet. It was then decided To add an additional ten feet to
the dam, but the final plans were approved to extend the dam
gixtesn feet in height. Yhen the concrete bridpe crossing
the top of the dam was built, it brought the dam to o height
o that it was practicable To kuild a trail across the top
of the dam. This trail then becams the start of the Cnalone
Doaw Trail. The old Chalone Pesk Trail had before this
started in the vicinity of the Ranger's Residence. After
the dam was heightensd, the cold part of the trail was
obliterated., Tne dam was complated in 1307, it the rock
facing to the complete heipht of the dam was not completed
until 187E.

The "recreational” dam above the Bear Culch Caves never
gquite fulfilled its orginal purpose. The water in the
reservoir became stagnant and produced a very affeusive
odor. The water was let cut by permmnent overflow turough-—
cut the year so that thers was always water Tunning througn
the caves, passing the six small coaversion dams below. The
water also served the utilitarian use of flushing ihe

toilets in the comfort stations. But the offensive odor
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probibited the use of the reservoir for recreational
DUTPOSes. It took moy studies Iy varicis engineers to
arrive at 2 means of controlling the stench one encountersd
when entering the caves.

A{ one time it was considered that the dam shculd be
destroyed, bringing the Msin in which it sat back to its
original state, becanse it served no useful purpose. But
now it has been decided the dam shculd be saved for its
esthetic value, and it is on the list of struetures at the
mourent nosinated to the Matienal Repister.

The Chalone Cresit Sridge was plamned in 1834, apd is one
of the finest exumples of the mistic architecture of the
Par% Serice in the momunent. The Wilding of the bﬁdge
facilitated a chaonel change in flow of Chalone Creek. This
nyt only =nablied the channel of the cresek to be improved to
rect the requirements of the new road, @it enabled the
rmterial taken frem the new chamnel t©o e placed on a
portion of the approved section of the Chalone Creek Toad,
serving as & portion of the grading material. The bridge
was & Fablic Works Administration (DWA) project and was
corpleted in 1236,

The question of WEE.thET‘—IfE.CEd stone in relaticon to the
percentage of guarcy stone came up. Te weather-faced
stones which were obtainable nsar the bridge site zre of two
varieties: those that have a smooth face and those which

have a rouch face. With both kinds of stone available, and
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considering that the quarried stones were of a rough-face
texture, it seemed advisable 1o select the rougn-faced
weathered stones to harmonize with the roagh gquarried
stones.

The plags were altered very slightly in _the mtter of
the coping line. The foreman, Mr. Boles, questicned the
necessity of Tequiring a slope on the top of each wall
abutment. The landscepe architect agreed with the foramn
and even preferred a f£lat coping line. This would also
reduce the working time required in cutting the slope. The
Chalone Creek Bridee is a beautiful example of the cut-Stone
masonry that was done during the developmental period of the
monment. Interviews with former CGOC men inform us that
while the stone for the bridge was cut by the OO0, Italian

stone resons actually laid it.

Roads

With the annoancemsnt in 1932 that Pinnacles was due oo
receive 356,000 under the Civil Works Administration (CWa)
for the construction of an entrance road that would lead up
Bmar CGulch, the mooument became a bastling scene of activi-
1y . The n=w road consisted of 1.16 miles of unsurfaced
roadway along a stesp hillside, the mjority being on & six
percent zrade, connecting at the lower end through 2,750

feet of old park road with the county road at the =ast park
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boindary, zod tepminatipg =t the Pinnacles lodee. The work
wos 411 done under the supervisiaon of the Braoch of
Engineering, San Francisco.

Prior to 1924 very few visitors came to the nmomument
through Bear Quleh, the only access Deing 2 foob trﬁil along
the ¢enerazl line of the letier road.

In 1924, approximiely one guarter mile of roadway was
milt by hand labor bty a few homesteaders who had acquired
certain sections of land adjacent to the ronunent. The
roadway was some twelve feet wide end began at the foot of
the hill one guarter mile north of the junction of Chalone
Creedt ared Bear GQuleh.

In 18925 Zan Benito County appropriated a sum of oonsy
and cranted a contract to the OGranite Rock Company of
Watsomville w0 cooplete the oconsiruction of the ten to
twelve foot roadway Irom the end of the quarter mile section
aaipleted in 1224 to the site of Pinnacles Lodge.

Toe mumber of visitors increased every year, mKing it
imperative %l a wider, safer read be huili, eliminating
the parpcw Steep one—way controdl road.  The funds for the
new road came from the onployment relief measure aof the
Hoover Administraticn. |

The proposed road would begin at the intersection of the
county road at the east boundary of the monunent, then
extend in & northwesterly direction along the left side of

Chalone Creek to a point mear the foot of the old control

208



road, then in & southerly dirsction, crossing Chalone Cresk
—then along the billside for one guarter of a mile; thep in
s westerly direction aleng the left of PBear Gulch to the
foot of the trail system aboat 1,300 feet above Pinmacles
lodge. The preliminary location was mpde by Englneer Liehl
in 1901-1832; the peper location was made in the Brench of
Fpgineering Office in Cotober of 1932—the man in cherge of
the engineering party being Assistant Engineer C.0. Roberts.

Tha width of the new roadway measured twelve feet in
embankment and twelve feet in ezcavation. A minirum grade
of wix percent was adopled--this grade was exceeded by 0.31
percent for 170 feet in one location. A minimm curve
radius of 200 feet was specified with the exception of the
Cnalone Creex curve erossing, which has a radius of 130.78
foat--311 adjacent right and lefthand curves are separated
by gt least 100 feet of tangent.

Inasfar as possible and practicable the Jocation was 30
made as to obtain a talance between the excavation end and
eppaiment. Special effort was made to 111 and obliterats
the old one way road where it followed the general line of
the naw road location. The location was also rade to avoid
Trees with special mcmtioﬁs being taken during construg-—-
tico to protect trees and smll growth peside the new
rotdwary.

On October 20, 1932, a2 pround-breaking ceromony was held

undar the direction of the Charnfers of Conmpree of thllister
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and neighbaring towns, dedicating the project to the relief
of unemployment. The first showel of earth was turned by
ustodian ¥.I. Hawkins., A large gathering of Tesidents of
3an Benito caunty and adjoining counties was present o hear
the mumber of guest speskers there that day.

The Wollister and neighiboring Charbers of Cammerce were
respensible for the hiring of deserving men for the jobs.
With the excepticn of a few special men who were employed
six days peT weekk, the period of work-week wes three eight-
hour deays. Working in two shifts, sach shift worked an
average of one mundred men for the first four months, then
gradually reducing to about forty when clozing the job early
in April 1933.

Generally, all laborers were men with dependents, resi-
dents of nearly communities wno, with occasional weeding cut
af poor help, becare experienced amd efficient construction
men. The wage scale for laborers was $i.12 per day, with
alightly higher tates up to $5.00 per day for speclalized
labor. Sub-foremen, mechanics and carpenters were paid
35.60 per day, Furlougn deductions were mide 1n all wages
exceeding $3.12 per day. All men cared for their cwn trans-
portation to and from the job. To perrit more =fficient
handling of the organization, &1l wages with the exceplion
of sub-foramn and rechanics were reduced, Decenber 1, 1825,
to 53.12 par hour; this permitted _the transier of men Lo the

work for which they wers best fitted.
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Eacn emplovee mid a charge af twenty cents for each day
employved when quartersd in one of the ten cabins or the
twelve fent quarters. A labor camp supplied with water and
sanitary convenlences was provided near (halone Creek for
tha laborers preferring to camp.  Miuch of the nearby labor
came to the work daily from their homes.  Meals were pro—
vided for S1.00 per day or thirty-five cents sach by the
operator of the lodze, for those desiring them.

Srall tools used on the work inelnding camp eguipment
were purchased for the joh, while the Jlarger equipment was
rented from Yosemite Mational Fark (rental being paid for
tha time operated). This larger eguipment incloded: two
t¥Oo-hamIer Air ocdnpressols; one onse—hammer 41T COompressor;
one ane and gne-half ton truck, one ten HoP. and one thirty
H.P., tractor; twwelve tents with flies; air hammers; air
hose; blasting tteries; ©wo nolsts and shop tools; aod all
repair oosts including labor and parts.  Yosemite MNational
Park assimned a mechanic o the job and paid his wages for
such Time as gploved on agulprment repair and reintenance.

About 3,000 feet of lipht track and 3/4 and l-yard dump
cars wepre loansed by the Pacific Portland Cement Corpany of
San Juan Bagtista, while & fé!ﬂ mine cars were loaned by the
M Idria uicksilver Mining Company.

Besides the fiwve 16 x 18-foobt and five 12 x 14-foot
cabins that were built to house the laborers, a supply and

aquiprent shed, a powder bouse and five 16 x Z20-foot tent
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platfoms were set up. The [odge kitenen was enlarged, food
storame space improwved, and new cooposition roof was laid.
Water supply was extended to these strctures to provide
firse protection, and =sewer was extended so disposal was
provided for.  The telepbone line was relocated to aut of
the way of construction.

A temporary portable trestle was used in meking the
twalve—-foot fill across Chnalone Creek, the material being
dumper  directly in place. This tesmporary trestle was
constructed to carry the tralns over the creek.

There were six 1B=inch amd one 24-inch corrugated
galvanized iron culverts installed. Concrete intakes were
constructed on two of these, covered with cast iroo
arating. About 200 feet of four inch terra cotia drain tile
was placed along the toe of the slope, and the trench heck-
filled with broken rock.

There were four 100-foot test zections prepared where
several types of curbs and gutters were constructed and the
Toad was paved. Various colors to conform to the rock and
roadway wers used on thesse sectiohs—ithe color teing pui on
after pouring and filoated in. The two—inch bitumen penetra-
tiocn top with & rock sacreening gurface was carried out on
the test sections in 1933. The Regional Hngineer, Themas C.
Carpenter, was guite upset to find that the foreran hed gone

ahead without approwval and finished construction of all the
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test sections, instead of one section at a time and waiting
until each section could be tested.

Stone open wells were ilt around a few trees standing
in the tce of emtankments, and trees in danger of injury by
rock fran blasts apd stone Wmilt-in slopes were protected by
planking. Planting with toyon berries and buckeyes was
carried mt on the exbankments, and watering of this
planting was from a spring.

after tne entrance road to Bear Gulch was ocompleted,
work began on finishing the section of road from the
entrance to Chalone Cresk, aml a separate contract was let
for the paving of that section of road, as was also the case
when the road was fionished froam the lodge 1o the upper
parkine lot, past the picnic area.

The roid =section to the Chalone Camppround was started
late in 1983 and completed shortly theresfter. This road
was fagilitated by the news that the monument was to be the
recipient of one aof the (CC camps and the road was built to
acomodate that camp, to be located on the site of the later
Coalone Campgroand (now Chalone Picnic Arem}.

A track trail wes always cohigamplated by Qustodian
Hawkins to Old Finnacles ffun the road's end at the OOC
camp. Mach work went into the preliminary bailding <f this
truck trail, bat there #Was always mmueh opposition by the
landscape Architect Ddvision to this truck route. Toe

Wildlife Livision was 2lso in oppositionr to this road
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because it would intrude on the nesting place of the rare
peregrine faleon., It was Hewkins' drean that eventually the
truck trail waild becare part of the cross—momument road
that would conpect the east and west sides of the park viaz a
tunnel under the Balconies. This road was finmally closed to
antomotive travel and converted to a pedestrian path, part
of the trail to the west cide caves and Balconies.

Curing the tuilding of the dam above Bear Gulch Caves,
thare was 2 truck trail which led down the canyon west of
the lake, the same site as the treil constructed by the
homes teaders. terials for the dam wer= brought up this
trail from the road on the west side of the monument. hen
the dam was completed, this service trail was obliterated
and closed to vraffic.

Another truck trail was ilt to the summit of Chalcne
Peuk when the Lockont Tower was Deing contructed in 1855,
amd The trail was restored to its matural state after the
towar was confleted. For many years the person manning the
Lockount had to bave suppliss hauled to him by pack mules or
Lorses, but the Park Service finally consented to let the
state of California tuild an unobtrusive truck trail to the
tower for the purpose of carfying supplies o the Lookout.

¥ith the developrent of the roads within the momument by
the federal government, the county of San Benito and the
state improved the approach rcads to Pinpacles. In 1934 and

1935, the bridge over Willow Creek and the new road up Bear
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Valley grade were improved and miilt, and raite 146 leading
to the momuneot was surfaced. The road from Hollister to
Coalinpa, Route 25, was mude a secondary state highway, the
diTline Hipghway.

In 1065, when the Fark Service expanded facilities to
include the west side, the county of Monterey and the state
improved the approach road from Soledad to Pipnacles. Fart
of the expansion plans calied for drawisg back the old raad
that led right up to the caves on the west side to the newly
bailt ranger station theve. A road was built and surfaced
from the western entrance, a turn-araind lookout was built,
and & parking lot at Chaparral BRanger Station and Canp—
grougd. The old road to the caves was obliterated and &
foot trail wuilt in the generzl location of the old road.
In 1967 the state inproved and surfaced the western raite

1486.

tilities - Telephoone

The first telephone line to Pilnnacles Mational Momment
was built in 1923 with funds fron the Mtional Park Service,
and was a Single line that ran mo the Ranger's Residencs.
After the arrivel of the OCC camp in 1932, a line was added
to that famy.  The lineg was relocated when the rwad up Bear
Culeh was oilt.

In 1938 the COC's miilt a new line approximetely fen
miles in length from Willow Creek to the moouwment. The

working plans called for using Fred Preweti’s ranch as the
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center point. Foles were nurbered from the rooument to Fred
Prewett's, and from Willow Creek to Fred FPrewett's place.
With this pew line it was felft that telephone service to
Pinnacles would preatly Iimprove, but thers was a shunbling
block in the way of this expectation.

The ares between Paicines and the Pingacles was served
by three different privately owned rural telephone lines:
the Maiberry line, the Bear Valley lipe, and the William
Butts line. The ulberry line ran to Willow Creer and Henry
Melendy's. The Butts line served San Benito with a single
rraunded cable, apd circled arcund to meet the Desr Valley
lins along Route 25. So the nomunent was still dependent
upon other telephons campanies, some of which had antiquated
equipment. Service was improved in 1240 when the Finnacles
ling was completed, but the service between the fonument and
Yolligter, for instance, was so bad that it was somelines
diffienlt w hear a message fram a point that far away.

In 1548, Mrs. (arl (Bessie Hain) Olsen, spokesworan for
the Bozar Valley Company, asked pemission for that company
to joln the Park Service line, which would vesult in better
service for both parties.

In a reply to Mrs. Dlsen. by Superintendeat Gibbs, dated
May 3, 1949, Gibbs stated:

Sipce veceiving your request I nave taken the
trauble to go over the entire history of the Park

Telephone line in cogperation with the Butts Tele-

phone Company and with the Bear Valley Telephone
Comnpaiyy amxd the Mulberry Telephone Company.
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According to information in mr files, prier
to 1340 the Parx Service line was & groundsd line
mnning alone abolt the same route as L1 does now to
the Meiendy Hanch and then ruming easterly to the
San Benito River where it connected with the
William Butts line. In 1940 the telephone Service
was improved 4y oconstructing e rmetallic line to
conpect with the William Botis line at Willow Creek
bevond the old Kruse place. At this time the Butts
Company put in 4 metallic line from Willow Creek to
Hollister. From the Melendy Ranch the Buits Company
went to the upper San Benito with a grounded line
and the Bear Vallsy and Mulberry lines connected to
the Fark Service line by means of the Melendy
switching station amd used the three miles of Park
line uatil it connected them with the Butts ling at
Willow Creeshk. In 1847 the Milberry line Trecan—
strmcted its line to the Mslendy Ranch. This brings
the tnckground up to the present amd your regquest.

The right of way wenticned in vour letier were
cranted to the povernment for a consideration and
contain no olsuses that would entitle property
owners To ocome on the line., It would also endall
Tore maintenance expense to have another line pat
ooto the 10 miles which fhe government now maintains
catside the Park as every additional lateral line
and phone is a source of fradble and must be lnves-
tigated in trouble—shooting.

Thiz office i1z willing To cocperate o lmprove
the teleohone service and would recommend approval
of yolr reguest providing the following conditlons
can b2 met;

1. The Butts Telephione Company will install a
carrier system or an additional mestallic
jine to Hollister to teke care of the
presant and any additional overload.

2. The Butts Telephones Company, the Mulkerry
Telephone Company and  the Bear  Valley
Taelephone Company will unite to <perate
over the Park Service Lline under one
pertnit, preferably eranted to the Butts
Corpany which is the opnly Company operating
under the supsrvision of the reilrcad
commission.

5. The Hitts company under arrangement with
the Bear Valley and the Mulberry Corpenies
will mzintain the line fram whers the Bear
Valley linge ties aon at the Ray Marcus



place, or the State Highway shadl if a phone
is needed there, to conpection with the
Butts line at Willow Creek.

I will be glad to mest with yoo and the William
Batts Comany to talk over the proposal and ircn cut
anything which my cone up in your meeting, in the
hope that we can all get together for the matual
inproverent of the telephone service.

{Signed} William Gibbeg
Superintendent

Botert E. Bryan and "Champ” Graham were the minagers of
the Butis Compmany in thoge dys. They were full-time
employess of Recific Telephone Cammny and tried to service
the tote]l Butts line. In Movember of 1949, Bryan wrote to
Gibbs telling of the Butts Company's plan to install an
antoratic switch at Melendy' automatic switch at Melendy's:

This system will be: (1) 1ess line on any

circuit in wse, mking better tramsmission; (23

Yells from one lipe will not interfere with ancther

line; {3} traible op cone line will not affect

another lin=s. lines will be able to talk %o one
anctiner withocuet tying up the min line to town.

t trouble contimied with the Butts line and investiga-
tigrs bYWy the California Public Thility Commission assured
everyone invwplved that service could oot be ieproved as long
a3 the present outdated line existed-—that the thirty-five
m.les hetsesn Planacles and Hollister was too great &
distance to be covered over iron wire and Poor equinment.

Eryen was not mking mmoey fran the line he was
mmaging, =z his plan was to sell the line as =oon as
possible.  The Facific Telephone Company wis approached to

tuy the line, bat they were not intercested.
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In May 1953, Box Bryan and Loren Bryan (distant caisins
to H.E. Bryan), tock over the management of the Butts Tele-
phone Company, and later heught the canpany out. Hex Bryan
later tecams the sole owner. TFhone service at the Tk Wes
served by three toll phones after this changeover—three
gollars per mrk phone on the park line.

In 1928, the William Butts Teleophone Company changed
owir to a dial system, at which time new lines were

installed. The comperny 1z now known z2s the Plonacles

.Telephﬂﬂe CORTEELTLY

In 1978, vith the developnent of tie private camperainds
mtside the mohurent area by the Finnacles [evelopnent
Company, a nevd undergroand cable was laid to the momment.
This new czble forther improved the service to the momul-
rent.  The telephtwne sermice no longer seemed at the mercy
of the first storm of the season, a5 it had been in the

past.

Water Supply and Systens

When Allison wen V. Dunn, Assistant Engpinesr, made his
Beport on the needs of ihe Finnacles oo July 1, 1929, he
included 4 very theorough study of the sater situation aof the
monerent. He referred to the spring that supplied the Haad-
quarters ares at that time, and To the unsanitary condition
of the surface well and dry sewage system being employed by
the coneesyionaire, [Dunn felt that the highest pricority of

the momurent should be the water supply and the sewage
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disposal for the new additional lands the mmument would be
acguiring. He also felt that there shauld be no division
between the old system and the new acquired lands.

Inder "Water Supply Dewelopment” Dunn listed:

{1} Springs, which are shown on the map, and were
found to have the following approximate discharges
oo Junes 24, 1929,

Prezent hesdquarters supply T20 gnl. per day
Meomes Spring 448 M woon
A& lew quality spring in draw to north 720 :
Springs issuing from caves west of

headqua rters ave) ¢ oo
Mreott's Spring 15000 ¢ " "

Maroott's spring woald require punping thres
miles, and only the first two of the other four
are relatively smie from contamnaticon.

{2y Surface wells similar to the one in use in the
Concession Camp, Dat located above the camp
' gitesg, This his two objections:

a. Aoy surface sunDly iz in danger of contamina—
tion 235 the attendance grows at the monurent.

b. Moving up stream will reduce the quantity of
avallable water.

(3} Wells over L00 feet deep similar to those in use
by the ranches in the wlley. Lowal opliion seers
to be that there iz guch 8 possibilicy under
Chelone Creek, praotected from contarmination Dy
impervious layers of clay above.

Attendhnce at the rmomument in 1928 was a
little ower 13,000. Frao its own growth during
the past five vears, and that in the other parks
and momments, it seems sufe to esticete that this
will be doubled in five vemrs and fcur fTimes as
great in ten vears, As the mximum dally atten—
dainee in 1928 wos 500, it should reach 1,000 in
five years, and 2,000 in ten.

Ising dauta from the estimted water consump—
tion for Glacier Point in Yosomite Bark {see

| repgort on Glacier Poigt water Sopply, Jammary
| . 1925%, the following estimted consusption 1s
obtained:
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10,000 smllons per day in 19G5
20,000 mmllons per day in 1940

As the sumers are warmer io the Pinracles than at
Toserite, these my be low figpures, Wt it should also
be considersed that the meximum attendance at the
Pinnacles is in the spring and fall, and that the weshk-
end peaks are followed by & mid-week oOf inactivity.

Recommended Water Supply

It i3 elear that the spring supply will became
inadequate in a little over five years even thoogh it
ig all used. It would reguire a wary Ifipe control
system to prevent the use of poor grade water for
drinking, womld be ill adapted to fire protection, &nd
would cost approximately $15,000.00.

Any =urface well system would ultimately result in
conditions similar toc those in the Concession Camp
Supply. It can be disrecarded for this reason.

eep wells are the only logical solution. A5
there is no accurate information on the water bearing
strata Under the vicinity, test borings shonld pe mde
at once. Chalone Creek has a large drainage ars=a and
it 15 recamended that the tests be started at its
Junction with Bear Gulch.

Tae importance of wne soady will justify ample
funds. It is sugpested that 35,000.00 be allotted to
this work to allow for unforseen depth or the necessity
of trving a second test boring.

Termorary Supply for Concession Camp

As it will take approximetely a yvear to find and
oonstruet  the watar system, and the preseal supply
shoild be condemmed at onece, it will be necessary 1o
cupply drinking water through a tenporary line frcn the
present beadquarters supply. It is recamrended that:

(ly A temporary line of 3/4" palvanized iron or 2V
pipe be laid on the surfece of the ground from the
mein in the headguarters unit to ihe restaurant.
*The connection in the restaurant soould be ussd
for DEINKING OHLY.

{23 One or two drinking foontaing be installed on thisg
line in the Concession Camp area.
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(33 A4 2-foot dam e ailt at the old Cave Spriag
intake and a temporary 2" C.D. pipe be laid on the
surface of the grownd to supply water for the
headquarters comfort staticn. The 2-fcot dam will
afford sufficient storage for normml toilet use.
the restaurant.

The 2" (.D. pipe is offered as an alternate iu
item 1 because it i3 possible to obtain in Hollister at
less +than the estimted price of the smaller
malvanized.

Cost of Tepporary Installation

(1y 1300 feer of 2" Q.0 pipe in place - $500.00
{2y 2 driokding fountains in place - 75.00
{3) A 2-foot diversion dam of concrete

at Ceve Spring — 25.00
(4y 1400 feet 2" 0.0, pipe iy place to

comfort station -~ 250.00

Total 21150.00
Sewage THisoosal

The Concession Camp is equioped with dry toilets
and insanitary Dith hooses, which should be replaced by
mxdern cardort stations simlar o the oane int the head-
guatrers unit. 45 the purchase cof the camp included
all equipment in the inventory, amd 1t is impromble
thet it will be token ower O¥ & Dew coDCESSionAlire woo
eold meke the necessary lnprovements, it is recom—
rended that the confort stations include showers for
the oublic use.

Frm the nature of the proposed water supply, it
will e desirzble to carry the septic taok effluent to
a point well below the junction of Chalone Creek and
Boar Gulen  (The advisability of remving all prisate
habkitations fror the water shed abowe ahould be remem—
beered ). The follawing tebls gives the reconmended
sewer gystem apd its approximnte cost:

(1y 1-i/2 miles B" sewer ooln helcw canp 3 B,000,00
{2y 1700 feet &" sewer nain between
septic wank in headquarters and

8" mrin in camp ground 1,500.00
(31 Septic tank for Concession Camo 4, 000,00
{4y 2 comfort stations similar to

one in headnquarters unit bt

with 172 dewoted to showers 3,000,.00
(3) Proper dralnage facilities

at autlet of 8" gpin 1,000,000
{5y Incidentals 1,5900,00

TUTAL (18T OF BEWER SYSTEM 318 ,000.00
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Fire Protection

The Fomacles Mationml Honuwment is in a locality
which is subject to high fire hazmrds during the summer
recnths. s the area grows, it becomes locreasingly
important that there ke adequate roads and trails to
facilitate the tramsportation of fire equipment. These
will be discussed at greater length later.

The old water system 1% ipadeguate: for fire pro—
tectian, both in the headquarters upit and in the
Coneession Camp. It is recammended thet the new water
system include a 250,000 pallon, concrete storage tank
turied sufficiently high above the twildings on the
molntain slde. Such an underground reservair would
also keep the drigking water much eooler than the
present Steel tanks o L . .

Wnile Dunn's report was very thorouen aod one could see
the rareful study mide in the preparation of the paper, it
was received with a littie misgiving in the office of the
hief Enrdneer.

Engineer Arthur W. Bunsy sSent &4 IemorEcdm to
Eittredoe dated July 10, 192% in which he stated that he
thought Dunn's estimate of the cost of consiruction was mich
too high for a momument as smll as the Finmnacles. LBurney
also went on to guestion:

I am alsc wondeTing just how Mr. Homon will
react to Mr. Iunn's report on the sanitary and
water conditicms in the momirent, amd there is a
posgibility that he mEY think we are not cooper-
ating very well in reporting on these two itens
which are usually handled by his department. ne
oopy of this report has already been sent to Mr.
Hawkigs, but 1 hesitate to send out the others
until ¥ou have reviewed them. Mr. Hommon 1s
expected ek in a day or two and I might show nim
a copy of this report, explain the situation and
agk him to review it and comment.

If you believe the reoort to be satisfactory,
vou can miil these tho coples, otherwise advise us
ang we will mke such changes as you cuggest.

(Signed) AW, Burney
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The Mr. Howmn referred to was Harry B, Hommon, Rublic
Health Service Sanitary Encineer assigned to the Park
Service for twenky years.

Upon ©is return, Mr. Hommon replied to Durnsy in a
camlmiction dated July 24 that he had reviewsed the repori,
ut te felt that he could not make any capreini on the mmtter
ac he had not reviewed the new =ddition. Hs felt that he
could not approve or disapprove 1f, hut there were Some
things he gquesticned:

. Tne report calls for 1-1 1/4 miles of
8-inch pipe for sewer line and yet it is estimnted
that only 25,000 mal. of water will be required for
all purposes. The grade mast be awfully fiat to
require an S—inch pipe. lLikewisz, there is an
estinpte of $4,000 for a septic tank, and the
volume of sesars will, according to estimate, be
less than 20,000 mllons. 4lso, it i5 guestionable
whether shower Mmths should be provided by the Gov—
erntent. Cnly a wvery few of the parks furnizh
showers; and further, 1 don't see how a 250,000
callon storage tank can e justified while so few
of the weter supplies in the parks have storage
of any accaunt., There are otbher items, like sug-
mesting that 'habitation above the site proposed
for the well be removed irom its water shed,' which
shows a lack of faniliasrity with the subject of
protection of water supplies.

Sincerely,
{Signed)}
H,B. Hommon, Sanitary Encineer
In a letter to Hawkins from Homon dated April 158,
1930, Hoarron stated thet he believed the development of Lhe
spring adiacent to the caves would supply encugh drinking
water for the headguarters unit and for the Concegsion camp,

ahnd the water in the caves could be used for the comfort

station amd the one soon to be nilt. He f21t that two
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. anll stesl storaze tanks should be suificient for storing
the drinking water. He also mentioned thet estimtes had
becn prepared  for developing automolile camyralnds oo
Chalone Creex and putting in a2 well to serve the facilities,
and for seware and dizposal for that ares.

S50 Dunn's advice was not follewed, It is interesting
to note that Dunn's 1829 roport on "The ¥eeds of Pinnacles
Matiopnal Momurent," had been held in Kittredge's office
awaiting cowent from Fommon, and had been forgotten. Harly
in 198t the Director, Horace Albright, sent a menprandum to
Kittredse asking ehy he had never received the report.
Kittredge sent an apology to the Director along with the

. txela ted Teport.

It is also interesiing to note that Dunn went on to
tecome & nydranlic enginesr, and still later to become the
Chief of Water Division.

By 1835 a report from the Branch of Engineering stated
that therse was & storage dam in the UDear Guichh area
tmpounding 7.39 acre feet of cresk wmter usin_g a diwersion
dam and & 1 1/2 inch min to supply water for sanitary needs
of headquarters ared.

4 spring tributary to .Eear Guleh Creek supplied the
domestic needs of the Ranger BResidence, campground, lodge
and cahins threagn 2/4 inch supply lines and two 5,000
gallon storage tanks, a 1 1/2 inch mein, and 3/4 inch

. lateral. Thie also served fire protection. At the CCC
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camp, there was a well adjecent to Chalone Creck w#ith a
msoline driven purp and two 5,000 pallon storage tanks,
distributing lines, a 1 1/2 mrip and 3/4 inch laterals., At
the Old Pinpacles thers wes a spring with two 50 gallon
barrels only, located at the spring. There also existed a
150-foot 3/4 inch lne, from Moses' Spring. They plapned to
develcp & spring on the Chalone Creek and Marcott Spring,
the latter still being on private property.

¥hen the plans for the dam located above the caves in
Bear Culch were mde in 1835, it was thougnt that this woudd
eolve most aof the problems of water supply to the momu-
ment. The Mational Park Serviee through Pignacles Mational
Momment mede & reguest for permits for the approoriation of
water to the state of California in 1937. The first w&s T0
divert for use in the Besr Culch, and the other for the use
of the underground flow of Chalone Creek. The plan in Bear
Oulch called for not oaly the doam at the reservelr, ut for
five other diversion dans below it. The potable water would
come from the second spring, as it had before, but there
would be a 2-incn line munning from the large dam for
ganitary use and fire protection.

Tnere wes some talk at this tine of putting a dam and
reservolr in the camyon beiow Marcott's spring—this was in
1937. The progjects weres suppesed to b2 {inished, acecording
to the permits, by 1941. The work however carried on for

some time #fter that.




A5 you can see, by 1340, Pinnacles had becams 2 e of
pipes under the surface of the ground. Each cabin had three
sets of pipes munning to it. In addition there was the 4
inch fire mein and the hydrants aitside of the cabins.

The mnument had an option to Wy the Marcott property
and the opportunity came abaat in 1538. This land #as loog
coveted by thae oustodian for the Maroott's Spring water
source. Money had been sppropriated for the purchase of
land at lassen Wit the =seller had mised the price by
$2,000, so the $6,000 in the appropriztion was used to
purchase the Marcott land. (In 1539, the name of Marcott's
Spring was changed To Willew Springs). Water was then piped
from that spring to the OO0 ares. + was alse plammed to
use this water supply for the Uld Finnacles campezrounds
BT .

In My of 1842, G.BE. lavezzola, Chief HEnginesring
raftsmn, spoke of the water system in the hesdiusriers
ATeEa:

e .« A survey of the cld water systems was
started, loction of the connections toe the oew
systems  and  the controlling plug wvalves were
Iocated. The feeder pipes {(creek, spring and hot
water) entering the cabins were located and the
warious pipes were identified through control of
waiter from the entrance wlves. 4 hose bib was
found on the creek line at each cabin. These
wmlves and hose hibs were in nearly every case
rartially rusted due to being coversed with dirt and
debris.

It was suggested to the oustodian and park
ramger that wlve boxes be constructed arcund all
valves and that the vwarioos pipe lLines e cuitably

rarxed b wvaricus oolors of paint or proporly
giirked retal taps fastensed to Tthe pipes.
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it got any betier.

tor fraw Acting Director Preston P. Patraw on Septarber 11,

43 no actual survey of original distribation
system in the calin area exdstes, it was suggested
that soame =ffort be made to locate these and place
rarked stakes over the connections until such time
as a survey coild be mads.

It was realired that this is no small task and
necessitates considerable time, tut if a2 amll
portion is done a2t pericdic intervals, the location
of the entire system would be known. In view of
the ratheT complicated water systam for the entire
hendquarters ares, this informmtion wauld be very
valuable &+ . . .

The water =upply system at Pinmelss got worse before

1945, this water picture wes presented:

« . the project construction program as it
related To water systems, which stands as follows on

March 28, 1948,

In o memorandom for the Begionel Direc-

Index
Priority Mo Project Loration
1 -2 Pipe line Willow Spring Bear Gulch  §37,700
to Bear Gulch
7 -2 Yater line Juniper Camvon West Side 200
il -11 Water line Iodpge to
utility aren Ttility aren 1,500
24 =3 Water Supply Wwest Side Uld Finnacles 17,300
Abeyance U-13 Facing Bear lch Lam EBear Qulch

¥ meturn s photostat of the drawing on which
Mr, Dunn has worked out & tesic hydranlic anelysis
to show that construgtion of a2 nore extensive watar
supply System is needed to meke Iull use of the
water and provide praper fire protection of 250 ppm
at 40-1b. pressure for all other develcoments
covered by the mmsier plan as a whole. The
analysis also indicates that with an effilcient
watey System from Willeow Spring, some units of the
exdsting water sysStems will nesd enlargement, and
that some exdsting and proposed units ifavolving
other soirces of supply should be abandoned for
accnorice or hydraulic reasons.

On the taziz of the existing over-all master
Plan, we recorrend that you consider the following
construction program. All twelve items shoeld be
listed with appropriate priorities and estimmtes,
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{a) Place 50,000 gallon reservoir on hill
above Chalone Creck bridge at approximte station
B7+34 and spproximate elevation 1213, install
ooliecting sump at Willow Spring just largs encugh
for proper diversion, move pump of 70 gpn capacity,
from Willow Sprinz to site of 50,000 pallon
raservolr, and install 4 inch pipe from Willow
Spring to 50,000 gllon reservcir znd thenge
thraizh purp to 20,000 gallon reservolr at Bear
Gulch.

fh) Install second 20,000 pallon reservoir at
Bear Gulch distribution point to give total storage
of 40,000 gallons, prigrity dependent on rate of
inereased water demmnd. .

fey  Install 6 inch distribotion system from
.reservyoir at station 27+50 and remove existing wood
stave tamks, or abandon and rewove  this whole
divwarsion System. {e—to COC camp and remove or
ammdcn 2 inch line).

(¢} Either extend pipe fran OCC well and purp
to 30,000 mllon reservelr at  statiom 97450
{abowe).

{3 Change all, or at least the upper patt,
of Bear Gulch distritution system from 2 inch to 3
inch cipe. The 2 inch pipe will deliver encagh
water in a day, but woulld not deliver encugh of
that water at hours of pesk demaipnd when daily water
denand of 33,000 gpd is reached,

{f) Yater line to utility Area. This
proposal  should also indicats that DBear (ulch
Diversion 3 at spring in Condor CGulch will be
ampdoned if it has not been abandoned =lready, so
water right Fermdti S047 can be amended.

{g) HMoses Sgring, Diversicn Mo. 5, has been
panceled., Thevefore, the proposal should also be
rermpved from the master plan so that water right
Permit FHo. 3047 can be amended. The correspondence
also indicates that the spring at the upper end of
Bear Culch Impoundinge Reservoir, Diversicon 4, has
teen developed. The muster plan should show a pipe
to place of use, if there iz ons, or that it
dizcharces into the impounding reservoir if there
iz no pipe.

{h) Replace 4 inch fire main from Bear (ulch
rediversion dam with 8 inch muin to wovide 250
zallons per mimte cipaciiy and average pressure of
45 pounds at hydrants. (Upper Banger's Resldence
on TEp indicates that it is too high on system for
adequate protection with present 4 inch line and
will he poorly protected with 6 inch line. The
site should W ebpndopned when the Duilding has
gerved 1ts uselal life.)

]
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{11 Tacling Bear Gulch [Em. This should be
reimsiated if facing is neesded, ewen thaugh
priority is very low at this time.

{33 Water line-Tuniper Canvor. This is
probably all right, ut is 1t justified for even
the pericd until U-24 can be completed?

fk} Heplace Willow Spring eollecting sump (to
e ullt under (a)) with 25,000 grllon putp sump,
install 30 g paop wnit, congtrict 20,000 pallon
distribation reservoir &t approximie elevation
1,420 in J1d Fnmecles, install approsdmtely 3,000
feer of 6 inch distrimtion mein. (Before this
project is undertsken it may be desirable to change
to 40,000 pllon reservolr and pump swim, Y0 g
aump unit, and 4 inch pump line if  Momament
attendence should increase beyand present
anticipation.)

f1) Flectric control of prTe walve oo dam
above cawve in Bear Gulech, Diversion Fo. L. This
gltline invelves 12 projects with considerable
cost. ¥e are opposed to lowering siandards to
reducs that cost, such as providing fire system
capacities of only 157 gpm #hen the code calls for
250 spm.  Instead, we wonder if the plans do not
now call for ore scattered development at high
elevations remte f£rom Willow  Spring, with
resulting excessive costs of  installation and
ooaration.  In revisiag the water systam construc—
tion program plesse give full consideretion wo the
other phases of the mster plen and adjust both
ancordingly. For instance, it might be desiravle
to eliminate any access e the Momument from
Soledad ang to Hmit all develcoments in the Old
Pinnarles aresa to those zecegszible only by trall
fram the high peaks or up Chalone Creek so that the
Jiniper Canyon witer oystem () would suffice.
Alsn, other things beimg egual, there would be a
great saving if the uwtility ares, cacpyraind,
emplovesst  residences, and puest ocottages wWere
relocated on a gravity water syetem alang Chalone
Creak, leaving only a lunchroom and pienic area in
Bear Culan. ;

It is evident that the fire controel wlue of
the impounded water at Diversion #1 in Bear (alch
is neglipible as lang as a man must climb up
thraigh the cave and open the valve mrnually and
then wait for the released water to flow through
the cave to the rediversion dun or distriution.
Hyven an electrical control has only limited walua
if the geherator wunit does not i continuously.
We have listed project (13 with the idena that you
wili expand it to provide the best fire protection.
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By 1947, the impounded water in the first diversion
dam, nt the ressrvoir, was Decoming a redl problem because
of the algie and the terrific smell thet it produced. Dunn
strongly tecawended that the Riblie Health Demariment be
requested b0 shudy the metter. He was beginning to doubt if
the problem could be treated chemicelly now. Dunn, tieEn
Chief of Water Divi=ion, made the commetnt:

From the reports I recelved from Mr. Giwens,
while he was custodian, I thinok he woild have done
his share towrd correcting the sitmaticn. I am
also comvinesd that Mr. Gibbs will do the same.
Howewver, I wish to add oy plea for action at Budget
Buresn level. If we are going to maiptain the
Monunent, we bave got to stop frittering with the
trickle of water At Bear ulch before we congider
any other improvenenis. This =situaticn is a
disgrace to the Service.

The Miblic Health Service mode an inspection in August
of 1947 and reccehended the use of copper sulphate almecide
for the of fensive pond——if this Jid not work--the reservoir
should be drained at the bepinning of the wet sepson, so
that thers waald be no influx of water.

in Febnmry of 1843 there was a mem for the Director
from Acting Assistant Director, Oliver G. Thylaor, the Chief
Enpgineer, who recommended:

With other awvailable water we believe that the
reservoir is  too inefficient to consider for
permanent sanitary and fire protection purpeses.
It also ceases io serve as an attractive, arctifi-
cial lake unless the algme and other couses of odor
n be contrplled by treatment with copper sulfate
and actiwvated charcoal. Furthermore, e are al#ays
anxiois to be freed from the dual water systems for
safety reasOns. It does permit us to embool
floods and prolong fiow through the cave, thus
mking the trail sarrvicesbls at seasons when it was
Tormerly mpassable.

22



e suggest, therefore, that this reservoir e
conzsidered as only a flood control structure, to be
drained lszte each sunmer. It will then be neces-
gary to movide sufficient covwered storape and punp
capacity fraom Willow Spreing to satisfy the sanitary
and fire mratection needs, as well as for domestic
uses of the Bear ulch 4rea when 1t later is
developed to accommdate the nurber of visitors and
amplovees which you think the restricted area can
stand . . . .

Qustrxdian Gibbs suggested to Regiconal Encinesr H.L.
Crowley ino March of 1948 that it might be wise to keep the 4
inch line, =0 thaet in case of emergency, the water from Bear
GWlch might be twrmed bteck inte the new water system from
Willow Spripg—mt the answer fraon Crowley was that the
water should not he turned into the new oystem once the
pipes had been cleaned and the new water had entered them.

. Crowley had agreed with Gibs' other suggestlons es fo the
placement of pipes and pumps, ot vwetoed the mixddng of the
two wateTs under any clroumstances,

In 1832 there was & memo seut to the Director fram J.L.
Crowley, who was then Acting Regional Director, in which
Crowley stated:

4 check of Ehe Architectural Building Heports
File reveals the Governrent has invested only abmt
S22,000 for all of the structures presently located
in Bear Culech and Condor @ualeh,. The present-—day
replacement costs are estimated ot 530,000, How-
ever, thiz figure is not an indication of the
present wlue oE the structures. In accordance
with your recommendation, this office will forward
a supplemental proposal for the hish pressure
gystem with a 100,000 mllon reinforced concrete
reservolr and 6 inch distribution lines. We do not
feel ™o estirntes are necessary for this proposal,
23 the work &s contemplated under Proposal U-2-2 or
subsequent to its completion will not wary materi-

. ally, because the new meservolr and the 6 inch
distribution system will be reguired by this
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proposal regardless of when it is Wuilt. The only
item that is sffected will be the pump rajuired.

Admi ttedly, we mast furnish a potable and safe
witer supply, even if the oot is  excessive
{S39,800), in this smll arean. However there is a
definite question in o minds whetier we are
Justified in the expenditwure of the 2,00 for fire
protection. [hless considerable more investrent is
mde either by the Govermment or the concessioner,
we are inclined to beliewe the fire protection
should be rehabpilitated and relied upon to take
care of this need.

I have recammended the construction of a
new reservoir and distribution line as sugpested in
FCP U-i7 prepered by Mr. Peterson, as the present
4 inch system is not cast iron and is already
developing leaks. We can also elimipate tos
sresent dual system which i3 uonsatisfactory from a
sanitary and an cperating view.

Tais #ill not however solve the water problem
at Pinnacles. We =till must plan for protection of
the future developments proposed for Chalone Creek
Carpr Groands, Hploves Residence section in Chalone
Creek, and water for developments propoged for the

¥est side. We my still find That we st punp
. Willow Spring water to the West side of the 0id
Finnacles arez. In nmy opinion these water develop-
rent uwses should be planned before we abindon the
existing Bear Oalch Fire Protection System which at
presant can throw 2 streams of water from the 1 1/2
inch hydrants for an unlimived time, wsing the
ter in the Bear (lch Reservoir. The one man or
wo mn fire erew could znet handle a 2 172 ipen
hose under bhigh pressdre.

such of this feeling for a ney water supply sclrce was
brought about by Prank Givens after he became Qustodian of
the romment. It was Givens' feeling that the water diver-
sion permits had boen banging on and extendsd several
times. In a memorandum to the Regional Dhirector dated
boverter 15', 1548, Frenk Givens expressed his views on the

Bear Qleh water systarn:
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This refers to JActing Director Hersons'
merorandum dated Ceuwoher 15, transoitting  the
Director's memorancdum of Ootober 3 relative to the
Progress Report on Benr Guleh water system, Water
Right Application Wo. 2083, Permmpit MNo. 5047. The
following is an atterpt to answer sume of the
questions raised in the Director's meoorandum,
Diversion #1. The dun is affectively completed up
to the 16810 foot elewation fram the se slevation
of 1572 feet according to the former Custodian, and
a5 iz evidenced by QOO0 complaticon reports. This
writer rauglly measursd the upstream face and found
it to b near 38 feet high. It now, according to
drawing N PINH 3044, dated June, 19357, inpounds a
mxyimm of aboat 32.0 acre feet.

This writer is not <onvinced that the dam
should be nade higher as has been fregquently
propoeed. The present reservolr oid not 111 up
last winter with a s=ason total of 12.@ inches of
rainfall. - The U.5. Weather 3Buareau at Hollister
Tecorded approdimately the sare armeunt and their
Yearly average since 1875 i= 12.84 inches. I the
axdsting reservolir does not overilow in an alrost
average year there appears little jestification to
increas: its capacity. Alsg, Iran a landscape
viewpaint it would Yecome increasinely difficult to
ke Ay extension appear to be mrt of the natural
Intimilon.

Diversion #2. The averuge daily flow of the spring
which provides potable water for the headquarters
area is believed to ba abmt S grllons. On
Noverizer 15, 1943 the flow wes meesured aod found
abaut K0 gpd at that tire.

Hversion #3. Condor Gulch 3oring is not sultable
ifor any use other than stock watering at its point
of  erergsnce. Sore development was done bat it
fell into dimlse Years ago.

Diwersion 7. This spring at the upper end of the

reservolr formed by Diversion Al is surmounded with
a concrete box, The water flows it the top and
down the natural channel Jeading to the large
TESSTWILT . During filcod stage the reserwir
reachss the box. Therefore, the soring cammot bhe
used to supply a driokiag fountain at the dam, or
elsewhere.

Civersion #5. Momses Spring does not supply
sufficient weter to adeguately  supplerent  the
potable supply of Diversion <<3. The Moses Soring
development would Dpresent a difficult  landscape
oroblem ince the Spring is an wmsual attraction
on  the caves fToot trail. The Willow Spring
Develcpment and exiension to Headjusrfers will bBe
neaded in any =vent.




Diversion #6. Thiz diversion consists of & smll
dam which iopounds creel witer which my be used
for samitary purposes when the water fron Diversicon
A1 {reservalr), is exhansted. In this event we
have no fire protecticn from the 4 inch fire line
kit by opening a walve at Diversion #6 we are able
1t let sufficient water into the 4 inch line to
contimie using the toilets which are connscted
paermanently to this line. Civersion A6 hes not
been uzed since construction of the 4 inch fire
line from the re-diversion dem just below  the
cawes. Judming from the adeguate amount of water
laft in the reservoir at the end o the last two
cummers Diversion #8 will never e needed. 1T will
be evan less important wboen an adegquate potable
water =upply ic avallable as the tollet howls,
etc., will then e supplied by the potable water
lin=. We do not have both fire and sanitary
lines. Water for sanitary use is taken I the 4
inch fire line. The re-diversion dam only has teen
used for the last seven years—Diversion #6 has not
been raquired singe 1839 wshen the 4 inch fire ldne
was cohstriicted.

FaragrTaph Two, [mEee two of the Director's
rerorandum states that after the halone Creek
witer gystem is connected to the headquarters
gysteon “"there will alsc be 1ittle need for the fire
protection storage at the reservolr except for a
mujor fire." According to the hydraulic aoalysis
on drawing Fp-68278 the potable supply will not
haye sufficient pressure, ewven with a 6 inch
distrituation lins, for 250 gpm at & Dresfure
rapired for fire profection unless the reservoirs
are placed at an elevation higher thap the existing
potabhle wnter reserveir.

The last mregroph of the Director's memo
requests  the followinz iloformrion for use in
estireting water nesds of thiz area. e use
aoril 2%, 1948 which was our mecord day for this
YEAT .

1. Flow at Diversion #Z promoly averages
about 882 mllons per day.

2., 02 wisitors spent the dy 1in  the
Headquarters Aren.

3. 30 overnighi visitors.

4, 10 e Ts o] empl o¥ees family:
Custodian~t, Bernger-2; Concsssioner—i.

Tuis writer has not had the advantage of

technical assistancs relative o the ramifled
proposed water system of this aren and 1s therefaore
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raluctant to  oeke  definite recomcendstions.
Howewar, 1f is believed that the following actions
would not Jecpardize the future water reguirements
in any way and are affersd for further considera-
tion.

Diversion #l. Amend the original application of
Z1.6 acre feet to cover only present use aod obtein
final liecenss. The fagt that the cement core has
not been entirely rock-faced shold have no beating
o the final 1icensa.

Diversion #2. (htaln final license. The project
is coplete and 211 fiow is put to enefical u=e.
Hwversion #3. (Cancel.

liversion #. Crnoel. It is not being put to any
tenefictal use thet would not hawe been served if
the developrnent had not been mede.

Divarsion #%. (ancel.

Diverzion #6. Concel, Altnouch the project 1=
completed the water is not being pul to bencficial
use. The impounded body of water is sbait two feet
deep, elgit feet wide and teenty-five feet long.

It is felt tnat too mny diversions mave teen
incorporated into the program—oore than can logi-
cally be completed.  EBven if oomplets they would be
inadequate and would raguire great expenditures.
The ¥illow Springs supply connected to the Head-
quaTtars system Eppears tw be the most logieml
solntion.

f8ignedy  Prank Givens,
hstodian.

In 2 memmndan For the Dlractor dated Noverber 21,
1946, fraw Reglonal Director Owen A. Tomlinson the camment
was made, ". . . This reply we telievw govers the subject
mtter wery well and we conour in the recamendstions
therein.”

The Willow Sprimgs water wes extended to the Chalone
Uresk Bridee and to the ecampgrounds at the old O0C camp
site, and license received ip 1953, The Willew Springs
water was never, however, pubped to the headquarters area.
Instead, a well was dug on the Chalone Creek to service the

Bmr Gilch facilities.
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The first well dug on the Chalone went dry in a short
tige, and the oripinal spring water system would be reverted
to at =uch times. The next try for water was mde just ant-
gide of the mumphouse at the Chalone Creck well, hut bedrock
wrs hit at about thirty feet down. Then a culivert was laid
ungder the creek that had holes in it to allow water to seep
in. Toe culvert was extended o the pumphouse where the
water from it filled up the dry well., This process was ussd
until a2 oew w=ll wes dug acroes the creex from the pump-
hauze.  The new well proved to be a success apd produced
very good water.

another attempt was rmde to dig & #ell in the area of
the Balconies. It was the feeling of the geclogists that
the location was richt to hit the same undergroind water
vein that produced the dther well, but {heir assessrent was
wrong, amnd no Wator was found.

Whmen the develooment of the west side was contracted
for in 1966, part of the contrect was for installing & new
water system on the east side. The new water system was
enacted, and a pum was installed on an existing well.

Another well was drilled in the late 1280's, near the
gascern boundnry fence, tut ﬁc system was evwer hooked up to
it at the time. AS sometimes happens in the Service, year
end funds ran cut before the well couid e tapped. It was
in 1978 that a pure was placed on this well and plans for 1t

to implement the exlsting system were realized.
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The 1966 water system that was installed on the east
gide also included cne iwenty—thousand-gallon steel storaes
tark above the Ralnger Residence, amnd one sixty-thousand-
mallon stesl storage tank above the Chalone Creelt Caump—
groand.

An artesian well was dug at the =ure time on the west
side, and ong twenty-thoisand-galion storage {ank ipstalled
in that area.

an important part of the water systems in the momment
is the resular testing of the wober by the Rublic hRealth
Service for the chlorine content and for the bacterial
content.

In the late 1960's, a conpletz nevw sewer cystop was
also built to service the Bear Gulch and the Condor Galch
areas.

The gpring that once supplied the headguarters area Wag

still 2 pood mroductive source of water after the wells were

o built, but its usefulness seemsd cver. The pipes arcund the

spring wera dug up, the soring covered up and forgotten.
The pipes that once led fram Willow Springs as far as the
halone Creek bridze and entrance station have nlao been dugy
up. But the old pipes arond all the cabins and buildings
still remin. These pipes also rerrin a puzzle to those wio
throagh necessity must dig around the foundations of the
buildings. The nefwork of pipes had been left in the ground

50 that they raght be used in case of & water shortage



arerrency at some futurse date. In 1978 when ramdeline
bemin on the laundry and storage roam to convert to an
office ilding with a utility roan, the gquestion of the old
pipes' usefulnesss returned. It wms at that time that a
program w25 Initiated o remove all of this underground

1 £0F

Flectrici ty

When the OX7 camp wes at Pinogcles Mational Momrent,
it had its owm slectric power pplied by generators, it
the rest of the mmiment had o rely on Colemmn lanterns for
light and oil burning or wood Lurpning stoves for cocling end
for heating in the winter. I'ran the Pinnacles file mumber
H~14 comes the giory of the lone strugele for electric power
for that mationzl momrent.

¥nen the subject of electric power was first Lrought up
in eommection with the Honacles, it came up at 2 ¥tiomal
Park Service Safety Commttes meeting in Washington on March
4, 1935. The comfittes had in mind, in the preparation of
its stamdard for compressed s, thres services, namely;, the
cooiing range; refrigerator; and domestie hot water heater
for & residence. With such installsetions, the length of
tubing would oo reduced to 4 minimum and flared counections
would be used thraghoat. The only exception o the nile
which wis recosnized by the conmiitee was the Chelons Teaw

Lockont living guarters.
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Tie drawing that was submitted for Pinnecles National
Momwerent reguirTed considerable tubing end maoy connectlons
to serve the nine lights shown in the layout. In zdditien
5 the longer length of tulding required for the lighting
systans, there was the disadwegtage that the standard con-
nections to the lighting fixtures were of the ordinary screw
type. The discussion in the cardttze meeticg braight out
the fact that a =mall 2lectric plant would seem o be
preferable toc the campressed s system. The commtiee
recognized that the installation of a properly planned
electric light plant could be rore easily justified where a
aralp of baildings existed than would De the case for g
single structurc. For the Pinnacles layout 1t #was requested
that figures be submitted showing the estipated cost of a
smll electric lizht plant in = hiilding separete and oot
less than 50 feet from the dwelling, and & 55 gllon
gasoline drum to supply mscoline to the msoline engine.
e commttes nad in mind an imstallation of perhaps 1,000
watts. For purposes of conparison, it was rejuested that
cost estimates be guoted of the tubing, conpections, and
fixtitres nesdsd for the prt aof the promne system o be
uzed for lichting only. Tﬁis informtive memorandum WwWas
signed by R.0. Jennings, Acting Assistant Director. Fenned
it longhand at the bottom of the meicrandum was & note
signed "K' (presumsbly standing for "Kittredge®), "This
isn't important bat we stwuld be informed. (011} lanps are

still good enough for Sequoia.”
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It was then suggested that the Coast Counties (as and
Flectric Company which had service to Metz, and the Facilic
Cas and EBlectriec Cogpamny, within eighteen miles of the
monucent with their line to New Idria, be contacted for
estirertes for toe cost of bringing power to.o the momument.
(Coast Counties Gas and Electric was approximtely ten miles
from the mmument's boaindary.) They both mve an estimte
of 2,000 per mile, wiich mede eleciric power for Finnacles
it of sight at that time.

It ws even being considersd din 18328 to mun the
electricity lines on the seme poles that the telephone line
was an, it this idea was soon discardsd 23 being too
. . impractical and expengive. Avcording To & letter ito

ustodian Hawkins from Assoclate Begional Attorney Albert

Johnsen the reasons for discarding tnis plan were set forth:
I had hoped 1o oear fran you as b ALy
suggestions mede By the President of the Coast

Camnties (a5 and Electric Canpany with reference to

the jont use of the poles for telephone and power

lines. It seans to me it will be rather difficult

to draw an agreerent as to the distribation of that

ower unless the pecple who have given you your

right-of—-way are very agreeable. As a motter of
fact, unless the farmers take a fairly larze allot-
rent of power at each point of distribation, it
reans a rather large expense in transformers io
order to cut down the power fram the large dis-
tributicn lines. I believe the power ocomny
exzcutive mst have explained to you thaet the
expense 1z rather nigh in otting inte the min
line for each farmer who desives to take only a
Smll amuant.

In Moy of 1938, a 0.7 KN type, prime rovelr pascline

. engine ganerator wags installed to Iipght the Bear Culen
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(aves. It used sixteen 2-volt mtteries end generated 1,800
KWH per wear. This was the extent of the electrical power
at Flonacles Mational Mooument for several Yesrs.

In duly of 1940, Fiooacles was informed thet they were
to receive a genermator from lassen Voleanic Bational Tark,
that had come via the 3an Fblo [am wsarehoise, ot having
the possession of & generator 1o no way insured lighting for
the lodge and cabins at the momment.

In Jamary of 18941, Custodian Hawkins sent a letier to
Begion IV azking assistance from the oni}r mn in the Begion
who would he informed upon the installation apd operation of
the generator, to come to Binnacles to aid in settiag up the
ysLam. Hawkins said in the correspondence, "The wmrll
enmine and generator, that we neve acquired from surplus,
generates at 220 wolts, brincing with it soce complica-
tions. When my we expect o have advice from Mr. Hilgedick
regarding this installation? If possible we should hear
from him this month in order that we can finish the work
before dir COC camp roves.” The reply from Acting Begional
Engineer Crowley pui the hope for electrie power for the
momument again out of sight: "Mr. Heleedick has been called
to active duty with the Mvy tut we think Mr. Vaughn will be
in your area scon amd believe he can advise you concerning
the generator.” Evidently Mr. Vaughn never assisted 1n the
inztallation of the generator for Yinnecled, as an Electric

Service Supply Becord dated November &, 1842, lists the
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sagarator lighting the Bear Gulch (aves has as the only
power sorrce ot Pinnacles Mational Monument.

In 1943 Pinnacles learned that there ®sas a light plant

available a2t Mendocino Woodlands btut this hope for the

desired electricity agin fell through. The Chief Engineer
in a memo to the Regional Director ssid that he believad
that the installation of 2 sipgle unit at Pinnacles was not
recanrendad.  He recanmeaded the installation of Two units,
ghich also had the advaniage of being able to cperate alter-
mtely. This plan would allow use of the smller of the two
units for pericds of 1ow demoaosd.

The light plant used to light the caves was replaced in
1946 the 8O0 watt, 110 wvolt AC, fully sutomtic electric
nlant replaced the 32 wolt ielco, 600 watt plant that used
sixteen Z-volt batteries. There were two jEnerators secured
fram Muir Woods Mational Monument in 1946,

In 1947, the Acting Superintendent of Yosemite Mational
Fark received a resorandum from Acting Regional [Mrector
Herbert Pﬁaier which read:

A few vears ago, tners %es transferrsd o
Hnnacles Mational samument a 15 KW, AC generating
plant for use in providing lights in the
headoquarters areia. Gue to the wor and other
ciroumstances, this rochine was pever connected and
has not been in operation. We would much appre-
ciate it 1if you caild arramge to hawe Mdr. Jenkins
visit Pinnacles and assist the ustodian in this
rptter. The Iocavion aof the generator and wirtiag
are wo be determined. Tis iz not an urcent
mtter, Wt if Mr. Jeskins oarld be spared for a

day or two within the next wo or three #weeks it
woiald e of assistance.,
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Toe reply from Yosemite's Acting Superintendent John B.
Wosky was that it wes a most inopportune time for the

rmanpower at Yosamite to be smred, and again electric power

‘for Pipnacles was put off.

In MNovepber of 1347, Pinnacles came into the possession
of two generators from Mendocino Woodlands, wvia the War
Aggetls Administration.

It was shortly after this, in October of 1948, that the
long negotiations with Coast Counties Gas and Electric
Company beman.  The compamy had installed electric power to
Pear Vailey with no extra charge to the ranchers, btut would
require an advance of $3,2315 fram the Park Service for
limited power for the momument. The Fark Service wanted to
roke this sum payable in monthly installments of 342 an the

principle and 318 dollars rore on this amount to cower 5%

interest tmat would extend over a period to ten years, bat

the company refused. The Fark Service went to the Cali-
fornia Piblic Utilities Commission, Dt the Commission
meked the power cosmmEny. The company finally agreed to the
arramgerent, Wit b the time gll the routing and other
details, such as wording of the contract, were completed,
the compaiy refused ageia, c;n the ¢rounds that the country
was again at war and there was a shortage of copper. This
was on boverber 2, 1951, The delay in obtzining electricity
at Plnmacles had much to do with the inability toc cobtain a

concessionaire to run the Llodpe, so the luilding sitting



idls for so mny vears fell into very serions disrepalr and
was dismntled in the mid-1950's.

Blectrieity obtained comrercially from the Baeific Gas
and Electric Corpany wes finally installed on the sast side
of the mmurent in 1957. Cwlcone Peak lodkout also had
electricity installed ®w the Racific (as and Eleciric
Conpmiy. When the development of  the west side was made in
1966, electric power wag obtained by the installation of two
genermators. The generators for the wesi side have always
been of teo different makes, and always been obtained used
fron other morks or monurents.  Inflation has mde the hope
of comercial powsr for the west side of BFnoacles out of
the guestion, it it is the dream of the Minterance
Division to one day have wwo pew cenerniors of tThe same

mke-—s0 that the parts wolld be interchanceable.



Chapter &
COC CAMP PINHACLES

When FPresident FPranklyn D Boosevelt told of his dream
to create a conseration corps for the unemployed yFoung ren
of dnerica and thus esse the unemployvment, at the w=mpe time
reclaiming oir country's Tescurses—biothl patural and cur
voath——the plan met with stiff ooposition. The apposition
care from all sides; from his Republican opponents, from
labor and from Socialists. Soe af the arguments against
suchh a corps were: that indostry woald adeopt the lLow wage
scale that the corps would pay the men; that the regimen-
tation of labor woold lead to a fascist state; that the
anlistent of married men wonld mean the destruction of the
American family; and That such a corps that took all the
orders from the Fresident would = increasing the tendency
to cancentrate ;xﬁ#er in the excutive. Bat, the bill
creating the "Emergency Conservation Work" was signed into
Jaw MErch 31, 1HE3. The name Civilian Conmssrvation Corps
was tThe popular public concegption of the agency, but the
name was not changed statutorially until June 25, 1937.

The C0 soon btecame the most oopular New Deal program,
and the prior ocoposition all .bu's: forgotten as the agency was
recnacted by Congress time after time untll its demise after
the ditbreak of World War II.

Camp Pinnacles #1381 {later #24), was no exception to

the popularity of the OOC. 4= people look tack in



retrospect, the corps is liable to be credited with mmny
work projects that it had no part in. There were so ROy
sovernmental amployrent programs working in the ares at the
sare time that it beconmes esasy to forget the less popular
ones and attribute 31! the work zecocoplished duriog that
period to the OCC.

The Hollister Evening Free lance reported several tines

on the anticipaition of the cowveted OOC camp. San Benito
Coanty leamed that i1t was to receive a OO camp in
Septetioer of 1933, and that Pinmacles Mational Monument was
to be the gite of thwe crp. At wricus times, tr;ere wers
spike camps set up at Freront's Peak and at San Juan
Bantista to do work in those areds.

By October work was started on the buildings at the
T four marracks; a laundry; & mess hall; afficers’
guarters; Ponmacles staff quarters; infirmry; mechine shop;
bwo lavatories aod a copler. By the end of the month the
tarracks and mess hall with kitchen were finished and ready
for the arrival of the first coatingent of men. The work on
the buildings wes done by the OO0 mea Irowm a camp a2t Almaden
argl uwnder the supervision of officers fram the Presidio at
Monterey. A& well had been @g, otorage tanks installed, and
an ®lectric plant st up,  The Iathrop firm of Tres Pinos
had lande! the contract for the 36,000 worth of lumber used

al tlhe camp.
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Cn the 20th of Ootober the first 150 men arrived, and
the rest of the detachument arrived shortly after the first
of Noverber. ‘The Finmacles camp averaged 200 men in the
years of iis operation, frca 18983 until the enroliment begen
to drop of f in 1942, then as little as approdmetely 40 men
until its close in 1842,

The first graop of men to came to Pinnacles were put To
work clearing burased—over brish and trimming burned 1limks
from trees +that had been caused by the fire that had swept
the Chalone Creelk ares in 1931, In conjunetion with this
clearing project was a Drepogation project in which seed-
lings were ralised and planted over the entire burnt area.

After more training, the COC branched inte trail
building and some coustruction work. At the peak of its
existence, in 1835, the CC projects for the sixth enroll-

rent period at Camp Planacles were as follows:

1. Dwelling for official wvisitors—Headquarters area

2, Tenporery horse bridge across dam

3., Horse trail o Chalone Peak for fire protection

4, Horse mrn for trail horses

5. Survey boundary for merking and fenecing

6. Aarking boundary

T. 1 foot trail to reduce mintemance cost and for
eage of trawvel

8, Storehouse for explosives

9, Guide service for visitors

1. Explore and develop springs, Six of them, excavate
and develop

11. HRiblic camperound waste disposal pits for sanitation

12. Irprove trail to Obd Finnacles for access and fire
profection

13. Reaise helght of Bear Gulch dam 16 feet.

14, Horse trail from nigh peaks to Uld Finnacles for
fire protection, visitors, and administration

13. Topographic survey, vicinity Cld Finnacles for

planning developrent



16. Truck shed pddition, housing BEOW eguipment, COC camp

17. Pt tollet——-Chalons Peak

18. Rt toilets, shewers and lavatories in present
cottages

18. Water supply system to collect railnfzll fram roof
lockout of house and 2,000 gallaon tank for storagze

20. Telephone line, headquarters to Oid Pinmacles for
fire protection and administration

21, Smll reservoirs—Bain storege on High Peaks Trail
for fire crews and bikers

22, lapdscare headquarters zrez2, clean up dead brush,
eta.

253, DPlanting of trees and shrubs lodge, headguarters and
O0C camp

24. Foot trail through Caves and vielnity including
concerete steps and guard rail in Caves

25, Horse Trail, west side of canyon near Balconies--(O1d
Hnnscles

26, Ermdication of poison cak

Of course, a4 mumter of these projects were guestioned and
a fow of them were never approved, but the fact remains that
the OOC was responcible for moy lmproversnts &t the momu-
rent.

landscaping in am abmut the COU camp was done oy the men
ol thelr owm free time, and the public was invited occasion—
ally to open-house stazed Wy the men to view their camp—and
were welcome to vigit oh any Weekend, not just wheg an open-
hol=e was being of fered.

An educational program was soon aisred at the camp, and
this was also comchucted in the evenings on the men's own
time. |

Sports events were anotier item entered into on the men's
ownl time, and soon became not only & pastime, it an
important part of the canp’s activities as Pinmacles bsgan

to enter into competition with othar OCC cames and
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orpanizations in the area. Camp Finnacles soon had their
own boxing ring, tasketbnll tearm, and baseball team. An
undersized basetnl! diamond was tuilt at the foot of Bear
Culch near the Chalone Creek.

There was a swimming “"hole" tuilt aboaat 100 yards from
the bridge ower the (halone, But it was wWashed cut when the
first heavy reins came. It was in a Willow thicket north of
the bridge. It was a long-tinme dream of Quistodian Hawkins
{who became Acting Custodizn when the camp »2g at Pinmacles,
a5 he was then Project Suparintendent for the OOC), to have
4 penmAnent swimming pool built at the momunent. Hawkins
cained permigsion in 1941 for the COCC men to use the reser—
var at the dam for swimmng.

The COC camp at Pinnmecles was a winfer camp, aml the men
came from other parks and momments where extreme cold
weather made #wlnter work impossible. Qustodian Hawkins Was
continually voicing the opinion that the camp shodld e a
vear-raund camp, as ther= was so much work to do, ard e
arcied toat the summers 2t Flnnacles were not hot—not too
hot to work; but the question was not whether the surmers ot
Pnnecles were too ot to work, at whether the winters at
the other canp sites were téc: crrld o work.  Hawlkkdns sie-
oeeded in getting the approwl for the carp to rermin during
SULTET 324300 .

The first men to occupy Camp Pinnacles were California

boys, but the policy of the agency changed as they grew to



feel it was better to place the men in camps ruch farther
from their aomes. Many of the fcllowing commpies came from
Arkansas, Alabam, North Carolipa, and some were made up of
ren from different sections of the country.

The one fault of the CCOC my lie in the fact that there
was not ouch intepration of the races, but this was true of
the ¢ountry as a whole in those years. Egual eportunities
were practically unheard of. When the blacks were finally
given more chance for enrcllment in the later years of the
COCC it was ipnertlly in segrecptied camps. HPlnnscles was one
carp that had black enrollment during the years fram 1940 to
1242, Even then, the officers of the camp were not black.
The education adwvisor, however, during this period was
black.

It was during this time that Hawkins, so pleasaed with the
perforrance of the black camp, and worried aboat the drep 1n
enrollment, planned to g into the city of Cekland with an
advertising cammign to  rmecruit  rmembers  for  Camm
Pinnacles. This plan barely passed the drawing boord stape
efore the COC distended in 1842,

Besides their other work, the OO0 spent mach of their
tire in the fighting af filres in the area. [uring the
smer fonths, when the compary was moved oat, and before
the California Division of Forestry had built their {ire
station in Bear Valley, the cump #as mnmed by a somll fire

suppregsion crew from that agency.
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The canwmnding cofficers of the camp were regular amy
ren, but the experienced engineer, technical forester,
landscape architects, history technician eamd wildlidfe
technician were supolied W the TPark Service and worked
wder the project supervisor, The trade instructors and
pther educitional iastructors, as well as foremen of the
craws, were nired locally. The foremen consisted of two
seiior foremen, two foremen, and one junior foremmn, all of
whom acted as supervisory persounel in the canmp.

Some men who started az OOC enrollees later went into the
Eark Service, and some oven sarvad a2t Pinpacles. (ne of the
best rTemembsred at Flnnacles Matiopal Mooument who began
with tiie OCC was & boy irar arkansas, Alton Hoover. Altcn
want on to kecome 4 rark raoger at the moourent. He entered
the conflict during World War I1 from Pinnacles. avd returned
to the moniment after his discharze from the armw.

Wr. Hoover, like meny other enrcllees at Camp Pionacles
#E4, holds many fond menories of the time spent at the
romiment during The tine he was in the corps. He maages to
visit the park every ¥ear or two, to veminisce and to eill
on old friemds in the ares. In 1978, during one of his
vigits to Pinnacles, Superirﬁ:endent Brovlez was able to get
an interview with Mr. Hoover on a ftape recording about his
dayes in service at the park duripg the 1930%'s and 1940°s,

After the OCC's were disbanded, the area near the Chalone

Creel that had been the site of the carp tecame the site of
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the Chalone Creex Campground. Most of the tuildings were
dismmrntled, ut the machine shop and euipment shed remmin
in the present maintemance arsa of the park. 4lso resRining
frem the OO0 days arve sam amall uildiogs such as the cap
and powder house, and the pap houss.

Tie other reminders of the camp’s presence are less
direct. Tney remmin in the flors that cower the scars of
the road thet was tilt in 1934, apd in the trees thet shade
the campgramnds; and in the buildings they erected; in the
gam and reservoir they built; and in the bridge that they
mrhed the =wone for while the Italian stone mesons applied
thair craft.

The mood will they uilt in the neighboring camunities
iz a less tangible remnder of their stay in the area, hut
in no way less important. The poney the men speat on their
trips into town helped steady = staggering economy, and the
open houses at the canmp for the public, as well as the
public dances the men sponsored at Bolado Fark before they
would lesve the area, gave the local people the hiphest
regard for the men who were enrolled at Camp Pinnacles.

This is perhaps why the OCC is so often credited with all
the improverents made during Itha.t pericd; they are the first

and best remembersd.
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Chapter 10

TAPACT OF WORLD WAR II AT PINMACLES

Starting in the 1840's we figd our mjor souree of
information about ewents at the Hnonscles is the Super—
intendent's montilly narrative peports!

The First, mst heticeable, impact of the Second World
War was the change in maopower at Pinnacles MNational
Moment. Fron a commnity in itself that had amployed ower
300 meh in the 1930's, the park had seen the disappesrance
af powernmental sponsored employmrent  programs end  the
entallment of the CO2's to a foree of mch less that one
tundred men. The Bk Service at that time had only two
full-time amdl two part—tice aPployees——the custodian was a
mro-tire aenrplovee; the Cidef Banger and the clerk bypist
wera full tire amployees and there was one pari-time ranger.

After the distending of the OO, the srmll staff at the
romment was pressed upon to do all the trail meintenance,
guide work, and oy other jobs that had previausly been the
responzsibility of the CCC men. Improvements at the momument
ware at 2 standstill, and the condition of facilitiec
deteriorated.

The superinterdeant’s residence, for example, whicn had
een started in 18941, remined uofinished until 1944,

uring this period of extram mopower stortage, the job
when there were very Tfew visitors, seemed a very taxing

ity .
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Alrost simaltansisly with the cut in reopower came the
sharp decline in wisitation at the mrk. Even befors the
advent of gs rationimg the wvisitaticn dripped o 2 mers
fraction of what it had heen in the pre-war pericd. This
wa.s felt moat in the opetation of the Lodge.

What had been & profitable usiness when the Lodpe was
at its prime, feeding the many visitors and laborers, became
a losing proposition. It is much to the credit of the con-—
cessionaire at that time, Mrs. P.0. (Hazel) James that she
kept the operation open for the duration of the War.

+t was during these war years thet the firet women were
mired at Hansacles. Clarma Lausten worked as a olerk typist,
and Drucilla Isaacson was the first wamn ranger at the
prrlk.

The admisnistration at Pipnacles had wwo problems that
arose Ln connection with inholdings near the end of the
war. In Augnst 1945, Fred J. Hawkins, part owner of 400
acres inside the northern end of the rorunent, called on the
carstodian, Frank (dvens, to disguss the possibility of
puilding & road into his property through ronurent propertiy
fthis request had teen denied in the past). The regquesi was
denied, and & sign was erecfed at the sptrance to Hawkios'
property which read, "This is not a thraagh roed.”

In Cctoper of the same Year, Pussell Bourke, owner of a
larpge hatchery in Petalurn, and owner of &0 acres af land

within the ronument, sent a representaiive to study the

23



possibilities of starting a large turkey rmanch on his
groperty within the momrent. The property in the north end
of the momment was not cloase to areas frequented by
visitors; nevertheless it was felt that the turkey ranch
would craate an undesirable candition. The question of a
right—of-way for a rcad up the Chalone Cresk would be
recpenad 1T the plaps for the ranch realized. Eweryone was
relieved when Bourke decided not to build the ranch.

It was during October of 1845 that 2 start was mde
townrd removing the "iotacco weed" shich was growing oro-
fusely araind the old COC camp. 1T was reported that it hkad
oeen originally brought in from Mistralia, and it is deadly
to cattle. Some of the local cattiemen were foarful that
the plant would spread cutside the monurent onto the cattle
TAnT. It was assumed that the weed had somebow heen
hrought Lo 9% some of the rea who inhabited the OOC camp.

It wos soon after the cessation of the war in Burope
that the conditions at Plrnacles Maticnal Motument began to
improve. In Septenber of 1945, reported visitation to the
mrk was up 330% over the previcis year. With the increase
in wvisitation and the sasing of hostilities abrcad, more
funds meame evailable to do.the pecessary work of restora-
ticn in the momment.

The post war years also saw the returning vetosrans aenin
fill the Jjobs tThat had been filied by women 1n their

abmence; Mrs, James turned over the mnagenent of the
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concession to  Lillian B. Anderson; v, Hawkins retired as
custodian of the momurent in 1845 after bolding that title
for twenty years. His replacesent, Qistodian Givens, served
until 1947, and William 0. (ibbs, sefter Givens, ramined
until 1953.

A quiet and isclated time had ended for Pinnacles
thtional Momment, a time that must have seemed as if there
were days when they hsd been comletely forgotten by the
outside worid. The next decade would show the pecple who
hed held the fortress how wrong they bad been in believing

that the public had forgotten them.

255



Cnapter 11
THE 1930's AT THE FINNAULES

Fram Superintendent’s Monthly Merrative Beports end
Anmial Beports we contimue to obtain a picturg of what life
wag like at Pinnecles Maticonal Monnment.

The decade of the 1950's started off with a merked
increase in visitation to the momuwent. February aof 1930
zaw & 08% pain in visitation over the same month of 1949,
and March «f thet =me year saw a gain of 104% over the
Previols year.

Conferences began with comercial power companies and
the advent of commercial power seemed hDear for the park.

Thne Lodge remined without a concessionsire as it had
gince 1348, but there were several prospects—all of whal
backed cut before taking over the venture because of lack of
facilities. Yowever, the Tark Service contimied to do re—
pairs on the building. A ne% roof was put on the Lodge in
1950, and several shels of acorns and pine nuts were taken
fpran beTween The walls. Soeet metal was placed behind the
exterior walls to discourege 4 repetition of this type of
vandalism by woodpeckers.

Construction projects for the 1931 fiscal yedr were
canceled due to the U.S. inovolverent in the Eorean #ar, it
the superintendent's residence was finally completed, when a
Lrick porch and stone steps replacex] the Temorary wooden

ones at the back entrance,
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The supply road was completed to the west side of
halone DBeek in 1831, and in July of that year the Lookout
at Chalone Peak burned to the ground.

In February of 1952, W.I. Hawkins, former austodian of
Pinnacles, died at tie ape of 85. That would have made hin
77 vears of age when he retired fram the position in 18435.

It was during the winter of 1932 that the driveway to
the new superintendent’s residence was being constructed by
the Cranite Construction Company of Watsonville. The cul—
vert wag put in and they were ready for the f£ill. That job
was finished on sarch 5. Then the conpany asked for & stop
order tecause the dirt was too wet to finish the grading.
On March 14, a flood carried away about Y0 cubic yards of
£i11 and slid the culvert out of line and zrade. The com-
pany had to replace this section as soon as the ground dried
oUt. During the twenty-four hcur period from 7 a.m. on
varch 14 oo 7 a.m. of Mrch 15, 4.38 inches of rain hed
fallen. Thiz heavy rmain resulted in severnl roads aod
trails being washed out; existine drainage could not hamdle
ail the water, and water ancd sewage lines were uncovered in
gewaral areas of the mrk. Chalone Creek road #as axten—
sively damaged, with some cuts measuring three fest deep.

The California Dhvision of Foresiry besn canstruction
of the new Lookout Tower on Chalone Peak in 1932.

Superintendent illiam Gibbs moved to Mair Woods in

Yarceh of 1953 and the mew Superintendent, Beo C. Miller,
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arrived on the secemd of April. Mr. Miller died of a heart
attack on the tenth of April. The =superintendent was found
dead in his gquarters, and his wife had to be potified by
park persomnel as she had not yet arrived &t the monpaent.
Tark Ranger Alton Hoover served as Acting Superintendent in
the absence of a superintendent in both instances——after
Gibbs” departure and after Miller's desth—befcre the
arrival of a new superintendent. Foover was promoied in
June from a2 Park Ranger (55 to s Supervisory fark BRanper,
G5-6.

In Jaly, Farl JacksSon arrived to £ill the position of
superintendent, and the naturslist at the monument, ALC,
lenean started the task of meking the MNature Ubservations
File.

A1l the files and map files were cleaned cut and brought
up to date. A momment fact file was started during this
period.  This file would have been of prest use to future
researciers if it had been kept up to date under subsequent
administrations.

The checking station was roved to the headguarters area
in 19535,

lois Hiory Webb, who had been 8 laborer at the pa.rk in
1952, bad resigned to go into partnership in the dairy
usiness. He returped to work as Mrintenanceman in October
of 1953. On Movembe=r 10, 1253, Loa Webp and Bessle Hain

Naan ware Mrried.
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Tecertar of 1933 saw the highest travel year on record
for the momument, with 42,199 visitors bteing recorded et
Fipnacles Mational Momment. & self-—puiding trall system
was inktiated o aceomdate all thess visitors.

In 1954 the practice of park employees giving campfire
talks o canpers on Saturday nights, upon request, was inl-
tiated. The talks were so successful that the practice
rerained as a permanent part of the interpretation of the
momment to the wvisitor, and the talks are now rutine
events.

In the Surerintendent's anmial report o the Director in
1954, Mr. Jackson spoie of the dermise of the Pionacles
Ledpe:

For rmany vears a cooacessionaire operated a
lodpe and set of 10 cabins in the headguarters area
here. Since 1948 these facilities have bteen closed,
with potential operation Trevenues insufficient to
attract a new cperator.

In the fiscal vear now ending your aifics has
approved discontimwance of this concessionalre
function a2s not essential to the needs of the
fiblic, and future mester plan revisions are to
reflect this change. Acoardingly, the lodge
ilding, concessionaire's quarters, and lLodee
storerocm  have been  surveyesd, bids for  their
demolition and removal Ssolicited, and  contract
avarded to 2 logal rancher, Art Smith., Remowal of
these mildings is now under way.

{(The concessionairz's guarters were thea purchased
Trogy Art Smitih by Loa and Bessie Webb. The building
that had been known affectionatzsly to Bessie Webb ior

all its vears as "Green (ables,” now stands near her

ranch home in Bear Valley to remind her of the many
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happy yvears of association she and her loved ones have
hag with Finnacles Mational Motument. We are fortunate
to have had an interview of how the building was mowved
dewn the mountain one morning at 5 a.m. S0 as to avoid
any traffic.)

Mr. Jackson had always been interested in history,
and besides starting the fact file for the momment, it
was during his stay at the mmment that Hobert lowl
began &n lovestigation to sse if the Pinnacles was
actually the mountain referred to in Vancouver's VYoyage

af Discoverv. Shortly afier Jackson left the monument

the story was proved to the smtisfaction of the Matlonel
Inrk Servies ito be erronecns, and all reference to
"“Yancoaver's Pinmacles" dropped from future items of
publicity concerming the mrk, according to information
found in file #-14 at the Finnacles Maticnal Momument.
It was early in the 1950's that “"Mission '65" came
upon the scene. The title for the program carme about
becanse the yvear 1966 was to be the target dote for the
restoration and development aof facilities in  qur
national parks and mourments that had fallen into such a
shameful state during the wa-r years., Fach park had jts
own personalized program for improvement goals. Some of
the mpals slated for the Fimmacles under that prograpm
W the installation of conmercial power, completed

in 1857; the regodeling of e of the cabins 1nto
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living quarters for seasonal persomnel, in 1956; a new
sewaps system for the esst side, and a whole new water
systam for that side of the park, started in 1992 and
capleted in 1966; and the development of the west side
of the mmument, coamplated in 1964,

In 1956 the Chamber of Commrce of Soledad sponsored
2 Soledad family style picnic on the wesi side of the
mark that turned into an ammal event. It was the in-
terest of the citizens of Soledad and their insistence
upon the development of the west side of the monument
that Jdid mach to  further the plans  for future
develogment of that aroa.

In 1858 the Soledad Chamber of Commerce reactivated
the drive for a road through the momerent.  In 1257 the
supervisors of the two comnties of MWonterey and San
Benito met w0 discuss the mtter, and a policy statement
was  requested from the Mational Ferk Ssrvice con the
subject. Both the Fark Service and the (alifornia State
Highway Department were averse to the proposed ropd, as
was of course fn Benito county. Since the mtter
geored to e finnlly s=ettled o their matisfaction, in
19458 the 1680 acres in the rmﬁu:mnt that had been bheld by
the coainty of 3an Benito for twenty years was deeded to
the federal goveroment under a ninety-nine Feaxr lease——
with the provision That no throuch roaad ever be put over

that section of land. This was abp easy decision for the
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Park Service o comply with, as such a road would
destroy the scenic wilues they were trying to protect.

[t was during the 1950's that the prospecting for
uranium craze hit America, and Finnacles was oot exempt
from tha mamia. In the 1955 Superintemient’'s Anmial
Raport to the Director there was an item under the
heading “Mining,” which read:

During the month of December 1955 we vere
advised by the Bakersfield, California office of the
Atomic Bnersy Commission that Mr. Eobby L. Davis and
ir. Joe D. ifinton of Pittsburg, lifornia had
located radicactive minerals in the moument, in the
f11d Pinnacles section and had staked claims covering
their find. Mr. William E. Bales, AMC Geologist,
investirated the find and stated that the ore #as
“sutumite" and shows considerable radicactivity bt
that the deposit was not extensive encugn to warrant
commercial production. All this trapspired withaout
the knowledge of momment personnel, prior to the
vigit of M. Bales.

A chieck was grde of the San Benite County
recopds and it was found that four claims had bBeen
staked, Buzzard's BRoost #1, #2, &3, and 44 in
Sections 27 and 34, T 16 3, B 7 E, and were recorded
on April 15th apd 18th, 1955. These are situated
partially on San Bepito County land, the 1€0 acres
in Section 34 coriginally purchased for dorpation to
the Government for service use but never finally
transferred, and ou romment lanéd in Section Z7.

#Mr. Invis vwas notified that his claims were oot
valid amd nothing had been heard on the mtiter.

Russell L. Mahan nad bween superintendent following Iarl
Japkson, from 1955 until 1958, Supervisory Fark Ranger
Hobert J. Ramstad was Acting Superintendent for the month or
s until Mahan's replacement, Everett W. Bright, arrived.
It was during the tirme of his duty at Plonacles Matiomal
domtment  that Everett PBright received bhils thirty sear

garvice awoprd From the Mational Rrk Service.
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Vigitation contimed to rise, and a swrvey of the
wwoitors to  the momument conducted by park personnel showed
that 25% of the pecple entering the momument were from Santa
Clara county; 17% wers fran San Francisco and the Bay Area
and & were 3% were fram San Benito caunty. Scout troops
eontinued to meke regular camping trips to the park, znd now
mountain climbing graups and naturalist groups were also
making regilar excursions to the arsa. There was hardly a
roclk at the momument that had oot been scaled and named oy
the rock olimters. The park ranger now nore than ever had
to e trained for the skill of mountain search and rescue.

It was in 1958 that scenes of Jobn Steinbeck's novel
Flight, having been adapied for ‘i‘.‘ﬂe movies, were filmed at
Pinnacles, PRablicity was carried over Channel KRON-TV, San
Frapncisco. This, slong with seversl mRgazine articles on
Pinnacles Naticmn]l Moourent, mRde the visitation at the
momment 2o0m even more. 1t wes At the close of the decade
that a new problem plagued the administration of the park—
vandalism.

A new electrical system for the caves had been installed
in 1958 and the lisghting in the cawves, plus the signing
thrcughout the park, seamd to be the first and ensiest
targets of the new menace.

Calendar year travel, ending in October of 1859, showed
5. decrease over the same period for 1958. Visitors in 1939

nurersd 53,148 as compared with 34,204 in 1958, At the



=re time an iporease was shown in overnipght trawvel to the
moament. It seemed that Americans pad just discovered the
experience of visiting the oit—door, and the Jjoy of camping.

The final grant deed to the U.S. Government from the Leo
A. Boutke Corporation, {former Pussell BoeurKe property ), was
recorded at the court house in Hollister ia December, 1989,
thng extending the momument boundaries end incrsasing the

pdministrative duties of the manspgement of the park.
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Chapter 12

TdE 1960's AT THE FINNACLES

Superintendsents’ Monthly Marmative Beports are the mejor
sgurce of information for the 1260's at the momument.

Tt was in 1960 that rurors of an Indien burial graind in
the Chalone Creek TAnyon led to the belisf that 2 prelimin-
ary archeclorical reconmaissance of the area should be
rade. There #as no rTeason previously to believe that
Indians had ever used the Pinmacles in agythiog bit an
itinerant way.

Lonis Webb retired =as meintensncemn on December 9,
1960, itba wag the recipieny of & ten yesr Ctation for
Conmrendable Service award at a commmnity gathering in his
hanor beld at Bear Valley 3School.

After the rotiroment of Webb, Caretaker Arthur Smitn wes
oromoted to the position of Mainptepanceman Viee.  Almost at
the same tine, Superviscry FPark Tanger Boberw Bamstad also
received &4 promyticn.

Several tons of rock were removed froo the Chalone Creek
Cappground, creatly improving the appearance of that area.

In 4pril of 1961, two sharp earthquakes, five mmites
amrt and measuring 5.8 and 5.7 an the Richter scale, hit
the area. The quakes =eanx] to e ceotered half way between
Pimnacles and Hollister on the ¥an Andreas Fault., There was
no noticeable damage to the momment, but the damapge in
tinllister was the worst since the San Frmncisco carthgquake

of 19006,
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4 freak storm arrived on the afterncon of My-31, 194l
pouring down 1.19 inches of rain in thirty mimites. The
storm did mich darmes to the road amd trail systems and many
ran-hours Were used in remiring the damgs.

It was in 193 that Plonoacles Mationmal Momment was
designated es one of the Federally fixed Radiclogical
Monitoring stations, and radiclogical instruments were
installed. Feriodic dose rate readings were taken, but the
dorse rates were nroven nomml.

The test well that had been dug on the Chalone Creek
wald pump dry after a few hours of use, &0 a test trench
acrcss the Chalone Creelr was dug in order to supply the well
with water. This rmethod proved effective.

Trips were made to other ares musSums bY perx personnel
to mther ideas for displaying wild flowers. Implanting in
plastic was proving impractical, and most meseums pad hund
mintaed the dried flowers for display. Fran the trip the
idea of imbedding insect specimens in plestic svolved.

A remorandum from the Washington Office coomemorated the
fart that the Pinnaeles had no disahling employee injuries
for the three year period batwesn Jammry 1, 1258 and
January 1, 154l. |

STEe new safety measurss ait the park wers the new
walkways, rallings and steps to the two Bear Qileh comfort
stations, and to the one at the Chalone Creelt canpgraind.

The April edition of Sunget mpazine carried the

arronears staitanent that Finpacles Mational Momment had
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Just muilt 62 new campsites. As no new campsSites had been
huilt, the Faster wacationers svammed to the park, over-
lmding the mmment staff and facilities.

In Mowemier of 1261, Scperintendent Bverett Eripght had a
heart attack, He was back to work before long—out then
tocdk an extended sick leave in 1963, with the view of
waiting for his disability retireent. He and his wifa
mwved to their home in Bollister. Supervisory Fark Ranger
Ramstad was Acting Superintendent uptil the arrival of
[elyle Stevens. Stevens was Acting Superintendent until the
retirement of Bright. Bright was allowed 1to kesp the
honorary title of Supsrintendent until that date.

The rangers and mark naturalist tock to "roving" the
heavily traveled trailsg ino lieu of regular nature hikes., It
was felt that ther reached mre people and deterped vandal-
ism. Thizs practice also put mrk personnel ip close
proxigity wits hikers, o be of assistance in cases i
EMEr{ency.

By the start of 1962 forty new campsuites hed been 'milt
on the Chalone Creek Campground in readiness for the spring
season, and firs breaks were constnicted around the coumg—
peround . |

4 reorganimation of the ilnsect, reptile anmd arphibian
collections was atarted, 25 well as & new way of recording
wildlife sightings by listing the sightings on roathly

oserver cards.
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The Yestern Musmuam [ahoratory restored the relief mp of
the momrent end a pipe gsard rail was iostalled around the
mp in the museum. The rep had originally been made in 18936
and was set up in the lodge elong with a glass showease that
featured many Indian artifects focund in the area.

Visitation contimually increased as a result of all the
publicity received by maazines and newspapers. It wes in
1962 that the Sperry—orse Comany had a  billbeerd
advertisement titled, "Visit Pinpacles Maticpal Momment,”
telling of the S. & H. Green Stamp touring service.

At the vear’'s end, there were six full-time emlcyees at
the park: the Surerintandent; the Sapervisory Fark Hanger;
the naturalist: a clerk; the printenanceman and a laborer.

The Chalone Cresk Campfire site was started 10 replace
the cne that had been obliterated a fow months before in the
hesdquarters area.

Twc wunsalvageable water tanks anpd the dilapidated
covering shed that had been in use in the COU days were
reroved from the Chalone Cresk Campgraand arsi.

Bzeause of the vecurring pollution of Spiit Rock Spring
that =upplied water ©o the Deadquarters Aarved, Watler was
pamped frcm the Cnalone Creek well for storage in the Bear
Gulch 20,000 zallon storage tank.

nvk Meturalist Donald M. DeFoe was selected to attend
the first session at the Stephen Mather Interpretive
Training and Hesearch Center at Berper's Ferry, West

Virginia in Septemer of 1941,



mthority was given by the Begioml Office to contime
the nepotiations that had begun in 1962 for the three in-
holdings (380 acres) within the momurent that were belng
affered at a higher wnit rate msed upon severance damges
for their possible acguisition by the government.

Cash remisters were received and standardized for
entragce =tation ooerations for the coning travel season.
One register was held in the Begional Office temmorarily for
Tralining purposses.

The momment contimued to attract an increasing muder
of youth oroups. More erphasis was placed upon reaching the
voung pecple before they had a chance to get lnto trauble.
In spite of this, vwmndalisn continued hieh in the caves.

local newspmpers carried items relative to the $71,000
dccelerated  Public Works funds assigned to  Pinnacles
Metional Momument. This produced an awkward sitmafion in
that the news was released to the papers several days before
the administration of the park had been given the authority
1o confirm the item or give limited details. (This was to
be used for needed projects including the bifuminous regseal
of the East entrance road, sewer system reconstruction and
extention of the water syétm, Condor Culch, and water
system reconstruction in Bear Guich.) Pacific Gas and
Electric craws placed an additicnal pole in their distri-
mution line mear headquarters to provide required ground

clearance.

288



In Fobruary authority was received at the mmurent o
recruit seasonal personnsel  cutside the registers  of
eligibles.

Camping in non—designated areas was authorized to cope
with heavy oroup usape—perhaps frtly due to the March
Supnset issue with an article about the hill and <wllsy
coartry of ralte 25, and the mention of Pinmacles.

In Anpust of 103 the firgt draft of the Pinnacles

Maturel History Handbock, written by Seasonal Ranger Reter

Bennett, was sent to the Hegional Office for editing.

Waurerals patrols along Cld Finnacles road #ere mde to
discurage poachers. Patrols wers aut fram daylight to dusk
until deer season ended on August Zl.

A4 new sewer system was put into coemtion in August,
tus elimnating the antiguated facilities constructed in
the OCC days. The new sSysten incorporated a cesspool to
handle the bulk of cutflow of the public facilities in the
Boar Gulch area 22 well as the effluent Irom the quarters.
The Bublic Health Service had been objecting to the seepage
inta The strearn channel, and to the systen in general sinee
the mid-1840's. Tile was also laid in Building #5, for the
evantual shift of the office It::n that struchure.

Much of the Supervisory fanger's and the Chief Ranger’s
tice was spent interviewing applicants and processing papers
for the accelerated Mublic Works trall project. The lack of

a oleri ot that fime was an added burden, so the clerk's
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position was reclassified to Administrative Assistant to
help with the recruiting and filling of the position.

Vandaliem contimed to be the mjor scurce of admin-
istmative problems in the year of 1984, Un one occasion &
visitor was apprehended in the act nihdestrtﬁing a light
hlh in the Bear Gulch Caves. Superintendent Stevens
discussed the case with the U.3. Commissioner, Henry B.
Fulton of Salinas, who egied advice from the U.S5. Attormey
General. The next month Orville dolman, F3l Special dgent
from Salinas, was in the park to discess law enforcement
proceedurs with tho superintendent, and Superintendent
Stevens vigited the Hemional Office to obtain edvice from
Regional Solicitor Costellc on law enforcement miters.
Through the efforts of FRI special Azeat COrville Molmen
permssion was given by the U.S, Attorney General for cases
involving Federal Begulations to be heard before the U.S.
Copmiissioper in Salinaz. It wac hoped that & more rigorous
law enforcerent and prosecution wonld reduce the prevalence
of vandalism.

On April 9, 1964, a. dinner social was held in the
Superintendent’s quarters, and eMployess observed the
presentation of & Cm’memiat:;le Service Award presented by
Superintendsnt Stevens to HEverett Brieht, who retired on
Jamary 25, 1964,

It was in 1964 that a documeried and reg;iarly schedaled

series of zafety programs was initiated, and the position
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eld bWy  Art  Smith  was  regraded  and  changed  fram
raintenancerno to Foremmn L.

A new deck was lald on the bridge on the Righ Peaks
Trail. Tne lumber was hauled to the =ite by Boy Scout
ETOUDS.

The old foot bridge in front of the headquarters was
also replaced by one constructed under the supervision of
Remional lendscape Architect Fowler.

On Septeamber 4, 1984, krk Maturalist Joseph L. Sperber
was found dend in his gquarters. The cause af death was
onalmonia. 4 short wemorial service was held at  the
mortuwary chapel in Hollister and was attended by his friends
from this ares.

It was in 1964 that the nevy menace, motoroycle riders,
or "Tote Goets,” began to plague the momment. 3igns of the
ecological “death sentence” were found on the Falconies
Trail, and signg were etected to deter the invaders, ut the
menace continued.

On Jaimeary 30, 1245, a roport was received that George
E. Baker, (Aretaker, had been drowned while clamming on hisg
day off. On the 2lst the report was confireed altbough his
oy had not yvet been rec.-::ve.re-d. The laborer position was
reclassified as Coretaker. On Febmuary 2 Imnacio Gendaria
was given a temporary appointment &5 2 laborsr to assist
with peneral park malntenance until a succeessor vo Ciretaker

George Baker could e found.
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In Yarch of 1965, Superintendent Stevens discugsed with
Bemional officials the advisability of accepting gratultons
services of Fxplorer Scouts for use on approprieie projects,
and the new fee structhure. Five thousand short tem
entrance permits wers printed locally a.w.irone thousend
annual 'permit stickers were received with which to put the
new fee structure under the land and Water Conservation
Program into effect. Much time was devoted 1o devising 2
procedure to collect fees with the limited renpower
awmilable.

4 Flan For the Man was completed oy Fark Maturalist

Hobtert Zink and was on file for inspection. 7Zink acguainted
himself with the paturalisi File apd pat it in order. He
spent considerable time expanding the MNetual History
Association operations as well as contribating his
experience in dewveloping a fleor plan for the proposed
Visitors' Center. This experiehce was obtained in acquiring
a tmckground of the arsa by swmdyipg old master plans,
nistory and developmental oitlines. He then went to the
Regional Cffice to pregmre an Interpretive Prospectus
eatiing for the Begiona]l Maoaralist. Zink also spent
saveral days assisting the E-iaister Flan Team.

In 4pril of 1965, Chief Fainger [Robert FBamstad was
oresented with his twenty year service pin by Superintendsnt
Stavens.  Bob sald that although the pin was three-quarters

of a year late, he #»as still glad to receive it.
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It wae in 1965 that a stamd-bY carousel slide projector
was purchased Tfor canpfire circle use and also a portabie
amplifier to improwe toe woice range at the evening
PrOETRITE .,

Another ipnovation at the park that year was a siren and
red light in the station wagon that were added in the hope
of slowing down some of the speeders.

4 blue ribbon award was received for Pinnacles® eshibit
at the San Benita County Feir at Bolado Park.

"Tote Goeis” continued to e a mounting problem, and in
December mtrols were incrensed in an attempt to apprehend

izimas tree thisves.

- With the development of a plentiful water =upply on the
west side it was considered desirsble fo enlarge the water
storage tank to 20,000 millons, amd to replace the pit
toilets as shown in The Drelimnary plans with an approved
canfort station on that side of the momment. These changes
were adooIed in the fipal Mission 65 plans.

Ther> was an increase of 15% in wvisitors to the park
ower the year of 1944, and an 11% increase in owernight
visits. One hundred and eighieen thousand and forty—eight
visitors eotered Pinnacleé in 1865, and thirty-four
thousand, nine hundred and nite pecple canped overnight.

The ymar of 066 staried off with the problem of five
stray cattle found in trespass on the Chalone Creek. They
wers identified as being fron the Kelley Ranch stock and

were reroved oy percoansl of the Kelley Panch the same day.

24



Jay Acres of the U.5. Geological Survey traced ihe
Cnalone Creek Fault nerthward from Willow Spring acting
deviation fram the track shown on previcls geologic
studies., He concluded that there was A considerable water
storage in the conglamerates east of the fauit az2nd that a
vary sood well could be obtained a short distance east of
the present Chalone Creek Camppraind. He felt that Willow
Spring was the overflow of this underground reservoir.

On February 1, 1966, a neeting of the prospective Board
of Directors for the Pinnecles Matural History Asscclation
met amd apreed to form the orgenizaticn. The drafts of the
Articles for Incorporation and the Bylaws were adepted, and
officers elected. With this action the affiliation aof the
oast severanl years that the mrk had with the Gbrillo
Higstoriesl Association was terminated. Local newsmpers
carried articles on the forming of this orgpaization and
copiss of the articles were sant to the Begional Office in
Sn Frencisea.

A peregrine falcon #es cbeserved in nesting activities
west of the high peaks on March 2, 1966, It had been
several vears since the rare bird had been spotted within
the mpmament boundiries. -

Fremuent rvoad ptrols were used in an effort to curh
roadside camping dus to overcrowding of the campgrounds.

Vandaliism in the mves continued to be one of the
tiggest adrinistrative "nesdaches.” IPatrols were increased

but the Juperintendent way convipnced that the problem caild
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cnly be alleviated by a tamper-proof lighting system. The
following month nearly one hundred light WIS were
destroyed.

The year af 1966 was an early fire season Vear and &
pumper unit was mounted on the "fire pick-up” at the park.
Fire lines at the toe of the =lopes in the camprroinds wara
renewad, Dry grass and burnables in campgrounds were
reroved. Scme of this latter work was done by Boy Scout
Croups A% conservation projects.

Repairs wars rede on the Chalone Creek Reservoir and
ATTREDFETENTS wers made to procure & pup of grezter capacity
for that area.

A Project Cost Proposal was prepared for a2 vandal-proaf
lipghting system, znd a new 60,000 gllon tank for the Bear
Culeh water system was constructed. Due to pump traubls on
the Chalone, and lesks in the Chalone water tank, it was
NacesSETy To release water from Split Rock Spring io Bear
Guleh into the water system. This action mede it necessaTy
for additionmal chlorination a2t the Bear Giulch tank to mke
sure the water was safe for drinking.

The Mnnacles Matural History Association man into
diffiouity in obtainming tax F;-xer:pt status from the state of
California amd the mtter was referrad to the Regional
Solicitor.

Sketches and photogrephs were sitarted to accompany the
meological history of the area. The roagh draft of the bodk

was prepared and reviewed by the Beglomal Fublicity Office.
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A contract was entered inio by the Western HRegional
ffice and the C=ntral California Archeological Foundation
for 51,300 for an archeclosical study to De made at Pinna-
cles Matiopal Momument., Toae field work was started by
William Olsen, lewis A, Payen and Jonn L. Beck in Cotober
1968, The final report was received in May of 1D67.

shintenancaman Hugh Mowery was assigned to temporary
duty as the Tanger for the west side until that position
caild be permanently filled.

A Tentative land acguisition program for the years 1968
through 1972 was drawn up for the poesible procurement of
the in-heldings within the mommeaot.

It was in the year of 1966 that we find the first
mention of Golden Ape Passports.  (Golden Age Fassports are
lifetime passes issued to persons over 62 that enable the
bearar to enter any fedewnl ares free of charge.)

The park slide file was overhauled and the poor mterial
wag digearded. The clide file was moved to the museum
office building for conveniences.

In Sentemher the administration of the momurent was
informed toat the U.S. Commissioner did not h&ve authority
to try cases fronm Punnaclies Iﬁtian.a.l Monwrent. Efforts were
then concentrated on getting a2ssistance fran the County
Sheriff's Office with the @mses to be heard by the local

Justices of the Heace.
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The Blue Bibbon &warml for Flomacles' "Fifirieth
Anniversary" thems was received for the park's eniry at the
San Benito County Fair at Bolado Park.

In Coctober of 19658 photograpnic coverage in support of
the proposed Chalone Peak Wilderness within bhe Pinmacles
houndairies was mde and- fordrded to Washington, and in
MNovermber the superintendent went to Salinas to armamnge for a
nall in which the hsarings cculd be held for the proposed
Pinnacles Wilderoess ared. The Mount Defiance Wildevness
Hearing hte was set for February 2, 19467. Revised sheetls
of the Yaster Plan showing proposed filderness arez were
receivwd., A corrected copy was in the Tark Headnquarters to
be used by the public for reference.

The 43,336 campers in 1966 was a 21% increese owver the
previous year, tut the mirber of visiters (117,939) was down
by 18 people—this figure, however, did not include the
1,186 peaple who entersd the west side of the momurent
during 1966,

It was in the wvear of 19 thet the practice of
Juperintendent’s Anmal Seports sas dropped by the Ssrvice,
and shortly after, iue practice of the Superintendent'’s
Honthly Sarrative Boport was no longer & veguirement of
adrinistration. The informetion for the mlance of the 1965
decade was foand in the Tuplicity file at Finnacles Mational
Momiment.

The Wilderness Act of 1383 provided that certain areas

af public domein shoulsd be designated as "wilderness" and
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preserved for future generations. Hearings op the amount of
land in and adjacent to Fiamacles Mational Monument that
should be inciuded in the Chalons Pesk Wildemmess Bill, tne
it. Defiance #Wilderness Bill, and finally the one that was
aracted, the Finnacles Mational Momurent ¥ilderness gill,
would expand another decade. The Mt., Defiance Bill that was
introduced by Semator Ticmas H. Kochel in 1268 proposed that
3,870 acres be included as wilderness. The Sierra Club, the
Matiom) Judubon Society and the Federation of Yestern
Outdoor Clubs opposed this proposal--these orgenizations
felt that the arez epcamaszed under the Bill should be rore
like 13,000 acres. The Sin Beanice County ooard of
supervisors was cppossed to the larger acreage for the sake
af, the

landowners in the sovthern end of the county who would be
affected by lower walue for their lands, and for the
reduction in tax reveme. tue mtter contimled W bDe a
topic for negotiztions for the rest of the 1860's.

(n March 25, 1667, a (Czlifornia Divisicn of Forestry
truck driver was killed shen his truck went too close to the
edge, and careenad down the rountain from the supply road to
the Lockoat Tower on nNorth Chalone Peak.

Tt wms in 1957 that signing sas put on Route 101
desipnating route 25 to Hollister and the HFinnacles.

Supervisory Manger Ramstad 1=ft Pinnacles in Septamber

1967 and his replecement, James langford, came in January

F

%]

of 19€8. In March of 19€3 Superiniendent Delyle Stevens
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retired. Cordon Patterson wook over as superintendent in
april of the same year.

feports of #arch 1983 mention that there was still
glectric lighting in the caves, it July reports note that
the raves Were no lonZer lighiced. Fecple nad w bring thelir
o flashlights. They had finally found 2 way o curb the
vardalism to the electric light hulbs in the caves!

In 1968 the first cootrolled burning GLock place in
Sequoiaz Matiomal Park under the experimental program
conducted by & proap of four professors from Han Jose State
Cniversity. Control turping was a subject that BPark
Maturnlist Hobert Zink of Pinmacles had been trying to
pramté sihce 1885 for chaparral country. Dreseribed
rning, as it is oow known in the Mational Park Service, 1S
a reguler part of Pinpacles resource planning.

In June of 1963, Administrative Officer Duane Jchnson
received special recognition for the job he had performed
while he was Acting Superintendent cefore the arrival of the
new superintendent, Gordon Fatierxson.

It was in 196% that Pinnecles besan to mke »laons for a
study to find the limit of cpacity for the monurent. The
new ecological interest of the people of the United States
prought to the adsinistration of our nmational parks anmd
mopureats the realizstion that over—overuse by the visiting
public conld destroy the rescurces the Service was trying (o
orotect. For so mny years the emphasis nad been on trylng

to get more pecple to visit the recreatiornal areas.  Now it
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was apmrent that if the natural resources were poing to be
saved, visitation would have to be limited.

In Cetober of 1883 the Chalone Campgraund closed until
further notice due to the Fact that only five iLnches of
rainfall in the previcas year mde for an emergency water
shortage and extreie fire hazmard. The cﬂ.mpérmmd reopened
on the twenty-fifth of MNovember.

It was June 28, 19628 that the Bevenue snd Expenditure
Control act (FL 20364} was initiated. Tha result to
HMonacles Mational Mogueent was that only three out of every
four positions colld be filled. To meet the reducticn in
employeent, the Visitors Center befen to be closed oo the
two days of the week that surveys had shown o be the
slowest in monwment visitation, Tuesdey and Wednesday. This
control was Lifted in 1932,

The period of the 1260°'s had been a period of change at
the momurent. The neW decade would see the easement of the
employee cartailment, But the emphasis on police protection
wonld continue, and even increass, The concern [or the
ecological environment would also increase.  To those who
beliewed timt the purpose of the Mitional Rark Service was
to preserve the natural environment, these two areas of

erphasis at times seened dlabolically opposad.
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Chaptar 13

THE 18703 AT PINHACIES

The spires, dopes apd finger-like pinnacls projections
fram shich Plonacles Mationsl Yommment derived its name, hag
long been a mecoa G0 the mamtain climbers, amxl there #as
probably no stone that had beer ieft unscaled by the time
the seventh decade of the tweptieth ceptory errdived.
Becanse of the compectness of the momment and the
coarvenience of its location, Pinnacies became especially
valued as a tralning site for novice climbers. This is
regrettebie in a way, for the soft volcanic rock camposition
of Pinnacles’ formations does not lend itself to ideal
climbing conmditions.

There had been meny close calls for both hikers amd
exparienced climbers over the years, when the services of

the rangers were called upon to rescue visitors who had

.became stranded on some high peak. On Yareh 21, . 1970

Pipnarles Mationz2l Momument recorded its first fatnlity of &
glimber.

Gerald Csborn, 24, mn experdlenced climber of five
veaTs, and FKathy Sasld, 20, a pew climber of s5ix months
experience (both students at Berkeley), had started their
ascent of Machete Ridge about ncoon frum the west side of the
momment. They had speot an bour at the summit reeparing
their ropes a2od gear. It wes about dusk when they were

ready to make their descemt., Hhy Osborn chese 1o rappel
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down the west face of the Michete instead of taking the
safer eastern exlt at that Iate hour is oot kpown., The west
face was a five bhundred foot drop, (sbhoro mde the first
reppel and was s humdred feet below the ridee when Eathy
began her rappel to joln him. Iostezd, Eathy rappeled past
Osborn apd fell to her death. When Cshorn could net receive
an answer to cally to bis companion, he began to call for
help.

4 daring might rescuwe of Qsborn wes comducted by the
Search znd Rescue team at the monument. Iater, when it was
suggested that Chief Ranger Jim Iapgford's neme be submiltted
for an award for his part in the rescue, Jim declined the
nemination, saying thet that was what the job of ranper ws
all about, and it had just been part of his job. However,
in 1971, James langfond received the Valor Award which is
the highest awrd bestowed by the Demritvent of the
Interior. The award is only given cn such occasions when
the recipisnts endangered their own lives to save that of
another.

Ootober 25, 1970 saw another zecidsptal fatality of =
visitor to the mrk. This time it wes oot = climber but a
hiker, who had come for the weekend fran Marin County with a
graup of other stulents apd their instructors o enjoy
hiking the Pipnacles' trails. On the afterpoon of the
twenty—fifth, the party divided inte two groups, cach teking
5 differemt route on the High Peaks Tredl. Michasel louie
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Cweng anl two other boys hed stopped to rest, after which
his coppanions ¢limbed s pearby pinngcle. They then called
Orens to advise him of their location. In en attempt o
reech his coppanions, Owmens evidently fell to his death,
The marty of studepts did pot know his ct location, but

they conducterd an exhaustive search which eontinued into

the following day, rt which time they notified the super—

intemdent's office. A4 search was made by the Pinnacles
staff g Owen's body was found where he had fallen sixty
foat to his death. The Jan Benito Comty Sheriff's Office
camender the rangers for the professicnal w#ay in which they
bad carried oot the search and helped conduct the ques—
ticnimr of the witmesses thaet follow=d the recovery cf the
body.

There have been two other fatal accidents to climbers
since that of Eathy Seski in 1970. One happened on May 13,
1876 when Mitehell Haydom fram Livermore wag climbdng in
Juniper Canyon with compenions. Hewdon was an experiénced
climber, but trouble with his rope amd a lmot that had
slipped caunsed a sixty-foot fztal fall.

Co December 5, 1976 the other accidept Involved thwo
young men from Cuperting, California, sbo were climbing the
"Direct" Route Machete Ridee. Despite thedir youth they were
both experienced climbers. Frank Meyes wis leading the
pitch at the time of the accident. His companion, who had

made the glimb befors, thought apother anchor might be



necred and had brought along the equipmsnt o install ome.
Mayes opted not to be bothered with the installation of the
ahchor that mght have saved his llie. He fell to a iedge
approximetely fifty fest below to his death. EHesulting from
the Board of Inquiry that followed the accident was the
resolution to officially request Mr. Chuck Richards, the
suthor of Pionecles Climper's Guide to delete fram future

editicps a statement thet tends to discourage climbers from
placing additiona) protective anchors cop that particular
TAite.

Hthough 1970 bad ended on & note of sadness, the year
had been one of rer::ﬁrd attendence at the mmmept wth
vigitation climhing to 166,208.

The question of a road through the monument from Route
101 at Soledad to Route 25 1n Bear Valley was still arcupd
in 1971, since the 1965 master plan mroposed it be mode a
scenic route. The Chambers of Comperce of Hollister, King
City and Soledad were for the connecting road, ss were the
Goards of Supervisors of both San Benmito amd Monterey
Counties. Superintendent Gordon Patterson was also In fawor
of the rred and mede many sppesrances at varicus meetings in
the pelghtoring towms to pramte the idea. But the 1970's
was the decads when the ¥y word wes "eoviromment," as the
local officials found out when they asked for public opinion

on the iasue.
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In April of 1972 a new Master Plan study was ordered
for Pimnacles., The team conducting the study was headed by
landscape Architect A. Romeld Mortimore.

In preliminery Master Plan hearings in Hollister, it
developed that enviromental groups were opposed ko a
thrcugh read and they gained the support of the public. It
was found thzt the mjordty of the publie wanted to lkeep
that portion of the Finnscles unddsturbed, fre=e fron the
intruding antombile.

Yisitation to the momzpent hit an all-time high io 1971
shen 166,241 visits were recorded.

The practice of submbtting en anmial report by the
superintendents in the MWtiopal Park Service was reipstated
in 19272. Fourd 1in a Novarber 1972 merorandum from the
Director is the rationzle bebind the reenactment of that
practice. Director George B. Hart=oe, Jr. wrote:

I hawe Tong beenh aware that the Mational Park
Jerrice bas pot dopne all thet is desireble o -
preserve 1ts own history. ¥any governmental
agencies mintain historical offices for this
purpcse, oot only for antiguarlan jnterest it
to sorve the contiming needs of management.
Current policies and decisions cannot bBe properly
formilated with-cut reference to st experisnce.

The need i3 three—fold: to lnsure the preser-
vation of the records most significant for future
historizns, to foster the production of records
of mximm hlstorical velue, and to meintain a
staff capability to prepare narmative mterial of
historical occootent aopd to provide informmtion
relating to mst activities, achievements, and
personelities of the Service.

The establishment of the Mtional Park
Service archives at the Harper's Ferty Center was
& gtep toward mectipg thess needs. As another, I
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V. -.-

am Treingtituting the anmml report of the
Director of the Meticongl Perk 3ervice, discon-
timied in 1964, and asking for a superintemlent's
annual report for each park. « - -

Finslly, I am establishing a smll unit under
the supervision of the Chief Historian to carry
cut the following responsibilities:

before disposition of official records to the
Federasl BRecords Centers, 1o identify +those
records juiged by tHe Mationmal Park Service to be
most desirgble to preserve  for  historical
purpcses and to work with EBecords Center
Officials o insure preservation.

To prepare, 1n cooperzticon with key offi-
cials, the anmial report of the Director of the
Maticnal Park Service.

To asgist Harpers Ferry archival persoonel in
collecting wmofficial documenta important to an
understanding of Mationerl Park Service history,
including oral history « « « .

We are fortmate that Mrector Hartzog realized that
the greservation of our historical heritage was an important
adjunct to the new a.pi:reciation for, and interest io, the
preserwmtion of our patiurel resources. The reminder of the
information for the 1870's was taken fraom the superinten—
dent's annual reports, unless ctherwise stated.

In 19‘& the Vigitors Center received pew displays and
an "oren house" was held on March 1, 25 part of the Mational
Park's Centennial. Bear Gulch Trail, started early in 1971,
was finished and was dedicated on June 8. Pedestrians had
always bad to hike up the road; now they had s =afe and
attractive trril. The mooment’'s Matural History Associa-
tion became affilisted with Southwest Parks and Monuments
Asgocdation in this year aleo.

1973 =aw two new permainent full-time GS-5 FPark

Technician positiops allomted +o Flonacles, for  fee
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collection and protection activities. This raissd the
nurber of permnent positions to 11. Two new trail puides
were published: a geology guide to the Condor Gulch Tradl,
and s plant guide to the Bear Gulech Trail. The roads and
parklng area on the east side, and the west side entrance
road, were resurfaced. A &foct chain 1liopk fence wmas
constructed arcund the Chalope Creek Msintenapes Area to
prevent recurrence of a bresk-in aod theft of tools end
equipment eariier in the year. In October, Superintendemt
Gordon Fatterson transferred to the position of Park Safety
Fficer at Lake Mead Motiopal Becrestional drea.

In Jamary of 1874 ERothwell P. Eroyles, Chief of
Interpretation and RHesmurce Mamagement 2t Orgap Pipe Gactus
Mationel Monument, traosierred to Manacles as Superinten—
dent. The President's "back-to—school" program was utilized
in the hiripg of six intermittent bilinpual Park dddes who
were selected at San Benito Joint Union High School in
Hollister. Thess yvoung pecple had fto be willing fo use
Smnish as well as fMglish, and were required to wear
miforms. The first self-wniding oature trail for the west
side was instigated, with the oomiment's first biliogual
trail guide. In Muy, two miles of the old Pinnacles road
from the green rock quErry to the MRlconies ares was
converted to trail use only. This road had been clossl to
7isitor wehicles for several years, but oomtimed to be used

by povernment wehicles.
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A severe storm with snow and sleet in late Decamber aod
early Jammry aof 1974 closed the monment for seweral
days. This storm did svere damage to the ks in the
Malone and Bear Gulch drainages and the chaperral
throsghout the momment, closing =1l trails for several
weels ., |

The burning of solid wste in the mommment dry lapd-
fill on Chalone Creck was ended in Jeovary, and in Pebrmary
the lapd-fill was closed by comtracting for garbage ranowal
to County approved land-fills.

The Pinpacles Lamd & Cattle Co. agein proposed to miild
ard operete campgrounds and to provide visitor use facili~
ties for lease to the NBES alopg lines pericdically proposed
aince 19649.

The redescription of the one clerk—typist G5—1 positicn
to Secretary G3-5 was apmroved in PDecegber.

At the begioning of the 1974 fire seascn, two old slip—
on  pumper wnilts previcusly intended for dispossl were
recoaditioned and put in wse as a tamporary fire truck.
Both units, one a 50 gilicn capacity and the other with 100
callon capacity were mpunt=d together on a one tom four by
four truek. These combrined urdits performed excepticnglly
well on the Romo fire and added greatly to the monument's
limited Tuoilding fire protection. There were w0 range
impravement control bims on the morument's boundary in

1574. (ne was the Bom burn on the southeast flank of the
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romreent, and it escaped abd burned 950 acres 1o the
monument. & wildfire on the (bondor Gulch trail in August
burned approximately one acre and was prombly caused by
youngsters playing with mtches.

The mmment's proposed Maéter Flan was released to the
public in May followed by public meetlings :.u the commmities
of Bollister amd Soledad. Mojor portiocns of the new plan
that received public endorsement were: (1) Mo through road;
{2} retention of Bear Gulch [mm; (3) remoral of visitor
facilities to the momment's boundaries, and (4) d2y use
only amd establishment of shuttle systans. In ¥rch, a
bouse hearing on  Pinpacles Wilderness was held io
Washington. A reage recanmenmdations by the Service were
10,880, up fram previcus  recanmendetions of 5,330 aores.
Superintendent Broyles made a map presentztion to the House
Interior and Insular Affairs Commttes outlining the edmin-
igtration's proposal and discussing its relationship to
present and future develomment of ths monument for v:i.éitnr
use,

The mmment’s Matural Resource Managerent Flap wes
campleted and submitied to Reglon for revlew and comment in
angust.

Sizteen work—study students from West Valley College
worked as Y.I1.P.'s on weckends and bolidays, assisting the
rangers in  1nterpretive, informmtion amd protecticon

=mrvices.
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Visitation dropped 1n 1974 about 13 percent fram the
previous year snd wes especially low Jamuaty through March
due to btad weather amd the fuel crisls.

1875 was a productive year. Many projects were made
poselble through the mmnpower provided by such training
programs ax CETA, AWARE and NYC.

A new permenent Perk Technigian position was filled in
Febrnmry of 1975, bringing the total oumber of full time
poaitions to 12, Three of the permanent positions were
asgigned to the west side of the monument: {district
renger, park techoician, and meintenancemmn}.

The Bear Gulch Visitor Center was enlarged by canbining
the bDuilding's sapa.rﬁte rocms for exhibdits, storage and
informetion intc one, doubling space for visitor use.
Chaparral’s Raoger Station wes alse improved for visitor
service by replacing double parage doors with a single balf
glass door amd large window. .

Bilingml nature walks were instituted in Yarch by
Spanish-epeakding Mark Aldes. Two of the gix bilingual Aide
positions were reassigned to the West District upon becaning
vacant and mere filled by high scheoel students from Soledad-
Gonznles High School.

In Oetober Hnnacles participated in the San Benito
County Feir for the first time with an exhibit as part of
the momument's Bicentennial Pregram. With a bicentenonial

grant of $1,000, District Eaoeer Hasp started the area’s
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first Exvirommental Edweation Program. Again, many valuable
hours of mnﬁjuer were contribtmted two park operation by
work-stidy students frop West Valley College.

Plannipz began in Decegber for mansgerent of the
pomment's cheyerral ecasystem through use of prescription
burning. Profesenr Harold Biswell of the Uhiversity of
California at Berkeley began g plan for reintroducing fire
a5 a management tonl at Pionacles. Fires in the mnument
were:  one twoancore flre above Chalone Creek Cimperound in
Jume, ard one range improvempent fire on the ooundary in
Mgy, The 2,000 acre burn gave an cpportmity for the
training of a fire team of five monument anployees.

Construrtion oo the proposed Juniper Caoyon Trail was
started in Febrwmry. The Bear Gulch trail was muintenanced,
five coocrete bridge atutments were venesred with rock, and
retaining walls reestablished. Improvement wags made on the
Bear (Gulch Caves {rail by an HIU crew.

Important boundary chapges were comiined with Wilder—
ness planping in one piece of legislation by Coogressman
Burt Talcott. Final review of the new Mister Plan's
Enviroomentzl Statement Wy the tublic waEs cogpleted 1o
December, the draft for the Bescurce Management Plan went
through regionsl review and was scheduled for public review
esrly in 1978.

During 1876, the 200tk anniversary of Indepemdence,

little Plonacles contiousd develcping in many dirvections.
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Blcentennial activities Iocluded an exhibit in the
Salinas Valley Feir amd the hosting of the Bicentennial
play, "We've Come Back For A Litfle Look Arcemd” st Dunne
Fark in Hollister.

Twc mintenance and one park ranger positions were
Upgraded to WL~3, WG-10, and GS-9 respectively. Two pew 130
day seaspnal positions were established.

Interpretive cmiects incpeased 103 percent over 1575
and sactivities increased to ipnclude the popular "Soakes
Alive!' deppnsirations. Weekend and boliday help was agzin
contributed by 20 students fram West Valley College.

Dr. Biswll’'s Chaparral Fire Ecology Ressarch Program
wasd reviewsd apd fimalized in May. BHo wildfires cecurred
diuring 1976, but amployees did respord to ane fire oufside
the romment's east bamdary. Cne 1,400 acre range improne—
ment fire on the mnument’'s boundary in May igvolved
training of 2 fire teem of four empl oyees.

Trainimer aod equipment aids for Search and Réscue
received more attention with the occurreosce of two rock
climbing fatalities, {(the first since 1970).

The 1.2 mile Juniper Canyon trail was codanpleted in
Jime. HEshabilitetion af the badly eroded beckeountry frzils
was Started in December, and frails through the Balconies
and Bear Gulch Caves areas were raised out of stream beds by
MYC groups franm BEollister and Soledad. Concrete amd asphelt
wter crossings were removed from the 0ld Piopacles trail

pricr to the aren becaning willderness.
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In August, 2 4060 ton rock failure in the narrow
canyon between Bemr Gulceh Cave and the reservoir blocked the
upper Moses Sgrings and Bear Galch freils. 4 report recon—
meoding remowal of the remeining 20-100 tons of unstable
rock waz made by Reglonal Geologist Gerry Witukl and
consultaint Michal Bukoveansiky. The ocperztiop ipvolved
erranmgements with Yosemite for tTwo experienced trail
mintepancemen, Jim Soyder and Rill Gorgas, to undertake
dropping the rock. 4 siz man crew worked through November
to ¢lear the area gpod remir the trail,

October 20, 1974, President Tord signed inote law,
HR-13160, and Omeilbes Wilderness Bill that established
12,952 acres of wilderness within tbe monupent. The Bill
also autharlzed bowmdery changes that added 1,717.3 acres of
private lands to the mmment. Thig brought Pinnacles!
acereage to 18,215.87 acres.

The pew mster plan was approwed by the Regional
Tirector in April, and the Matural Bascurce hh.nagment- Plan
we5 approved by the Regional Director in April.

Fabrary 1977 =s:w permnent full {ime positions at
Mnnacies lnereased from 12 to 14 by the camversion of twa
less~than—full-time mintenance worker positions through the
Bicentennial Iand and Herdtage Act. The Superintemdent's
pEition was redescribed end nperaded to GS5-13, epd the
position of Chief ISEM was also redescribed emd approved for

upgrading to GE-11 in December.
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Visitation toc the momment increased slightly although
camping decreszsed, pssibly due to the severe drougit
throaghout California. The Snakes Alive demonstration
contimiad to bs popular, as did rock ¢limbipg. There were
two sericus accldents, npelther rﬁsultin._g in fatalities
however.

The Chaparral Flre Ecology Hesearch program involving
prescribed burning was io its second year in 1977, and was
plagued by drought ami the inflexibility of the 180 day
limitation on the Porestry Technician positioon. Cut of 8
projected 800 acres, 113 were burned during February amd
Mirch alomg the ridge spstem of the high pesks.

Two trail bridges were coosiructed during the year, one
on the 0ld Pinpecles Trail and another zt the Besr Gulch
Picnic area. Improvement of the Balconies caves trail
continmued by the WYC participants fram Soledad. A three man
orew and animal packer started work on the High Peaks traeil
again in December. CETA continued in its third year of
providing mopower to the mmment, and s new (ETA
engineeriog—drafting aid position was approved for the
momment. In August, Flonacles was selected to participate
in President Carter's pew YAT progtrsm for wmemployed youth
of the comtrr. A5 a zatellite cperation of a Z00-enrollee
non~resident camp beadqmertered at Golden Gate, Flonnacles
was to eventually have 50 enrollees and 56 staff positiocns.
Teo lamd parcels totaling §20 acres of inboidings oo the

East Side were purchassd in Rovenber.
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The only fire of 1878 was a suspected arscn on Highway
25, which turned approximately 26 acres of monurent land zs
well as BIM land zmd private property. The fire Lroke oot
on July 19 apd wes contained esst of Route 146 on July 22,
The three year cold chaparral fire ecology research program
made no headwmy in 1978 doe to wmther and lack of
personnel .

The first 16 YACC enrollees began working at Pinnacles
in Jammtry. Twe work leaders, Joe Morris and Lisa 3mith,
were hired from NES trall crews, aod in February the Work
Coorinator position wes fllled. A scarcity of funds for
YAQL projects limited what could be completed by the crews
that vear, znd morale of both staff aod enrollees went down
with a freeze on néw hires in Cetober.

A 30-foot bridge, apd other muintsnance amd construc—
tion projects, were campleted by YACC and CETA crews as well
as park amployees.

In ¥rch a 180 acre parcel on the west side r.:rf the
omrment was acquired from John A. Brossesu. Condemnation
proceadings were filed on land owned by Larry Wilson aod in
Noverber on 120 acres on the east side owned by Albert
Enszen.

Dlapns for closing the two Ergt Side Campgrounds on
Chelone Creef were completed in December following the
issuance of a press release anncuncing the closure for
January 1979 and the opening of the new private campground

at the mmeent's Fast Entrance.
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Pinnarles pmrticimted in the Szp Benito County Falr
again in 1979 with & booth femturing ths “'Spakes Alive"
damuostration. A Wildflower Festival wag held in April, and
a celebration of Spanish Heritage week in September.

Mommment persomnel hapdled 15 search amd  rescus
missions during the year. The m:-mmani: wes abls to upgrade
the mearch and rescue equipment caches with regional reserve
roney. Working relations apd training were established with
the Air Rescues Unit at Lemnore Nawval Alr Station.

Trainipg for the mmment staff took place during three

mrtual aide suppression fires loemted near the boundary.

Two fires ocourred early in the sesson before CDF crews were
at full strength. The Chaprrrzl prescribed Durning program
wme sureesstul at last in its fourth year with 1Y prescribed
fires burning 538 acres. One fire in cogperation #lth BHM
pravided expellent training in use of large crews and
technical fire equipment.

Special fumids were mrovided for handicapped anceés to
the Condor Gulch restroas and the Dear Gulch Visltor Center,
and worhk wes started in Augunst, imwolving YACQT apd mainte—
nance forees.

4 fourth frail bridee was completed at the Chalone
Creck Anpex and two additional bridges were started on the

Bench trail.
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. Pimarles' valurble YACC proeram was in its second year
in 1979 and duripng that sear it provided work mojects
valued at $1365,452. Im October it was necessary io inte-

grate the I6-enrollee camp with the park's Mintenance

Division wder the directicn of East Dis*l;rict Maintenanase
Foreman Apolonio Espinasa.

In ¥arch the U.3. Attorney's Office filed & teke on the
1,136 acres in the West District owned by larry Wilson, due
to a threst of developmant. The declamation of faking wes
recorded in May with the monument taWdng possessicn. This
action left only 120 acres of inkoldlogs <smed by Hapson
Parms.

A step toward implepentation of the Pinnacles Master
. Plan was taken with the opening of the private campsrowmd on
| the Fast District. As part of the Master Plan, the two

Chaione Creek Camporounds were closed to camping and
coverted to exclusive day use as of January 1975.

At the close of the 70's it was apperent that Pinnacles
Vatipnal ¥orment had beepn "put on the mp,” in the words of
Superintendent EBrovles. For three years the Reglonal
Mirector obtained a special achievement awarmd, quality
increase, or Interior Superior Performince asaerd for the
superintendept. These awards were btased on all the fzcets
of chamge: the approval and implapentation of the Mester
Plan, with its wllderness desigpation, lard acquisition and
mowing canmperounds to the private sector; the close rela~

. tiocnships with FPark neighhors amd other sapencles; the
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institution of the youth programs, which nede possible the
uperading and rehabilitation of haildings, structures and
trails apd the conmecting of all trails with bridges, takinog
all foot traffic off the teads; the institution of bilingual
persenmel and services in the I%AM division; the addition af
wamen in all divisions including the uniformed staff;, and
the reintroduction of fire as a tool for the perpetuation af

the (haparral ecosystam.
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Chapter 14

NATURAL, RESCIRCES

Pilonacles Maticnal ¥omment was esteblished to preserve
the wnique rock formmations that are remants af Mocene
voleanic activity, and to protect the rare botanical
specimens found there. The Plonscles emampie of the
broadlesf chaparmal ecosysten 1s the only one found in the
Mational Park Service.

The rock formaticns are in ap adwenoced stage of decon—
position, and they remresent the effects of wextberlog,
block faulting, and contimous earthgwmkes over the [astT
323,000,000 years. The strong formations are well consoli-
dated GLreceiz and are impressively large, same risiog
vertically several hupdved meters into the air,

Located on the eastern edege of the Pacifie
plate, the mpurk is an emwellent exomple of
tectonic plate mvement. The rock is believed to
have originated in the Neenach formaticn, near
Fresent day lancaster, Californis, some 195 miles.
{34 Klamters)} south of the mrik’'s pressnt
position, and then moved oorthwebd, elopg the San
Andress Fault, at g rmate of approximtely 1.5

" inches (3.8 om) per year. The helonge Creel
Fauit, located within the park, is historically
believerd to have been the mmin Iine of the San
Anfress Pault, now locafted 4 mles (5 kKilameters)
to the east.

This history of fawlting and earthquekes
has created deep, oparrow gorges shere buge
boulders have toppied from higher formmtions and
hecome wedged at various heipghts above the canyon
floor, creating the Bear Gulch and Baiconies
Talus Caves.

While the Plonacles themselves cover 10
percent af the momueent amd support little
vegetation, with the exception of lichens, scme
BQ percent of the land is aoversd with ccastal
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chaperral. Thig cemrminity wainly coasists of
specinlized plante such as Chamise, Buckbrush,
Minemnita, and invading Digger Pine, and provides
most of the shelter amd focd for the area wild=-
life. This commmity also supports the rare and
endzngzered Pinnacles Buckwheat (Erigonium
Kortonii). The chaparral is generally very deepse
axl overmture due to the lack of natural fire
cver the last 50 years.

The other 10 percent of the momment is
camposed of riparign commmities, principally an
ek, Cottoonwood, Sycamore, Digger Pine relatiop=
ghip. Plants amd apimels in this generally ardd
region are bound together by their oeed for
water, arml it is here that they find it.

The park supports a wide wariety of
[ii=T13 11 R A reptiles, hbirds, amphibians, anr
insects. Chief amng these are the Cxmst
Blacktailed Deer, PBobcat, BRaceoon, Gray Fox,
Coyote, Morth Pacific Rattlesmake, Gopher Spake,
Prairie Palccon, Tarkey Walture, Raven, and Golden
Ezgle. Infrequent sightings of Mownmioin Lion,
Bald Eapgle, Black Bear, Peregrine Faleon, amd
California Condor are reported.

Perhaps when the overcrowmding of the park is eased with the
addition of new trails, aond the avtcebile is rampved to
parking facilities away frao the prime resource areas of the
mark, scme of the infreguent sightings of rare apimls and

hirds will bercomwe more fregquent.
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Chapter 15

CULTURAL RES(RIRCES

When the Antigquities Act was msSsed cn Jume 3, 1906,
which enabled the President to set aside certaio lands and
designate them a5 nation2] momments, the Act was primarily
aimed at preservinpg Indizn sites apd giving legnl protection
gpainst dameging or remwing any historical objects fram
public lands, Recent studies have wmearthed artifacts apd
other evidence that Indians my at one time have been more
prevelent at the Pinnscles than had ever before been
thempht. Perhaps future iovestipation will wmeover gvidence
that will make the history of the Iodians at PFiopacles one
of the importent cultural rescources of the rark.

Archenicgicel studies condusted at the monument kave
found twelve bedrock mortar sites, but most indications
point %o the aree as having been used ssasonally for
hunting, not for permanent habitation by the Ipdiazns of the
region. Two of the sites bave been coosidered o sarrant
furtber excavation, and protection by the sdministration.

It is felt th:t the O!d Pinnacles Tredil is part of the
anrient Indian trail, and was later used by the Spanish.
This trail also figures in the tales of the wericus bandits
who used the Pimmacles as an escepe route and possibly =z
hideout, principally of Tiburcio Vasguez.

Besides the severzl Furopean settlements founded near
the momument, ssversl bomesteads are known to have existed

within the park boundaries.
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The importance of preserving Indian sites and culture
has lopg been recopnized by the federal govermmeat, as is
attested to by the Antiquities Act of 1806. It is muich more
recently that the recognitinn of our historical resources
shuld also receive high pricrity.

The Matiopal Historical Resources Preservation Act, and
the Fxerutive Order 11582, for the Protection of Historic
and Cultural Properties promulgnted by the President's
Advisory Couneil on Historic Preservation (36 C.F.R. Pt.
800) contain procedures for zoning and protecting some lands
and structures that do not meet the criteria for the
Mationzl Register of Historic Places.

Pipnacies Hatiomal M¥ormument has several examples of
historic erchitecturs within its beundaries thet seem to
£i11 the criterie for namination to the Bational Register of
Historic Places, a5 well as other builldioers and structwoes
tirat bave muech n:ea.nmg o those close to the momment, if
for no historicel reason.

The style of architecture that ewolved within the
natioonal prris and monuments between the years 1916 and 1942
fran the values held by the directors of the Mational Park
Service and those of lehdscape architecturs has come to be
nown as ‘rustic” architecture. The examples of ‘'rustic
architectire 2t Pinnacles have now become one of the monu-

ment's ocultursl rescurce assels.

o]



The first glimpse the visitor bas of Fionacles Haetionzl
Monument 1s from between the w0 gereen sntrance pylons near
the eastern entrance to the park. The pylons are an example
of what is meant by "mustic” architecturs. They were Mmilt
in 1835 by the OCC. The green wlcanice rock frawm which they
are mde was ftaken from a qumrry on the Chalone Creek shere
1 truck treil wes Meing constructed to the Old Flonacles
campgrounds. The green rock that is displayed in the
entirance pylons bas ocape W be symbolic of Pinoacles
Maticnal Momment.

In 1841, Superintepdent Eawlkdns informed his superiors
that the army had requested to purchase 80 cubic feet of the
crushed, grees rock oo which o mamt a cannon 2t Fore
rd. He asked permission o sell the rock as there was an
excess of the material, and Be felt the gesture would give
quite 2 hit of publicity to the monurent. Hegiopal DMrector
{John R. White) gave permission w ==ll the rock, hu_t had
strong objection to any publiclty on the matler. The
reascns for the cbiection to any publicity were that it was
highly umisael for such material to ke hauled out of a
pational perk, and particularly, because the army might not
want any publicity about toe purpess for which the crushed
rock was intsmded. The entrance pylons are 2 dramtic use
of the synbclic green rock.

One gquarter mile m=st the entrance to the momment is

found the bridge sSpanning the {(halone Creek. The stone
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structure of this bridpe, built in 1834, is another ¢xampie
of "ristic! architecture. ‘The stone for the bridege was
lined apd cut by the OO men, under the direction of the
Italian stone masons who were especially hired for the
job. The craftmanship of the work done on the Chalone Creek
bridge mkes it ope of the most bea.utiful exampies of
tmistie” architecture foumd at the mommment. We can see why
Suparintendent Hawkins claimed when it was built that it
would be the st beautiful beidge in San Benito County.
Probably no other bridge bas yet usurped this claim.
Although the trees and brush aloeg the creek now obstruct
the view of the stonework, B better vantage poini cgn be had
fram the Bear Gulch Trail. A closer inspection of the
structure is well worth the effort of a short hike.

We ope that sometime ir the future the entrance pyloos
and the Chalcpe Creek bridge can be addait:the]is;;tnf
nistoric structures at Pinpacles to be preserved.

The oldest buildings at Pinnecles are Building #2, Chief
Ranger's Residence, and Building #17, the comlort station at
the upper parking lot acrees fram the foot of Bear Guleh
Trzil. Both were bullt in 1928, and both are nominees for
the Maticmal Regigter. ‘The other camfort station, tullt in
1231 at the foot of Condor Gulch Trail is also a oaminee.

The rock veneered Chief Rznper's Residence was original-—-

1y 2 two rocm cabln and was enlarged in 1937. Even an
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egpert cannct tell wherse the addition wes made, which is a
testimny to the skill of the sione mason.

The area at the end of the utility road up Condor Gulch
was the maintenance area in the 193073, and there were two
Bildings erected in 1934 {an equipment shed, and an oil and
pas house), amd the third was tuilt in 1835, a borse btarn.
The eqipment shed wes destroyed by fire 4n 1951, but the
Two ramining buildipgs, th;.a- storage shed (horse barn}, and
fire cache {oil amd g3 house), are noninees for the
Mational Reglster.

Another nominee for the Watiopal Register is the Bear
Gulch Dam at the reservoir abowe the Bear Gulch Caves. This
structure #as built io 1837 by the OCC, but the stone facing
was pever finished. The gtope was gtockpiled, and the
facing wes finelly completed in 1576.

The one remiring tuilding et the mmment that seems to
qmlify for namimstion to the Maticnal BRegister il; the
Visitar Center. In 1638, when the HWlding was first
erected, it was known as the "Deelling for Official
Visitors." 4t that time it contained two roams with mths,
apd each rocm had a fireplace. Later it weas used as the
beadquarters, aod still Iater, extensive inside remodeling
and an enclosed front porch enabled it to be used in its
present capmeity, as en informetion center. The green tock
facing on the bullding makes it one of unlgue architecture.

The green rock had been originally slated to weoeer all the
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capins in the umediate arez, but a fesred shortage of the
rock cansed the use of the rosefgray rock on the other
cabing in the arez. The rose/gray rock also meore closely
resembled the surrounding landscape. The landscape archi—
tect at the time of the building of the Visitor Center made
note af the bright grear color of the stome, but s21id he ws
sure the color would fade with weathering and would be more
harmonious with the surrounding landscape. The Visitor
Center remaing s pleasing contrast in color to the other
ildngs.

In 1952, there was a2 project at Pipnacles {0 have more
sigpe—trail signs, entrance zigns, interpretive signs—and
the plans for all these sign=s, calling for extensive use of
the green voleanic rock for the mses of the signs, were
approved by both the Begiopmal and the Washington Offices of
the Matippal DPark Service. Bwever, the plans were oot
aprroved by the superintepdent of the purk at that time,
Bussell Gibkes. Me. Gibbs sinted that 2 stop should be put
to the use of the ireen wloanic rock. Be felt that,
besides shrteninz the supply of the mterial, =ceszive use
of this rock wmld detract fram the significance of the
existing structures—the entrance pyleons and the Yisitor
Center—becanse they were unigee displays of the special
rock. Be recomendad thot future signs use the type of rock
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that was abupdantly found elzewhere in the park, 2nd that
would also barmonise  better with the surrounding
nackgrounds.

We cannot help kut fesl BRussell Gibhs dessrves a wote of
thapks for his stand. His forecightedness mkes o green
structures even more valuable, as well as more attractive by

cagmarlson with other structares at the mmoent.
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Chepter 16

ADMINISTHATIVE PROBLEMS

Cne of the higgest tools for avoiding administrative
froblams in long range planping for any park ¢r monument bas
beer the ¥Yaster Plan. The Master Plan, or Statement for
Mapnagement as 1t is now called, is a well devised consoli-~
dation of thoughts concerning the future planming of s park
from persops in all fields of eapertize. In the early days
of ths Mational Park Service, these persons and the
administrator of the park were in on the plans for that
park. In more recent gears, the plan is present=] w the
peighbors of the park in the surrounding commmities to
receive their views as to the future planning of that
mrk. These cuggestions are sericusly considered, and the
plan might be altered before finalizipg. In this way, the
public has s say in any changes and developments within the
neighboring rark.

The first aster Pian for Pimnacles Mational Momment
wis drawn up in 1933, Subsequent plans were prle-sented in
the years, 1036, 1940, 194Z, 1959, 1885, and 1975,

The Statement for Manspement is important because it
allows the admipistration a chapce to re—evalumte the long
rangs goals of the mrk in relationship to visitor use,
facilities, and a.uy bamdary changes.

Paclk in the early days of the monumsnt, when there #as

only a mart time custodian, eod later, with just a part time
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custodian and copne mark ranger, the biggest problems facing
the mdministration of Plonacles aust bave heen where to get
the funding for visitor facilities, and bow to get the
vigitors to use the ifacilities. Pindimg for different
projects is still a problem, but getting visitors to cape to
the mmment bas long since ceased being 2 ﬁmble:n. ¥isita—
tion has risen toc such a degres, that now the admimistration
mist plan on controlled use of the matpral resowees if
three rescurces are to be preserved.

The isitor's wehicle i= the bigpest problem facing
mpagement today. Thousands of visitors to the park are
twned away each year because of the Iimited parking
familities in the mmment. NMinety pervent of the TEHM
ﬁﬁf are tied up directipg traffic instesd of being on the
trails in direct visitor contact. Even the limitaticn of
park facilities to strictly day use (om the east side), in
1979 did oot =mive the prmblgn of the autooobiles, it just
redistributed them, The Bear Gulch area, and the Bear Gulch
Caves prMe the most popular attraction to the wisitor,
accounting for ninety percent of the east side visitor use,
leaving ninety perevent of the park resources and the wilder—
ness practically unseen or inexperienced by the wvisitor.
Because thers is no public transportation opeatr the ezstern
boundary of the moooent, most of visitors to the monurent
arrive in private esutomobiles, end mst of thege visitors

want to drive intoc Bear Gulch.
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Plans for alleviating the overorowding problem inciude &
shuttle ms system for the visiting public; mlternate trail
systems to redistribute the visitors throughout the park,
abd a shifting of emphasis to ths west side of the moorment
wherz pmiblic frapsportation would be more readily available
viae state hipghway 101. Ontll these plans are reeslized, the
park management must coptlie to find ways of meeting
present needs.

Puture plans for Plonacles call for ramoviog the Visltor
Center to the pewly—acquired land oo the eastern boundary.
By having ample mardng facilities, amd the ¥isitor Center
located on an area of limited resources, and by having the
visitors shuttled ioto the hipgh resource arens, the manage—
ment woild be able to efucate the visitor better in regard
to use of the parh, abd on safety measures. Derhaps this
wolld help ease another one of the major problems facing
park management.

The High Peaks area of the mrk is probably the prime
respurce gt Pinnacles. Tel every sesson, that resares 1s
emdangered because of the oareless visitor act of short-
eutting on the switchbacks on the trzils. It seems to
visitors to be such g minor offense to take 2 little short-
cut, it the soil composition at Plonacles is a0 delicate
that the vegetation is degsiroyed by the short—cutting, and
the following winter when the rains come, the mountain is

slowly wached awny through ercsion. It is no easy thing to
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find ways to shore up the erosicm on the trails, and it is
very eipensive. DBut even the expense wmild seem worthwhile
if the mepasures to stop ercsion were effective, and if the
visitor learned not to short—-cut on the trails. It is boped
that through more direct visitor conmiact apd education, this
problem will be reduced greatly.

The visitor mas not been the ooly offender in the short-
cuttiog problem. A large populatiom of trapsient feral pigs
alsn cut trail switchbaelks that result 1o the deterioraticn
of the trails.

The ground squirrel population at Pinnacles has thrived
with the increased visitztion to the monument. It im
believed ome of the mjor Icnu‘tr:ibu‘tc:rs to the increased
population and boldness of the ground squirrel has been the
vislitor who feeds the animsl. Through increased efforts of
the mrk staff, the visltor is being ipformed of the dangers
acoanpanying the feeding of the sguirrels. The .i.uc.rema in
the potential for the spread of diseasss throughout thé rest
of the anim] populations.

How to deal effectively with the problem of the
increased ground sguirrel population apd that of the feral
pigs, and the problem of too many deer for the amount of
feerd constitute ancther minagement provlem.

Another problem that has zecompanied the rise in
vizitation is the rise in police protection that the

administration must provide for the visitor, fram thoze #ho
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do not wish to conform to the rules. In the 1530's there
was a law that oo caie or dogs should be allowed in national
parks or momments. This caused quite 2 delicate sitwation
for the custodian of Pinnacles shen it was learned that cne
of the Army officers at the OOC camp cwnéd a cat as 2 family
pet. Tt was finally considered that cooperation withk the
Aty was more important thar strict enforcement of the
rujes. Sioce that time the rule has beer modified, amd dogs
and catz ere allowed if on leashes. Ahr unleashed domestic
animal iS5 a minor, however freguent, violation of the iaw
that the park ranger mist attend to, wshen the time could be
more profitably spent in pomitive visitor contact. Rolice
problems have risen but oot ir proportion with the rise in
vislitation.

Through the belp of the Statement for Management, and
fulfiillwent of mny of the visitor faecilitly changes that the
plan cutlines, it is boped that many of the administrative

vroblems at Pinnacles will be alleviated in the pear future.
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LEGISLATIVE H1STORY

Proclamation of July 18, 1906

 Established Pinnacles Forest Resefive 14,080 acres.

. Proclamation Mo. 796, January 16, 1908 (35 Stat. 2177

Establizshed Finnacles'ﬂﬁtiuﬁai Hoﬁument totaling approximately
2,080 acres from lands within Pinnacles Natfonal Forest

Proclemation No. 1450, May 7, 192% (43 Stat. 1911)

ﬁddeﬂ spproximately 542 acres

Proclamation No. 1704, July 2, 1924 (43 Stat. 1961)

Added apwroximately 326 acres

Proclamation No. 1948, April 13, 1931 (47 Stat. 2451)

Added approximately 1,926 acres

Proctamstion No. 2050, July 41, 1933 (43 Stat. 1701)

Added approximately 5,322 acres

Proctamation No. 2528, becember 5, 1941 (55 Stat. 1709)

Added approximately 4,300 acres

. Act of October 20, 1976, (90 Stat. 2692)

Designated 13,270 acres of tand within:Pinnacles National Monu—
ment as wilderness and added approximately 1,720 acres te the Monument
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Pinnaclies Superintendents

f 1. Herman Hermansen, custodian . . . . « . . - .5/25/23 ~ /15725
i
2. wWashington Irving Hawkins, custodian . . . . /15425 = &/30/45
3. Frank R. Givens, Custodtan . « « = w « « o « 776045 = 3/2/47
4,  Witliams H. Gibbs, supesrintendent, ., . . . . 6/15/47 - 11/22/52
5. Ben £. Miller, superintendent. . . . .« . . . 3F2B/53 — 4/10/53
&y L. Earl Jackson, superintendent, . . . . . . ?/19/53 - V/14/55
. 7. Russell L. Mahan, superintendent . ., . . . . FF16/55 -~ 5417/58
: E”
- Everett W. Bright, superintendent, . . . . . 6G/22/58 = 1724744
g. helyle R. Stevens, superintendent. . . . . . TF24564 ~ B3/31 1468
1aq, Gordon K. Patterson, superintendent, . . . .- &/TFEB = 10/4/73

1. Rothwell P, Broyles, superintendent, . . . . . 1/6/7&- present
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101
902
CETA

02
803
CETA

YACL
YACC
YACC
YaLc

900
300
CETA

1978 - 1979 ORGANIZATION CHART

gffice of Superintandent

Superintendhent
Secretary
Writer-Historian

padmimistrative Division

Administrative Officer
Clerk Typist
Account Clerk Trainee

1
Yuuni pdult Conservation Corps

Work Coardinator
Work Leader

Work Leader

YACC Enrollee (142

Epsﬁtiﬂh Lodes

Permarent Full-Time
Permanent-Less-Than Full=Time
Seasonal-not to exceed 180 days
Comprehensive Employee Training Act

G5-12
G505
R-41

Gs-07
G35-02
R-31

65-0%
Wi-02
Wi-02
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04
903

0%
11
12

805
809
810
g12|
YIP

05
10
814
B1é
CETA
VIP

Interpretation & Resource Management Division

Chief Park Ranger
Farestry Technician

East District

District Park TRanger

Park Technician

Fark Technician (Bi-linguall
Park Technician

Park Aidé

Park Aid {(Bi-Linguall

Park Aid (Bi-ilinmgual
Yalunteer In Parks (8%

West District

pistrict Fark Ranger

Park Technician (Bi-lingual’
Fark Technician

Park Aid (Bi—Linguall

Clerk Typist Trainee
Volunteer Ifn Parks (&)

G5-11
G§-U5

Gs~-09
G5-0%
65-05
G5-04
ast$-03
G3-02
65-02

5509
Gs-05
G5-04
65-02
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Mzintenance Division

06 Ehief of Maintenance Ws-0%
CETA braftsman Trainee R=34
East District
ov Maintenance Foreman WL-%
0% Maintenance Mechanig Wa-%
12 Mzintenance Worker Wa-5
01 Laborer Wh-03
S04 Janitar W02
B2% Animal Packer wE-07
218 Maintenance Worker WG-05
CETA Maintenance Trainee {3} r=21
EETA Maintenance Worker (3} R-34
West District

aa Maintenance Foreman WwG=-10
14, Maintenance Worker WG-A
e aberer—— - Wit
205 Laborer wejyg-2

CETA

Maintenance Trainee
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Fire Appendix

August 1931 - (Report by Jaohn Diehl, Construction Supervisor) The

fire which started on Auwgust 25 from an unknown source reached
the north Line of the monument and was not diverted until prac-
tically all of the newly acquired area on the north including
that on both sides of-Chalone Creek along the east side of the
monument had been burned, :

A change of the wind carried the fire to the southwest resulting
in some destruction in that area of the monument.

The major portion of the burned area was covered with manzanita
and chamise brush, but along Chalone Creek excellent camp areas
were denuded of all brush and the scattered grove of digger pine
and pak timber.

When the fire reached the monument August 25, Ranger 7. Marcott
telephoned the sheriff of San Benito County for assistance and
gbout 50 men arrived from Hollister, California and adjacent
ranches.

In the scepic portion of the monument Little or no damage was
done by the fire. The fire Lastetd from August 25 to August 29,
inclusive, and the estimated area burned was 2,440 acres.

Gutside of the monument it is estimated between 25,000 and
20,000 acres of heavy brush and scattered timber were de-
stroyed.

The total cost of this fire to the Park Service was 3700.10, or
2 pET acre.,

Part of the large expense of fighting this fire was due to the
fact that it was necessary to keep approximately 20 men on the
fire line as an emergency crew to prevent the fire being driven
back into the monument by a change of wind and prevention of
further damage was accomplished.

Costs are segregated as follows:

Personal services 348630
Meals far fire fighters 148.00
Transportation &2, 80

Total 700,10

December 1937 - (from Superintendent's Monthly Marrative Report) The

Grassy Canyon Fire—The fire occurred on Saturday afterncon about
two o'clock, one half mile east of the east boundary of the mon-
ument and up the ridge on one side of Grassy Lanyon and Chalone
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Creek, and burning in a northeasterly direction away from the
monument, and up the ridge on one side of Grassy Canyon. The
fire started from Logs and debris which were being burned on
private Lland adjacent to the monument and which got out of
control,

The CLC camp persopnel immediately responded to the alarm and
in iess than two hours, using 121 men, the fire was brought
vnder controt. A mop=up crew of six men was left to work on
down logs and snags for 24 hours more. .. .

Ho expenditures were made from fire fighting funds. The expen~
ditures of ranger and CEC serwvices were asztimated at 3 value of
$i01.

1938 - {from Superintendent's Montihly Narrative Report} The
following fires octurred during the month: June &; smoke seen
sbout & p.m. in Chzlone Ereek caused considerable conmcsrn., Wo
ward was available from the empty lookout, and the telephone
was oyt or order. The fire was a few miles west of the monu-
ment near Shirttail Guich. It was put out by the state crew
at King City.

Jurne 18: Chalone Creek Bridae Fire; & acres, burned about an
hour, o special damage. Qecurred on the east side of the mon-
umert at the intersection of the Chalone Cresek and east entrance
road. Caused by a small picnic fire st the edge of the grass

‘near the road, left burning by an unknown person. No trees grew

within 300 feet of the fire. Three men zssisted by one woman
put out the fire before state Tire crew responded to the alarm
and assisted in the mop-up.

June 19-20: \Upper Stonewall Canyon Fire, occurring at 11:30 a.m.
burned 375 acres. This fire gecurred ogutside of the western
boundary of the park about one half mile. It wss brought under
control about 5:00 pom. of the ninetesnth. Mop-up work continued
cntil noon the next dav.

The fire was started by a2 smoker, who claimed it was uninten—

tional, but who was connected in some way with nearby ranchers
whiz had given trouble in previocus years. The state secured a

conviction.

August 17, 1940 ~ (Superintendent’s Monthly Narrative Report} The

fire, {probably incendiary} broke cut in several places on
Chalone {reek north of the monument within half a mite of the
Marcott purchase. About 200 acres of brush and scattered oaks
and pines in rough terrain, burned in the fire close to the
monument before it was checked. State forestry crews who made
the initial attack were assisted by monument personnel. On one
o} the fires farther west, 700 acres burned before being brought
under controf.



i August 15, 1941 - (Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Reports) A
_ brush firg was the particular matter of importance during the
(_. month, The fire originated outside the boundaries of the monu-
ment about two miles west of the Old Pinnacles and burned &0
acres withip the monument. There was serious delay in reaching
the fire, which was in thick brush, principally chamise, and 3
stiff breegfcaused it to spread rapidly. Besides monument per-
sonnel, state fire suppression crews from Finnacles, Hollister,
Bonzales, King City, and 25 men from Gilroy CCC camp partici~
pated in the fighting. *he fire was brought under control after

it had burned over approjimately 400 acres and burned For about
10 hours,

=y
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September 1941 - (Superintendent's Monthiy Narrative Report) A brush
fire, north of monument, burning about 1261 ascres. State fire
suppression crews and C{C crew from Gitroy controlled the blaze.

July 1, 1944 - (Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Report) A brush
fire broke out ocutside the houndaries on the west side, crossed
the boundary line and burned about 150 acres within the monument.

September 28, 1945 ~ (Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Report) A
forest fire and brush fire started outside the monument and burpned
cut ot contro! for three days spreading toward the monument, but
stopped just short of the boundary. The total acreage burned
was about 5,000 acres. The Custodian was on the fire line three

. times to assist the California Division of Forestry.

June 1946 - (Superintendent’s Monthly Narrative Report) A small
smoker fire was discovered in the canyon on the trail teading
te the caves. Suppression crew arrived in time to prevent it
from gaining headway up the steep, dry brush-and grass-covered
watls. Much of our hose was found to be too old to be used with
the new Navy fog-shut-off nozzle during fire inmstructions during
the month.

i

July 1947 - (Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Report} Fire, repor-
ted burning on the caves trail by a Mr. Ridler, in controt in
seven minutes.

May 1951 - (Superintendent's Monthiy Narrative Report} California
Bivision of Forestry has mamned their Bear Valley Fire Camp,
which ¥s tocated nine miles from Headguarters. They can be
called on in case fire breaks out in the monument. The new
road up the west side of MNorth Chalone Peak 35 now finished and
is a great help 4n bringing in water and supplies and relief men
to the Lookaut.

July 1951 - {Superintendent’s Monthly Narrative Report? Regienal
Forester Sanford visited the area on the 1Bth in cormection
with the investigation of the burning of the Chalone Lookaut.
At noon on Monday July 16 the {ookout buitding burned to the
‘ . ground and the fire spread over iess than one fourth of an acre
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before it was suppressed by the state suppression crew from
Gonzales., . . . .

September 1951 - {Superintendent®s Monthly Harrative Report) <C{ali-

fornia Bivision of Forestry conducted a controb burn in the
Farks Valley area about tws miles north of the monument. PAbout
4,000 acres had been trailed with bulidozer, and they had no
trouble,

September 1951 - {Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Report} The fire

was in the récks about 500 feet {rom the Bear Gulch campground
and was out when reached by the ranger. Visitars had put it ocut
in a few minutes. The California Bivision of Forestry was noti-
fied by phone, and sent In two pumper trews and alerted the
Hollister and Xing City headquarters, This was mentioned to show
that the state was on the job as far fas fires in the Pinnacles
were concerned. Construction started on the Chalone Peak Lookout
by the California Division of Forestry and was expected to be
finighed and manned by August of that year.

August 19%2 -~ {Superintendent®s Monthly Narrative Report} Two fires

June

peeurred during the month on private lands near the monument.
Gre 300 acre fire started near Shirttail Gulch in Stonewall
Canyon and burned withind a mile or s¢ of the monument. The
ather ¢ne started onm the Gloria Grade and covered approximately
400 acres. Doth fires were handled by the state Division of
Forestry. Monument personnel were dispatched to boath fires,

1952 - A fire near the northeast corner of the monument broke
out on private land. The fire, caused by a faulty electric
company power Line, burned for twenty-four hours before being
contained, destroying several thousand acres of grain. 1 wat
another twenty=four hours before the suppression crews could
teave the fire. Monument personpel assisted the California
Division of Forestry and local ranchkers in the suppression of
the fire.

August 1958 - (Superintendent's Manthiy MNarrative Report) One man-

caused fire occurred on August 2 at the Chalone Creek campground
arga. Abour three acres were burned before it was brought under
control. Mecessary fire reports were submitted. Extreme dry
canditians prevailed, consequently, all personnel were on the
atert and all fire fighting equipment was in good condition for
instant operationd.

May 30 1959 — {Superintendent's Monthly Narrative Report) One man—

caused fire pocurred near the Bear Guich campground and head-
guarters area, Almost ope acre was burned before it was brought
under control. The fire potential will be great for the coming
Season,

June, 1974 —- (Superintendent’s Annuzl Reportl Twuwo range improvement

control burns were held on monument boundaries in 1974, The
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"Romp Burn on the southwest in June escaced dand burned nine
hundred f5€ty acres in the monument. A fire tegm from the mon-—
ument tobk part. This fire raised the auestion concerning lia-
bility of the Natiornal Park Service on controlled burns origi-
nating outside of the park.

August 79, 1974 - (Superintendent's Annvat Report) A second fire in
the monument burned one acre of monument property on the Condor
Gulch trail, It was started by smokers.

June 1975 - One ?-acre fire occurred on the [slopes above Chalone
Creek Campground, probably caused by a careless smoker or young-
sters playing with matches. There was one range jmpdrovement
fire on the monument's southebast boundary in May, and 3 fire
team of 5 monument employees took part in the 2,000-acre burn,
as tratning.

May 1975 - (Superintendent®s fnnual Repart) The second year of the
chaparfral fire ecology research program inveliving prescribed
burjning was hampfered by the severe drought., ., . Burning did
take place an eleven days during February and March, {for a
total of 113 acres out of a projected &00 acrez), mainly on
sguthern exposures in varying arrangements of chamise chaparral
along the ridge system of the high peaks.

July 19, 1978 - A fire from unknpown causes, lzlthough arson was sus-
perted, broke out in the early afterngon of July 19 mear the
northesst corner of the monument next to Highwaty 25. The §
Highway 25 fire burned approximately 2,000 acres before it was
contained on Juty 22, east of Route 7146, Approximately 26 acres &
of monument tand had been burned in the neortheastern corner of
thed park. Monument and Regional personnel helped the Californdia
Devartment of Forestry in contdaining the fire.

1979 — Monument crews zod equipment helped in three mutual-aid suppres-
sion fires neac the boundary, two of them early n the season
before CBF crews were at full strength. This fourth year of
the chaparral prescribed burning program was very successful.
Seventeen prescriptions burned 538 acres in the monument. The
South Chalone prescription fire in cooperation with BLM provided
excellent training ihnd use of Large crews and technical equip-
ment; this was the first use of s helitorch.,

e e
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visitation Statistics
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MONTHLY & ANNUAL TRAVEL FIGURES FOR PINMACLES N.M.

MONTH 1928 T2
January 354
fFebruary 508
March TRTE
April 1267
May 1703
Jung 926
July 1098
ALgust 905
September 1543

0drtober 457 &7 4
November 739 &21
December 379 319
BNHUALLY  1,.57% 10,795

MONTH 1935 1936
Januvary 357 HLT
February 257 331
March 1280 2458
fpral, 2514 3026
Mavy 3738 3204
June 2028 1411
July 1098621 1687
fugust 1350 1945
September 1492 13454
Nctober R&4 1240
Movember 1018 1063
December 475 472
AMNUALLY 17 ,A87 19.N30

MONTH 1942 19475
January LA 00
February 302 136
March S50 163
Anrii 1647 459
My . TR A0 L2
May 1725 &0
Jurne TA3 354
July B4&A 405
August 9I3 420
Santember 728 358
Detober [ TN A 00
November 1127 1224
Decemper_ _ 38  _360,
ANMEALYLY 10,371 4 ABY

1930

163
453
259

1189
21931
1457
1534
1256
1242

428
518
346

11,240

1937

52

o83
1257
4501
497
17742
2080
2049
1710
1414

P41

|

22,433

1944

127
2473
308
401

605 - .

402
330
721
380
284
227
155

LT

I, BLS

1931 1932 . 1933 1934
229 196 188 314
733 495 257 541

18g11 1872 565 1787
1900 2575 1646 2693
1573 2974 1465 463
1264 12%bbav  PPR9Te 2229
1418 1467 1356 2052
1422 879 BS7 1742
991 1226 714 1898
694 106§C 1155 1273
459 690 4699 733

__ 156 180 627 344
12,628 14,86}1 10,278 20,228
193814 1939 1940 1941
518 . 956 382 792
552 999 S&2 722
SO 1542 2288 1890
4090 5471 4330 4743
4623 3155 3822 4161
2068 2249 2502 3263
2964 3132 2631 2687
2048 2335 2247 3082
2007 1571 2686 2964
1243 1755 1795 1343
1251 1331 1187 123
- = R . 50 253
22,775 25,028 25,182 27,131
1945 1946 1947 1948
175 757 761 1153
220 757 1030 1709
458 1320 1965 1743
702 2647 302p2 1672
605 1870 2369 3640
538 1950 1677 2098
612 1653 1836 2283
962 1523 2247 1934
1345 1554 4155 1339
815 972 941 1043
638 883 370 1239
A0s 0 H1¢ 574 ___ 478
7,494 16,298 18,328 20,331
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FMONTHLY & ANNUAL TR#VEE_EEGURES FOR PINHﬁELES H.M.

MONTH 1949 19506

January 211 438
February 824 1414
March 1122 7290
April L4577 LQ0%
May Lede Tahd
Juna 1988 2315
July ETL Y 2569
AugUsT 2563 2265

September 1897 1519
fctober 1492 1566
Movember 1111 11350
December 796 555

1951 1952

218 ¥y
1640 1369
2780 2064
L6514 4038
3383 3952
2724 2788
3051 3123
299% 3191
2183 1982
LAY 2078
1140 1953

&09 1067

1953 1954 1955

2056 1501 756
5754 3329 2541
5495 2594 3567
6612 5775 5054
5497 5754  SQ05
2813 3693 3286
2863 3532 5079
3163 1327 3518
2631 3134 2811
2100 2499 2664
1855 1579 1838
1578 627 620

ANMUALLY 26,557 24,814

27,090 28,236

——e— —r——ap-

42,199 38,4344 36,532

MONTH 1956 1957 1958 1959 1960 1961 1942
January 861 1337 2107 2917 2882 3896 3640
February 2041 1911 2201 3159 S549 4236 3148
March 4424 4942 3703 11266 6170 8300 6560
april 5030 12069 5678 9050 11688 10539 14652
May 4844 7160 7287 BAS4 11032 9767 9581
June 4585 5149 5150 4040  SSTR 4806 7011
July 3P758 4245  SO33  538% 6552 6113 B361
Bt Sl b 25— 5030 — —
Bugust 4245 5030 4656 6680 6692 6810 7222
R T - e T S
September 3588 4057 5048 5005 488 4820 6316
October 2412 2573 4865 4622 4652  &1RS 4572
November 25854 2745 6450 5637 3922 3960 6652

2926 3010 2436 3428 372D

December 1649 19450

AHNUALLY Rt — - —-
ANNUALLY 40,291

534,178 54,904 71,422

72,044 76,860 81,473

Sea nerk 4
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MONTHLY & ANNUAL TRAVEL FIGURES FOR PIMHACLES N.M.

1968

55, 857 140,505 1
15, TET 10, BD5 16D, 0l 1E31TT

TR

3132
7852
19808
24314
17798
106098
71222
12532
1773
10672
15032
5808

L e e

147 043

MONTH 1963 1964 1965 1964 1967
January 4824 5756 6522 0816 9260 7132
Birebruary 7415 5623 17612 7398 15612 12562
March ge2R 11173 12569 11872 21698 18848
April 11743 12136 . 12758 18830 12018 22520
May 13647 12654 15521 16689 21208  1696%)
June 3820 8859 1444 9840 16788 13504
July 8751 8308 9067 10546 13864 13296
August 7684 R592 8452 9332 12023 13535
September 7447 7540 7448 7856 9719 10799
Gctober 6402 7872 47264 8246 9275 8428
November 6395 7784 L6224 7558 13060 9762
December  5132] 3352 3516 3756 6061 5834
ANNUALLY 97,007 103,186 118,M48 117,939 160,586 153,201
MONTH 1970 1971 1972 1973 1974 1975
January 7232 11132 11938 10485 4004 104384
Fenpuary 17898 15740 20931 13619 8004 20410
March 25958 15816 {25247  [16930 8776 16736
Aprit 1883, 26488 22216  20f027 20363 20035
May 16188 20174 16821 20290 17844 22216
June 14011 11764 9800 11056 11081 14403
July 11972 11563 12391 11133 1211 12489
August 13980 12312 10242 13094 11793 13387
September 11924 10280 9974 10340 113468 10998
Dctobar 9563 14716 10816 9853 10460 12945
November 12284 12276 10529 6260 13044 12368
Becember &3562 &280 7¥ag 35468 Q4638 8106
ANMUALLY 166,208 169,241 168896 155,455 138,476 162,477
MONTH 1976 1677 1978 1979
January 10500 1N%7 Tiss et
February 10921 16066 10456 14156
March 15114 16240 19044 20937
April 19298 20281 23421 24354
ME¥ay 1RLLT 18876 1B563 14832
June 11039 12914 12273 9724
July 167471 13040 13723 o823}
August 14800 19404 10702 8563
september 11698 9728 11142 10862
Dctober 11911 10108 12075 12054
November 10231 13787 10515 11277
December 7425 7720 7372 7599
A3 3P 71 56, HT857
ANNUALLY. 162,177 1 54,401




